
 

 

 

 

LEGAL NOTICE: 
 

SPECIAL MEETING OF  
THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Notice is hereby given that the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale, 

DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, will hold a Special Meeting (in place of the cancelled 

March 17, 2020 Regular Meeting) commencing at the hour of 7:30 p.m. on Monday, March 16, 

2020 in the Memorial Hall of the Memorial Building, 19 E. Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, 

for the purpose of discussing the topics noted on the following Agenda: 

 

 

                         MEETING NOTICE 

AND AGENDA 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

(replacing cancelled Regular Meeting of Tuesday March 17, 2020) 
Monday, March 16, 2020 

7:30 P.M.  
MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 

19 E. CHICAGO AVENUE, HINSDALE, ILLINOIS 
(Tentative & Subject to Change) 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

a) Regular Meeting of March 3, 2020 
 
4. VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
 
5. CITIZENS’ PETITIONS* (Pertaining to items appearing on this agenda) 

 
6. FIRST READINGS – INTRODUCTION**   

Items included for First Reading - Introduction may be disposed of in any one of the following ways:  
(1) moved to Consent Agenda for the subsequent meeting of the Board of Trustees; (2) moved to 
Second Reading/Non-Consent Agenda for consideration at a future meeting of the Board of 
Trustees; or (3) referred to Committee of the Whole or appropriate Board or Commission.  (Note 
that zoning matters will not be included on any Consent Agenda; all zoning matters will be afforded 
a First and a Second Reading.  Zoning matters indicated below by **.) 

 
Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes) 

a) Approve an Ordinance Amending Section 6-6-5 (Village Permit Parking Lots) of Title 6 
(Motor Vehicles and Traffic), Chapter 6 (Stopping, Standing and Parking) of the Village 
Code of the Village of Hinsdale Relative to Parking Permit Fees 
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Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear) 
b) Approve an ordinance approving a variation from Section 6-111(E) of the Village of 

Hinsdale Zoning Ordinance at 908 N. Elm Street, Hinsdale, IL – Case Number V-06-
19** 

c) Approve a Referral to Plan Commission of a Request to Hold a Public Hearing for 
Consideration of, and a Recommendation to the Board of Trustees on, a Temporary 
180-day Moratorium on the Issuance of any Demolition Permits or other Building or 
Zoning Approvals involving the Demolition of Landmarked Single-Family Homes, or of 
any Single Family Homes within the Village or within the Robbins Park and Central 
Business District Historic Districts 

d) Approve an ordinance to change certain parking regulations in the Central Business 
District (CBD) 

 
7. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed below have previously had a First Reading of the Board or are considered Routine*** 
and will be moved forward by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 
a member of the Village Board or citizen so request, in which event the item will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda. 
 

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes) 
a) Approval and payment of the accounts payable for the period of March 4, 2020 to March 

16, 2020, in the aggregate amount of $1,329,100.92 as set forth on the list provided by the 
Village Treasurer, of which a permanent copy is on file with the Village Clerk*** 

b) Approve an Ordinance to Collect Cable Public Education Government (PEG) fees to 
fund the replacement of cable broadcast equipment  (First Reading – March 3, 2020) 

c) Accept a proposal from Williams Architects/Aquatics for design engineering and 
construction management services for Community Pool renovations in the amount of 
$61,800  (First Reading – March 3, 2020) 

 
Environment & Public Services (Chair Byrnes) 

e) Approve the award of Custodial Services Bid #1669 to Bravo Service, Inc., for custodial 
services within Village facilities for one term (20 months), in the amount not to exceed 
$117,000*** 

 
8. SECOND READINGS / NON-CONSENT AGENDA – ADOPTION  

These items require action of the Board.  Typically, items appearing for Second Reading have been 
referred for further discussion/clarification or are zoning cases that require two readings.  In limited 
instances, items may be included as Non-Consent items and have not had the benefit of a First 
Reading due to emergency nature or time sensitivity, or when the item is a referral to another Board or 
Commission**** 

Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear) 
a) Approve an Ordinance Approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for Expansion 

and Redevelopment of a Paddle Court Warming Hut – Hinsdale Platform Tennis 
Association – 5901 S. County Line Road**   (First Reading – March 3, 2020) 

b) Approve an Ordinance Approving Variations Relative to the Replacement and/or 
Construction of New Improvements for Hinsdale Central High School at 5500 S. Grant 
Street, Hinsdale, Illinois – Hinsdale Township High School District 86 - Case Number V-
05-19**  (First Reading – March 3, 2020) 

c) Approve an Ordinance Approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for a New 
Natatorium and Various Other Improvements for Hinsdale Central High School at 5500 
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S. Grant Street - Hinsdale Township High School District 86**  (First Reading – March 
3, 2020) 

d) Approve an Ordinance Approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for Expansion 
and Redevelopment of an Existing Building – Dr. Vanwormer-Hartman - 110 E. Ogden 
Avenue**  (First Reading – March 3, 2020) 

 

9.  DISCUSSION ITEMS 
a) Parking deck update 
b) Tollway update 
c) Chamber of Commerce – Annual Event Calendar 
d) Integrated Pest Management 
 

10. DEPARTMENT AND STAFF REPORTS 
a) Engineering 
b) Public Services 
 

11. REPORTS FROM ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 

12. CITIZENS’ PETITIONS* (Pertaining to any Village issue) 
 

13. TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
 

14. CLOSED SESSION– 5 ILCS 120/2(c) (1)/(2)/(3)/(5)/(8)/(11)/(21) 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

*The opportunity to speak to the Village Board pursuant to the Citizens’ Petitions portions of a 
Village Board meeting agenda is provided for those who wish to comment on an agenda item or 
Village of Hinsdale issue.  The Village Board appreciates hearing from our residents and your 
thoughts and questions are valued.  The Village Board strives to make the best decisions for the 
Village and public input is very helpful.  Please use the podium as the proceedings are videotaped.  
Please announce your name and address before commenting.  
 
**The Village Board reserves the right to take final action on an Item listed as a First 
Reading if, pursuant to motion, the Board acts to waive the two reading policy.   

 
***Routine items appearing on the Consent Agenda may include those items that have 
previously had a First Reading, the Accounts Payable and previously-budgeted items that 
fall within budgetary limitations and have a total dollar amount of less than $500,000.  
 
****Items included on the Non-Consent Agenda due to “emergency nature or time 
sensitivity” are intended to be critical business items rather than policy or procedural 
changes.  Examples might include a bid that must be awarded prior to a significant price 
increase or documentation required by another government agency to complete essential 
infrastructure work.  
 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations 
in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding 
the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to promptly contact Darrell Langlois, 
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ADA Coordinator, at 630-789-7014 or by TDD at 630-789-7022 to allow the Village of Hinsdale to 
make reasonable accommodations for those persons.   

Website http://villageofhinsdale.org 

http://villageofhinsdale.org/


VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
March 3, 2020 

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Hinsdale Village Board of Trustees was called to order by 
Village President Tom Cauley in Memorial Hall of the Memorial Building on Tuesday, March 3, 
2020 at 7:32 p.m., roll call was taken. 

Present: Trustees Scott Banke, Luke Stifflear, Gerald J. Hughes, Laurel Haarlow, Neale Byrnes, 
and President Tom Cauley 

Absent: Trustee Matthew Posthuma 

Also Present: Village Manager Kathleen A. Gargano, Assistant Village Manager/Director of 
Public Safety Brad Bloom, Police Chief Brian King, Fire Chief John Giannelli, Finance Director 
Darrell Langlois, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner Robb McGinnis, 
Director of Public Services George Peluso, Superintendent of Parks & Recreation Heather 
Bereckis and Village Clerk Christine Bruton 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Cauley led those in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a) Regular Meeting of February 18, 2020 
Following changes to the draft minutes, Trustee Hughes moved to approve the draft 
minutes of the special meeting of February 18, 2020, as amended. Trustee Byrnes 
seconded the motion. 

AYES: Trustees Banke, Stifflear, Hughes, Haarlow and Byrnes 
NAYS: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Trustee Posthuma 

Motion carried. 

VILLAGE PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

President Cauley stated that recently there has been a spate of demolitions of historic homes; the 
Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) hears those requests. The chair of the HPC approached 
him because Commission members are discouraged as there is little they can do to stop these 
demolitions. Tomorrow they have three such homes on their agenda, two of which are classic 
homes: 716 S. Oak, the Dean house, and 419 S. Oak, the Clarke house. 
When they are gone you can't get them back, and therefore he recommends a moratorium on 
further demolition for a reasonable period of time in the Robbins district. He believes there should 
be a public hearing on this matter at the Plan Commission to determine if residents want this. 
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This is not punitive, but an effort to slow the process to determine if there is something different 
we can do, and consider ordinances that would be reasonable to attempt to preserve these 
homes. It would provide a hurdle for owners before demolishing an historic home. He 
acknowledged that people have property rights, but it would be beneficial to strike a balance. The 
Village will lose something if these types of homes are taken down. HPC members in the 
audience confirmed that the persons who have made application for these particular homes are 
new residents. Relative to what other communities do, Village Manager Gargano offered that in 
Wilmette the Village Board made the final decision. President Cauley suggested the moratorium 
be no more than six months, and there be a public hearing at the Plan Commission to discuss 
proposed regulations. 
Mr. Jim Prisby of 565 N. Vine Street, addressed the Board. He is a member of the HPC and 
said the Commission has been working on potential changes for the last 18 months. Village 
employee Mr. Mike Donofrio did a study of 12 other communities that should be available for 
Board review. President Cauley noted that the Board recently adopted an ordinance requiring 
plans be included when applying for demolition. Mr. Prisby added they have no enforcement 
power, HPC is advisory only. 
Ms. Alexis Braden of 436 E. First Street, addressed the Board. She is a member of the HPC 
and while she appreciates the Board's enthusiasm, a moratorium is too late for these homes. 
Trustee Banke said a moratorium makes sense to de-incentivize people from exercising their 
property rights, and incentivize preservation. Adjusting fee structures and such could alter the 
outcome. He pointed out it is expensive to update the mechanical systems of older homes, but a 
solution might be to preserve the far,:ade. This would maintain the character of the neighborhood. 
President Cauley asked if there's any way to offer a carrot to these homeowners to keep the 
far,:ade. Ms. Braden was doubtful, and believes the only solution is a long term education plan for 
realtors and residents. 
Trustee Hughes said there are still plenty of homes in the district to save; there are homes 
outside the district, too, that would be sad to lose. Maybe the moratorium should go beyond the 
Robbins historic district. A working group was identified to include two Board members, two 
members of the Plan Commission and two members of the Historic Preservation Commission. 

CITIZENS' PETITIONS 

None. 

FIRST READINGS - INTRODUCTION 

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes) 
a) Approve an Ordinance to Collect Cable Public Education Government (PEG) fees to 

fund the replacement of cable broadcast equipment 
Trustee Hughes introduced the item that will collect fees to replace outdated audio and 
video equipment used for Channel 6 broadcasting. Comcast and AT&T users will have a 
modest increase in their bills, $.35 - $1.00 for approximately two years. The fee will 
automatically roll off the bills when the money has been recouped. Trustee Byrnes is 
concerned about another tax, even if it is small. Trustee Stifflear agreed, but takes comfort 
in the fact that it is such a short time. 
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The Board agreed to move this item to the consent agenda of their next meeting. 

b) Accept a proposal from Williams Architects/Aquatics for design engineering and 
construction management services for Community Pool renovations in the amount 
of $61,800 
Trustee Hughes introduced the item relating to design engineering and construction 
management of pool renovations. The Village received a $400,000 grant to do the 
necessary work, as identified by the pool audit. This proposal is under budget. 
The Board agreed to move this item to the consent agenda of their next meeting. 

Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflear) 
c) Approve an Ordinance Approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for 

Expansion and Redevelopment of a Paddle Court Warming Hut - Hinsdale Platform 
Tennis Association - 5901 S. County Line Road 
Trustee Stifflear introduced the item for the expansion and renovation of the paddle hut 
located at the southeast corner of Katherine Legge Memorial Lodge (KLM), zoned Open 
Space. The hut will be expanded by 759' square feet. It will remain a one-story building, 
and the courts will remain the same. In addition to the building expansion, HPTA proposes 
a 524' square foot deck at the north entrance, an updated perimeter sidewalk, garbage 
enclosures directly east of the building, and a 3' foot 6" inch cupola to allow additional light 
into the building. Construction materials will match the existing warming hut, and no 
additional parking is required. This was reviewed by the Plan Commission and approved 
by a vote of 6-0. There was no public comment at the Plan Commission. 
Mr. Brian Freel and Mr. Vince Caprio with Caprio/Prisby Architects, addressed the 
Board. Mr. Freel stated the exterior materials will be the same, but they will change the 
colors to light grey with white trim to brighten up the facility. The existing landscape 
protects the Burr Ridge neighbors, providing light and noise shielding. Mr. Caprio said they 
intend to make the cellar deeper for storage, but this will not be visible. The bid opening for 
the project is March 25. 
The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting. 

d) Approve an Ordinance Approving Variations Relative to the Replacement and/or 
Construction of New Improvements for Hinsdale Central High School at 5500 S. 
Grant Street, Hinsdale, Illinois - Hinsdale Township High School District 86 - Case 
Number V-05-19 
Trustee Stifflear introduced this and the following item together. These items relate to the 
proposed expansion of Hinsdale Central High School. The Zoning Board of Appeals 
unanimously approved five variation requests: 1) allow a reduction in required parking from 
882 to 583 spaces (this is 23 spaces more than currently exist; 2) to waive the required 
landscape island in the parking lot and the open space buffer and loading space screening 
requirements to will allow for the increase in the number of parking spaces; 3) to waive the 
8' foot height limitation for fences for backstop and netting for the baseball field; 4) to waive 
the 8' foot height limitation for various fences and the setback requirement to replace the 
existing chain link fences at the tennis courts, track, baseball field and other athletic field 
fencing; and 5) to waive building setback, building height and screening requirements for 
the construction of two soccer field team shelters and a press box. 
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The second matter is the exterior appearance and site plan approval for the construction of a 
natatorium and various improvements. The new pool facility will be a two-story, 33,400' 
square foot building and other site renovations, including replacing the tennis courts and 
fencing, soccer field regrading and re-sodding, soccer field shelter and press box replacement 
and football field turf replacement. Trustee Stifflear noted that most of these variances are 
existing non-conformities, but because of the expansion, the property reverts to original zoning 
requirements. He noted that neighbor concerns were related to construction updates and 
traffic during construction. These concerns were addressed by the applicant. 
Mr. Nick Graal, architect from ARCON and Associates, representing District 86, 
addressed the Board. He explained that this is Phase 1 summer 2020 work only. This is a 
multi-phase project following the successful referendum. Subsequent phases are scheduled 
for 2021 and 2022. This phase includes the replacement of turf fields, track surfacing, tennis 
court paving, and soccer fields to address drainage issues. The soccer shelters and press box 
will be replaced on the existing footprint. The loading dock will be reconfigured, and the 
parking lot will be extended on the east side to provide for additional parking spots. The new 
chain link fencing will not be any higher than the current fence. Trustee Banke said there has 
been a water problem in the Junior Varsity field. Mr. Graal said that field will not be regraded, 
but storm water run-off will be addressed with underground retention throughout the site. The 
main addition is the pool next to the field house, and will be a completely brand new structure 
where nothing exists now. He illustrated the proposed building that will complement the 
existing 1948 building. Discussion followed regarding the underground detention systems. Mr. 
Graal added they are working closely with Flagg Creek. The pool will have ten 40 yard lanes 
and be a Class 1 facility deep enough for diving. Following a visual study of the residential 
properties closest to the pool, the existing site grading and old trees will provide that the pool 
will not be seen from these residences. The corridor link and loading dock extension will also 
be complimentary style construction, the auditorium will contain a chiller plant and storage, and 
a grounds office. The fence heights will only be higher at the JV field, because of additional 
50' foot safety netting to prevent fly balls, in response to community complaints. Trustee 
Banke said the netting is not as intrusive as chain link. It was noted it will come down in the 
winter for maintenance and aesthetics. Trustee Banke believes the netting should be installed 
on the first and third base lines. Mr. Graal said they were only concerned about the residential 
side, and cost considerations would prevent additional installation. Mr. Graal said there have 
been several public facility committee meetings in addition to regular public meetings, and 
residents have been made aware of all plans. Director of Community Development Robb 
McGinnis added the Village has storm water authority and will review all plans. Mr. Graal 
added they are working closely with a resident on the east side of the property abutting the 
baseball field regarding his landscaping concerns. The District has a communications team, a 
website for the project, and are working on email and newsletter community outreach for 
construction, and increased traffic. Construction will begin in June 2020, the site work will take 
10 weeks to complete, and the pool is an 18 month project expected to be completed in the 
summer of 2021. Athletic field work will be completed before classes resume. The press box 
will be 19' feet high, but is code compliant. The shelters are about 10-12' feet tall and will be 
slightly more visible from the road. There are no changes to the football field until a future 
phase; the plans are still being developed. Discussion followed regarding the representation of 
the netting poles, and the number of poles. 
The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting. 
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e) Approve an Ordinance Approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for a New 
Natatorium and Various Other Improvements for Hinsdale Central High School at 
5500 S. Grant Street - Hinsdale Township High School District 86 
Discussion with previous item. 
The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting. 

f) Approve an Ordinance Approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for 
Expansion and Redevelopment of an Existing Building - Dr. Vanwormer-Hartman -
110 E. Ogden Avenue 
Trustee Stifflear introduced the item for the expansion and redevelopment of the existing 
building at 11 O E. Ogden Avenue. This building was previously an audio and visual facility, 
but has been vacant for more than a decade. The property is located in the 0-2 Limited 
Office District; the proposed plan and expansion is code compliant. There are other 
businesses to the east and west, and residential properties to the south. The applicant 
plans to utilize the building as a medical office facility. The proposal includes adding a 
second story to the existing one-story structure, with landscaping and other building 
improvements. The existing building has a legal nonconforming front yard setback and 
side yard setback which will be maintained. As designed, the building will be within the 
code limits for height, FAR, and lot coverage. The parking is code compliant and will 
include five light poles, also code compliant. 
The Plan Commission reviewed the application in February, and unanimously 
recommended approval with three conditions: 1) tone down the bright white building, which 
the applicant has done; 2) dim the parking lot lights to security level after hours; and 3) 
extend the fence on the south lot line that abuts the residential neighbor. 
Regarding the fence on the south, Mr. McGinnis reported the Village received an email 
from an unidentified neighborhood spokesperson requesting the fence. In order to abut the 
existing fence of one of the neighbors, the fence would have to be installed on private 
property. The landscape plan includes 7' foot arborvitae that would mitigate some fence 
concerns. 
Dr. Cara Vanwormer-Hardman, applicant, addressed the Board stating she is a 
chiropractic physician currently practicing at 230 E. Ogden. She described the services 
she wants to provide. They have changed the exterior color to ivory, which compliments 
the neighbor to the west. She likes the Ogden location in terms of access to the highway. 
They plan to maintain and enhance the green space as much as possible. 
Mr. Bill Styczynski, architect for the project, illustrated the rear parking lot configuration 
and described modifications to the building. There will be tenants on the second floor, 
increased green space, and a 10' foot landscape buffer at the rear of the property. They 
will use the existing footprint, incorporating the existing structure, adding an addition at the 
rear for an entry lobby. Mr. McGinnis said there will be a stormwater review, but this is not 
a problem property. Mr. Styczynski pointed out the impervious surface will decrease. He 
said the fence might be problematic, and described the issues resulting in gaps, trees 
would be compromised and stuck between two fences. To connect to the existing fence, 
they would have to get on neighbor's property. Two garages already exist that buffer site 
lines. President Cauley referenced the email from the individual wanting the fence who is 
concerned about egress. Trustee Stifflear is comforted by the 10' foot buffer zone and the 
wall of arborvitae. 
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He added the building looks great; staff has entertained zoning changes for this property 
that would not work, but this would be a win-win. President Cauley added this is a lower 
intensity use, as well. Mr. McGinnis will call the current property owner to explain the 
approval process. 
The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes) 
a) Trustee Banke moved Approval and payment of the accounts payable for the period of 

February 19, 2020 to March 3, 2020, in the aggregate amount of $684, 162.39 as set forth 
on the list provided by the Village Treasurer, of which a permanent copy is on file with 
the Village Clerk. Trustee Hughes seconded the motion. 

AYES: Trustees Banke, Stifflear, Hughes, Haarlow and Byrnes 
NAYS: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Trustee Posthuma 

Motion carried. 

The following items were approved by omnibus vote: 

b) Approve a street closure on Chicago Avenue and Burlington Drive from Washington 
Street to Garfield Street on Sunday, May 17, 2020, Sunday July 12, 2020, and Sunday, 
September 20, 2020 for a Fuelfed coffee and classes car event (First Reading -
February 18, 2020) 

Environment & Public Services (Chair Byrnes) 
c) Approve the purchase of a new Unit 65 utility truck (Roadway Division vehicle) 

utilizing the Suburban Purchasing Cooperative Agreement - Contract #178 with 
Currie Motors Commercial Center in the amount not to exceed $49,201 

d) Approve the purchase of a new Unit 94 utility true!< (Parks & Forestry Division 
vehicle) utilizing the Suburban Purchasing Cooperative Agreement - Contract #178 
with Currie Motors Commercial Center to approve the purchase of a new utility truck 
in the amount not to exceed $32,547 

Trustee Hughes moved to approve the Consent Agenda, as presented. Trustee Banke 
seconded the motion. 

AYES: Trustees Banke, Stifflear, Hughes, Haarlow and Byrnes 
NAYS: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Trustee Posthuma 

Motion carried. 
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SECOND READINGS I NON-CONSENT AGENDA - ADOPTION 

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes) 
a) Approve the Annual Appropriations Ordinance for the year January 1, 2020 to 

December 31, 2020 (First Reading - February 18, 2020) 
Trustee Hughes introduced the item and moved to Approve the Annual Appropriations 
Ordinance for the year January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020. Trustee Byrnes 
seconded the motion. 

AYES: Trustees Banke, Stifflear, Hughes, Haarlow and Byrnes 
NAYS: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Trustee Posthuma 

Motion carried. 

Environment & Public Services (Chair Byrnes) 
b) Approve a Resolution Authorizing Submission of a matching Grant Application to 

the ComEd Green Region Grant Program for a Woodland Rain Garden Revitalization 
Project 
Trustee Byrnes introduced the item which authorizes the Village to submit an application for 
a matching $10,000 grant to renovate two particular gardens in the Woodlands. The 
application is due by March 13, therefore there was no first reading on this matter. He 
added the landscaping contract came in under budget, so there are funds available for this 
project should the Village be awarded the grant. 
Trustee Byrnes moved to Approve a Resolution Authorizing Submission of a matching 
Grant Application to the ComEd Green Region Grant Program for a Woodland Rain 
Garden Revitalization Project. Trustee Haarlow seconded the motion. 

AYES: Trustees Banke, Stifflear, Hughes, Haarlow and Byrnes 
NAYS: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Trustee Posthuma 

Motion carried. 

Zoning & Public Safety (Chair Stifflearl 
c) Approve a Resolution Calling for an Amendment of the Illinois Small Wireless 

Facility Deployment Act to Return Control of Local Right-of Ways to Local 
Municipalities or, in the Alternative, Repeal of the Act (First Reading - February 18, 
2020); and 

d) Approve a Resolution Supporting Federal Bills H.R. 530 and S. 2012 to Restore Local 
Control in SG/Broadband Deployment (First Reading - February 18, 2020) 
Trustee Stifflear introduced these items that indicate Village support to return control of local 
public rights-of-way to the local municipality. He referenced revised language in the 
document per President Cauley's recommendation. 
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Trustee Stifflear moved to Approve a Resolution Calling for an Amendment of the 
Illinois Small Wireless Facility Deployment Act to Return Control of Local Right-of 
Ways to Local Municipalities or, in the Alternative, Repeal of the Act and Approve a 
Resolution Supporting Federal Bills H.R. 530 and S. 2012 to Restore Local Control in 
5G/Broadband Deployment. Trustee Banke seconded the motion. 

AYES: Trustees Banke, Stifflear, Hughes, Haarlow and Byrnes 
NAYS: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Trustee Posthuma 

Motion carried. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a) Parking deck update 
b) Tollway update 

DEPARTMENT AND STAFF REPORTS 
a) Fire 
b) Parks & Recreation 

The report(s) listed above were provided to the Board. There were no additional questions 
regarding the content of the department and staff reports. 

Village Manager Kathleen Gargano reported Restaurant Week is this week, many restaurants 
in town have breakfast, lunch, and dinner specials. Vehicle stickers are on sale. She also 
reported on a conference call with 100 Illinois municipalities to discuss the corona virus. She 
has met with Fire, Police, area schools, and the hospital and will continue weekly status 
meetings. Current information can be found on the Center for Disease Control (CDC) 
website, the Village website has a link to this site. She recommended safe practices, 
particularly washing your hands. 

REPORTS FROM ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

No reports. 

OTHER BUSINESS 

None. 

NEW BUSINESS 

None. 



Village Board of Trustees 
Meeting of March 3, 2020 
Page 9 of 9 

None. 

None. 

CITIZENS' PETITIONS 

TRUSTEE COMMENTS 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business before the Board, President Cauley asked for a motion to 
adjourn. Trustee Hughes moved to adjourn the regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Hinsdale Village Board of Trustees of March 3, 2020. Trustee Byrnes seconded the 
motion. 

AYES: Trustees Banke, Stifflear, Hughes, Haarlow and Byrnes 
NAYS: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Trustee Posthuma 

Motion carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:03 p.m. 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 



-- Est. 1B73 --

AGENDA SECTION: First Reading -ACA 

SUBJECT: Commuter Parking Lot Fees 

MEETING DATE: March 16, 2020 

FROM: Darrell Langlois, Finance Director 

Recommended Motion 

AGENDA ITEM#~ 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Finance 

Approve an Ordinance Amending Section 6-6-5 (Village Permit Parking Lots) of Title 6 (Motor 
Vehicles and Traffic), Chapter 6 (Stopping, Standing, and Parking) of the Village Code of the 
Village of Hinsdale Relative to Parking Permit Fees. 

Background 
The Village operates a number of parking lots within the Village. In many cases, the Village 
sell permits of varying colors that designate who is able to park in the various parking areas 
of the Village. The largest category is the "blue" parking permits, which are sold to 
commuters. Due to high demand, the sale of blue permits is restricted to Village Residents. 
At the present time, approximately 345 blue permits have been issued, and we have a listing 
of over 150 residents waiting to purchase a blue parking permit. The rate of a blue commuter 
parking permits is currently $310 for a six-month period, so this amount is billed by Village 
staff twice per year. 

Discussion & Recommendation 
The current cost of a blue parking permit ($310 for six months) has been in effect since 
November, 2006. Since the rate has not been adjusted for over 13 years, Village staff has 
drafted the attached ordinance that would increase the cost of a biannual blue commuter 
parking permit to $375 Raising the commuter parking fee and increasing the number of blue 
permits sold is part of a larger plan related to parking in the CBD. 

Budget Impact 
This increase is expected to generate approximately $45,000 annually in additional parking 
permit revenue. 

Village Board and/or Committee Action 
The proposed increase in commuter parking lot fees was included as part of the Village 
Board parking discussion on February 4, 2020. 

Documents Attached 
1. Ordinance Amending Section 6-6-5 (Village Permit Parking Lots) of Title 6 (Motor 

Vehicles and Traffic), Chapter 6 (Stopping, Standing, and Parking) of the Village Code 
of the Village of Hinsdale Relative to Parking Permit Fees 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

ORDINANCE NO. ------

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 6-6-5 (VILLAGE PERMIT PARKING LOTS) OF 
TITLE 6 (MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC), CHAPTER 6 (STOPPING, STANDING AND 
PARKING), OF THE VILLAGE CODE OF HINSDALE RELATIVE TO PARKING PERMIT 

FEES 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale ("Village") 
have previously enacted Title 6 ("Motor Vehicles and Traffic") of the Village Code of the Village 
of Hinsdale ("Village Code") relative to the use of vehicles within the Village; and 

WHEREAS, Section 6-6-5 (Village Permit Parking Lots) of the Village Code sets forth , 
among other things, fees for permits to park in various Village permit parking areas; and 

WHEREAS , the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale have 
determined that it is appropriate and in the best interests of the Village and its residents to 
adopt updated fees for permits to park in certain Village permit parking areas, as set forth 
below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the President and Board of Trustees of 
the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of Illinois, as follows : 

Section 1: Each whereas paragraph set forth above is incorporated by reference into 
this Section 1. 

Section 2: Subsection B (Lot Designation; Charges; Permit Color) of Section 6-6-5 
(Village Permit Parking Lots) , in Title 6 (Motor Vehicles and Traffic} , Chapter 6 (Stopping, 
Standing and Parking}, of the Vi llage Code of Hinsdale is hereby amended to read in its entirety 
as follows: 

B. Lot Designation; Charges; Permit Color: 

BIANNUAL CHARGES 

Rate 
_ Permit 1 

Permit Area Resident Nonresident Merchant Color 

Burlington Drive n/a n/a $180.00 Red 

Chestnut Street lot n/a n/a n/a n/a 
(paybox on ly)3 

Chicago Avenue (south $~375.00 n/a 180.00 Red/blue 
side Washington to 
Garfield) 
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r 

County Line Road 280.00 
(Hillgrove to Walnut as 
designated) 

Highland Station lot3 280.00 

Hillgrove (south side Oak 280.00 
to County Line)3 

Hinsdale Avenue (north n/a 
side Lincoln to Vine) 

Hinsdale Avenue (north n/a 
side Vine to Monroe as 
designated)4 

Lincoln lot n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

Lincoln Street (west side $J-t.G375.00 n/a 
Chicago to Maple) 

Post Circle $J-t.G375.00 n/a 

Second Street n/a n/a 
(Washington to Grant as 
designated) 

Symonds Drive (across $J-t.G375.00 n/a 
from post office as 
designated) 

Symonds Drive (Post n/a n/a 
Circle to Elm as 
designated)2 

Vi llage lot2 $J-t.G375.00 n/a 

Washington lot1 n/a n/a 

Washington Street (both n/a 
sides Second to Third) 

West Hinsdale3 280.00 

n/a 

n/a 

Notes: 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

180.00 

n/a 

180.00 

180.00 

180.00 

180.00 

180.00 

n/a 

n/a 

240.00 

180.00 

n/a 

Brown 

Brown 

Brown 

Red 

Purple 

Yellow 

Red/blue 

Red/blue 

Red 

Red/blue 

Green 

Blue 

Orange 

Red 

Silver 

1. In addition to permit parking, a paybox sha ll also be available. Parking by paybox shall be 
limited to 6 hours at $0.25 per hour. 

2. Village employee parking - no fee. 
3. In addition to permit parking, a paybox shall also be available. Parking by paybox shall be 

limited to 12 hours from 6:00 A.M. to 6:00 P.M. at $0.25 per hour. 
4. Merchant parking - no fee. 

Section 3: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. Each section, 
paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any section, paragraph, 

-136 100_1 



clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, 
the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not 
affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other than that part affected by 
such decision. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

Section 4: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 
after its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner provided by law. 

PASSED this ?'h day of April, 2020. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED this 7th day of April, 2020. 

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President 

ATTEST: 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 

This Ordinance was published by me in pamphlet form on the 7th day of 
April, 2020. 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 
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-- Est. 1873 --

AGENDA SECTION: First Reading - ZPS 

AGENDA ITEM# ~ b 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Community Development 

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Request for Variation-908 N. Elm Street 

MEETING DATE: 

FROM: 

March 3, 2020 

Robert McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building 
Commissioner 

Recommended Motion 
Approve an ordinance approving a variation from Section 6-111 (E) of the Village of Hinsdale 
Zoning Ordinance at 908 N. Elm Street, Hinsdale, IL - Case Number V-06-19. 

Background 
In this application for variation, the applicant requests relief from the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 
requirements set forth in section 6-111 (E) of the Code in order to enclose an entrance into 
the building. It should be noted that the existing building is a pre-code structure and is 
already over the allowable FAR specified in the code by 21,240 square feet (or 43.5% vs. 
35%). The specific request is for 294 square feet of relief or an increase of .1 %: 

Discussion & Recommendation 
Following a public hearing held on Jariuary 15, 2020, the Zoning Board of Appeals of the 
Village of Hinsdale ("ZBA") recommended approval of the Requested Variations on a vote of 
six (6) in favor and zero (0) opposed, with one (1) member absent. 

Budget Impact 
N/A 

· Village Board andlor Committee Action 

Documents Attached 
1. Draft Ordinance 
2. Approved Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
3. ZBA Application 
4. Transcript 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

ORDINANCE NO.------

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A VARIATION FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 908 N. 
ELM STREET, HINSDALE, ILLINOIS - CASE NUMBER V-06-19 

WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale has received an application (the 
"Application") from CBRE, property manager, on behalf of property owner GA HC REIT 
II Hinsdale MOB I (the "Applicant"), seeking a variation from the Hinsdale Zoning Code 
(the "Zoning Code") for property located at 908 N. Elm Street (the "Property"), located in 
the 0-3 Office Zoning District; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and 
made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Zoning Board of Appeals of 
the Village, and has been processed in accordance with the Zoning Code, as amended; 
and 

WHEREAS, the variation that is the subject of this Ordinance is for relief from the 
floor area ratio (FAR) requirements set forth in Section 6-111(E) of the Zoning Code in 
order to enclose an entrance into the building (the "Requested Variation"). The existing 
building is a pre-code structure and is already over the allowable FAR specified in the 
Zoning Code by 21,240 square feet (43.5% FAR vs. 35% allowed). The specific request 
is for 294 square feet of relief, an increase of 0.1 %; and 

WHEREAS, on January 15, 2020, the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village of 
Hinsdale held a public hearing pursuant to notice given in accordance with State law 
and the Zoning Code, relative to the Requested Variation; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, after considering all of the testimony 
and evidence presented at the public hearing, recommended approval of the Requested 
Variation on a vote of six (6) in favor and zero (0) opposed, with one (1) member 
absent; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals has filed its report of Findings and 
Recommendation regarding the Requested Variation in Case Number V-06-19 with the 
President and Board of Trustees, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and 
made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale have 
reviewed and duly considered the Findings and Recommendation of the Zoning Board 
of Appeals, and all of the materials, facts, and circumstances related to the Application; 
and 
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WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees find that the Application 
satisfies the standards established in Section 11-503 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code 
governing variations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees 
of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this 
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees. 

SECTION 2: Adoption of Findings and Recommendation. The President and 
Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale approve and adopt the findings and 
recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit B and made a part hereof, and incorporate such findings and recommendation 
by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 3: Variation. The President and Board of Trustees, acting pursuant to 
the authority vested in them by the laws of the State of Illinois and Subsection 11-
503(A) of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, grant the Requested Variation to Section 6-111 (E) 
of the Zoning Code to allow for 294 square feet of relief from the floor area ratio (FAR) 
requirements in order to enclose an entrance into the building located at 908 N. Elm 
Street in the 0-3 Office Zoning District. 

SECTION 4: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. If any section, 
paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, the invalidity of 
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the other provisions 
of this Ordinance, and all ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 
with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from 
and after its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner 
provided by law. 
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PASSED this __ day of ______ 2020. 

AYES: --------------------~ 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED by me this __ day of ______ 2020 and attested by the 
Village Clerk this same day. 

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President 

ATTEST: 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 
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EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

LOT 2 IN OFFICE PARK OF HINSALE, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART SECTION 
36, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, AND PART OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST 
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 
RECORDED SEPTEMBER 20, 2002, AS DOCUMENT R2002-243817, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 908 N. Elm Street, Hinsdale, Illinois 
PINS: 06-36-405-018 & 09-01-207-008 
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EXHIBITB 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

(ATTACHED) 



FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE 
VILLAGE OF HINSDALE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS TO 

THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

ZONING CASE NO: 

PETITIONER: 

APPLICATION: 

MEETING HELD: 

PROPERTY: 

V-06-19 

CBRE, property manager, on behalf of owner GA HC REIT II 
Hinsdale MOB I. 

For a Variation from the floor area ratio requirements set 
forth in Section 6-111 (E) of the Zoning Code of the Village of 
Hinsdale ("Zoning Code") in order to enclose an entrance 
into the building at 908 N. Elm Street, Hinsdale, Illinois. 

A Public Hearing was held on Wednesday, January 15, 
2020, in Memorial Hall, in the· Memorial Building, 19 East 
Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, pursuant to a notice 
published in The Hinsdalean on December 26, 2019. 

The subject property is commonly known as 908 N. Elm 
Street, Hinsdale, Illinois (the "Property")· and is legally 

·described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part 
hereof. 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The Village of Hinsdale has received a request from Jim 
Doyle of CBRE, manager of the building on the Property; on behalf of property owner 
GA HC REIT II Hinsdale MOB I (the "Applicant") for a variation from the floor area ratio 
(FAR) requirements set forth in Section 6-111 (E) of the Zoning Code in order to enclose 
an entrance into the building (the "Requested Variation"). The existing building is a pre­
code structure and is already over the allowable FAR specified in the Zoning Code by 
21,240 square feet (43.5% FAR vs. 35% allowed).· The specific request is for 294 
square feet of relief, an increase of .1 %. The Property is located in the 0-3 Office 
District in the Village. The Property is irregularly shaped, and includes 249,889 square 
feet of lot area. 

The Board of Trustees, upon a recommendation from the Zoning Board of Appeals of 
the Village of Hinsdale ("ZBA"), has final authority over the Requested Variation. 

The Requested Variation is described in more detail in the Application, a copy of which 
is attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof. 

On January 151
h, 2020, following the conclusion of the public hearing on this matter, the 

ZBA indicated its approval of the Requested Variation on a vote of six (6) in favor, zero 
(0) opposed, and one (1) absent, and directed the preparation of this Findings and 
Recommendation. 
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ABSTAIN: None 

ABSENT: Member Giltner 

FINDINGS: The following are the Findings of the ZBA relative to the Requested 
Variation: 

1. General Standard: Carrying out the strict letter of the provisions of the Zoning Code 
would create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty, based on satisfaction of the 
standards below: 

2. Unique Physical Condition: The Subject Property is exceptional as compared to 
other lots subject to the same provision by reason of a unique physical condition, 
including presence of an existing use, structure, or sign, whether conforming or 
nonconforming; irregular or .substandard shape or size; exceptional topographical 
features; or other extraordinary physical conditions peculiar to and inherent in the 
subject property that amount to more than a mere inconvenience to the owner and that 
relate to or arise out of the lot rather than the personal situation of the current owner of 
the lot. The Property hosts a medical building that brings persons with wheelchairs, 
walkers, canes and the like to the Property. The long existing entrance set-up of a 
single standard sized revolving door, and man doors that stay open to the elements 
when automatically opened, results in cold, heat and debris entering the lobby of the 
building. The configuration of the Property and building results in there being only one 
main ADA accessible entrance to the building, unlike other nearby properties where 
buildings typically have multiple entrances. 

3. Not Self-Created: The unique physical condition is not the result of any action or 
inaction of the owner, or of the owner's predecessors in title and known to the owner 
prior to acquisition of the subject property, and existed at the time of the enactment of 
the provisions from which a variation is sought or was created by natural forces or was 
the result of governmental action, other than the adoption of the Zoning Code, for which 
no compensation was paid. The need for the Requested Variation is not self-created, 
and is in part driven by the long-existing building on the Property, and the original 
design and configuration of the entrance to that building. The ZBA finds this standard to 
have been met. 

4. Denied Substantial Rights: The carrying out of the strict letter of the provisions from 
which a variation is sought would deprive the owner of the subject property of 
substantial rights commonly enjoyed by owners of other lots subject to the same 
provision. Other nearby buildings have created similar enclosed entrances. The ZBA 
finds this standard to have been met. 

5. Not Merely Special Privilege: The alleged hardship or difficulty is not merely the 
inability of the owner or occupant to enjoy some special privilege or additional right not 
available to owners or occupants of other lots subject to the same provision, nor merely 
an inability to make more money from the use of the subject property; provided, 
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• Variation from the FAR requirements set forth in Section 6-111(E) of the 
Zoning Code, to allow enclosure of an entrance into the building, resulting 
in .1% increase in the FAR (an additional 294 square feet). 

Signed: 

437156_1 

Robert Neiman, Chair 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Village of Hinsdale 

5 



437156_1 

EXHIBITS 

APPLICATION FOR VARIATION 

(ATTACHED) 
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Village of Hinsdale 

Application for Variation 

Section I 

1. Owner - Name, address and telephone of Owner: GA HC REIT II Hinsdale MOB I: 
Asset Manager: Mr. Charles Montemor. Colony Capital: (61 V 235-6375 

2. Trustee Disclosure - In the case of a land trust, the name, address and telephone 
number of all trustees and beneficiaries of the trust: NIA 

3. Applicant - Name, address and telephone number of applicant, if different from 
the owner, and applicant's interest in the subject property: Mr. Jim Doyle. CBRE. 
700 Commerce Drive. Suite 450. Oak Brook, Illinois 60523: (708) 269-9294. Mr. 
Doyle is with the Property Management team managing/operating the building. 

4. Subject Property - Address and legal description of the subject property: 908 N. 
Elm Street. Hinsdale. Illinois 60521 (See Attachment 'A' for legal description) 

5. Village Personnel - Name and address of any officer or employee of the Village 
with an interest in the Owner. tbe Applicant or the Subject Property, and the 
nature and. extent of that interest: NIA 

6. Neighboring Owners - Submit with this application a list showing the name and 
address of each owner of ( 1) property within 250 lineal feet in all directions from 
the subject property; and (2) property located on the same frontage or 
frontages as the front lot line or corner side lot line of the subject property or on a 
frontage directly opposite any such frontage or on a frontage immediately 
adjoining or across an alley from any such frontage: Not required at this time 

7. Survey-Submit with this application a recent survey, certified by a registered 
land surveyor, showing existing lot lines and dimensions, as well as all easements, 
all public and private rights-of-way, and all streets across and adjacent to the 
Subject Property: Please See Attachment 'B' 

8. Existing Zoning - Submit with this application a description or graphic 
representation of the existing zoning classification, use, and development of the 
Subject Property. The Subject Property is located in the 0-3, General Office 
District. Attached to this Application as Attachment 'C' is a portion of the Official 
Zoning Map of the Village In which the Subject Property is highlighted and 
depicts the use and development of adjacent areas at least 250 feet In all 
directions from the Subject Property. To the East is the same 0-3 District. to the 
South across 0 den Ave. is the B-3 General Busine s District. Tot e West is. e 
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same 0-3 District and B-3 (General Business District). To the North is the same 0-
3 District and B-1 (Community Business District). 

9. Conformity- Submit with this application a statement concerning the conformity 
or lack of conformity of the approval being requested to the Village Official 
Comprehensive Plan and the Official Map. Where the approval being 
requested does not conform to the Official Comprehensive Plan or the Official 
Map, the statement should set forth the reasons justifying the approval despite 
such lack of conformity: The approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals being 
sought by Applicant conforms to the Village Official Comprehensive Plan and 
the Official Map. As stated in Section I. Paragraph 8 of this Application. the 
Subject Property is located in the 0-3 District and its uses and development 
conform to those permitted in that District. 

10. Zoning Standards -Submit with this application a statement specifically 
addressing the manner in which it is proposed to satisfy each standard that the 
Zoning Ordinance establishes as a condition of, or in connection with, the 
approval being sought. Please see Attachment 'D'. 

11. Successive Application - In the case of any application being filed less than two 
years after the denial of an application seeking essentially the same relief, submit 
with this application a statement as required by Sections 11-501 and 11-601 of . 
the Hinsdale Zoning Code. NIA 
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Section II 

When applying for a variation from the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, you must 
provide the data and information required above, and in addition, the following: 

1. Title: Evidence of title or other interest you have in the Subject Property, date of 
acquisition of such interest, and the specific nature of such interest. Not 
available. 

2. Ordinance Provision: The specific provisions of the Zoning Ordinance from which 
a variation is sought: Sec. 6-111: Bulk. Space and Yard Requirements Table. Part 
E: Maximum Floor Area Ratio. 

3. Variation Sought: The precise variation being sought, the purpose thereof, and 
the specific feature or features of the proposed use, construction, or 
development that require a variation: The Subject Property currently exceeds 
the maximum FAR as it was built prior to the current Zoning requirements. The 
proposed enclosure of the existing covered portico. which is 294 sq.ft .. to create 
a temperature controlled entrance vestibule, would add to the total FAR. 
Therefore. a variation is being sought to minimally increase the existing FAR by 
0.1% 

4. Minimum Variation: A statement bf the minimum variation of the provisions of 
the Zoning Ordinance thatwould be necessary to permit the proposed use, 
construction, or development. The variation sought by the Applicant. to enclose 
the existing covered building entrance/portico to create a temperature 
controlled vestibule, would only increase the Floor Area Ratio by 0.1%. This 
minimal increase will significantly improve the energy efficiency of the building 
as well as provide an easier and more comfortable means of entering and 
exiting the building for the many disabled visitors that come to the building on a 
daily basis. 

5. Standards for Variation: A statement of the characteristics of Subject Property 
that prevent compliance with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and the 
specific facts you believe support the grant of the required variation. In addition 
to your general explanation, you must specifically address the following 
requirements for the grant of a variation: Please see Attachment 'D' for 
Applicant's general explanation for Applicant's statement regarding compliance 
with all specific standards for the grant of variation sought. 

a. Unique Physical Condition. The Subject Property is exceptional as 
compared to other lots subject to the same provision by reason of a 
unique physical condition, including presence of an existing use, structure 
of sign, whether conforming or nonconforming, irregular or substandard 
shape or size; exceptional topographical features; or other extraordinary 



physical conditions peculiar to and inherent in the Subject Property that 
amount to more than a mere inconvenience to the owner and that relate 
to or arise out of the lot rather than the personal situation of the current lot 
owner. 

b. Not Self-Created. The aforesaid unique physical condition is not the result 
of any action or inaction of the owner, or of the owner's predecessors in 
title and known to the owner prior to acquisition of the Subject Property, 
and existed at the time of the enactment of the provisions from which a 
variation is sought or was created by natural forces or was the result of 
governmental action, other than the adoption of this Code, for which no 
compensation was paid. 

c. Denied Substantial Rights. The carrying out ofthe strict letter of the 
provision from which a variation is sought would deprive the owner of the 
Subject Property of substantial rights commonly enjoyed by Owners of 
other lots subject to the same provision. 

d. Not Merely Special Privilege. The alleged hardship or difficulty is not 
merely the inability of the owner or occupant to enjoy some special 
privilege or additional right not available to owners or occupants of other 
lots subject to the sar:ne provision, nor merely an inability to make more 
money from the use of the subject property; provided, however, that 
where the standards herein sef out exist, the existence of an economic 
hardship shall not be a prerequisite to the grant of an authorized variation. 

e. Code and Plan Pumoses. The variation would not result in a use or 
development of the Subject Property that would not be in harmony with 
the general and specific purposes for which this Code and the provision 
from which a variation sought were enacted or the general purpose and 
intent of the Official Comprehensive Plan. 

f. Essential Character of the Area. The variation would not result in a use or 
development of the Subject Property that: 

i. Would be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially 
injurious to the enjoyment, use development, or value of property 
of improvements permitted in the vicinity; or 

ii. Would materially impair an adequate supply of light and air to the 
properties and improvements in the vicinity; or 

iii. Would substantially increase congestion in the public streets due to 
traffic or parking; or 



iv. Would unduly increase the danger of flood or fire; or 

v. Would unduly tax public utilities and facilities in the area; or 

vi. Would endanger the public health or safety. 

g. No Other Remedy. There is no means other than the requested variation 
by which the alleged hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied 
to a degree sufficient to permit a reasonable use of the Subject Property. 



Section Ill 

In addition to the data and information required pursuant to any application as herein 
set forth, every Applicant shall submit such other and additional data, information, or 
documentation as the Village Manager or any Board of Commission before which its 
application is pending may deem necessary or appropriate to a full and proper 
consideration and disposition of the particular application. 

1. A copy of the preliminary Architectural and/or surveyor plans showing the floor 
plans, exterior elevations, and site plan needs to be submitted with each copy of 
the zoning petitions for the improvements. Please see Attachment 'F'. consisting 
of Floor Plans, Exterior Elevations and Details, as prepared by The Interior Design 
Group Ltd. Please also refer to Attachment 'F' for two (2! photos of the existing 
open portico and building entrance. 

2. The Architect or land surveyor needs to provide zoning information concerning 
the existing zoning; for example, building coverage, distance to property lines, 
and floor area ratio calculations and data on the plans or supplemental 
documents for the proposed improvements. Please see Attachment 'G' for the 
Zoning Table of Compliance. As previously note in this Application, the existing 
FAR of 43.5% exceeds the current minimum code standards and the variation 
sought only increases the FAR by 0, 1% to 43.6%. 



Attachment A 

Application for Variation at 908 N. Elm 

LOT 2 IN OFFICE PARK OF HINSDALE, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART SECTION 36, 
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, AND PART OF 
SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED SEPTEMBER 20, 2002, AS DOCUMENT 
R2002-243817, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
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Attachment G 
Application for Variation at 908 N. Elm 

TABLE OF COMPLIANCE 

1 Address of subject property: _9o_a_Elm_str_••....:.t, _Hi....:.ns_da--'1e,_111_inQ....:.is_eo_s2_1 _____________ _ 

The following table is based on the _o_-3 ___ Zoning District. 
. 

~ 

Minimum Code Proposed/Existing 
Reauirements Development 

Minimum Lot Area (s.f~ 20,000 249,880 sq.ft./ No Change 
Minimum Lot Deoth 

. 

125' +/-568' I No Change 
Minimum Lot Width 80' +/- 541' I No Change 
Buildina Heiaht 60' Max. +/-48' I No Change 

Number of Stories 5 Max. 41 No Change 
Front Yard Setback 25' 17' I No Change 
Corner Side Yard Setback 25' 1 O' I No Change 
Interior Side Yard Setback 10' 1'-0" I No Change 
Rear Yard Setback 20' 0'-0" I No Change 
Maximum Floor Area Ratio 35% 43.6% I 43.5% (F.A.R.)* . 

M.aximum Total Building N/A N/A Coverage* 
Maximum Total Lot Coveraae* 50% >50% I No Change 
Parking Requirements 391 (8 Handicapped) 415 (11 Handicapped) I 

No Change 

Parkina front vard setback 25' 17' I No Change 
Parking corner side yard 25' 25' I No Change setback 
Parking interior side yard 1 O' O' I No Change setback . . 

Parkinn rear vard setback 20' O' I No Change 
Loadina Reauirements 2 21 No Change 
Accessory Structure N/A N/A (No Change) Information 

-

•Must provide actual square footage number and percentage. 

Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village's authority, if any, to approve the 
application despite such lack of compliance:--------------------

3 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
SS: 

COUNTY OF DU PAGE 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

In Re the Matter of: 

908 North Elm Street 
Case No. V-06-19 

1 

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony 

taken at the Public Hearing of the above-

entitled matter before the Hinsdale Zoning Board 

of Appeals, at 19. East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale,. 

Illinois, on the 15th day of January, 2020, at 

the hour of 6:35 p.m. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

MR. ROBERT NEIMAN, Chairman; 

MR, JOSEPH ALESIA, Member; 

MS. KATHRYN ENGEL, Member; 

MR. GARY MOBERLY, Member; 

MR. THOMAS MURPHY, Member; 

MR. JOHN PODLISKA, Member. 

KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 
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1 ALSO PRESENT: 

2 MR. ROBERT MC GINNIS, Director of Community 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

Development/Building; 

MS. CHRISTINE BRUTON, Deputy Clerk and 

Board's secretary; 

MR. RYAN DE BARI, VP and Senior 

ArchJtectural Associate, The Interior 

Design Group Ltd.; 

MR. JIM DOYLE, Project Manager, CBRE, 

Inc. 

9 (Mr. Jim Doyle, Mr. Ryan 

10 DeBari, Mr. Nicholas Graal, 

11 and Mr. John Ochoa were 

12 sw_orn.) 

13 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: So the first public 

14 hearing on our docket this evening is 

15 Case V-06-19, 908 North Elm Sti"eet. Whoever is 

16 the applicant, come on up and begin your 

17 presentation. 

18 
19 

·"'""""' 20 
2.1 

22 

MR. 'DOYLE: Good to see everyone from 

last month. My name is Jim Doyle. I'm with 

CB.RE,_ the owf)er;s represe_ntative at. 908 Elm. 

And witti me is Ry.an DeBari·with_IciG,_a·rchitects. 

We _are here tq discuss.the entrc_!nCe r'enov.3tion -
·. 

3 

1 at 908. 

2 MR. DE B.ARI: Do you w'a nt me to start 

3 with the general overvieW? 

4 c;HAIRMAN NEIMAN·. Yes_. Just give us, I 

5 think we all remember this one from the last 

6 meeting. But mayb_e just give us a couple-minute 

7 overview of what the variance request involves. 

8 MR. DE BARI: Sure. Okay. 

9 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Then take us throu_gh 

"""" ... "~ 10 the standards for the varia_tion and explain why 

11 you think you meet the criteria. 

12 MR. DE BARI: Okay, thanks. So if you 

13 recall at 908 Elm, the main building entrance 

14 has just a single revolving door right now and 

15 two man doors, which is typical. There is kind 

16 of a covered entrance portlco that has two large 

17 arched openings. 

18 So currently with that revolving 

19 door -- Well, I should say the main businesses 

..,_,,ur,,,, 20 in the building are, it's a medical office 

21 building. So a lot of the patrons visiting that 

22 need assistance with wheelchairs and walkers and 

·. 

1 ~anes, and they can't get through a revolving 

2 door because it's a standard size. What they do 

3 is they hit that automatic button on the man 

4 

4 door and open that door and that door stays open 

5 for quite a whlle. And because of that, all the 

6 cold or heat, or vice versa, it comes in, all 

7 the debris from outside gets in the lobby, makes 

8 everybody uncomfortable. 

9 So what the building Is proposing 

"""'"'"M 10 to do is filling in and closing those two 

11 archways with an aluminum and glass storefront 

12 system that's similar to what they have on the 

13 other side of the building already with their 

14 glass atrium. That way we will create a 

15 temper'ature-control!ed vestibule that will, you 

16 know, like the whole reason vestibules are 

17 required now is to make the building more energy 

18 efficient. 

19 

21. 

2i 

The vestibule is_ proposed to have 

bipartlng doors like you would see in a lot of 

current mediccil buildings Or ho;;pitals. So when 
.. '. 

you appr'"oactl the ·doors, they w·ill ope·n 

. 5 

1 automatically and ~reate greater ease fo_r the 

2 occupants comilig in and out. So it both makes 

3 the building more energy efficient and helps the 

4 welfare of the occupants. 

5 So as far as variation goes, the 

6 current building ·exceeds the floor-area ratio as 

7 it was built far prior to the current zoning 

8 regulations. So by enclosing this, I think it's 

9 aboUt juSt under 3_00 square feet, because it's 

°"·"'"'~ 10 an open portico per the code, enclosing that 

11 portico adds to your FAR. Since we are already 

12 over the floor-area ratio, we are increasing it, 

13 that's why the applicant is proposing to get a 

14 variation to increase that FAR. I think it 

15 turns out to be, I think it's a .1 percent 

16 increase. So that's the general overview. Any 

17 questions.on that? 

18 Okay. So as far as the standards 

19 go, for the unique physical condition, this 

°"""'-"'"M 20 building is a little unique within the office 

21 park itself. Most of the buildings In the area 

22 can be approached pretty much from any side. 

KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 2 of 8 sheets 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

6 

It's all on-grade. On this building in 

particular, there is parking underneath the 

building. So on three sides of the building 

actually the 1st floor is above grade. So 

those, so really the only main entrance to the 

building accessibility-wise is on the south 

side, which is where we are proposing this 

entrance. 

.. ::1"5BPM 10 

It's also unique in the fact that 

it's got a very large, actually it's just 

:;; 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

"""" 20 
21 

22' 

recently improved, circular drop-off area. They· 

have valet parking. All the ADA parking or a 

lot more of ADA parking is at that entrance. So 

it's a little unique within that general office 

complex that they have such a large and really 

dedicated main entrance where a lot of the other 

buildings have many points of entry. 

The existing physical conditions of 

the building are existing. They have been 

existing since the building was built. So, 

therefore, the applicant now; the existing 
. . 

conditions were not self-created by the · 

7 

1 applicant. Like I said, they have been there 

2 since the building was created .. 

3 As far as the substantial rights, a 

4 lot of the other neighboring buildings within 

5 the office park, although they did not have to 

6 seek a variance to do it, because I think they 

7 were within the FAR, a lot of .the other 

8 buildings in the office park had similar 

9 conditions where they had exterior colonnades 

...... 10 that were open; and they've enclosed those to 

11 create more usable space for the building and 

12 to, I think, maybe create a nicer entrance. So 

13 denial of the relief that the applicant is 

14 seeking would prevent the applicant from getting 

15 the full benefits that other buildings in the 

16 area have been afforded that are similar. 

17 Special privilege, again the 

18 applicant is not seeking any special privilege 

19 as a result of the variation being sought. It 

=""" 20 is simply to create a nicer functioning entrance 

21 for the building and the welfare of the public. 

22 They are not seeking any rights that are not 

. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Oii:42:211PM 10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

.. ;·~ev 20 

. 21 

22 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

""""" 10 
11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

"""4;05PM 20 

21 

22 

8 

available to any other property owners. And 

then this really is not something that the 

applicant is doing to seek any profit from. 

It's really for the welfare of the occupants of 

the building. 

Let's see, as far as code and plan 

purposes, the addition of the temperature­

controlled building entrance, like I said, would 

result in the property becoming more energy 

efficient and better serving the well-being of 

the public so we feel that it's inline with the 

code and plan purposes of the Village. 

The essential character. of the 

area. As I mentioned before, the proposed 

infill of those archways would be consistent 

with the architecture and appearance of a lot of 

the buildings within the office park. As I 

said, the back side or the north side of the 

building actually has a glass surround. They 

have an elevator atrium. And sp ·our proposed 

infill will match tha.t. S_o the characte[ of the·. 

·infill. will match the an:hite.cture oflhe 

9 

surrounding buildings. And as far as there 

really is no other remedy for this situation 

. 

other than what we are seeking. Like I said, 

this is the main accessible entrance to the 

building. It's not like we can direct people to 

another entrance that it serves them better. So 

this really is the best way to fill the need 

. that the building is looking for. 

MR. MOBERLY: .Is there a rendering of. 

what it will look like? I'm looking at various 

pictures and diagrams in here but --

MR. DE BARI: It's probably the one 

thing we don't have yet. There is that set of 

construction drawings. You can see we have been 

considering this for quite a while. Back in 

2017 we did that set of construction drawings, 

went into the Village, we got plan review 

comments and responded. So there is on the one 

page, there are elevations here. 

MR. MOBERLY: Okay. 

MR. DE BARI: Showing how we are going 

to infill that. This is what we are talking 

3 of 8 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 
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1 about. This is what the north side of the 

2 building looks like in the corner. That's 

3 basically what we are proposing to do would 

4 match this exactly. This would be the brick and 

5 stone archways of the entrance, and then we will 

6 infill it with a storefront basically that will 

7 match the inner piece, that way both sides of 

8 the building will look consistent. The two 

9 archways, one archway will just be all 

-'"~ 10 storefront, you know, fixed. And then the other 

11 archway will have the biparting doors. 

12 MR. MOBERLY: Does this have to go to 

13 the Plan Commission ·at some point? 

14 

15 

MR. MC GINNIS: Yes, it will. 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: We are just making 

16 the recommendations. 

17 MR. MOBERLY: Because I'm sure they 

18 will opine on how it looks and everything. 

19 MR. DE BARI: On the appearance? 

.-,.,,,0,P'' 20 MR. MURPHY: There is a reference in 

21 Section 6 of the application regarding 

·22 neighboring owners. It says that list and the 

11 

1 notice is not required at this time. Is that 

2 right, Robb? I just wo_ndered why that was. 

3 MR. DE BARI: It was at the time of our 

4 prehearing. This was done before the 

5 prehearing. 

6 

7 

MR. MURPHY: Okay. 

MR. DE BARI: So that was, that was a 

1 

2 

3 

12 

Okay. Thank you, gentlemen. 

MR. DE BARI: All right. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Is there anyone else 

4 in the audience who wants to address us on this 

5 variance application? 

6 Okay. Do I hear a motion to close 

7 the public hearing on Case V-06-2019, 908 North 

8 Elm? 

9 

....... ,. .... 10 

11 

12 

13 

14. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

MR. PODUSKA: So moved. 

MR. MOBERLY: Second . 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll call, please. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly? 

MR. MOBERLY: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia? 

MR. ALESIA: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Murphy? 

MR. MURPHY: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Engel? 

MS. ENGEL: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska? 

MR. PODUSKA: Yes. 

MS. ·BRUTON: Chairman Neiman? 

13 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. 

* * * 
(Which were all the proceedings had 

in the above-entitled cause.) 

8 fact at the prehearing. But since then, we did 8 

9 provide ·notice; and I provided Robb ·with all the 9 

""-'·'''~~ 10 receipts a_nd the n·otice. 

11 MS. BRUTON: I have got it. 

12 MR. MURPHY: So this has been done. 

13 This just wasn't updated? 

14 MR. DE BARI: Correct. 

15 

16 

MR. MURPHY: Got it. 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Just out of 

17 curiosity, have any neighbors voiced any 

18 opposition or made any comments? 

19 MR. DE BARI: No. No comments. 

21 

MR. MC GINNIS: We've received nothing. 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Any Board members 

22 have any questions of the applicant? 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 
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COUNTY OF DU PAGE ) 

14 

I, JANICE H. HEINEMANN, CSR, RDR, CRR, 
do hereby certify that I am a court reporter 
doing business in the State of Illinois, that I 
reported in shorthand the testimony given at the 
hearing of said cause, and that the foregoing is 
a true and correct transcript of my shorthand 
notes so taken as aforesaid. 
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0 applicant [9J - 2:16, 8:5, 8:8, 8:19, 9:5, couple [1] - 3:6 elevator [11 - 8:20 

5:13, 6:21, 7:1, 7:13, 9:8, 10:2, 10:8 couple-minute {1] - Elm 1s1- 1 :5, 2:15, 
7:14, 7:18, 8:3, 11:22 bulldlngs [BJ - 4:21, 3:6 2:20, 3:13, 12:8 

084-001391 111- application [2J - 5:21, 6:17, 7:4, 7:8, court [1J - 14:4 enclosed [1] - 7:10 
14:12 10:21, 12:5 7:15, 8:17, 9:1 covered [1J - 3:16 enclosing [2] - 5:8, 

approach r11- 4:22 built [2J • 5:7, 6:20 create [5]-4:14, 5:1, 5:10 
1 approached r11- business [1J - 14:5 7:11, 7:12, 7:20 energy [3]-4:17, 

5:22 businesses [1J - created [2] - 6:22, 5:3, 8:9 

1 [1] - 5:15 arched [1] - 3:17 3:19 7:2 ENGEL [2] • 1:18, 

15th [1]-1:12 architects [1] - 2:21 button r11 - 4:3 criteria [1J - 3:11 12:19 
Architectural [1 J - CRR [2J -14:3, 14:12 Engel [11 - 12:18 19[1]-1:11 

2:5 c CSR [21·14:3, 14:12 entitled [21 -1 :10, 1•1[1] • 6:4 
architecture [21 - curiosity [1] -11 :17 13:4 

2 8:16, 8:22 current [3J - 4:21, entrance [13i'- 2:22, 

archway [21 - 1 O :9, canes [1J- 4:1 
5:6, 5:7 3:13, 3:16, 6:5, 6:8, 

10:11 case [1J - 1 :6 6:13, 6:16, 7:12, 7:20. 

2017 [1] - 9:16 archways [4] - 4'.11. Case [2] -2:15. 12:7 
D 8:8, 9:4. 9:6; 10:5 

2020 [1] -1 :12 8:15, 10:5, 10:9 CBRE [21 - 2:7, 2:20 entry [1J - 6: 17 

area ·[6J- 5:6, 5:12, certify [1] - 14:4 essential (1] - 8:13 

3 5:21, 6:11, 7:16, 8:14 CHAJRMAN [9J - DE [121 - 2:5, 3:2, evening (11 - 2:14 

assistance [1] - 3:22 2:13, 3:4, 3:9, 10:15, 3:8, 3:12, 9:12, 9:21. exactly [1J -10:4 
Associate [1] - 2:5 11:16, 11:21, 12:3, 10:19, 11:3.11:7, exceeds [11 - 5:6 

300 [1] - 5:9 
atriu~ (2] - 4: 14, 

12:11, 13:1 11:14, 11:19, 12:2 
existing [4] -6:18. 

8:20 Chairman 121-1:1~. DeBari [2J - 2:10, 6:19, 6:20. 6:21 
6 audierice. [1J - 12:4 12:22 2:21 

explain (1j- 3:10 

automatic (1J -.4:3_ 
character_ [21 - 8: 13, debris [1] - 4:7 

exterior [1] - 7:9 
8:21 dedicated-[1] -6:16 

6 [1) - 10:21 ·automatically [1)---
-Chicago [1J-1;-11 ·denial [JJ - 7:13-

6:35[1]-1:13 5:1 
Cl:IRISTINE 111 - 2::i F 

available [1J - 8: 1 Dep~ty [11 - 2:3 . 

cc A,venue [1]-1:11 
circular [1_] - 6:"1 r Design [1] - 2:6 

9 Clerk [-1J - 2:3 Development I fact 12.i - 6:9. 11 :8 

B close [1J - 12:6 Building [11 - 2:2 far [6J --5:5, 5:7. 

908 [6]-1:5. 2:15, closing [1] - 4:10 diagrams [1] - 9: 11 5:18, 7:3, 8:6, 9:1 

2:20, 3:1. 3:13, 12:7 code [3] - 5:10, 8:6, direct (1] - 9:5 FAR [3J - 5:11, 5:14. 
BARI [12J - 2:5, 3:2, 8:12 Director [1] - 2:2 7:7 

A 3:8. 3:12, 9:12, 9:21, cold [1J - 4:6 discuss [1] - 2:22 feet. [1].- 5:9 
10:19. 11 :3, 11 :7, colonnades [11 - 7:9 docket [1] - 2:14 fill [1] - 9:7 
11:14. 11:19.12:2 coming [1] - 5:2 done [2] - 11 :4, filling [1] - 4:10 

abOve ·entitled {1 J - becoming [1] - 8:9 comments [3] - 9:18, 11 :12 first [1) -2:13 
13:4 begin [1J - 2:16 11:18, 11:19 door [SJ - 3:14, 3:19. fixed [1]- 10:10 

accessibility [1J - benefits [1J - 7:15 Commission [1] - 4:2, 4:4 floor [3] - 5:6. 5:12, 
6:6 best 111 - 9:7 10:13 doors [4J- 3:15. 6:4 

accessibility-wise better [2]-8:10,·9:6 Community (1] - 2:2 4:20, 4:22. 10:11 floor-area [2] - 5:6, 
[1] - 6:6 biparting [2] - 4:20, complex [1] - 6:15 DOYLE [2J - 2:7, 5:12 

accessible {1] - 9:4 10:11 condition (1 J - 5: 19 2:18 foregoing [1] - 14:7 
ADA [21 -6:12, 6:13 BOARD [2J - 1 :3, conditions [3] - 6:18, Doyle [2J- 2:9. 2:19 full 111- 7:15 
addition [1] - 8:7 1 :15 6:22, 7:9 drawings [2J - 9:14, functioning [1] -
address [1 J - 12 :4 Board [2] -1:10, considering [1J - 9:16 7:20 
adds [1J-5:11 11:21 9:15 drop [1]-6:11 
afforded r11 - 7:16 Board's [1] - 2:4 consistent [21 - 8:15, drop-off (1) - 6:11 G 
aforesaid [1] - 14:9 brick [1J - 10:4 10:8 DU [2J - 1 :2, 14:2 
ALESIA [2]-1:17, BRUTON [BJ - 2:3, construction [2l -

12:15 11:11, 12:12, 12:14, 9:14, 9:16 E 
GARY [1]-1:19 

Alesia (1] - 12:14 12:16, 12:18, 12:20, controlled [2] - 4:15, general [31 - 3:3, 

ALSO [1J - 2: 1 12:22 8:8 5:16, 6:14 

aluminum [1] -4:11 building [25J - 3:13, corner £11 - 10:2 ease [11 - 5:1 gentlemen [1] - 12:1 

APPEALS [1J - 1 :3 3:20, 3:21, 4:9, 4:13, correct [11 -14:8 Eastr11-1:11 GINNIS [3J - 2:2, 

Appeals (1]-1:11 4:17, 5:3, 5:6, 5:20, Correct [1)-11 :14 efficient (3] -4:18, 10:14, 11 :20 

appearance [2] - 6:1, 6:3, 6:6, 6:19, COUNTY [2J-1:2, 5:3, 8:10 given (1) - 14:6 

8:16.10:19 6:20, 7:2, 7:11, 7:21, 14:2 elevations £11 - 9:19 glass [3] - 4:11, 4:14, 
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8:19 K 9:20, 9:21, 10:12, 
Graal [1] -2:10 
grade (21 - 6:1, 6:4 
greater [1J - 5:1 

Group [11 - 2:6 

1----------1 10:14, 10:17, 10:19, 

KATHRYN [1J -1 :18 

kind [1J - 3:15 

10:20, 11:3, 11:6, 
11:7, 11:12, 11:14, 
11:15, 11:19, 11:20, 
12:2, 12:9, 12:10, 

1-___ H ___ ---J-----L ___ -J 12:13, 12:15, 12:17, 
I 12:21 

hear [1] -12:6 

Hearing r11 - 1 :9 

hearing [31 - 2:14, 
12:7, 14:7 

heat [11 - 4:6 
HEINEMANN 111-

14:3 
Heinemann [1] -

14:12 

helps [1] - 5:3 

hereby {1) - 14:4 

HINSDALE [11 - 1 :3 
Hinsdale [2] -1:10, 

large [3]-3:16, 6:10, 
6:15 

last [21 - 2:19, 3:5 

License [1J - 14:12 

list [1J -10:22 

lobby [11 - 4:7 

look [2] - 9:10, 10:8 

looking [2] - 9:8. 
9:10 

looks (2J- 10:2, 
10:18 

Ltd [1J - 2:6 

M5[101-1:18,2:3, 
11:11, 12:12, 12:14, 
12:16, 12:18, 12:19, 
12:20, 12:22 

Murphy [1J - 12:16 

MURPHY J6J - 1 :20, 
10:20, 11 :6, 11 :12, 

11:15, 12:17 

N 

name [1] -2:19 
need [2J - 3:22, 9:7 

1:11 
hit [1] - 4:3 

hospitals [11 - 4:21 
hour [1]-1:13·.· 

M neighboring [2] -

r~-----< 7:4, 10:22 

main [SJ - 3:13, 3:19: 

6;5. 6:16. 9:4 
l-----1--~--li - f!lan [2J - 3_:15. 4:3 

·M~nager. [_1 J ·- 2·:7 

match (41 - 8:21. 

IDG [1] - 2:21 

ILLINOIS 121 - 1: 1, 
14:1 

Illinois [2J - 1 :12, 
14:5 

improved (1) - 6:11 

Inc [1J - 2:7 
increase [21 - 5:14. 

5:16 
increasing [11 - 5:12 

infill [SJ - 8:15. 8:21, 
8:22. 9:22. 10:6 

inline [1] - 8:11 

inner [1] -10:7 
Interior [11 - 2:5 

involves [1] - 3:7 

itself [11- 5:21 

J 

8:22. 10:4, 10:7 

Matter [1] - 1 :4 

matter [1] - 1 :10 

MC 131- 2:2. 10:14. 
11 :20 

medical (21 - 3:20, 

4:21 

m~et [1] - 3:11 

meeting [1J - 3:6 
member [3] - 12:12, 

12:14. 12:16 
Member [7]-1:17. 

1:18, 1:19, 1:20. 1:21, 
12:18, 12:20 

members [1] - 11 :21 

MEMBERS 111-1 :15 

mentioned [1] - 8:14 

minute (1) - 3:6 

MOBERLY ~I - 1 :19, 

1----------I 9:9, 9:20, 10:12, 

JANICE 111 - 14:3 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
SS: 

COUNTY OF DU PAGE 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

In Re the Matter of: 

908 North Elm Street 
Case No. V-06-19 

1 

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had ·and testimony 

taken at the Deliberations of the Public Hearing 

of the above-entitled matter before the Hinsdale 

Zoning Board of Appeals, at 19 East Chicago 

l\.yenue, Hinsdale, I.llinois, on t.he l.Sth day of 

January, 2020, at the hour of 6~46 p.m. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

MR. ROBERT NEIMAN, Chairman; 

MR. JOSEPH ALESIA, Member; 

MS. KATHRYN ENGEL, Member; 

MR. GARY MOBERLY, Member; 

MR. THOMAS MURPHY, Member; 

MR. JOHN PODLISKA, Member. 

KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779 

.. 
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1 ALSO PRESENT: 

2 MR. ROBERT MC GINNIS, Director of Community 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

Development/Building; 

MS. CHRISTINE BRUTON, Deputy Clerk and 

Board's secretary; 

MR. RYAN DE BARI, VP and Senior 

Architectural Associate, The Interior 

Design Group Ltd.; 

MR. JIM DOYLE, Project Manager, CBRE, 

Inc. 

9 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Who wants to begin 

"'-''"""M 10 the deliberations? 

11 MR. MURPHY: Before my mother-in-law 

12 passed away, I had to take her to this p!ace 

13 numerous times. This is a good ic)ea. It's a 

14 mess. And it's hard to get a hold of -- It's 

15 hard to get the valet parkers up there. You are 

16 out-in the open when you pull up. It's a long 

17 distance. The doors, one door is open a lot and 

18 blowing through it. She had a walker, trying to 

19 go through the circular door. I mean this, I 

"'"""" 20 was glad to see this. 

21 MS. ENGEL:- I would agr~e. And in the 

22 wind, it.just seems like It, it just --
. 

1 (Indicating.) 

2 MR. MURPHY: I don't know why it was 

3 done this way to begin with. 

4 MS. ENGEL: It intensifies everyt_hing 

5 when there is wind in terms of the difficulties 

6 of ge~ing ln and out of that space especially 

7 if you can't valet park. So I think for the 

8 safety and welfare of any patient that has to go 

9 there, I think it's a wonderful idea. 

MR. PODLISKA: I agree. 

MR. ALESIA: Agree. 

MR. MOBERLY: Concur. 

3 

11 

12 

13 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. I had the same 

14 reaction as the other Board members. This 

15 seemed like the easiest meeting of our variance 

16 standards that I have seen in a long time. 

17 MR. MURPHY: I move to approve the 

18 variance. 

19 MR. ALESIA: Recommend. 

06A7:S9PM 20 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Right, yes. 

21 MR. MURPHY: Recommend. 

22 MR. MOBERLY: Second. 

4 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll call. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly? 

MR. MOBERLY: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia? 

MR. ALESIA: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Murphy? 

MR. MURPHY: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Engel? 

MS. ENGEL: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Podllska? 

MR. PODUSKA: Yes. 

12 MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman? 

13 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. Chris, our 

14 recommended decision will incorporate_the 

1.5 applicant's presentation as well? 

16 MS. BRUTON: Yes. 

17 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Okay. Thank you. 

18 * * * 
19 (Which were all the proce_edings had 

20 in the·-above-entitled cause.) 

21 

22 

STATE OF IL.LINOIS ) 

) SS. 

COUNTY OF DU PAGE ) 

. 

I, JANICE H. HEINEMANN, CSR, RDR, CRR, 

do hereby certify that I am a c·aurt reporter 

doing business in the State of Illinois~ that I 

reported in shorthand the testimony given at the 

hearing of said cause, and that _the foregoing is 

a true and correct transcript_of my shorthand 

notes so taken as aforesaid. 

(J . ,_1/ 11l . - .. '-' 

6/nice H. Heinemann CSR, RDR, CRR 

License No. 084-001391 

5 
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AGENDA ITEM#~ 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Community Development -- Est. 1873 --

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

MEETING DATE: 

FROM: 

First Reading - ZPS 

Consideration of a Temporary 180-Day Moratorium on the Issuance of 
Any Demolition Permits or Other Building or Zoning Approvals 
Involving the Demolition of Single Family Homes within the Robbins 
Park and Central Business District. 

March 16, 2020 

Robert McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building 
Commissioner 

Recommended Motion 
Approve a Referral to Plan Commission of a Request to Hold a Public Hearing for 
Consideration of, and a Recommendation to the Board of Trustees on, a Temporary 180-day 
Moratorium on the Issuance of any Demolition Permits or other Building or Zoning Approvals 
involving the Demolition of Landmarked Single-Family Homes, or of any Single Family 
Homes within the Village or within the Robbins Park and Central Business District Historic 
Districts 

Background 
At the Village Board of Trustee meeting of March 3, 2020, President Cauley cited two specific 
examples of homes in the Robbins Historic District that are in process for potential 
demolition. These applications have caused concern for the members of the Historic 
Preservation Commission (HPC) as in recent years, an alarming number of historic homes 
have been demolished in the Robbins Historic District and the Village has no process in place 
to stop these demolitions. An intermediate step under consideration to address the 
demolitions is to impose a temporary moratorium on demolitions of landmarked structures 
within the Village in either or both of the two historic districts, or Village-wide, for a finite 
period of time in order to give the Board of Trustees and applicable commissions time to 
study the issue and to evaluate recommendations to attempt to safeguard the community 
from the adverse impact that these demolitions have on Hinsdale's historic community. The 
process to institute a moratorium would be a public hearing at the Plan Commission to 
determine if Hinsdale residents support the idea of a moratorium in historic districts. 
Following the public hearing, the Plan Commission will make a recommendation to the 
Village Board of Trustees on whether or not to impose a moratorium. If the Board then 
chooses to impose a moratorium it would do so by Ordinance. 

Discussion & Recommendation 
Issues for consideration by the Board include how long the moratorium should be (a 
maximum of 180 days is recommended), whether it should be imposed Village-wide or only 
within one or both historic districts, and whether, if limited to one or both historic districts, 
whether it should apply just to contributing buildings and structures or to all buildings and 
structures within the historic district or districts. The Motion should be revised to reflect those 
decisions. 

Page 1 of 2 
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-- E•o. 187) --

Budget Impact 
During a potential moratorium as much as $15,000-$25,000 per permit may be lost as a 
result of a demo/rebuild permit not issued during the moratorium. As a point of reference, 
there were 4 issued in the Robbins Historic District in 2019. 

Village Board and/or Committee Action 

Documents Attached 

Page 2 of 2 



-- Est. 1873 --

AGENDA ITEM# bL 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Administration 

AGENDA SECTION: ZPS-First Read 

SUBJECT: 
Modifications to the Parking Regulations in the Central Business 
District. 

MEETING DATE: March 16, 2020 

FROM: 
Bradley Bloom, Assistant Village Manager/Director of Public Safety 
Brian King, Chief of Police 

Recommended Motion 
Approve an ordinance to change certain parking regulations in the Central Business District. 

Background 
At the January 20, 2020 Village Board meeting the Board discussed making changes to the 
parking regulations in the Central Business District (CBD). Recently, Village staff was asked 
to evaluate the parking in the CBD to determine if there were opportunities to make 
modifications to the existing parking administration and enforcement consisting of parking 
meters, merchant and employee parking permits and parking pay boxes considering the 
opening of the Village's new parking deck adjacent to the CBD in mid to late summer. 

The primary goal of building the new parking deck and the proposals set forth in this 
memorandum, is to make on-street parking spaces in the CBD readily available and in close 
proximity to shopping destinations, by and among other things, moving parking by merchants 
and their employees to the new parking deck. Under the proposed plan, various parking 
permits, fees and restrictions will be used in concert to direct parking users to appropriate 
spaces to achieve this goal. 

In furtherance of this goal of making on-street parking in the CBD more accessible to 
shoppers, staff was directed to determine whether there would be a method wherein Hinsdale 
residents and possibly non-residents, could park for free for some specified period in the 
CBD. 

Discussion & Recommendation 
The goal of the Village's parking plan is to encourage merchants and their employees to park 
in the parking deck (free of charge) to free up on-street parking in the CBD. Staff based on 
its review makes the following recommendations: 

1. Village implement zoned parking in the CBD as follows: 

Page 1of2 

a. 3 -hour zoned parking in the previously metered spaces; 
b. 6 -hour free parking in the lower level of parking deck (189 space capacity); the 

6-hour time frame is to limit commuters from using the free parking while they 
travel downtown for work. 

c. 8-hour parking would be available at the Washington at a new rate of $1/hr 
consistent with the current Garfield lot rate of $1 /hr. 
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E•t. l87l --

2. Merchants and employees of businesses in the CBD may park in the deck after 
registering their license plate with the Village and receiving a parking permit. To 
receive a parking permit for the deck the driver must agree to use the parking deck 
exclusively. Merchants and employees permitted for the parking deck who park at a 
meter or in the shopper lot at any time will receive a fine. Other than overnight 
parking, merchants and employees will have unrestricted access to parking on the 
deck for free. 

3. Violation of parking restrictions (zone or time limits on surface lots) in the CBD will 
result in a $25 ticket which is an increase from the current $8.00; (principally 
merchants and their employees) the cost of the violation ticket is directly related to the 
goal of encouraging long-term parkers, (principally merchants and their employees), to 
make use of the free parking available in the parking deck. The Village will be utilizing 
license plate reader technology (LPR) as the means of enforcement. A license plate 
reader will be attached to police parking control vehicles and will record license plates 
and GPS locations as it drives past a parked vehicle. If a vehicle is parked in the CBD 
for greater than three hours, including in multiple parking spaces collectively a ticket 
will be issued. 

4. Additional 15-minute parking spaces will be added in areas of high parking turnover is 
needed such as Starbucks or a dry cleaners. 

5. Additional commuter permits will be added. 

One difference in the Trustees' approach to a parking solution concerns non-resident parking. 
Some Trustees believe free 3-hour parking should be limited to residents with non-residents 
continuing to pay for parking meters. This issue will need to be determined by the Village 
Board. 

Budget Impact 
Budgetary impact will be developed after further Board direction from the Village Board 

Village Board and/or Committee Action 
At the February 4, 2020 meeting of the Village Board, parking in the Central Business District 
was a discussion item addressed by the Board. 

Documents Attached 
1. Minutes of February 4, 2020, Board discussion of parking in the CBD 
2. Zone Parking Map 

Page 2 of 2 
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No report. 

None. 

a) Parking plan 

VILLAGE PRESIDENT'S REPORT 

CITIZENS' PETITIONS 

DISCUSSION ITEM 

President Cauley began discussion relating to parking in Hinsdale stating the deck will open 
this summer and will result in a 40% increase in available parking. By way of background, he 
explained the Village decided to build a deck because of The Chicago Metropolitan Agency 
for Planning (CMAP) study that concluded a substantial number of parking spaces in the 
Central Business District (CBD) are being occupied by merchants and their employees, who 
feed the meters through the day. CMAP proposed a solution suggesting Hinsdale raise the 
parking rates. The benefit would be to encourage merchants and employees to park 
elsewhere, but resident and non-resident shoppers parking downtown would also have to pay 
the higher meter rate. He has spoken with Trustees, Village Manager Kathleen Gargano, 
Assistant Village Manager/Director of Public Safety Brad Bloom, and Police Chief King about 
a solution to the parking problem. The proposed plan includes zoned parking downtown, free 
parking for residents for three hours, six hour parking in the deck, to discourage commuter 
parking, but free for merchants and employees, and two paid lots allowing users to park for 
eight hours or more. Parking tickets will be increased to $25, not as a revenue generating 
mechanism, but to discourage merchant parking in the CBD. Lost parking meter revenue is 
$196,000, but this can be offset by raising the vehicle sticker fees from $40 to $48, and 
increasing commuter parking from $620 to $750 per year. He noted there are 170 people on 
the wait list for commuter parking permits, and fees have not been raised since 2006. 
Additionally, there are a number of spots on Burlington and Hinsdale Avenue that will no 
longer be merchant parking and can now be used for commuters. This increase would 
generate about $40,000 annually. Paybox fees would be increased from $.25 to $1.00 per 
hour, resulting in revenue of $50,000. Altogether, these fee increases will offset lost meter 
revenue. One of the issues with this plan is whether or not to distinguish between resident 
and non-resident parking downtown. Currently, 80% of people parking downtown between 
the peak hours of 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. are non-residents. The rationale for charging non­
residents to park is that they do not pay for vehicle stickers or commuter costs, or any other 
cost related to parking. The other option is to be simple and don't differentiate and allow 
residents and non-residents the same benefit. There will be education and enforcement 
challenges. 

Trustee Posthuma does not feel increasing sticker costs is appropriate as the current fees are 
at market rate, however, if residents have free parking, that is a trade-off he could agree to. 
He is concerned about free parking with the merchant parking issues. He believes it is best to 
encourage everybody to use the deck, if parking in the CBD is free, people won't use the 
deck. President Cauley said there are businesses in town that people will be reluctant to use 



Village Board of Trustees 
Meeting of February 4, 2020 
Page 3 of 7 

the deck if it is cold, for example Starbucks, but the main goal is to move merchants out of the 
CBD. It was further noted that Hinsdale is the only area community that has parking meters. 
Assistant Village Manager Brad Bloom explained, in terms of enforcement, a License Plate 
Reader (LPR) system would be used. If people were parked for more than three hours, they 
would get a ticket. CMAP said the way to effect change is with an economic incentive to park 
elsewhere. 
Trustee Byrnes cautioned the expected revenues from the pay boxes may not net $50,000 
because demand may be reduced . Finance Director Darrell Langlois said they worked that 
into the numbers. Trustee Haarlow asked about the response from the Chamber of 
Commerce. Village Manager Kathleen Gargano said they are very supportive of removing 
meters, and they have found the quarters are a nuisance for shoppers. 
Trustee Hughes is confident in the plan to solve the problem, but wants to stay focused on 
fixing the parking problem in the CBD; to provide readily available on-street parking in the 
middle of day. He is confident, but not certain. Going back to the CMAP study, there are 
three tools for managing parking; supply, limits, and price. We have increased the supply and 
established limits, but he is not confident to eliminate the price tool. Human behavior is 
unpredictable, and it is an assumption that if merchants move to the deck there will always be 
available spaces. He does not believe we know whether we have an adequate supply, it will 
take time to determine real demand. Hopefully, this will encourage more people into 
Hinsdale. He added there could be a technological solution to the coin problem. 
Discussion followed regarding price control, that the $25 ticket will discourage merchant 
parking in the CBD, that different rules for residents and non-residents adds to confusion, that 
there is a cost associated with pay box service fees and credit cards, and there has been no 
adjustment for any increase in sales tax and food and beverage income. Trustee Haarlow 
suggested the meter time match the zone. Chief King addressed the enforcement issues, 
stating the simpler the better; one rule for everybody. Trustee Byrnes said he looks at it from 
a sales perspective for merchants, removing barriers is a benefit to merchants. Mr. Bloom 
noted the existing meters can be programmed to match the zone. Trustee Posthuma 
suggested whatever the Board decides, should be on a trial basis for an entire year before 
making permanent changes. Discussion followed regarding the rationale for the six hour time 
limit at the deck. 
President Cauley thanked the Board for their input and said discussions will continue on this 
topic. 

FIRST READINGS - INTRODUCTION 

Administration & Community Affairs (Chair Hughes) 
a) Approve an Ordinance Amending Section 6-1 -4 ("License Fees") of Title 6 ("Motor 

Vehicles and Traffic"), Chapter 1 ("Vehicle Licenses") of the Village Code of Village 
of Hinsdale Relative to Vehicles License Fees 
Trustee Hughes introduced the item stating this is the first piece of the parking puzzle. Due 
to the fact that stickers go on sale March 1, per Village code, there is some urgency with 
this item. Mr. Langlois confirmed Board consensus on this item, to make the proper 
arrangements to meet the requirements of the code. 
The Board agreed to move this item forward for a second reading at their next meeting. 
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AGENDA SECTION: Consent - ACA 

SUBJECT: Accounts Payable-Warrant #1716 

MEETING DATE: March 16, 2020 

FROM: Darrell Langlois, Finance Director rW 

Recommended Motion 

AGENDA ITEM #1a____. 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Finance 

Approve payment of the accounts payable for the period of March 4, 2020 through March 16, 
2020 in the aggregate amount of $1.329.100.92 as set forth on the list provided by the Village 
Treasurer, of which a permanent copy is on file with the Village Clerk. 

Background 
At each Village Board meeting the Village Treasurer submits a warrant register that lists bills 
to be paid and to ratify any wire transfers that have been made since the last Village Board 
meeting. Supporting materials for all bills to be paid are reviewed by Village Treasurer and 
one Village Trustee prior to the Village Board meeting. 

Discussion & Recommendation 
After completion of the review by the Village Treasurer and Village Trustee approval of 
Warrant #1716 is recommended. 

Budget Impact 
N/A 

Village Board and/or Committee Action 
Village Board agenda policy provides that the Approval of the Accounts Payable should be 
listed on the Consent Agenda 

Documents Attached 
1. Warrant Register #1716 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANT REGISTER #1716 

FOR PERIOD March 4, 2020 through March 16, 2020 

The attached Warrant Summary by Fund and Warrant Register listing TOTAL 
DISBURSEMENTS FOR ALL FUNDS of $1,329,100.92 reviewed and approved by the 
below named officials. 

APPROVEDBY o~ . DATE Jb1/J.< 
VIL AGE TREASURER/FINANCE DIRECTOR 

APPROVED BY ______________ DATE ____ _ 

VILLAGE MANAGER 

APPROVEDBY ______________ DATE ____ _ 

VILLAGE TRUSTEE 



General Fund 100 
Capital Project Fund 400 

Water & Sewer Operations 600 
Water & Sewer Ca ital 620 
Escrow Funds 720 
Payroll Revolving Fund 740 
Flexible Benefit Fund 730 
Libr Fund 900 

Village of Hinsdale 
#1716 

Summary By Fund 

160.82 271,571.23 
39,014.78 

315.60 666,478.68 
4,966.00 

48,000.00 
6,111.10 

348.31 52.17 
750.00 12.75 

1,574.73 1,036,206. 71 

165,316.18 437,048.23 
39,014.78 

666,794.28 
4,966.00 

48,000.00 
126,416.53 132,527.63 

750.00 
291,732.71 1,329,100.92 



Village of Hinsdale 

Schedule of Bank Wire Transfers and ACH Payments 

1716 

Electronic Federal Tax Payment Systems 

31612020 Village Payroll #5 - Calendar 2020 FWH/FICA/Medicare $ 88,624.73 

Illinois Department of Revenue 

31612020 Village Payroll #5 - Calendar 2020 State Tax Withholding $ 18,803.43 

ICMA - 457 Plans 

3/6/2020 Village Payroll #5 - Calendar 2020 Employee Withholding $ 17,802.43 

HSA PLAN CONTRIBUTION 

31612020 Village Payroll #5 - Calendar 2020 Employer/Employee Withholding $ 1,185.94 

lntergoVeriiinental Persorinel B-e·nefit CoOpeiatiVe Employee Insurance "$ 165,316.18 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Employer/Employee $ 

Total Bank Wire Transfers and ACH Payments $ 291,732.71 

ipbc-general 165,316.18 

payroll 126,416.53 

291,732.71 
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Warrant Register 1716A 

Invoice Description 

AT&T 

63032338639258- VEECK PARK-WP 1-14/2-13 
FEB20 

GALLAGHER, TOM 

48151 

Check Date 2/28/2020 Total For Check# 105400 

FLEX SPENDING REIMBURSE 

Check Date 2/28/2020 Total For Check# 105401 

GARGANO, KATHLEEN 

1127135 FLEX SPENDING REIMBURSE 

Check Date 2/28/2020 Total For Check# 105402 

IL DEPT EMPLOY SECURITY 

701000673 UNEMPLOYMENT CLAIM 

KARGE, CHANTAL 

022820 

Check Date 2/28/2020 Total For Check# 105403 

REISSUE CHECK 

Check Date 2/28/2020 Total For Check# 105404 

Total For ALL Checks 

Invoice/Amount 

315.60 

315.60 

226.92 

226.92 

121.39 

121.39 

750.00 

750.00 

160.82 

160.82 

1,574.73 
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Invoice 

AFLAC·FLEXONE 

030620 

030620 

030620 

Warrant Register 17168 

Description 

AFLAC COVERAGE 

AFLAC COVERAGE 

AFLAC COVERAGE 

Check Date 3/5/2020 Total For Check# 105405 

COLONIAL LIFE PROCCESSING 

030620 LIFE INSURANCE 

Check Date 3/5/2020 Total For Check# 105406 

ILLINOIS FRATERNAL ORDER 

030620 UNION DUES 

Check Date 3/5/2020 Total For Check# 105407 

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOL 

030620 

030620 

USCM/PEBSCO 457 

USCM/PEBSCO 457 

Check Date 3/5/2020 Total For Check# 105408 

NATIONWIDE TRUST CO FSB 

030620 

030620 

030620 

PEHP CONTRIBUTIONS 

PEHP CONTRIBUTIONS 

PEHP CONTRIBUTIONS 

Check Date 3/5/2020 Total For Check# 105409 

NCPERS GRP LIFE INS#3105 

030620 ADDITIONAL LIFE INSURANCE 

Check Date 3/5/2020 Total For Check# 105410 

STATE DISBURSEMENT UNIT 

030620 

CITICARDS 

7843-FEB20 

COMED 

CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT 

Check Date 3/5/2020 Total For Check# 105411 

STATION SUPPLIES 

Check Date 3/6/2020 Total For Check# 105412 

0825110049-FEB PD CAMERA-440 E OGDEN 

Check Date 3/6/2020 Total For Check# 105413 

BULLSEYE TELECOM 

35487630 

35487630 

35487630 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

Invoice/Amount 

270.51 

385.26 

190.88 

846.65 

92.36 

92.36 

768.00 

768.00 

525.00 

101.82 

626.82 

409.59 

2,291.15 

589.76 

3,290.50 

256.00 

256.00 

230.77 

230.77 

95.59 

95.59 

30.99 

30.99 

683.69 

71.37 

66.77 



Page Number 2 of 18 

Invoice 

35487630 

35487630 

35487630 

35487630 

35487630 

35487630 

35487630 

35487630 

EMS ED 

031020 

031020 

GARCIA, LOURDES 

031020 

SPRINT 

977740515-217 

977740515-217 

9777 40515-217 

9777 40515-217 

9777 40515-217 

977740515-217 

977740515-217 

977740515-217 

977740515-217 

977740515-217 

977740515-217 

9777 40515-217 

977740515-217 

977740515-217 

977740515-217 

Warrant Register 17168 

Description 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

PHONE CHARGES-FEB 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105414 

PEDIATRIC CONF 3/26 

PEDIATRIC CONF 3/26 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105415 

FLEX SPENDING REIMBURSE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105416 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

PHONE SERVICE-FEB20 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105417 

TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICE 

407900273 

407900273 

407900273 

COPIER LEASE FEB 

COPIER LEASE FEB 

COPIER LEASE FEB 

Invoice/Amount 

267.09 

66.77 

595.11 

368.14 

71.37 

66.77 

138.14 

44.66 

2,439.88 

50.00 

50.00 

100.00 

52.17 

52.17 

221.94 

44.39 

621.43 

355.10 

44.39 

44.39 

44.39 

88.78 

177.55 

88.78 

88.78 

392.87 

88.78 

6.61 

6.58 

2,314.76 

193.13 

82.77 

269.12 
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Invoice Description Invoice/Amount 

407900273 

407900273 

407900273 

407901164 

COPIER LEASE FEB 275.90 

COPIER LEASE FEB 269.12 

COPIER LEASE FEB 269.12 

COPIER LEASE FEB 269.12 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105418 1,628.28 

VERIZON WIRELESS 

9848996131 

9848996131 

9848996131 

9848996131 

!PADS/MODEMS FEB20 

!PADS/MODEMS FEB20 

!PADS/MODEMS FEB20 

!PADS/MODEMS FEB20 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105419 

A & B LANDSCAPING 

2020-0068 CBD SNOW REMOVAL 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105420 

A BLOCK MARKETING INC 

ME00040214 WOOD CHIP DISPOSAL 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105421 

ABBOTT RUBBER COMPANY INC 

5344093 

5346167 

PRETREAT TANK COUPLINGS 

1.5" HOSE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105422 

ALKAYE MEDIA GROUP 

60077 MOVIES IN PARK SUMMER 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105423 

ALLIED GARAGE DOOR INC 

147634 REPAIR OVERHEAD #5 DOOR 

AR SUPPLY INC 

5024702RI 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105424 

PEARL WASH SOLVENT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105425 

ATLAS BOBCAT LLC 

BH0803 

BH0896 

AVOLIN, LLC 

TIE DOWN STRAPS/BOB CAT 

WINDSHIELD WIPER ARM & BLADE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105426 

583585353285554 DATA MIGRATION 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105427 

116.69 

38.89 

116.69 

116.69 

388.96 

590.00 

590.00 

30.00 

30.00 

20.67 

115.78 

136.45 

895.00 

895.00 

290.85 

290.85 

110.00 

110.00 

141.66 

50.01 

191.67 

260.00 

260.00 
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Invoice Description Invoice/Amount 

AWARD ENBLEM 

410433 NAME PLATES 28.20 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105428 28.20 

BACKGROUNDS ONLINE 

520235 BACKGROUND CHECK 79.95 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105429 79.95 

BAILEY, CAROL E 

104 GENTLE YOGA JAN2020 406.00 

105 VINYASA JAN 2020-YOGA 224.00 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105430 630.00 

BANNERVILLE USA 

28664 SUMMER BROCHURE POSTER 195.00 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105431 195.00 

BNSF CONTRACTOR 

20-64998 2020 INFRASTRUCTURE PROJ 4,966.00 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105432 4,966.00 

BRITE 

INV18294 SECURITY IMPROVEMENTS 29,999.00 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105433 29,999.00 

C.A. BENSON & ASSOCIATES 

7355 APPRAISAL 450.00 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105434 450.00 

CALL ONE 

192121 PHONE CHARGES-FEB 936.26 

192121 PHONE CHARGES-FEB 3,253.75 

192121 PHONE CHARGES-FEB 205.83 

192121 PHONE CHARGES-FEB 125.01 

192121 PHONE CHARGES-FEB 233.90 

192121 PHONE CHARGES-FEB 124.66 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105435 4,879.41 

CARGILL INCORPORATED 

2905272108 BULK ROCK SALT 8,484.87 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105436 8,484.87 

CBC RESTAURANT CORP 

1520677 IRMA TRANING 190.00 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105437 190.00 



Page Number 5 of 18 

Warrant Register 17168 

Invoice Description 

CDW-GOVERNMENT INC. 

WXL7970 

WZF6683 

LIBRARY FONTS-MUNIS 

NEW COMPUTERS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105438 

CENTRAL PARTS WAREHOUSE 

605164A PARTS FOR TOOLCAT 

605164A 

CHRIS NYBO LLC 

162 

179 

PARTS FOR TOOLCAT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105439 

CONSUL TING FEB20 

CONSUL TING FEE-MARCH 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105440 

CINTAS CORPORATION 769 

5016110029 

5016110029 

5016110035 

1901132483 

1901055996 

1901088489 

MEDICAL SUPPLIES CABINET 

MEDICAL SUPPLIES CABINET 

MEDICINE CABINET 

UNIFORM ALLOW 

UNIFORM ALLOW 

UNIFORM ALLOW 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105441 

CITY ELECTRIC SUPPL Y-CES 

ROM/051336 SHIPPING 2 LPR LIGHT POLES 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105442 

CLOWNING AROUND ENTERTNMT 

36611 

37035 

JULY 4TH DEPOSIT 

FALL FEST DEPOSIT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105443 

COLLEGE OF DUPAGE 

12067 DUI TRAINING 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105444 

COMCAST 

8771201110037136- POOL 3/4-4/3/20 
FEB 

8771201110036781- POLICE 3/5-4/4/20 
MAR 

8771201110036807- KLM 3/5-4/4/20 
MAR 

Invoice/Amount 

333.30 

6.400.00 

6,733.30 

168.00 

65.46 

233.46 

5,000.00 

5,000.00 

10,000.00 

67.51 

67.52 

102.11 

171.13 

54.44 

55.53 

518.24 

157.15 

157.15 

2,372.00 

522.00 

2,894.00 

298.00 

298.00 

148.35 

162.90 

108.35 
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Warrant Register 17168 

Invoice Description 

8771201110036815- WATER 3/6-4/4/20 
MAR 

8771201110036757- VILLAGE HALL 3/5-4/4/20 
MAR 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105445 

COM ED 

0015093062-FEB20 57TH STREET 

0203017056-FEB20 WARMING HOUSE/PADDLE HUT 

020306515-FEB20 CHESTNUT PARKING 

0381057101-FEB20 CLOCK TOWER 

0395122068-FEB20 STREET LIGHTS 

0417073048-FEB20 314 SYMONDS DR 

04 71 095066-FEB20 FOUNTAIN 

049914 7045-FEB20 BURLINGTON PARK 

0639032045-FEB20 ROBBINS PARK 

0697168013-FEB20 STREET LIGHTS 

1094271003-FEB20 VILLAGE PLACE ALLEY 

1107024145-FEB20 LANDSCAPE LIGHTS 650 

199302301 O-FEB20 RADIO EQUIPMENT FD 

2378029015-FEB20 WASHINGTON 

2425068008-FEB20 VEECKPARK 

6583006139-FEB20 BURLINGTON PARK 

7011157008-FEB20 NS CBQ RR 

7011378007-FEB20 PIERCE PARK 

7011481018-FEB20 WALNUT STREET 

7261620005-FEB20 SAFETY TOWN 

8521400008-FEB20 WATER PLANT 

860517 4005-FEB20 BROOK PARK 

86898206002- ELEANOR PARK 
FEB20 

8689480008-FEB20 STOUGH PARK 

8689640004-FEB20 BURNS FIELD 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105446 

COM ED 

0075151076-FEB20 ELEANOR PARK 

3454039030-FEB20 VEECK PARK-WP 

7093551008-FEB20 KLM LODGE 

7093551008-FEB20 KLM LODGE 

8521083007-FEB20 ROBBINS PARK 

Invoice/Amount 

148.35 

258.35 

826.30 

426.63 

408.45 

47.21 

25.23 

54.18 

500.78 

41.36 

29.90 

19.76 

42.61 

212.95 

27.51 

265.42 

39.90 

440.48 

25.23 

29.12 

223.04 

26.12 

20.43 

36.24 

409.45 

38.95 

19.40 

21.58 

3,431.93 

1, 114.76 

1,062.27 

901.40 

225.36 

808.73 
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Invoice Description 

8521342001-FEB20 TRAIN STATION 

8605437007-FEB20 POOL 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105447 

COMPASS MINERALS AMERICA 

588638 BULK ROCK SALT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105448 

CONSTELLATION NEWENERGY 

2813766 GAS BILLS 1/1-1/31/20 

2813766 GAS BILLS 1/1-1/31/20 

2813766 GAS BILLS 1/1-1/31/20 

2813766 GAS BILLS 1/1-1/31/20 

2813766 GAS BILLS 1/1-1/31/20 

2813766 GAS BILLS 1/1-1/31/20 

16815058301 TRANSFORMER 1/21-2/19 

16845584801 STREET LIGHT-1/24-2/24 1653148050 

168149990001 

16845554301 

CURRIE MOTORS 

E7676 

CWKK CRIMEDEX 

E78673CB-0001 

908 elm 1/21-2/19/20 

53 VILLAGE PL-1/17-2/18/20 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105449 

NEWSQUAD40 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105450 

SUBSCRIPTION 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105451 

DANCE ALTERNATIVES INC 

HINSDWINTER2020 LINE DANCING FEB20 
1 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105452 

DIRECT ADVANTAGE INC 

1886 FEB MONTHLY FEES 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105453 

DISCOVERY BENEFITS 

1121263-IN 

1121263-IN 

1121263-IN 

1121263-IN 

1121263-IN 

FSA MONTHLY-JAN 

FSA MONTHLY-JAN 

FSA MONTHLY-JAN 

FSA MONTHLY-JAN 

FSA MONTHLY-JAN 

Invoice/Amount 

934.26 

688.87 

5,735.65 

8,643.60 

8,643.60 

789.01 

789.00 

1,549.21 

1,546.74 

438.65 

1,284.04 

1,901.17 

8, 107.76 

547.36 

688.09 

17,641.03 

36,587.00 

36,587.00 

79.00 

79.00 

75.00 

75.00 

16,719.00 

16,719.00 

12.75 

12.75 

12.75 

21.25 

12.75 
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Page Number 8 of 18 

Warrant Register 17168 

E, ,_ I Si l 

Invoice Description 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105454 

DOCU-SHRED, INC. 

46232 DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION 

46233 DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105455 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

01-1200-00-FEB20 WATER CHARGES-JAN 1-31/2-29-20 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105456 

ECO CLEAN MAINTENANCE INC 

8512 CLEANING SERVICE FEB20 

8512 CLEANING SERVICE FEB20 

8512 CLEANING SERVICE FEB20 

8512 

8512 

8512 

CLEANING SERVICE FEB20 

CLEANING SERVICE FEB20 

CLEANING SERVICE FEB20 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105457 

ETP LABS, INC 

20-52343 VEECK CSO OVERFLOW SAMPLE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105458 

FACTORY MOTOR PARTS CO 

50-2728320 OIL #58 

50-2730693 RECIRCULATION DOOR MOTOR #850 

50-2730319 REAR WIPER BLADES #28 

50-2731503 HEAT GUN 

50-2733985 WASHER SOLVENT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 

FE DEX 

6-939-52730 FED EX SHIPMENTS 

6-939-52730 FED EX SHIPMENTS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 

FIRESTONE STORES 

132218 

132207 

NEW TIRES #46 

NEW TIRES #45 

Total For Check# 105459 

Total For Check# 105460 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105461 

FIRST COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 

119137962 

119137962 

PHONE CHARGES FEB 

PHONE CHARGES FEB 

Invoice/Amount 

72.25 

40.00 

80.00 

120.00 

. 299,253.64 

299,253.64 

1,898.00 

322.00 

322.00 

740.00 

1,200.00 

1,700.00 

6,182.00 

1,122.00 

1,122.00 

25.97 

19.27 

11.68 

145.99 

105.00 

307.91 

27.25 

59.50 

86.75 

619.36 

563.36 

1,182.72 

272.16 

93.35 



-------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page Number 9 of 18 

Invoice 

119137962 

119137962 

119137962 

119137962 

119137962 

119137962 

Warrant Register 17168 

Description 

PHONE CHARGES FEB 

PHONE CHARGES FEB 

PHONE CHARGES FEB 

PHONE CHARGES FEB 

PHONE CHARGES FEB 

PHONE CHARGES FEB 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105462 

FULLERS HOME & HARDWARE 

FEB2020 MISC HARDWARE 

FEB2020 

FEB2020 

FEB2020 

FEB2020 

FEB2020 

FEB2020 

MISC HARDWARE 

MISC HARDWARE 

MISC HARDWARE 

MISC HARDWARE 

MISC HARDWARE 

MISC HARDWARE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105463 

GOVTEMPS USA, LLC 

2980087 MCLAUGHLIN HOURS 2/16 & 2/23 

2970925 MCLAUGHLIN HOURS 2/2, 2/9, 2/2 

2980088 CASTELLANOS HOURS 2/16-2/23 

GRANICUS 

124122 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105464 

MEETING WEB LIVESTREAMING 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105465 

GRAPHIC TICKETS & SYSTEMS 

5670 PARKING TICKET PAPER ROLLS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105466 

HEALY ASPHALT COMPANY LLC 

22447 

HOLIDYNAMICS 

33693 

HRGREEN INC 

PROJ 190242 

133271 

133272 

COLD PATCH 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105467 

EXTRA HOLIDAY LIGHTS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105468 

2020 INFRASTRUCTURE DESIGN 

2019 E CHGO DRAINAGE DESIGN 

2020 VEECK PK OPERATOR 

Invoice/Amount 

196.91 

54.33 

369.02 

158.15 

589.38 

-0.01 

1,733.29 

17.16 

11.95 

28.22 

17.22 

0.70 

2.23 

5.84 

83.32 

3,430.00 

3,512.46 

658.00 

7,600.46 

1,200.00 

1,200.00 

970.50 

970.50 

1,187.20 

1,187.20 

2,462.40 

2,462.40 

12,663.88 

13,863.00 

186.00 



-------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Invoice 

133267 

HUFF & HUFF INC 

0790218 

Warrant Register 17168 

Description 

REP SVC PARKING DECK 1-18/2-14-20 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105469 

UST-REPLACEMENT DESIGN 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105470 

IAM STARGUARD ELITE 

213 ANNUAL TRNG CTR FEE 2020 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105471 

IL ASSOC OF PARK DISTRICT 

DUES YEARLY MEMBERSHIP DUES 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105472 

IL SECRETARY OF STATE 

MP825 TITLE/PLATE SQUAD 40 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105473 

ILLINOIS FIRE INSPECTORS 

21246 NFPA 101 LIFE SAFETY CODE UPDATE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105474 

INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC 

3717 LIGHTS FOR BRUSH HILL 

3718 

4376 

4375 

4374 

4374 

LIGHT/SWITCH TRAIN STATION 

STREET LIGHT POLE BALLAST 

SWITCH/RECEPTACLE PADDLE HUT 

BALLEST VH LIGHTS/GLOVES 

BALLEST VH LIGHTS/GLOVES 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105475 

INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY 

5816 55TH & TAFT PD SUPPLIES 

5819 

5817 

5815 

55TH & TAFT PD CAMERA 

STREET LIGHT POLE SUPPLIES 

ST LIGHT REPAIR SUPPLIES 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105476 

INDUSTRIAL ORGANIZATIONAL 

C47153A PSYCHOLOGICAL EVALUATION 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105477 

Invoice/Amount 

3,392.50 

30,105.38 

1,376.90 

1,376.90 

35.00 

35.00 

663.56 

663.56 

175.00 

175.00 

50.00 

50.00 

174.00 

49.50 

120.00 

15.00 

61.00 

11.00 

430.50 

21.43 

464.39 

152.40 

29.02 

667.24 

485.00 

485.00 
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Invoice Description Invoice/Amount 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOC OF 

82926 MEMBERSHIP-SUSMARSKI 75.00 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105478 75.00 

INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM 

24040591 BATTERIES 109.95 

24040591 BATIERIES 259.90 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105479 369.85 

JAMES J BENES & ASSOC INC 

PROJ 1209.685 2019-20 3RD PARTY REVIEWS 4,456.48 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105480 4,456.48 

JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY 

33850042 QTRL Y FIRE ALARM MONITORING 62.10 

33850042 QTRL Y FIRE ALARM MONITORING 62.10 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105481 124.20 

JS WHITE ASSOCIATES LLC 

1129 JAN ACCOUNTING SVC 2,856.00 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105482 2,856.00 

KASPERSKI, ERIC 

006600009876 UNIFORM ALLOW 65.98 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105483 65.98 

KATHLEEN W BONO CSR 

8420 #HPC-46-2019 999.70 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105484 999.70 

LAKE VIEW NATURE CENTER 

022920 CLASSES 58.50 

022920 CLASSES 131.40 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105485 189.90 

LAMBERT, PETE 

006000007193 UNIFORM ALLOW 65.08 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105486 65.08 

LAW OFFICES ANCEL,GLINK ET AL 

72672 SPECIAL ZONING COUNSEL 587.50 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105487 587.50 

LENOVO INC. 

6453076957 LAPTOP DOCKS 809.97 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105488 809.97 
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Warrant Register 17168 

Invoice Description 

LIPKE KENTEX HESSE, INC 

578064 

578064-1 

578064-2 

MANGANIELLO, JIM 

022020 

SOUR SOFTENER 

5 GAL PULSE ULTRA ALKALI 

NDT BRITE DET 5 GAL 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105489 

FEB READINGS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105490 

MARQUARDT PRINTING CO 

35000 YELLOW DOOR HANGERS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105491 

MENARDS 

44455 FENCE REPAIR KLM 

44472 MISC SUPPLIES 

44472 MISC SUPPLIES 

44472 MISC SUPPLIES 

44745 VEHICLE CLEANING SUPPLIES 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105492 

MIDWEST TIME RECORDER 

171712 

172116 

PUB SVC TIME CLOCK MAINT 

PUB SVC TIME CLOCK MAINT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105493 

MUNICIPAL SERVICES ASSOCIATES INC 

11-1958-20 

04-1951-20 

NAPA AUTO PARTS 

ROW PERMITTING COMMUNICATIONS 

REVIEW PERMIT REQUESTS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105494 

4343-648614 WELDING HELMET 

4343-649600 

4343-649521 

4343-649517 

6306-534530 

NATIONAL SEED 

593370SI 

593370Sl-1 

SOCKET FOR PLAYGROUND EQUIP 

SOLDERING IRON FUEL 

SOLDERING IRON & SOLDER 

DEF AND PREMIXED ANTIFREEZE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check # 105495 

PLATFORM BULK SALT 

BULK SALT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105496 

Invoice/Amount 

90.41 

101.53 

108.68 

300.62 

70.00 

70.00 

160.00 

160.00 

29.99 

26.97 

23.61 

24.97 

15.95 

121.49 

250.00 

111.60 

361.60 

765.00 

1,700.00 

2,465.00 

180.00 

9.49 

11.99 

53.48 

67.66 

322.62 

205.87 

2,618.00 

2,823.87 
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Warrant Register 17168 

Invoice Description 

NELS J JOHNSON TREE EXPT 

131639 TREE PRUNING 

131606 TREE PRUNING 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105497 

NICOR GAS 

13270110003-FEB 350 N VINE 1/15-2/15/20 

12952110000-FEB 5905 S CNTY LINE 1/16-2/16 

06677356575-FEB PLATFORM TENNIS 1/17-2/16 

38466010006-FEB 121 SYMONDS 1/16-2/17 

38466010006-FEB 121 SYMONDS 1/16-2/17 

90077900000-FEB YOUTH CENTER 1 /15-2/16 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105498 

NUC021NC 

62193046 C02 TANK LEASE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105499 

ONE STEP 

154777 SUMMER 2020 POSTCARDS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105500 

CMS LANDSCAPE 

25121 CONT BD-521 N LINCOLN #25121 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105501 

FINISHED BASEMENT COMPANY 

25473 CONT BD-20 N GRANT #25473 

FRIEDMAN & HUEY 

26632 

GEE, RICKY 

25494 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105502 

KLM SEC DEP-EN200108 & 109 #26632 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105503 

CONT BD-908 S THURLOW #25494 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105504 

HODNELAND, CHRISTIAN 

24275 CONT BD-311 NOAK #24275 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105505 

LEE, GARY C & LESLIE A 

25125 CONT BD-928 OAKWOOD-#25125 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105506 

Invoice/Amount 

3,563.50 

4,746.75 

8,310.25 

330.06 

252.67 

1,203.21 

62.30 

62.30 

347.60 

2,258.14 

100.89 

100.89 

277.81 

277.81 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 

4,000.00 

4,000.00 

250.00 

250.00 

500.00 

500.00 

5,000.00 

5,000.00 

9,000.00 

9,000.00 



-------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Invoice Description 

LICHTENBERGER HOMES 

25466 CONT BD-415 N ELM #25466 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105507 

MCCABE, PAMELA 

25335 CONT BD-214 S MONROE #25335 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105508 

MOODY, JAMES & AMY 

25106 CONT BD-18 E HICKORY #25106 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105509 

OAKLEY HOME BUILDERS 

25341 

RILEY, BETH 

210876 

SCHULZ, AARON 

25357 

TEMPAS, ROBERT 

CONT BD-22 E NORTH #25341 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105510 

CLASS CANCEL 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105511 

CONT BD-1401 BURR OAK #114B #25357 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105512 

25197 CONT BD-916 S BODEN #25197 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105513 

THE LANDSCAPE SPECIALIST 

25447 CONT BD-901 SPARK #25447 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105514 

UNITED HEALTH CARE 

DOS09182019 

ZHANG,JIAN 

24104 

ORBIS SOLUTIONS 

5569756 

5569932 

REF AMB #HNIL-19-2333:1 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105515 

STMWR BD-918 S MADISON #24104 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105516 

POLICE/DECK/RR CAMERA PROJ 

TEMP CONTRACT IT SUPPORT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105517 

Invoice/Amount 

1,500.00 

1,500.00 

2,750.00 

2,750.00 

4,000.00 

4,000.00 

4,500.00 

4,500.00 

70.00 

70.00 

2,000.00 

2,000.00 

3,750.00 

3,750.00 

500.00 

500.00 

528.36 

528.36 

8,400.00 

8,400.00 

800.00 

13,744.00 

14,544.00 
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Invoice Description 

PERSONNEL STRATEGIES LLC 

021020 PEAC FOR HIRING CYCLE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105518 

PIECZVNSKI, LINDA 

6911R TRAINING NEWSLETIER 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105519 

PORTER LEE CORPORATION 

23380 THE BEAST EVIDENCE SOFTWARE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105520 

PREMIER LANDSCAPE CONTRAC 

25508 CONT BD-223 JUSTINA #25508 

QUADIENT INC 

15999508 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105521 

INK CARTRIDGE IS3-4 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105522 

RAY O'HERRON CO INC 

2010216-IN 

2009078-IN 

2010189-IN 

2009699-IN 

RETIREMENT BADGE 

BADGE HOLDER 

UNIFORM CAP 

UNIFORM SHIPMENT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105523 

RELIABLE FIRE & SECURITY 

17305 FIRE EXTINGUISHERS SVC 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105524 

REMPE-SHARPE & ASSOCIATES INC 

27304 2020 MAINTENANCE PROJ 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105525 

RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT 

SPI 10103228 

SPl10099324 

SNOW SHOVELS 

SNOWBLOWER PARTS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105526 

RYDIN SIGN & DECAL 

364813-1 FREIGHT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105527 

Invoice/Amount 

4,850.00 

4,850.00 

110.00 

110.00 

1,013.00 

1,013.00 

600.00 

600.00 

189.97 

189.97 

83.18 

13.99 

26.95 

8.04 

132.16 

330.45 

330.45 

9,095.40 

9,095.40 

119.98 

52.07 

172.05 

22.72 

22.72 



-------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Invoice 

scon STOMPER 

68 

Warrant Register 17168 

Description 

SUMMER 2020 BROCHURE DESIGN 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105528 

SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOL 

20-002-112 1 AED BATIERY 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105529 

SERVICE FORMS & GRAPHICS 

0084221 

0084558 

BUSINESS CARDS 

AP LASER CHECKS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105530 

SHERWIN WILLIAM-WESTMONT 

7737-7 GRAFFITI REMOVER 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105531 

SPEER FINANCIAL INC 

011/19-24 

SPORTSRUS 

2484 

PROF SERVICE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105532 

FEB 2020 SESSIONS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105533 

STANDARD EQUIPMENT CO 

U00424 COMBINATION VACTOR TRUCK 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105534 

STOPSTICK LTD 

0016823-IN STOPSTICKS 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105535 

SUBURBAN LABORATORIES, IN 

173338 IEPA WELL SAMPLES 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105536 

TASC·CLIENT INVOICES 

IN1708397 FMLA ADMIN FEE 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105537 

TELCOM INNOVATIONS GROUP 

A54830 MITEL/365 CHANGES 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105538 

Invoice/Amount 

2,000.00 

2,000.00 

225.00 

225.00 

57.71 

445.24 

502.95 

17.83 

17.83 

830.00 

830.00 

1,680.00 

1,680.00 

346,890.00 

346,890.00 

967.00 

967.00 

4,447.00 

4,447.00 

379.05 

379.05 

32.50 

32.50 
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Invoice 

THE HINSDALEAN 

7246 

7277 

Description 

#A-04-2020 

#V-02-20 

Warrant Register 17168 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105539 

THE POLICE & SHERIFFS 

130788 RETIRED CC CARD 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105540 

THIRD MILLENIUM 

24423 UTILITY BILLING-2/4/20 

24489 VEH STICKER FEE 4/30/20-4/29/21 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105541 

TPI BLDG CODE CONSULTANT 

202002 

TRANE 

7683601 

7683601 

3RD PTY PLUMBING INSP MAR20 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105542 

V-BEL T FOR AIR HANDLER 

V-BEL T FOR AIR HANDLER 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105543 

TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 

045-293739 

UPS STORE #3276 

3218 

SAAS CONTRACT IMPLEMENT 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105544 

UPS FOR PD SHIPPED 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105545 

US WATERPROOFING & CONSTR 

25431 CONT BD-421 N VINE #25431 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105546 

VILLAGE TRUE VALUE HOWE 

214141 GRAFFITI PIERCE PARK 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105547 

WAREHOUSE DIRECT INC 

4587431-0 

4584646-0 

4584651-0 

4590765-0 

4591220-0 

4575941-0 

KLM JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 

TONER/DRUM 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

Invoice/Amount 

160.00 

188.00 

348.00 

17.55 

17.55 

1,053.58 

1,217.37 

2,270.95 

2,000.00 

2,000.00 

3.45 

3.44 

6.89 

5,394.28 

5,394.28 

24.00 

24.00 

500.00 

500.00 

8.99 

8.99 

194.84 

221.72 

7.29 

171.97 

58.49 

16.59 



-------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page Number 18of18 

E , r _ I Ii 7 I 

Invoice 

C4564546-0 

4578254-0 

4578247-0 

4573869-0 

4574883-0 

4580668-0 

4583454-0 

458616-0 

C4580668-0 

4583734-0 

4578117-0 

Warrant Register 17168 

Description 

CREDIT 

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 

JANITORIAL 

TOWEL CREDIT 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105548 

WARREN OIL COMPANY 

W1293089 DIESEL FUEL-FEB 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105549 

WEX BANK 

64158848 UNLEADED FUEL-FEB 

64158848 UNLEADED FUEL-FEB 

64158848 UNLEADED FUEL-FEB 

64158848 UNLEADED FUEL-FEB 

64158848 UNLEADED FUEL-FEB 

64158848 UNLEADED FUEL-FEB 

64158848 UNLEADED FUEL-FEB 

64158848 UNLEADED FUEL-FEB 

64158848 UNLEADED FUEL-FEB 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105550 

WILLOWBROOK FORD INC 

5144393 GAS CAP 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105551 

WINSTON & STRAWN 

2724191 LEGAL SERVICES 

Check Date 3/16/2020 Total For Check# 105552 

Total For ALL Checks 

Invoice/Amount 

-74.00 

104.77 

6.92 

20.80 

49.90 

453.90 

18.50 

23.08 

-18.50 

120.37 

93.95 

1,470.59 

9,787.50 

9,787.50 

93.14 

242.23 

3,118.97 

679.63 

235.99 

118.42 

72.33 

668.52 

467.17 

5,696.40 

16.47 

16.47 

10,019.89 

10,019.89 

1,036,206.71 



-------------------------------------------------------------------------------

VILLAGE OF AGENDA ITEM #:zh 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION' 

Administration 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

MEETING DATE: 

FROM: 

Consent Agenda - ACA 

Approve an ordinance designating a cable television non-commercial 
Public, Education and Governmental access (PEG) capital project to 
fund the Village Board chambers audio facilities improvement project 

March 16, 2020 

Bradley Bloom, Assistant Village Manager/Director of Public Safety 

Recommended Motion 
Approve an Ordinance to Collect Cable Public Education Government (PEG) fees to fund the 
replacement of cable broadcast equipment 

Background 
Over the past few years, Village staff has received complaints over the degradation of the 
quality of the broadcast audio of Village meetings broadcast on the local access cable 
channel and livestreamed from the website. Staff has noticed low volume levels and 
inconsistent audio quality at times. The Village's vendor that maintains the broadcast 
equipment has attributed the audio issues to the age of the equipment and the fact that the 
analog microphones are interfaced with newer digital broadcast equipment. The vendor 
recommends replacing the microphones at the Board dais, staff table and podium as well as 
the back-end audio equipment at a cost of approximately $44,000. 

The Village's franchise agreement with Comcast and an ordinance establishing an 
agreement with AT&T allows the Village to impose a PEG fee on customers to fund the cost 
for replacing the microphones and back-end broadcast equipment. Upon written notification 
from the Village, Comcast and AT&T will collect a PEG fee on behalf of the Village (Comcast­
_35 cents per month and AT&T-1% of customers monthly fee) until Comcast and AT&T 
providers portion is paid to the Village. The length of time it PEG will be imposed is 
undermined due to the total number of Hinsdale customers served by Comcast and AT&T 
being considered as proprietary and not available to the Village. Previously, PEG fees 
collected on behalf of the Village show Comcast accounted for 84% and AT&T accounted for 
16% of the total PEG fees collected. 

Provider Share of Project Cost of Monthly Cost to End User 
$44,000 

Comcast $36,960 (84%) 35 cents per month 
AT&T $7,040 (16%) $1.09 per month (average) 

Discussion & Recommendation 
The equipment to be replaced is over 15 years old. The Village relies on the broadcast of 
Village meetings to keep residents informed on governmental activities. Village staff obtained 
competitive quotes from three broadcast equipment suppliers and recommends purchasing 
the equipment from the supplier providing the lowest price for each piece of equipment for a 
total cost of $30,249.09. 
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Equipment Vendor Quote 
Microphones B and H Limited $16,158.09 
Switches and Cablinq National Tee Direct $7,665.00 
Sound Panels Audio Visual Svstems $6,426.00 

Equipment Total $30,249.09 

Due to the complexity of the broadcast equipment and familiarity of the vendor that maintains 
the broadcast equipment, staff recommends that Audio. Visual Systems (AVS) do the 
installation at a cost not to exceed $13,100. The total cost of the project including 
equipment and installation is $43,259.09 

Budget Impact 
The 2020 capital budget includes $39,500 for broadcast replacement equipment. The actual 
cost of the project is $43,259.09 or $3,759.09 over budget. This is a budgeted request with 
funding conditioned upon the approval of Village reimbursement through PEG fees collected 
by Comcast and AT&T. 

Village Board and/or Committee Action 
At their meeting of March 3, the Board agreed to move this item to the Consent agenda of 
their next meeting. 

Documents Attached 
1. Ordinance on PEG Fees 
2. Cable Franchise Agreement (pages 11-12) Section 8.5 Peg Fees 
3. Capital Plan Page Broadcast Equipment Replacement 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

ORDINANCE NO.-----

ORDINANCE DESIGNATING A CABLE TELEVISION NONCOMMERCIAL PUBLIC, 
EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS CAPITAL PROJECT 

(VILLAGE BOARD CHAMBERS AUDIO FACILITIES IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT) 

WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale ("Village") is a non-home rule municipality under the 
Constitution of the State of Illinois of 1970; and 

WHEREAS, the Village is authorized under the Federal Cable Communications Policy 
Act, 47 U.S.C. § 521, el seq., and the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 65 ILCS 5/11-42-11, to 
grant nonexclusive franchises for cable television operators to construct and operate cable 
systems in the Village's public ways, and the Village has issued a cable television franchise to 
Comcast of Illinois VI, LLC; and 

WHEREAS, the Village is authorized under the law, including, but not limited to, 47 
U.S.C. §542(g)(2)(C), to designate cable television noncommercial public, educational and 
governmental access capital projects, the costs of which are not included in the franchise fees 
required to be paid by cable operators to the Village; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village desire to designate a 
cable television noncommercial public, educational and governmental access facilities capital 
project for certain audio facilities improvements in the Village Board Chambers, as set forth in 
EXHIBIT A attached hereto and made a part hereof ("Audio Facilities Improvements Capital 
Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the costs of the Audio Facilities Improvements Capital Project shall be 
collected from cable subscribers in the Village, but shall not be deducted from the franchise fees 
paid by cable operators in the Village; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the President and Board of Trustees of the 
Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties of the State of Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Designation. That the Audio Facilities Improvements Capital Project is 
hereby designated as a cable television noncommercial public, educational and governmental 
access capital project of the Village. 

SECTION 2: Transmittal. That Village staff is hereby directed to transmit this Ordinance 
to cable operator(s) in the Village with a Village-issued franchise, along with a written request 
that the cable operator(s) collect an external fee to pay for some or all of the costs of the Audio 
Facilities Improvements Capital Project. Village staff is authorized to take all actions necessary 
to implement the external fee to pay for some or all of the costs of the Audio Facilities 
Improvements Capital Project. 

SECTION 3: Severabilitv and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. That each section, 
paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any section, paragraph, 
clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the 
unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect 
the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other than that part affected by such 
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decision. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4: Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from 
and after its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner provided by 
law. 

PASSED this ___ .day of _______ , 2020. 

AYES: -------------------------~ 
NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED this ___ day of _______ , 2020. 

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President 

ATTEST: 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 
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occur until after Grantee has given the Village written notice that the use of the existing Channel 
provided as of the Effective Date of the Agreement is not sufficient to justify the provision of the 
second Channel. The Village shall have one hundred twenty (120) days to establish the 
utilization of the first Channel is sufficient to justify the continued provision of the second 
Channel. Any cost for the activation of the additional Channel shall be paid for by the Village. 
The Grantee shall offer the Village's entire PEG programming on its basic digital tier of service. 

8.2. The Grantee does not relinquish its ownership of or ultimate right of control over 
a Channel by designating it for PEG use. However, the PEG Channel is, and shall be, operated 
by the Village, and the Village may at any time allocate or reallocate the usage of the PEG 
Channel among and between different non-commercial uses and Users. The Village shall be 
responsible for the editorial control of the Video Programming on the PEG Channel except to the 
extent permitted in 47 U.S.C. §53l(e). 

8.3. Origination Point. At such time that the Village determines that it wants to 
establish capacity to allow its residents who subscribe to Grantee's Cable Service to receive PEG 
access programming originated from schools and/or Village facilities (other than the origination 
point which exists as of the Effective Date); or at such time that the Village determines that it 
wants to change or upgrade a location from which PEG access programming is originated; the 
Village will give the Grantee written notice detailing the point of origination and the capability 
sought by the Village. The Grantee agrees to submit a cost estimate to implement the Village's 
plan within a reasoaable period of time. After an agreement to reimburse the Grantee for its 
expenditure, the Grantee will implement any necessary system changes within a reasonable 
period of time. 

8.4. PEG Signal Ouality. Provided PEG signal feeds are delivered by the Village to 
the designated signal input point without material degradation, the PEG Channel delivery 
systems from the designated signal input point shall meet the same FCC technical standards as 
the remainder of the Cable System set forth in the Agreement. 

8.5. PEG Capital SullJlO!i. At. its sole discretion, the Village may designate PEG 
access capital projects to be funded by the Village. The Village shall send written notice of the 
Village's desire for Grantee to collect as an external charge a PEG Capital Fee of up to thirty­
five cents ($0.35) per customer per month-or such other greater amount as may be agreed to by 
the Vtllage and Grantee - to be passed on to each Subscriber pursuant Section 622(g)(2)(C) of 
the Cable Act ( 47 U.S.C. §542(g)(2)(C)). The notice shall include a detailed and itemized 
description of the intended utilization of the PEG Capital Fee for PEG Access Channel facilities 
and/or equipment (PEG Access capital costs) and the Grantee shall have the opportunity to 
review and make recommendations upon the Village's plan prior to agreeing to collect and pay 
to the Village the requested amount. During the term of this Agreement, the Grantee shall 
collect the external charge and shall make the PEG capital payments from such sums at the same 
time and in the same manner as Franchise Fee payments. Said collection and payments shall 
continue until such time as the amount set forth in said plan and notice has been collected and 
paid. Consistent with the description of the intended utilization of the PEG Capital Fee, the 
Village shall be permitted to hold all or a portion of the PEG Capital Fee from year to year as a 
designated fund to permit the Village to make large capital expenditures, if necessary, provided 
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that if the entire amount is not expended during the tenn of this agreement, any remaining funds 
shall be credited against PEG Capital requests from the Village in subsequent franchise renewals. 
Said PEG Capital Fee shall be imposed within ninety {90) days of the Village's written request. 

8.5.1. For any payments owed by Grantee in accordance with this Section 8.5 
which are not made on or before the due dates, Grantee shall make such payments including 
interest at an annual rate of the prime lending rates as quoted by JP Morgan Chase Bank U.S.A. 
or its successor, computed from time due until paid. Any undisputed overpayments made by the 
Grantee to the Village shall be credited upon discovery of such overpayment until such time 
when the full value of such credit has been applied to the Franchise Fee liability otherwise 
accruing mider this section. · 

8.5.2. Grantee and Village agree that the capital obligations set forth in this 
Section are not "Franchise Fees" within the meaning of 47 U.S.C. § 542. 

8.6. Grantee Use of Unused Time. Because the Village and Grantee agree that a blank 
or underutilized PEG Access Channel is not in the public interest, in the event the Village does 
not completely program a Channel, Grantee may utilize the Channel for its own purposes. 
Grantee may program unused time on the Channel subject to reclamation from the Village upon 
no less than sixty (60) days notice. Except as otherwise provided herein, the programming of the 
PEG Access Channel with text messaging or playback of previously aired programming shall not 
constitute unused time. Text messaging containing out of date or expired information for a 
period of thirty (3 0) days shall be considered unused time. A programming schedule that 
contains playback of previously aired programming that has not been updated for a period of 
ninety (90) days shall be considered unused time. Unused time shall be considered to be a period 
of time, in excess of twelve (12) hours where no community produced programming of any kind 
can be viewed on an access Channel. Unused time shall not include periods of time where 
programming cannot be viewed that are caused by technical difficulties, transition of broadcast 
media, signal testing, replacement or repair of equipment, or installation or relocation of 
fucilities. 

SECTION 'll: Emiforcmnent of lFramchise 

9.1. Notice of Violation or Default. In the event the Village believes that the Grantee 
has not complied with a material term of the Franchise, it shall notify the Grantee in writing with 
specific details regarding the exact nature of the alleged noncompliance or default. 

9.2. Grantee's Right to Cure or Respond. The Grntee shall have thirty (30) days 
from the receipt of the Village's written notice: (A) to respond to the Vil]age, contesting the 
assertion of noncompliance or default; or (B) to cure such default; or (C) in the event that, by 
nature of the default, such default cannot be cured within the thirty (30) day period, initiate 
reasonable steps to remedy such default and notify the Village of the steps being taken and the 
projected date that the cure will be completed. 

9.3. Enforcement. Subject to applicable federal and state law, and following notice 
and an opportunity to cure and respond pursuant to the provisions of Section 9 .2 above, in the 
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Administration/Finance 

Information Technology 

Replace Board Room Video Broadcast 
Equipment 

Original Purchase Date 
2002 

Project Description & Justification 

2020 

$39,500 

# - " -~ 'ii • 

~ 
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Current Broadcast Equipment 

The Board Room microphones and speakers were not replaced as part of the 2006 Board Room renovation. The 
sound quality has diminished, causing sound issues on live and recorded videos. The proposed solution would 
take advantage of new technology with both wired and wireless options. 

It would be appropriate to recover the cost of this project through the Village's Comcast franchise agreement at a 
rate of $0.35 per month per customer and collection of a 1 % public, educational and govemment (PEG) fee from 
other video service providers until all costs are recovered. 

Project Update 

This project was originally budgeted in FY 2015-16; however, only a small portion of the work was completed. The 
remainder of the project is intended to move forward during FY 2018-19. The initial project budget in FY 2015-16. 
was $39,500. Of that amount, $6,350 ·was spent on a portion of the project for new switches (PIX) that allow for 
creating and controlling video recordings. The budgeted amount has increased back to $39,500 to accommodate 

( tor high-quality wireless microphones. 

Project Alternative 

Existing equipment can be retained at the risk of poor sound quality for meeting attendees as well as anyone 
watching meetings on cable TV and online. 



-- Est. 1873 --

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda - ACA 

AGENDA ITEM#~ 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Public Services & Engineering 

SUBJECT: 
Community Pool Renovations Year 1 Design Proposal and Modification of 
Capital Plan 

MEETING DATE: 

FROM: 

Recommended Motion 

March 16, 2020 

George Peluso, Director of Public Services 
Garrett Hummel, Administrative Analyst 

To waive the competitive bidding process and accept a proposal from Williams Architects/Aquatics for 
design engineering and construction management services for the Community Pool renovations in the 
amount of $61,800. 

Background (Williams Architects) 
In the spring of 2019, the Public Services staff solicited proposals from two (2) architectural firms that 
specialize in aquatics and pool engineering for purposes of completing the Community Pool Audit. 
The lowest qualified proposal was submitted by Williams Architects/Aquatics ("Williams"). In the 
report, Williams identified significant capital improvements that needed to be addressed at the facility 
within the next four (4) years in order to keep the facility operational. 

As a way to maintain continuity with the project, Village staff recommends entering into another 
contract with Williams for professional design and construction management services. Williams is 
most familiar with the improvements needed at the pool, and are best qualified to prepare the 
construction documents for the Village. Furthermore, when Staff originally requested proposals for the 
audit, Williams was the only firm that submitted a thorough proposal. Only one other firm responded 
after Staff made several additional requests for their services. 

Background (Capital Improvement Plan) 
Staff developed a four (4) year Capital Improvement Plan (GIP) to address the issues identified in the 
audit report. The Year 1 contracted improvements are included in the CY 2020 GIP in the amount of 
$573,000. Included in these costs is $95,600 for professional design and construction management 
services. The work includes replacing the lap pool deck, repairing the grout joints, replacing grout 
under the perimeter gutter and repainting the main pool. Staff identified cost saving opportunities for 
other smaller items listed in the audit that will be completed by the Public Services Department. A 
copy of the original pool audit and Staff's prioritization memo are attached for review. 

Due to the significant budget implications associated with the recommended improvements, staff 
applied for and received a $400,000 Open Space Lands Acquisition and Development (OSLAD) 
grant. The grant requires a 50/50 match on behalf of the Village. In order to satisfy the required match 
amount of $400,000, the Village is required to spend at least $800,000 in Year 1 of the project. 

Staff recommends advancing the replacement of the four (4) pool filters in the amount of $450,000, 
which were originally planned for Year 2. The filters are considered the backbone of the entire pool 
system, and replacing them sooner will avoid any unplanned setbacks in the upcoming pool seasons. 
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-- Est. 1873 --

Discussion & Recommendation 
Provided below is a breakdown of the combined Year 1 and 2 contracted costs: 

Item Cost 
Year 1 Renovations (Contracted) $423,000 

Year 2 Renovations (Contracted) $450,000 

Williams Contract Proposal $61,800 

Total (before OSLAD Grant) $934,000 

OSLAD Grant ($400,000) 

Total Amended Project Costs (Year 1) $534,000 

The expected funds received by the OSLAD Grant have significantly helped offset the proposed costs 
of the pool improvements. Even with the $450,000 in added costs for the pool replacement filters, the 
Year 1 contracted improvements are estimated to be $39,000 under the CY 2020 GIP budgeted 
amount of $573,000. 

Item Cost 
Total CY 2020 CIP (Contracted Items) $573,000 

Total Amended Project Costs (Year 1) $534,000 

Difference (Savings) $39,000 

Budget Impact 
The CY 2020 GIP Budget has $573,000 for Year 1 contracted services for the Community Pool. 
Included in that amount is $95,600 for professional services. The total cost of Williams' professional 
services proposal is $61,800, which is $33,800 under the professional services line item. Williams' 
proposal represents roughly 7% of the overall project cost. As a comparison, the Village is expending 
approximately 10% for professional services for the 2020 Infrastructure Program. 

Village Board and/or Committee Action 
At their meeting of March 3, the Board agreed to move this item to the Consent agenda of their next 
meeting 

Documents Attached 
1. Williams Architects/Aquatics Proposal 
2. Professional Services Contract Documents 
3. Recommended Village Pool Improvement Plan (July 31, 2019) 
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11 February 2020 

Mr. Garrett Hummel 
Public Services Administrative Analyst 
Village of Hinsdale 
225 Symonds Drive 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

Re: Renovations to the Hinsdale Community Pool 
WA BD No.: 2020-306 

Dear Garrett: 

rrl WILLIAMS r r rd ARCHITECTS 
Arci11tecture I Planning I Aquatics I lnterior·s 

We appreciate the opportunity once again to work with the Village of Hinsdale on the above 
referenced project. 

Attached is a Proposal I Letter of Understanding for our services. This proposal has been 
updated to include replacement of the 2 pool filters. If acceptable, please have it signed and 
return to our office. Let us know if you have questions or require additional information. Thank 
you. 

Cordially, 

~g~ 
Thomas G. Lalonde, AIA, LEED AP 
Vice President I Principal 

m:\busdev\2020\aquatics\2020-306 village of hinsdale renovations to commly pool\2020 0116 cover letter.docx 
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16 January 2020 
11 February 2020 Revised 

Proposal I Letter of Understanding 

Village of Hinsdale Community Pool 
500 West Hinsdale Ave. 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

Owner: Village of Hinsdale 
225 Symonds Dr. 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

PROJECT SCOPE 

rP1 WILLIAMS r r ~ARCHITECTS 
Arcl11tecture I Planning I Aquatics I Interiors 

The Village of Hinsdale has determined to proceed with improvements to the Hinsdale Community Pool. 
Items identified are included in the Facility Evaluation dated 29 May 2019 prepared by Williams 
Architects/Aquatics. The improvements shall consist of the following: 

• Pools & Decks 

1. Replace existing pressure sand filters for main lap pool and dive/wading pool with new pressure 
sand filters. 

2. Lap Pool - Repair deteriorated grout joints under the stainless steel perimeter gutter. 
(Approximately 120 linear feet, assume replacing all grout under gutter). This should extend the 
life expectancy 10 to 15 years. 

3. Prep and repaint main pool (12,835 SF wall and floor areas). 
4. Repair gutter grating support in main pool at northeast corner of the deep end. 
5. Provide a dedicated chemical controller for the wading pool and use the existing chemical 

controller for the dive pool only. Provide two sampling stream pumps, one for the dive pool 
chemical controller and one for the wading pool chemical controller. Sampling should be taken off 
the bottom of the gutter collection lines. 

6. Replace lap pool decks and deck drainage (12,723 SF). This should extend the life expectancy 
20 to 30 years. 

• Filter Building 

1. Remove rust from existing piles in surge tank. Coat with epoxy paint. 
2. Clean rebar and repair concrete at surge tank. 
3. Epoxy inject crack in tank. 
4. Clean and repair control units in masonry walls. 

PRELIMINARY CONSTRUCTION COST BUDGET 

The preliminary Construction Cost Budget for the defined scope of work was identified in the facility 
evaluation as $873,000. 

-------~---~~--~-------------------
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Village of Hinsdale I Hinsdale Community Pool Renovations I 11 February 2020 I Page 2 of 4 

ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES 

Basic Services are listed below: 

A. DESIGN PHASE 
1. Kick off meeting to introduce Project Team, discuss Project Scope, communications, 

budget and schedule; 
2. Visit the pool with the Project Team to visually observe existing conditions and note any 

observed differences from existing drawings; 
3. Prepare base plans of pool site and filter building; 
4. Review applicable codes; 
5. Prepare design documents of proposed improvements; 
6. Prepare drawings and outline specifications to describe the proposed project scope; 
7. Prepare an estimate of probable construction cost; 
8. Facilitate meetings with the Owner as needed; 
9. Update plans as directed; 
10. Review the documents with the Owner for approval. 

B. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT AND PERMITTING PHASE 
1. Prepare Contract Documents consisting of drawings and specifications to secure a 

building permit and proceed with bidding and construction. 
2. Facilitate meetings with the Owner as needed. 
3. Incorporate Owner insurance, contract and bidding requirements. 
4. Assist Owner with permit submittals to Village Building Department 
5. Submit documents to Illinois Department of Public Health for approval. 
6. Final review with the Owner for approval. 

C. BIDDING & NEGOTIATION PHASE 
1. Assist Owner with preparation of Public Notice; 
2. Assist with solicitation of bidders; 
3. Issue Contract Documents electronically to bidders; 
4. Respond to questions and provide clarifications to bidders; 
5. Issue Addenda to bidders as necessary; 
6. Conduct pre-bid conference and attend bid opening; 
7. Prepare bid summary and recommendations to the Owner based on the Contractors 

proposed work plan, qualifications and cost proposal. 

D. CONSTRUCTION PHASE 
1. Assist the Owner and Contractor with the building permit application. 
2. Attend regular Project Meetings with the Owner and Contractor(s) combined with on-site 

observation to become familiar with the progress, quantity and quality of the completed 
construction work and to determine if the work conforms to the design intent. The 
Architect shall report to the Owner and Contractor if nonconforming work is observed 
during such visits. We include up to six on site progress meetings in addition to one 
punchlist visit and one follow up visit for a maximum of eight site visits during 
construction. 

3. The Architect shall review and respond to written requests for information ("RF l's") from 
the Contractor(s) seeking an interpretation or clarification of the Construction Documents 
in writing within a reasonable time. 

4. The Architect shall review and return the Contractors' submittals and shop drawings for 
the limited purpose of checking for conformance with the construction documents. 

5. The Architect shall review the Contractors' Applications for Payment and process 
Contractor's Applications for Payment. Such review is limited to the quantity of 
construction work, which the Contractor has indicated is completed on the Application for 

·····~···~···~~~------------------------+---

500 Park Boulevard, Suite 800 • Itasca, Illinois 60143 • P 630.221.1212 • F 630.221.1220 • www.wil!iams·architects.com 



Village of Hinsdale I Hinsdale Community Pool Renovations/ 11 February 2020 I Page 3 of 4 

Payment. The Architect shall not be responsible for obtaining or checking lien waivers 
provided or required. 

6. The Architect shall review Change Orders prepared by the Contractor(s) and make 
recommendations to the Owner for approval and execution. 

7. The Architect shall visit Project Site to prepare a Punch-List, issue Certificate of 
Substantial Completion and attend a follow-up site meeting to review completion of 
Punch-List. Architect's attendance at additional site meetings intended for Punch-List 
reviews shall be considered an Additional Service. 

PROPOSED COMPENSATION 
Compensation shall be a lump sum of Sixty-One Thousand, Eight Hundred Dollars ($61,800.00) plus 
reimbursable expenses. The compensation shall be distributed to each phase as follows: 

A. Design Phase: $ 18,000.00 
B. Construction Documents Phase: $ 28,800.00 
C. Bidding and Negotiations Phase: $ 4,000.00 
D. Construction Phase: $ 11,000.00 

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
Project related expenses shall be invoiced at 1.15 their direct cost. Expenses included items such as 
mileage and tolls, printing, copying, postage, delivery services, etc. 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
The following services are not included in Basic Services and would be considered Additional Services. 

• Reworking the design after approval was provided. 
• Multiple bidding phases and contracts for construction 
• Expanded Project Scope 
• Expanded Construction Phase duration 

PROPOSAL QUALIFICATIONS 
• The Owner shall provide existing conditions drawings for our use. 
• The Owner is responsible to provide a topographical survey of the areas of work. 
• Geotechnical and testing for hazardous materials are not included. 
• See Exhibit A for additional terms and conditions. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
Construction to start in September 2020 and be completed in May 2021. 

CONSULTANTS 
Williams Architects will engage the following consultants. If additional consultants are required, their fee 
would be invoiced as an additional service. 

• Design and engineering for civil, aquatic, mechanical, and electrical systems: wr Group 
• Structural Engineering: Johnson Wilbur Adams 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES I HOURLY RA TE TABLE 
Additional professional services can be provided on a mutually agreed upon fixed fee, or hourly basis in 
accordance with the rate table below (subject to change annually on June 1). 

Principal II .... .... ...... .. .. ............................ .. 
Principal I ......................................... . 
Associate Principal ........................... . 
Senior Associate/Senior Project Mgr ......... . 
Associate I Project Manager ...................... .. 

$ 236.00/Hour 
$ 217.00/Hour 
$ 200.00/Hour 
$ 196.00/Hour 
$ 179.00/Hour 
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Village of Hinsdale I Hinsdale Community Pool Renovations/ 11 February 2020 I Page 4 of 4 

Architect Ill ................................................. . 
Architect II .................................................. . 
Architect I .................................................... . 
Senior Project Coordinator II ............. . 
Senior Project Coordinator I. ....................... . 
Project Coordinator IV ........................... . 
Project Coordinator 111 .. . ... . . . ....................... . 
Project Coordinator II .................................. . 
Project Coordinator I. ............... . 
Project Technician II.... . .................... . 
Project Technician I .............................. . 
Director of Marketing........ . ....................... . 
Marketing Coordinator . . ............... . 
Accounting ........................................... . 
Secretarial ........................................... . 
Clerical.............................. . ........... . 
Director of Interior Design .. . ....................... . 
Interior Designer V ...................................... . 
Interior Designer IV ..................................... . 
Interior Designer 111..... . ....................... . 
Interior Designer II ......................... . 
Interior Designer I...... . ....................... . 

$ 158.00/Hour 
$ 146.00/Hour 
$ 131.00/Hour 
$ 158.00/Hour 
$ 146.00/Hour 
$ 119.00/Hour 
$ 109.00/Hour 
$ 92.00/Hour 
$ 80.00/Hour 
$ 62.00/Hour 
$ 48.00/Hour 
$ 176.00/Hour 
$ 127.00/Hour 
$ 169.00/Hour 
$ 119.00/Hour 
$ 84.00/Hour 
$ 160.00/Hour 
$ 125.00/Hour 
$ 105.00/Hour 
$ 82 00/Hour 
$ 69.00/Hour 
$ 48 00/Hour 

The Village of Hinsdale and Williams Architects agree to the terms stated herein as of the first date written 
above. 

Village of Hinsdale: Williams Architects: 

Signature 

~g~ 
Signature 

Thomas Lalonde Principal 
Print Name & Title Print Name & Title 

Attachment: Exhibit A, Terms and Conditions 
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Exhibit-A, Terms and Conditions 

The Owner and the Architect agree to the Terms and Conditions as set forth below. 

ARTICLE 1 ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES 

1.1 Architect's Basic Services shall be based upon the Project Scope as outlined in the attached 
Proposal and/or Agreement. 

1.2 The Architect's services consist of those performed by the Architect, Architect's employees and 
Architect's consultants as enumerated in this Agreement. 

1.3 The Architect's services shall be performed as expeditiously as is consistent with professional 
skill and care and the orderly progress of the Work. 

1.4 Evaluations of the Owner's Project budget, preliminary estimates of Construction Cost and 
detailed estimates of Construction Cost, if any, prepared by the Architect, represent the 
Architect's best judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. It is 
recognized, however, that neither the Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost of labor, 
materials or equipment, over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices, or over 
competitive bidding, market or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, the Architect cannot and does 
not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Owner's Project 
Budget 

1.5 If additional services are required, services which are not part of the Architect's Basic Services, 
the Architect shall proceed with said Additional Services only upon providing written notice to the 
Owner. 

ARTICLE 2 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.1 The Owner shall designate a representative authorized to act on the Owner's behalf with respect 
to the Project. The Owner or such authorized representative shall render decisions and 
approvals in a timely manner pertaining to documents submitted by the Architect in order to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect's services. 

ARTICLE 3 ARCHITECT'S COMPENSATION 

3.1 If Project Scope is revised during Architect's Basic Services, then Architect's Compensation shall 
also be adjusted accordingly. However, such adjustments shall only be made upon written 
approval of Owner and Architect in the form of an Amendment to this Agreement. 

3.2 Architect's Compensation for Additional Service shall be billed on an hourly basis unless agreed 
upon otherwise. 

3.3 Invoices shall be sent monthly with payment due 30 days from invoice date. 

ARTICLE 4 OTHER TERMS, CONDITIONS OR SERVICES 

4.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and 
Architect and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or 
oral. This Agreement may be amended only by wrttten instrument signed by both Owner and 
Architect. 

4.2 If Architect's Basic Services for the Project are not completed within eighteen (18) months of the 
date of this Agreement, terms of Agreement shall be subject to change upon written approval of 
Owner and Architect as an Amendment to this Agreement. 
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4.3 This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon not less than seven days' written notice 
should the other party fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
through no fault of the party initiating the termination. 

4.4 Failure of the Owner to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement shall 
be considered substantial nonperformance and cause of termination. 

4.5 Duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Architect shall not be restricted, modified 
or extended without written agreement. 

4.6 The Owner acknowledges that the Architect is a corporation and agrees that any claim made by 
the Owner arising out of any act or omission of any director, officer or employee of the Architect, 
in execution or performance of this Agreement, shall be made against the Architect and not 
against such director, officer or employee. 

4.7 Owner and persons claiming through Owner agree to limit the liability of the Architect, its agents, 
consultants and employees, for all claims arising out of, in connection with or resulting from, the 
performance of services under this Agreement to the proceeds of Architect's professional liability 
insurance, which the Architect agrees to maintain in the aggregate amount of $2,000,000.00 
during the performance of service hereunder and for a period ending upon issuance of the 
Certificate of Substantial Completion. 

4.8 Architect and each of its consultants shall maintain, at no expense to Owner, general liability and 
workers compensation coverages placed with companies rated with at least "A-" by Best's. 
General liability policy shall name Owner and its officers and employees as additional insureds. 
Architect and each of its consultants shall be required to submit a certificate of insurance, and 
insurance carriers shall submit written notice to Owner not less than Thirty (30) days prior to any 
cancellation of coverage. Architect shall submit written notice to Owner not less than Thirty (30) 
days to any reduction of coverage by endorsement. By endorsement, Architect's certificate on 
insurance shall evidence the coverages required herein. 

4.9 Architect makes no warranties, express or implied. Nothing contained in the Agreement shall 
require the Architect to exercise professional skill and judgment greater than that which can be 
reasonably expected from other architects performing similar services to those required 
hereunder. This limitation shall also apply to any certification or representation made by Architect 
as an accommodation upon request of the Owner. 

4.10 In the event the Architect is hindered, delayed or prevented from performing its obligations under 
this Agreement as a result of any fire, flood, landslide, tornado, other act of God, malicious 
mischief, thefl, strike, lockout, other labor problems, shortages of material or labor, failure of any 
governmental agency or Owner to furnish information or to approve or to disapprove the 
Architect's work or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of the Architect, the time for 
completion of the Architect's work shall be extended by the period of resulting delay. 

END 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
19 E. Chicago Ave. 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

ENGINEERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT 

2020 HINSDALE COMMUNITY POOL 
RENOVATION PROJECT 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF HINSDALE AND WILLIAMS ARCHITECTS 

This Professional Services Agreement is entered into this _ 1 h day of , 2020 by and 
between the Village of Hinsdale, an Illinois Municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as the 
"Village") and Williams Architects (hereinafter referred to as the "Engineer") (collectively referred 
to as the "Parties"). 

Whereas, the Village is seeking professional services for the 2020 Hinsdale Community Pool 
Renovations (herein referred to as the "Project"); 

Whereas, Engineer submitted a Proposal dated February 11, 2020 to provide said services for 
the Project; 

Whereas, based upon Engineer's competence and the Village's prior experience with 
Engineer's work quality, the Village, through the Engineering Division, has chosen Engineer for 
the Project; and, 

NOW THEREFORE, Engineer agrees to perform the services set forth herein and the 
Village agrees to pay for said services under the following terms and conditions: 

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS. 

Whenever used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated and the 
singular shall be read to include the plural and vise versa. 

A. The term "Agreement" shall mean the entire integrated agreement between Engineer 
and the Village setting forth the terms and conditions governing the performance of the Project. 

B. The term "Change Order" the document signed by Engineer and the Village which 
authorizes the performance of services beyond the Scope of Work to be supplied under the 
Agreement, which is issued on or after the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

C. The "Engineer" shall mean Williams Architects, its employees, agents, subcontractors, 
duly authorized representatives or others performing work on its behalf. To the extent any work 
performed under this Agreement is performed by subcontractors, the term "Engineer" shall include 
such subcontractors. 

D. The term "Deliverable" shall mean the plans, specifications, documents, reports, or other 
item to be prepared and completed by Engineer pursuant to this Agreement. 

E. The terms "Includes" and "Including" shall not be construed as limited to. 

F. The term "May" is permissive; except the phrase "no person may" shall mean that no 
person is required, authorized, or permitted to do the act prohibited. 



G. The terms "Provide," "Furnish" and "Perform" shall be deemed to imply an obligation on 
the part of Engineer to obtain, deliver and pay for any material, product, service or other 
incidental item required under the Agreement, and includes an obligation on the part of Engineer 
to supply and pay for all labor and services necessary to properly complete the Work, and/or put 
into and otherwise make ready for its intended use any deliverable, service, item or other Work 
required by the Agreement. 

H. The term "Shall" is imperative. 

I. The term "Project" means the scope, extent, or amount of services, deliverables, items, or 
labor related to the engineering services for the 2020 Hinsdale Community Pool Renovation 
Project including design engineering and construction observation as more fully described of 
Exhibit "A" attached hereto. 

J. The terms "Statute," "Law," "Regulation" and "Ordinance" shall be deemed to include 
all revisions, amendments, and supplements. 

K. The term "Village" shall mean the Village of Hinsdale, an Illinois Municipal Corporation, its 
officers, directors, trustees, authorized representatives and employees. 

L . The term "Work" shall mean the all services, labor, materials, equipment, and services 
provided or to be provided by the Engineer under the Agreement. 

SECTION 2. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS-ENGINEER. 

A. Engineer agrees to perform services under this Agreement in accordance with generally 
accepted and currently recognized engineering practices and principles, and in a manner 
consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession 
currently practicing in the same locality under similar conditions. Engineer shall have sole 
responsibility for developing design engineering and construction observation services that meet 
the Village's performance expectations and satisfies any applicable state, federal or local laws 
or regulations. 

B. Engineer's role with respect to the Project is solely that of an independent contractor. No 
right of review; requirement of approval; or other provision of this Agreement or subsequent 
conduct between the Parties shall be construed to create a relationship between the Parties 
as that of employer-employee principal and agent, partners, or joint ventures. Engineer shall 
have no authority or right to enter into any contract, or incur any debt or liability of any nature 
in the name of, or on behalf of, the Village. 

C. Engineer shall not be performing any services with respect to construction oversight. 
Accordingly, Engineer shall have neither control over or charge of, nor be responsible for the 
means, methods, techniques, performance or sequence of construction, nor the assurance of site 
or employee safety. The Village shall cause these contractor responsibilities to be set forth in any 
subsequent contract to be entered into for construction and installation. It shall be the authority of 
the Village, not the Engineer, to stop the work of any contractor or any subcontractor on the Project. 

D. Engineer to the best of its knowledge represents that it shall have the Intellectual Property 
rights (including, but not limited to, patent, copyright, trademark, service mark, or trade secret 



rights) to any Deliverable that will be provided to the Village during the performance of this 
Agreement and that transfer of said Deliverables to the Village shall not violate or infringe upon 
the Intellectual Property rights of any third party. 

E. Engineer agrees to perform no professional services during the term of the contract 
for any person, firm or corporation, for any project or work that may be subject to the Village's 
review/inspection, to occur or occurring within the corporate limits of the Village, or contiguous 
to the corporate limits of the Village without notification to the Village prior to rendering services. 
Engineer agrees to provide the Village with written notification whenever the services provided 
under this Agreement shall require Engineer to review or inspect work performed by any other firm 
or corporation for whom Engineer is or has within the previous twelve (12) months provided 
professional services, or with any of Engineer's partners or principals have a financial interest. 
The Village may at its discretion disqualify Engineer from participation as representative of the 
Village in such projects. 

F. Engineer represents that its employees, agents and subcontractors currently hold, and shall 
maintain throughoutthe completion of the Work, all required licenses, permits and certificates, and 
have duly registered and otherwise complied in all respects with. any applicable federal, state and 
local laws, regulations and ordinances applicable to the performance of this Agreement. 

G. Engineer agrees to perform the services contemplated under this Agreement within the 
agreed upon schedule, with completion no later than May 31, 2021. 

SECTION 3. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS-VILLAGE. 

A. The Village agrees to provide full information regarding requirements for and about the 
Project, including the Village's objectives, schedule, constraints, criteria, special equipment, 
systems and site requirements. To the extent additional information readily available to the Village 
is requested by Engineer during the performance of the Project, the Village shall provide said 
information within 15 business days and without cost or expense to the Engineer. 

B. The Village agrees to provide review of any reports, drafts or other materials as 
requested by Engineer within 15 business days. 

SECTION4. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 

A. As more fully set forth in its proposal dated February 11, 2020, attached hereto as Exhibit 
"A", Engineer agrees to provide all labor, materials, expertise, services and consultation related to 
design engineering, construction document development, bidding, construction observation, and 
related services for the Project. Exhibit "A" is incorporated herein by reference except for the 
General Terms and Conditions attached thereto and except to the extent any term in Exhibit "A" 
is inconsistent with the terms in this Agreement. 

B. Engineer shall have the sole and ultimate responsibility for designing and drafting 
documents and conducting construction observation services that meet the Village's 
performance expectations and satisfy applicable laws, regulations and requirements of any 
federal, state, local or other regulatory authority. 



SECTION 5. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT FOR ENGINEER'S SERVICES. 

A. Contract Amount. 
Engineer agrees to provide the professional services and deliverables set forth in the Scope 
of Work, and the Village agrees to compensate Engineer for said performance, the Contract 
Amount of not-to-exceed $61,800.00. 

B. Hourly Rates and Costs. 
Compensation for the services set forth in the Scope of Work shall be computed on the basis 
of the schedule of hourly rates for the professional services set forth in Exhibit "A." The Contract 
Amount includes Engineer's direct costs. 

C. The Village agrees to make payments and to pay interest on unpaid balances under 
the provisions of the Local Government Prompt Payment Act. However, in no event shall 
Engineer be reimbursed for work performed that exceeds the Contract Amount without the 
Village's prior written consent and authorization. 

D. Engineer shall submit invoices no more than once per month. Invoices shall provide 
a detailed breakdown of the amount billed, including the name, title, rate of pay, hours worked 
and services rendered by each individual during the period stated. Invoices shall be submitted in 
duplicate and shall reflect all prior amounts billed and paid to date. Invoices shall be 
accompanied by a progress report setting forth the rates of completion for all tasks scoped and 
for all deliverable products. Invoices shall not be deemed due unless and until a progress report 
has been submitted. 

SECTION 6. DELIVERY AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. 

A. All Deliverables, including but not limited to, any plans, specifications, reports, or other 
project documents prepared by Engineer pursuant to this Agreement shall be shall be the 
exclusive property of the Village and Engineer shall provide such work product to the Village 
immediately upon request or upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

B. The Deliverables prepared by Engineer pursuant to this Agreement are intended for the 
express and sole use of the Village for this Project only. Any reuse by the Village on extensions 
of the Project or any other project or, any modification of the Deliverables by the Village without 
the specific written verification or adaptation by Engineer, shall be at Village's sole risk. Engineer 
shall not be liable for any damage or loss resulting from said reuse or modification by the Village. 

C. Engineer shall provide the Village with the Deliverables both printed form and 
electronically. All reports and related information shall be compatible with "Microsoft Word 
2016," by Microsoft Corporation, or latest version; all spreadsheets and related information shall 
be compatible with "Microsoft Excel 2016" by Microsoft Corporation, or latest version; and all 
CAD related information shall be compatible with "AutoCAD 2008" by Autodesk Corporation, or 
latest version. Deliverables in printed form shall be of a quality that assures total reproducibility 
by the Village. 

D. Upon the condition that Engineer has received the prior written consent of the 
Village, Engineer shall have the right to include representations of the design of the Project, 
including photographs of the exterior and interior, among the Engineer's promotional and 



professional materials. The Engineer's materials shall not include the Village's confidential and 
proprietary information if the Village has previously advised the Engineer in writing of the specific 
information considered by the Village to be confidential and proprietary. 

SECTION 7. INSURANCE. 

A. Scope of Coverage and Amounts. 
During the term of the Project, Engineer shall procure and maintain insurance against all claims 
for injury to or death of a person or persons or damage to property, which are caused from the 
performance of the services hereunder by Engineer. The scope of coverage shall be at least as 
broad as, and shall be in amounts not less than, the following: 

1. Comprehensive General Liability, with the Village as an additional insured, $1,000,000 
per occurrence for personal bodily injury and property damage. The general aggregate shall 
be no less than $2,000,000. 

2. Business Auto Liability, $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and property 
damage; 

3. Workers Compensation and Employers' Liability in amounts required by statute (the 
policy shall include a 'waiver of subrogation'); 

4. Umbrella Coverage- $2,000,000 per occurrence; and, 

5. Professional Liability - $1,000,000 each claim covering negligent acts, errors, and 
omissions in connection with professional services to be provided by Engineer under this 
Agreement, and providing for indemnification for injuries arising out of same, with a deductible 
not-to-exceed $50,000 without prior written approval. 

If the policy is written on a claims-made form, the retroactive date must be equal to or 
preceding the effective date of this Agreement. In the event the policy is cancelled, not renewed 
or switched to an occurrence form, then Engineer shall purchase supplemental extending 
reporting period coverage for a period of not less than three (3) years. 

B. Upon execution of this Agreement, Engineer shall furnish to the Village satisfactory 
proof of coverage of the above insurance requirements. Such proof shall consist of certificates 
executed by the respective insurance companies together with executed copies of an "Additional 
Insured Endorsement" in a form acceptable to the Village. Said certificates shall expressly 
provide that, for the duration of the Agreement, the insurance policy shall not be cancelled. In 
addition, said certificates shall list the Village and its corporate authorities, officers, agents and 
employees as an additional insured on all required insurance policies except the policy for 
professional liability and Workmen's Compensation. 

1. All insurance required herein of Engineer shall be valid and enforceable policies, 
insured by insurers licensed and permitted to do business by the State of Illinois or 
surplus line carriers qualified to do business in the State of Illinois. All insurance carriers 
and surplus line carriers shall be rated A-, VII or better by A.M. Best Company. 

2. Engineer shall require all subcontractors not protected under the Engineer's policies to 
take out and maintain insurance of the same nature, in the same amounts and under the 



same terms as required herein of Engineer. Engineer shall confirm subcontractor 
compliance with the requirements stated herein prior to the performance of any Work by a 
subcontractor. 

3. Engineer expressly understands and agrees that any insurance policies required to be 
maintained pursuant to this Agreement shall in no way limit the degree, amount, or extent 
of Engineer's responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless the Village, their officers, 
agents, employees, representatives and assigns. Engineer's insurance coverage (both 
primary and excess) shall be primary as respect to any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Village, which said insurance of the Village shall solely be excess of 
Engineer's insurance and shall not contribute with Engineer's insurance coverage. 

SECTION 8. CHANGES IN WORK. 

A. The Village reserves the right to request additional work or services beyond that stated 
in the Scope of Work or, to delete certain work or services currently set forth in the Scope of 
Work. Any such changes by the Village shall not invalidate the Agreement or relieve the Engineer 
of any obligations under this Agreement. Changes to the Work shall be authorized in writing and 
executed by the Parties. Engineer shall not proceed with any extra work unless and until a Change 
Order is executed by the Parties. 

B. Unless otherwise agreed, the Village shall compensate Engineer for any extra work 
according to the rates set forth in Exhibit "A" to this Agreement. Engineer shall not be entitled 
to an adjustment to the Contract Amount for any work performed outside the scope of the 
Agreement and for which no prior written authorization by the Village was obtained; or, for work 
which exceeds the Contract Amount or other agreed upon pricing and for which no Change 
Order was executed prior to exceeding the Contract Amount. 

SECTION 9. USE OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 

Except as otherwise stated herein, Engineer may elect to use subcontractors to perform certain 
portions of the services to be provided under this Agreement; however, Engineer shall perform 
the majority of the work on the Project. Any use of subcontractors shall require the prior written 
approval of the Village, said approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Engineer shall not be 
entitled to any payment for services performed by subcontractors for whom prior written approval 
of the Village was not obtained. Engineer shall remain ultimately responsible for all work performed 
with respect to the Project and shall ensure that subcontractors comply with the terms stated in this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 10. INDEMNIFICATION. 

A. Engineer shall hold harmless, and indemnify the Village, its corporate authorities, 
trustees, officers, directors, and employees from and against any and all injury, death, loss, 
property damage, judgments, liens, claims, suits, liabilities, actions, causes of action, demands, 
expenses, costs, or other liabilities of any character (including reasonable attorneys fees) 
caused by the: (a) failure to comply with, or violation of, any federal, state or local law, statute, 
regulation, rule, ordinance, order, or governmental directive; (b) negligent acts, omissions or willful 
misconduct; (c) failure to comply with the terms, conditions, or representations in the 
Agreement; (d) infringement of any patent, trademark or copyright; and, e) performance under this 
Agreement by Engineer, its Subcontractors, or others performing or furnishing any Work directly or 



indirectly on Engineer's behalf. The terms of this indemnity shall survive the suspension, 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

B. The Village shall hold harmless, and indemnify Engineer, its corporate authorities, 
trustees, officers, directors, agents, assigns, and employees from and against any and all injuries, 
deaths, losses, judgments, claims, suits, liabilities, actions, demands, expenses, costs, including 
reasonable attorneys' fees, arising in whole or in part or relating to any act, omission, or 
performance under this Agreement by the Village, its employees, officers, directors, agents, or 
others working on its behalf, except that arising out of the sole legal cause of the Engineer. Nothing 
in this paragraph, however, shall be construed to create an obligation, right of action, or right of 
recovery that would otherwise not exist at law or in equity. Nor shall the terms of this paragraph 
be construed as a waiver by the Village of any right or defense it has, or otherwise would have had 
at law or in equity, but for this paragraph. 

C. Kotecki Waiver. Engineer (and any subcontractor into whose subcontract this clause is 
incorporated) agrees to assume the entire liability for all personal injury claims suffered by its own 
employees and waives any limitation of liability defense based upon the Worker's Compensation 
Act and cases decided there under. Engineer agrees to indemnify the Village from and against 
all such loss, expense, damage or injury, including reasonable attorneys' fees, which the Village 
may sustain as a result of personal injury claims by Engineer's employees, except to the extent 
those claims arise as a result of the Village's or own negligence. 

D. In any contract the Village may subsequently enter into for construction related to the 
Project, the Village agrees to use its best efforts to require the contractor to indemnify, hold 
harmless, and defend the Engineer, its officers, employees and agents from and against any and 
all claims, suits, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, and costs, including but not limited to costs 
of defense, arising in whole or in part out of any act or omission of the contractor, its employees, 
agents, and subcontractors, or anyone for whose acts contractor may be liable. 

SECTION 11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. 

A. Engineer agrees and represents to the best of its ability that it will comply with 
all applicable laws, regulations and rules promulgated by any federal, state, local, or other 
governmental authority or regulatory body, now in effect or which may be in effect during this 
Project. The scope of the laws, regulations, and rules referred to in this paragraph include, but in 
no way are limited to, the Illinois Human Rights Act, Illinois Equal Pay Act of 2003, Occupational 
Safety & Health Act, all forms of traffic regulations, public utility, Interstate and Intrastate 
Commerce Commission regulations, Workers' Compensation Laws, Prevailing Wage Laws, USA 
Security Act, federal Social Security Act (and any of its titles), and any other law, rule or 
regulation of the Illinois Department of Labor, Department of Transportation, Illinois Department 
of Human Rights, Human Rights Commission, or EEOC. 

B. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, pursuant to the requirements of Illinois 
law concerning public contracts, Engineer shall comply with each of the following as may be 
applicable: 

1. Sexual Harassment Policy. Engineer represents that it has a written sexual harassment 
policy defining sexual harassment as required in Section 2-105 of the Ill. Human Rights Act. 
775 ILCA 5/1-105, et.seq. 

2. Tax Payments. Engineer represents that it is not delinquent in the payment of any tax 



administered by the Illinois Department of Revenue as set forth in 65 ILCS 5/11-42.1-1. 

3. Equal Pay Act of 2003. Engineer, and all subcontractors thereof, shall at all times 
comply with the provisions of the Illinois Equal Pay Act of 2003, 820 ILCS 112/1, et seq. 

4. Public Works Employment Discrimination Act. The Engineer represents that it will 
comply with the Illinois Public Works Employment Discrimination Act (775 ILCS 10/0.01, et 
seq.) which prohibits unlawful discrimination by any entity in the contracting for or 
performance of all public contracts with the State of Illinois and all of its political 
subdivisions. As required by this State Act, all of its provisions are incorporated herein by 
reference and are reprinted below. 

5. Illinois Human Rjqhts Act-Equal Opportunity Clause. Engineer represents that it is an 
"Equal Opportunity Employer" as defined by federal and state laws and regulations, and 
agrees to comply with the Illinois Department of Human Rights (IDHR) Equal Opportunity 
clause as required by the I DH R's Regulations (44 Ill. Ad min. Code, Part 750, Appendix A), 
which is considered to be part of any public contract or purchase agreement. As required 
by State law and IDHR Regulation, the Equal Opportunity clause is reprinted below. 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

In the event of the Engineer's non-compliance with the provisions of this Equal 
Employment Opportunity Clause, the Illinois Human Rights Act or the Rules and 
Regulations of the Illinois Department of Human Rights ("Department"}, the Engineer 
may be declared ineligible for future contracts or subcontracts with the State of Illinois or 
any of its political subdivisions or municipal corporations, and the contract may be 
cancelled or voided in whole or in part, and such other sanctions or penalties may be 
imposed or remedies invoked as provided by statute or regulation. During the 
performance of this contract, the Engineer agrees as follows: 

1) That it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin 
or ancestry, citizenship status, age, physical or mental handicap unrelated to ability, 
military status, or an unfavorable discharge from military service; and further that it will 
examine all job classifications to determine if minority persons or women are 
underutilized and will take appropriate affirmative action to rectify any such 
underutilization. 
2) That, if it hires additional employees in order to perform this contract or any portion 
thereof, it will determine the availability (in accordance with the Department's Rules) of 
minorities and women in the areas from which it may reasonably recruit and Engineer 
will make a good faith effort to hire for each job classification for which employees 
are hired in such a way that minorities and women are not underutilized. 
3) That, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by it or on its 
behalf, it will state that all applicants will be afforded equal opportunity without 
discrimination because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, 
national origin or ancestry, citizenship status, age, physical or mental handicap 
unrelated to ability, military status, or an unfavorable discharge from military service. 
4) That it will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with 
which it has or is bound by a collective bargaining or other agreement or understanding, 
a notice advising such labor organization or representative of the Engineer's obligations 



under the Illinois Human Rights Act and the Department's Rules. If any such labor 
organization or representative fails or refuses to cooperate with the Engineer in its 
efforts to comply with such Act and Rules, the Engineer will promptly so notify the 
Department and the contracting agency and will recruit employees from other sources 
when necessary to fulfill its obligations hereunder. 
5) That it will submit reports as required by the Department's Rules, furnish all relevant 
information as may from time to time be requested by the Department or the contracting 
agency, and in all respects comply with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the 
Department's Rules. 
6) That it will permit access to all relevant books, records, accounts and work 
sites by personnel of the contracting agency and the Department for purposes of 
investigation to ascertain compliance with the Illinois Human Rights Act and the 
Department's Rules. 
7) That it will include verbatim or by reference the provisions of this clause in 
every subcontract it awards under which any portion of the contract obligations are 
undertaken or assumed, so that such provisions will be binding upon such 
subcontractor. In the same manner as with other provisions of this contract, the 
Engineer will be liable for compliance with applicable provisions of this clause by such 
subcontractors; and further it will promptly notify the contracting agency and the 
Department in the event any subcontractor fails or refuses to comply therewith. 
In addition, the Engineer will not utilize any subcontractor declared by thelllinois Human 
Rights Commission to be ineligible for contracts or subcontracts with the State of Illinois 
or any of its political subdivisions or municipal corporations. 

ILLINOIS PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION ACT 

10/1. Djscrimination in employment prohibited 
§ 1. (a) No person shall be refused or denied employment in any capacity on the 

ground of unlawful discrimination, as that term is defined in the Illinois Human Rights 
Act, nor be subjected to unlawful discrimination in any manner, in connection with the 
contracting for or the performance of any work or service of any kind, by, for, on behalf 
of, or for the benefit of this State, or of any department, bureau, commission, board, or 
other political subdivision or agency thereof. 

§ 1. (b) The Illinois Human Rights Act applies to all contracts identified in 
subsection (a). 
10/2. Deemed jncoroorated jn contract 

§ 2. The provisions of this Act shall automatically enter into and become a part of 
each and every contract or other agreement hereafter entered into by, with, for, on 
behalf of, or for the benefit of this State, or of any department, bureau, commission, 
board, other political subdivision or agency, officer or agent thereof, providing for or 
relating to the performance of any of the said work or services or of any part thereof. 
10/3. Includes independent contractors. etc. 

§ 3. The provisions of this Act also shall apply to all contracts entered into by or 
on behalf of all independent contractors, subcontractors, and any and all other 
persons, association or corporations, providing for or relating to the doing of any of the 
said work or the performance of any of the said services, or .any part thereof. 
10/4. Deduction from compensation 

§ 4. No Engineer, subcontractor, nor any person on his or her behalf shall, in any 
manner, discriminate against or intimidate any employee hired for the performance of 



work for the benefit of the State or for any department, bureau, commission, board, 
other political subdivision or agency, officer or agent thereof, on account of race, color, 
creed, sex, religion, physical or mental handicap unrelated to ability, or national origin; 
and there may be deducted from the amount payable to the Engineer by the State of 
Illinois or by any municipal corporation thereof, under this contract, a penalty of five 
dollars for each person for each calendar day during which such person was 
discriminated against or intimidated in violation of the provisions of this Act. 
10/5. Recoyerv by injyred person 

§ 5. Any person, agency, corporation or association who violates any of the 
provisions of this Act, or who aids, abets, incites or otherwise participates in the 
violation of any of the provisions, whether the violation or participation therein occurs 
through action in a private, public or in any official capacity, shall be guilty of a petty 
offense for each and every violation or participation therein with respect to each person 
aggrieved thereby, to be recovered by each such aggrieved person, or by any other 
person to whom such aggrieved person shall assign his cause of action, in the circuit 
court in the county in which the plaintiff or the defendant shall reside. 
10/6. Violations· punishment 

§ 6. Any person who or any agency, corporation or association which shall violate any 
of the provisions of the foregoing sections, or who or which shall aid, abet, incite or 
otherwise participate in the violation of any of the said provisions, whether the said 
violation or participation therein shall occur through action in a private, in a public, or in 
any official capacity, shall also be deemed guilty of a petty offense for each and every 
said violation or participation or, in the case of non-corporate violators, or participators, of 
a Class 8 misdemeanor. 
10/7. To be inscribed in contract 

§ 7. The provisions of this Act shall be printed or otherwise inscribed on the face of 
each contractto which it shall be applicable, but their absence therefrom shall in no wise 
prevent or affect the application of the said provisions to the said contract. 
10/8. Partjal jnyalidity: construction 

§ 8. The invalidity or unconstitutionality of any one or more provisions, parts, or 
sections of this Act shall not be held or construed to invalidate the whole or any other 
provision, part, or section thereof, it being intended that this Act shall be sustained and 
enforced to the fullest extent possible and that it shall be construed as liberally as possible 
to prevent refusals, denials, and discriminations of and with reference to the award of 
contracts and employment hereunder, on the ground of race, color, creed, sex, religion, 
physical or mental handicap unrelated to ability, or national origin. 

SECTION 12. SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF SERVICES. 

A. Suspension of Work 
The Village may, at any time, by written notice to the Engineer require the Engineer to stop all, 
or any part, of the Work required by the Agreement. Upon receipt of such a notice, the Engineer 
shall immediately comply with its terms and take all steps to minimize the occurrence of costs 
allocable to the Work covered by the notice. Engineer shall, upon receipt of notice of suspension, 
identify in writing all Work that must be completed prior to suspension of the Work, including 
all Work associated with suspension that must be performed. With respect to Work so identified 
by Engineer and approved by the Village, the Village will pay for the necessary and reasonable 
costs associated with that Work. Engineer shall not be entitled to any claim for lost profits due to 



the suspension of the Work by the Village. 

B. Termination of Agreement 
1. The Village reserves the right to terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement, 
without cause, upon ten (10) calendar day's written notice to the Engineer. 

2. The Village reserves the right to terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement, 
upon ten (10) calendar day's written notice to the Engineer in the event of default by the 
Engineer. 
a. Default is defined as the failure by Engineer to correct defective Work as required; the 
persistent failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Agreement; or, the failure to 
make sufficient progress to endanger timely completion of the Work. 
b. Engineer shall also be deemed in default if the Engineer: 1) is adjudged bankrupt or 
insolvent, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or if a trustee or 
receiver is appointed for the Engineer or for any of the Engineer's property on account of 
the Engineer's insolvency, and the Engineer or its successor in interest does not provide 
adequate assurance of future performance in accordance with the Agreement within 10 
days of receipt of a request for assurance from the Village; 2) repeatedly fails to supply 
sufficient skilled workmen or suitable materials or equipment; 3) repeatedly fails to make 
prompt payments to Subcontractors or suppliers at any tier, or for labor, materials or 
equipment; 4) disregards laws, ordinances, rules, codes, regulations, orders or similar 
requirements of any public entity having jurisdiction; or 5) otherwise violates any 
material term of the Agreement. 
c. If Engineer shall assign this Agreement or abandon the Work or shall neglect or refuse 
to comply with the instructions of the Village relative thereto or shall fail in any manner 
to comply with the specifications or stipulations herein contained or if at any time the 
Village shall be of the opinion that the Work is unnecessarily delayed and will not be 
finished within the prescribed time, or that unnecessary inconvenience is being imposed 
upon the public or unnecessary expense is being incurred by the Village for inspection 
and supervision, the Village shall notify the Engineer, in writing, to that effect. If the 
Engineer does not, within five (5) calendar days thereafter, take such measures as will in 
the judgment of the Village ensure the satisfactory completion of the Work within the 
prescribed time or prevent unnecessary inconvenience to the public or prevent 
unnecessary expense to the Village, then the Village may take such actions as deemed 
necessary, at the cost to the Engineer, to correct such delay or, the may declare the 
Engineer to be in default and terminate the Agreement. 

3. Upon receipt of notice of termination, Engineer shall identify in writing all Work that 
must be completed prior to termination of the Work, including all Work associated with 
termination that must be performed. Only with respect to Work so identified by Engineer 
and pre-approved by the Village, the Village will pay for the necessary and reasonable 
costs associated with that Work. Engineer shall not be entitled to any claim for lost profits 
due to the termination of the Work by the Village. 

SECTION 13. NOTICES. 

All notices, communications and/or demands given pursuant hereto shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed sufficient if sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as set 
forth at the following addresses, or at such other addresses as the Parties may designate 
by written notice in the manner aforesaid: 



If to Village: 
Village Manager 
Village of Hinsdale 
19 E. Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

If to Engineer.· 
Village Engineer 
Village of Hinsdale 
19 E. Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

The date of mailing shall be deemed the date of service. Either Party may change the 
address for notice by the aforesaid procedure. 

SECTION 14. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

A. Assignment. 
Engineer shall not assign this Agreement or any portion thereof. The merger, consolidation, or 
liquidation of Engineer or any change in the ownership of or power to vote 33 and 1/3% or 
more of Engineer's capital stock, as held as of the date of execution of this Agreement, shall 
be deemed an assignment, provided however, that transfer of ownership of shares of capital 
stock between persons who, on the date of this Agreement, are owners of Engineer's capital 
stock, shall not constitute an assignment. 

B. Governing Law. 
For any legal action between the Parties concerning the interpretation, construction and 
enforcement of this Agreement, or subject matter thereof, venue shall be in Cook County, Illinois 
and the laws of the State of Illinois shall govern the cause of action. In any action involving the 
interpretation or construction of the terms herein, this Agreement shall not be construed in favor 
of, or against, either Party. 

C. Captions. 
The captions set forth herein are inserted solely for ease and convenience of reference and 
are not intended to provide a basis for the construction and interpretation of this Agreement. 

D. Entire Agreement. 
This Agreement contains all negotiations, agreements, covenants and understandings between 
the Parties and supersedes any such prior written or oral agreement. This Agreement rnay not 
be modified or amended unless such modification or amendment is evidenced in writing, signed 
by both Parties and dated on the same date as, or later date than, the date of this Agreement. 

E. Waiver. 
The failure of either Party to enforce any term, condition, or covenant (herein referred to as 
"provision") of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver or limitation of that Party's right to 
subsequently enforce and compel strict compliance with such provision and every other provision 
of this Agreement. No provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived by 
either Party unless such waiver is in writing by said Party. 

F. Third Party Beneficiaries. 
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create enforceable rights in favor 



of any third party not a party hereto, or a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in 
favor of, any third party against either the Village or Engineer. 

G. Survival. 
The aforesaid covenants, agreements, representations and warranties shall survive the 
expiration or termination of the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village of Hinsdale and Engineer, by their duly authorized 
representatives, have hereunto set their hands. 

Accepted this_ day of _____ 2020 

Engineering Consultant 

By: 

(Printed Name and Title) 

Accepted this_ day of _____ 2020 

The Village of Hinsdale, Illinois 

By: 
Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
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Brendon Mendoza, Administrative Analyst 
Heather Bereckis, Superintendent of Parks 

Recommended Village Pool Improvement Plan 

MEMORANDUM 

The Village's pool facility has shown an increase in visual defects since the previous Village pool 
audit was completed in 2010. In response to identifying these defects in detail, the Public Services 
Department solicited proposals from two (2) architectural firms that specialize in aquatics and pool 
engineering. The lowest proposal was received by Williams Architects/Aquatics ("Williams"). A 
total of $10,000 was budgeted for the audit. Williams submitted the lowest price in the amount of 
$7,800. 

The final audit report was completed in the spring of 2019. As part of the final report, Williams 
identified significant capital items that need to be addressed within the next four (4) years. A copy 
of the audit report is attached (attachment #1). The needed areas of improvement are not planned 
for in the current Five Year Capital Improvement Plan ("GIP"). 

As part of this memo, Public Services has provided a summary of the current GIP items, and an 
analysis of the additional improvements identified by Williams. A funding source will need to be 
identified in order to complete all repairs, and to keep pool operations continuous without any 
significant interruptions. If approved, the Village's Finance Department will incorporate the 
proposed pool capital improvements to the Village's Five Year GIP. Village staff is currently 
applying for grants in attempt to secure funding for the proposed pool capital improvements. 
Provided in attachment #3 is a detailed analysis of the Village Pool usage. 

Summary of Current Pool 5 Year CIP 
Back in 2016, when all of the pool maintenance planning was transitioned to the Public Services 
Department, a preventative maintenance plan was developed. The purpose of the plan was to 
organize replacement of certain operational equipment in order to keep the facility operational. 
Items listed in the plan were considered "smaller" projects such as pump and heater replacement, 
painting, and other ttems as needed. The plan did not address "larger' projects that required 
identification by a professional pool architect and engineer. 

Provided below is a breakdown of the current projects listed in the Village's Five Year GIP, and 
associated costs per year. 



MEMORANDUM 
Est. 1 B 7 3 

Current CIP Maintenance Schedule 
FY19/20 CY2020 CY2021 CY 2022 CY2023 CY 2024 

Pump Motor 
Filter Media 

Pump Motor Pump Motor Pump Motor Pump Motor 
Rehab/ 

Maintenance 
Rehab/ Rehab/ Rehab/ Rehab/ 

Replacement 
($20,000) 

Replacement Replacement Replacement Replacement 
($15,000) ($18,000) ($17,000) ($15,000) ($15,000) 

Replacement of 
Replacement 

of a Pool 
Pool Heater 

Heater 
($10,000) 

($12,000) 
Aquatic 

Climbing Wall 
($17,000) 

Total 
Annual $42,000 $32,000 $18,000 $17,000 $15,000 $15,000 

Cost 
Total 5 Year 

$139,000 
Cost 

Pool Repairs Recommended In 2019 Pool Audit 
As part of their services, Williams conducted an inspection of the facility on April 3, 2019. The 
investigation included a visual exam of the structure and finish for the pools, pool gutter systems, 
exposed piping, pool filtration systems, chemical control and feed systems, deck areas, related 
equipment, filter building structural settlement, and current incoming electrical service. 

Williams stated that the dive and wading pool appeared to be in fair condition considering the age 
(27 years old) of the facility. The lap pool is experiencing significant deterioration problems that 
need to be addressed in order to provide a safe environment for patrons and to eliminate further 
deterioration. Additionally, there is significant deck settlement that has created tripping hazards 
and has affected deck drainage. 

As part of the final conclusion, Williams provided three (3) major areas of concern. 

1. Deterioration of existing grout below the stainless steel perimeter gutter. 
2. Differential settlement of the pool decks, causing tripping hazards and affecting drainage. 
3. Rusting pressure sand filters reaching the end of their useful life. 

In order for the Village to prepare for the needed improvements, Williams categorized their 
recommendations into three (3) priority levels based upon need. The definitions for each priority 
are listed in the audit report; 

• Priority Level 1 - Requires immediate attention. 



• 
• 
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Priority Level 2 - Requires completion in the next 1 to 2 years . 
Priority Level 3 - Requires completion in the next 1 to 4 years . 

MEMORANDUM 

As a way to organize the recommendations, the Public Services Department created a new four 
(4) year CIP to address the identified repairs as indicated in William's pool audit. The 
improvements have been prioritized based upon priority level, and also effective phasing. The 
new plan also includes performing all items listed in the Department's original CIP. A summary of 
the revised costs per year are provided below. 

Year One Year Two Year Three 
Year Four Year 
Four Total Cost 

Audit 
$621,030 $599, 160 $121,194 $111,132 $1,452,516 Improvements 

Current CIP 
$42,000 $12,000** $18,000 $17,000 $89,000 Improvements 

Total Costs* $663,030 $611,160 $139,194 $128,132 $1,541,516 
•includes professional services . 
.. If the proposed improvements from the pool audit are approved, the filter media maintenance in CY2020 
will not need to be performed, saving $20,000, as all filters will be replaced in year two (2) of the proposed 
four (4) year improvement plan. 

A detailed breakdown of all the improvements for each year are attached (attachment #2). 
Currently, there are no funds budgeted for a significant portion of this work. In addition, Public 
Services has budgeted for professional services needed to assist with the development of 
specifications, bidding assistance, and construction oversight. The Public Services Department 
recommends continuing these services with Williams. 

Williams has recommended adding an additional 20% to the total costs in order to account for the 
use of professional services. Staff recommends utilizing professional services to assist with the 
bidding, and project management. The total cost including professional services to provide 
assistance with bidding is $1,541,516 over the four (4) year CIP schedule. 

Schedule for Improvements 
Public Services recommends conducting bidding in the spring of 2020, and performing 
improvements shortly after the 2020 Village Pool Season in order to be prepared for the 2021 
Village Pool Season. In addition, the equipment to be installed in year two (2) requires significant 
lead time and will have to be bid out in CY2021 in order to be completed prior to the start of the 
2022 Village Pool season. 

Attachments 
1. Williams Aquatics Pool Final Pool Audit 
2. Recommended Pool Improvement Schedule 
3. Village Pool Usage Analysis 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

The VILLAGE OF HINSDALE commissioned Williams Architects to provide an assessment of the 
Hinsdale community pool facility located at 500 W. Hinsdale Ave, Hinsdale, IL. The intent of the 
evaluation was to determine the present condition of the pools, filtration systems, the pool decks, the 
structural stability of the pool equipment building and ongoing issues with the incoming electric 
service. The information provided will allow for planning for repairs/replacements as they relate to 
long range considerations for this facility. 

Current amenities include: 

50 meter, 8 lane lap pool with conjoined "L" shape 25 yard, 5-lane, lap area. 
Wading Pool with one (1) open kiddie slide. 
Diving pool with two one meter and one three-meter dive stands and drop slide. 

METHODOLOGY 

The evaluation consisted of an on-site visual inspection on April 3, 2019 of the facility with onsite 
discussions with staff regarding areas of specific concerns. The investigation included a visual 
examination of the structure and finish for the pools, pool gutter systems, exposed piping, pool 
filtration systems, chemical control and feed systems, deck areas, related equipment, filter building 
structural settlement and current incoming electric service. This report will help identify current issues 
along with items that do not meet the current regulations of the Illinois Department of Public Health 
(IDPH) Swimming Pool and Bathing Beach Code and required repairs/replacements. Reference to 
violations of the State Administrative Code, in the body of this report, should not necessarily be 
construed as grounds for pool closure. 

The state administrative code referred to in this pool audit report is: 

State of Illinois Administrative Code 
Title 77: Public Health 
Chapter 1: Department of Public Health (IDPH) 
Subchapter n: Recreational Facilities 
Part 820 Illinois Swimming Pool and Bathing Beach Code 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

AQUATIC SYSTEMS. POOLS AND DECKS 

OBSERVATIONS 

The facility has three separate bodies of water, a 50 meter "L" shaped lap pool, a diving pool with dive 
stands and a drop slide and a wading pool with a single water feature and kiddie slide. The dive pool 
and wading pool appear to be in fair condition, typical for a facility of this age. The lap pool is 
experiencing significant deterioration problems that need to be addressed in order to provide a safe 
environment for patrons and to eliminate further deterioration. Additionally, there is significant deck 
settlement that has created toe stubbing/tripping hazards and has affected deck drainage. 

CONCLUSION 

The findings of our facility assessment indicate the following major areas of concern. 

* 1. Deterioration of existing grout below the stainless steel perimeter gutter. 

2. Differential settlement of the pool decks, causing tripping hazards and affecting drainage. 

* 3. Rusting pressure sand filters reaching the end of their useful life. 

* 

Repairs of all these major concerns and the other items listed in this report should be performed in 
order to address health and human safety issues, to meet Illinois Department of Public Health code 
requirements and to extend the life of the facility and reduce operating costs and further deterioration. 

* Please refer to the RECOMMENDATIONS section of this report for associated costs for the repairs/replacements and 

estimated life expectancies. 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

ELECTRIC SERVICE 

PURPOSE 

On April 3, 2019 Karl Streitenfeld of The WT Group visited the facility and performed an inspection of 
the electrical service, main distribution panel, transformer and sub-panel which are located in the 
facilities Filter Building. 

The facility electrical service consists of a 400 amp, 277/480V 3-phase, 4-wire fusible switch main 
distribution panel. 

OBSERVATIONS 

During this inspection the Village personnel who maintain the facility related information regarding 
issues with utility voltage spikes and sags which play havoc with the pool equipment pumps and 
related equipment. They indicated Commonwealth Edison monitored the voltage at their pad mounted 
transformer and during that monitoring period no voltage spikes or sags above or below the allowable 
10% were detected. 

CONCLUSION 

Upon receiving copies of the Corned utility bills for the months of June, July and August of 2018, We 
have determined that the facility's peak demand load of 62.26KW (75 amps) occurred from July 17, 
2018 to August 15, 2018. 

Our recommendation to the Village is to install a 125 KVA (150 amps) voltage regulator based on the 
noted peak demand load adjacent to the utility transformer. This voltage regulator would monitor 
incoming voltage into the building and provide a regulated output of+/- 1 %. The installation would 
require a new exterior mounted main service disconnect switch mounted adjacent to the utility CIT 
cabinet with the service rerouted through this disconnect, then to the voltage regulator and from the 
voltage regulator to the existing main distribution panel. 

FILTER BUILDING STRUCTURAL CONDITION ASSESSMENT 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of the site visit was to perform a structural condition assessment of the existing Filter Building. 
This is a "Preliminary Structural Condition Assessment" as defined in ASCE 11-99 "Guideline for Structural 
Condition Assessment of Existing Buildings." 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

OBSERVATIONS 

The surge tank area of the structure has settled over the years. Eight micropiles were placed within the tanks 
(six in the north tank and two in the south tank) based on the recommendations of the 201 O report noted above 
under reference documents. The micropiles were placed to control future settlement of the tanks. The owner 
noted that several pipes that pass thru the west wall of the tank recently sheared off and had to be repaired. 

The 2010 report indicates the original geotechnical report prepared in 1992 noted poor soils were found on the 
west area of the site where the adjacent Bathhouse is located. Limited borings were taken in the area of Filter 
Building; however, the report indicated conventional shallow foundations could be used for the building. The 
Filter Building was therefore constructed using conventional shallow foundations. The surge tanks have 
settled over the years due to the presence of poor soils in the area. 

The typical repair recommendation for settlement of this type is underpinning. One the most widely used 
underpinning methods is the placement of micropiles which attach to the foundation and extend through the 
poor soils into an acceptable bearing strata. This method was recommended in the 201 O report and installed 
during that time period. 

Although the gaps in the control joints have changed only slightly from the measurements taken in 2010, the 
new horizontal crack in the west wall indicates the tank is still settling even with the micropiles. The north end 
of the crack was measured to be -1/2" therefore the tank is assumed to have settled an additional%" since 
2010. The settlement has not significantly impacted the structural framing but it has impacted the rigid pipe 
connections that pass through the wall resulting in the recent damage to the pipes passing through the west 
wall. 

CONCLUSIONS 

Further investigation is recommended in order to better determine the cause of the ongoing 

settlement. We have recommended a geotechnical testing service be engaged to obtain soil borings 

both outside and inside the building to determine additional stabilization of the building. 

Refer to our detailed report for additional remedial measures. 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

AQUATIC SYSTEMS, POOLS AND DECKS 

OBSERVATIONS 

The following are observations and discussions regarding the condition and function of the pool 
structure and pool equipment 

Main Pool 

1. In a standard stainless 
steel gutter detail, the 
gutter is set on 
leveling angles on top 
of the pool wall. Once 
the gutter is installed, 
the area around the 
gutter, underneath 
and behind gutter, is 
grouted with a non­
metallic non-shrink 
grout. Refer to typical 
gutter installation 
detail. TYPICAL GUTIER INSTALLATION DETAIL 

The main pool gutter does not have a continuous caulk sealant under the gutter. The grout 
below the pool gutter has severely deteriorated at the deep end of the pool and at the "L" 
portion of the pool. Additionally, the paint finish is pealing. Staff indicated that in the past, 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

prior to them working at the pool, maintenance used BON DO to repair these areas. This 
condition is a hazard to bathers and will increase the continual deterioration of the grout and 
pool walls unless repaired. 

2. A hammer test was performed on the pool walls around the perimeter of the pool in order to try 
to locate hollow spots in the concrete structure, which would verify deterioration. A hollow area 
was found in the "L" section of the 25-yard lap portion of the pool. The walls below the grout 
under the gutter appear to be solid. The concrete pool floor seems to be in good condition. 
No cracking or spalling were obseNed. 

3. Staff indicated that when the pool is in operation that the pool is skimming uniformly around the 
entire perimeter. This indicates that the pool has not settled. 

4. The gutter grating at the northeast corner of the 
deep end of the pool is not supported by a leveling 
angle. A large gap is present, which is a hazard to 
bathers stepping on the grating and reaching in with 
their hands. The grating needs to be supported so 
that it is level and forms a flush joint with the 
adjacent grating. 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

5. The decks have significant differential settlement, which has affected drainage. Additionally, 
the settlement creates tripping/toe stubbing hazards for patrons. Areas where there has been 
significant settlement have been patched or in some instance the deck was ground down to 
address the difference in height. 
Some of the patched areas 
exceed 1" per foot slope. This is 
a violation of current IDPH code 
requirements: Section 820.200.j 
Walkways and Deck Areas - 5) 
The deck shall slope at least one 
inch per 10 feet to deck drains or 
to the surrounding ground 
surface. The maximum slope of 
the pool deck shall not exceed 
one inch per foot. 

6. There are areas where the decks 
are deteriorating and cracking, creating hazards for patrons and affecting deck drainage. 
Repair attempts have been made. 

7. The main pool paint finish is faded and peeling in some areas. The pool should be prepped as 
required and repainted. 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

Wading Pool 

1. The wading pool concrete structure 
appears to be in fair condition. The wading 
pool paint finish is pealing and cracking in 
some areas. The pool should be prepped 
as required and repainted. 

2. The Raindrop water feature is very faded and should be refinished. Additionally, the kiddie 
slide should be refinished. 

3. The wading pool decks are in good condition. 

4. Staff indicated that there is a small leak in one of the wading pool pipes. A leak detection 
company is scheduled to locate the leak and then repairs will be made. 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

Dive Pool 

1. The dive pool structure appears to be in good condition. 

2. The diving pool decks are in good condition. 

3. The dive stands are in good condition. There is some rust formation on the base plates of the 
column supports. 

4. The safety surface under the three-meter dive stand is generally good condition. The integral 
color has worn in the areas of high traffic. 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
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Pool Mechanical Systems 

mWILLIAMS 
ARCHITECTS/,\Xi' :s 

1. Both the dive pool and the wading pool are on one filtration system and use a common surge 
tank. One chemical controller is used for both the pools. The chemical controller sampling line 
for these pools is taken off of the supply line after passing through the filter system. This 
design does not provide an accurate reading for the wading pool, which is a much smaller 
volume that gets diluted in the surge tank when mixed with water from the dive pool. Keeping 
chemicals balanced in the wading pool will be difficult if not impossible with this type of design. 
Staff indicated that it was very difficult maintaining chemical levels in the wading pool. Each 
pool should have its own chemical controller and sampling stream pump. The water samples 
should be pulled off the underside of the gutter collection lines. 

2. The flow meter on the dive/wading pool supply does not meet the "5 and 10 rule" required by 
code. This is a violation of current IDPH code requirements: Section 820.210.d Flowmeter. 
Flowmeters shall be located so that the rate of recirculation and the backwash rate of sand 
filters can be read. In a multiple pool system, flowmeters shall be provided for each pool. 
Separate f/owmeters shall be provided to monitor the flow for each area of a pool with a 
turnover rate that differs from adjacent areas according to subsection (b)(1), Flowmeters shall 
be provided on inlet supply piping in accordance with subsection (f)(2)(F), Flowmeters shall be 
installed on a straight length of pipe with no valves, elbows or other sources of turbulence 
within 10 pipe diameters upstream or 5 diameters downstream from the flowmeter. In order to 
address this item the piping would have to be reconfigured, which IDPH will most likely 
not require. 

3. The main pool filter access 
hatch areas and hatches are 
rusting, in some instances very 
severely. Additionally, the filter 
support legs are also severely 
rusted. The dive/wading pool 
filters are also rusting but not as 
severely. Staff indicated that 
10 to 12 years ago the filters 
were sandblasted on the inside 
and a new epoxy coating was 
applied. The access hatches no 
longer seal well. Staff indicated that some sand gets into the pool, which could be an indication 
that the filter laterals could be cracked. 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

4. The dive/wading pool circulation pump utilizes a secondary 
strainer to capture debris. However, the openings in the 
stainless steel strainer sheets is%" at the widest point by 
1-Y:!'' long, which will allow larger debris through, and the 
strainer has minimal surface area. Staff indicated that the 
secondary strainer gets loaded with debris quickly and 
requires continual cleaning throughout the season. It is 
recommended that a 9'-6" x 8'-0" high 11 GA stainless steel 
wall, with door access, be provided with 1/8" round holes on 
3/16" centers. This will provide a large surface area which 
will capture the majority of the debris. Additionally, the 
strainer wall will protect the pump and extend filter runs. 
Facilities that have incorporated such strainer walls have 
experienced only having to clean them at the end of the season. 

5. Both the dive pool and wading pool main drain throttling/isolation valves are in very poor 
condition. The wading pool main drain throttling/isolation valve is not operational and needs to 
be replaced. 
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6. The ladder rungs in the dive/wading pool surge tank are missing. This is a hazard if someone 
would fall into the tank. The rungs should be replaced. 

Missing ladder rungs 

7. The dive pool 10" main drain float operated modulating valve is missing one float assembly. 
The float should be replaced to provide accurate operation. 

Missing float assembly 
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8. The dive/wading pool surge tank top at the access hatch is deteriorating. The rebar is visible 
and rusted. 

9. The main pool circulation pump utilizes the same secondary strainer design as the dive/wading 
pool circulation pump. The same deficiencies are present. It is recommended that a 10'-0" x 
4'-0" x 8'-0" high 11 GA stainless steel "L" shaped wall, with door access, be provided with 1/8" 
round holes on 3/16" centers. 

10. The main pool utilizes two 12" main drains 
with two 12" main drain float operating 
modulating valves. One of the main drain 
modulating valves does not have any float 
assemblies. 

15 
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11. The main pool surge tank top at the access hatch is deteriorating. The rebar is visible and 
severely rusted. 

12. There are no pump performance curves in the mechanical room. Additionally, the valves are 
not tagged and there was no valve legend. This is a violation of current IOPH code 
requirements: Section 820.340.k) 1) Manufacturers' instructions for operation and 
maintenance of mechanical and electrical equipment, as well as pump performance curves, 
shall be kept available at the swimming facility. All valves and piping in the equipment room 
shall be permanently identified as to use and direction of flow. A valve operating procedure 
shall be provided in the equipment room for each operation (e.g., recirculation, filtration, 
backwashing). The pump supplier who replaced or rebuilt the pumps will be able to 
provide the pump curves. 
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ELECTRICAL REPORT 

On April 3, 2019 Karl Streitenfeld of wr Group visited the facility and performed an inspection of the electrical 
service, main distribution panel, transformer and sub-panel which are located in the facilities Filter Building. 

The facility electrical service consists of a 400 amp, 277/480V 3-phase, 4-wire fusible switch main distribution 

panel. 

During this inspection the Village personnel who maintain the facility related information regarding issues with 
utility voltage spikes and sags which play havoc with the pool equipment pumps and related equipment. They 
informed me that Commonwealth Edison monitored the voltage at their pad mounted transformer and during 
that monitoring period no voltage spikes or sags above or below the allowable 10% were detected. 

Upon receiving copies of the Corned utility bills for the months of June, July and August of 2018, we have 
determined that the facility's peak demand load of 62.26KW (75 amps) occurred from July 17, 2018 to August 
15, 2018. Our recommendation to the Village is to install a 125 KVA (150 amps) voltage regulator based on the 
noted peak demand load adjacent to the utility transformer. This voltage regulator would monitor incoming 
voltage into the building and provide a regulated output of+/- 1 %. The installation would require a new exterior 
mounted main service disconnect switch mounted adjacent to the utility CIT cabinet with the service rerouted 
through this disconnect, then to the voltage regulator and from the voltage regulator to the existing main 
distribution panel. 

STRUCTURAL REPORT 

PURPOSE: 

The purpose of the site visit was to perform a structural condition assessment of the existing Filter Building. 
This is a "Preliminary Structural Condition Assessment" as defined in ASCE 11-99 "Guideline for Structural 
Condition Assessment of Existing Buildings." 

METHODS AND TECHNIQUES: 

All observations were visual only; no measurements or tests were performed. Structural observations were 
limited to the areas of the structural system that were exposed and accessible at the time of the observations. 
The wood roof structure was covered with blanket insulation and therefore not visible. 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS: 

Facility Evaluation Report 2010 

Atlas Restoration Proposal dated 3/1 /2011 

Atlas Restoration Change Order 1 dated 4/12/2011 
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DESCRIPTION OF STRUCTURE: 

The subject structure is a 1, 100 sf single story structure with a wood roof deck supported by wood roof trusses 
and perimeter masonry bearing walls. A slab on grade and conventional shallow strip footings support the east 
section of the building while two below grade cast in place concrete surge tanks support the west end of the 
building. A cast in place concrete slab provides the cover for the surge tank and is located -14" higher than 
the adjacent slab on grade. 

The surge tank area of the structure has settled over the years. Eight micropiles were placed within the tanks 
(six in the north tank and two in the south tank) based on the recommendations of the 2010 report noted above 
under reference documents. The micropiles were placed to control future settlement of the tanks. The owner 
noted that several pipes that pass thru the west wall of the tank recently sheared off and had to be repaired. 

OBSERVATIONS (REFER TO ATTACHED SKETCHES AND PICTURES): 

The following observations were made during the site visit: 

• Roof structure: Observations were limited due to the presence of blanket insulation; however, no 
structural distress was noted in the areas that were visible. 

• Walls 
o The vertical control joints on the north, south and west walls have separated. The separation 

increases from the bottom of the wall to the top. The maximum separation is on the north wall 
where the bottom gap is -3/4" and the top gap is -1-3/4". This gap has not changed since the 2010 
report. The typical bottom gap in the remaining joints is -1/2" at the bottom and 1" at the top. The 
slope of the walls at the control joints indicates the surge tanks are settling to the north-west corner 
of the building. (Pictures 3,4 and 6) 

o A -6' long horizontal crack has formed on the west wall -2'-8" above the top of the tank cover. The 
crack width varies from 1/8" on the south end of the crack to%" on the north end. This also 
indicates the tank is settling towards the north-west corner of the building. (Picture 5) 

o Minor cracking of the north and south walls was noted at the top of the north and south door 
openings. 

o A minor crack was found in the north wall adjacent to the hoist beam bearing .. 
• Surge tank 

o Eight micropiles were previously installed in the bottom of the surge tanks. Six are located in 
the north tank and two in the south tank. The top anchorage of the micropiles to the tank walls 
was visible. (Pictures 7 and 8) 

o The tank slab and tank walls appeared to be in good structural condition. An exterior crack was 
noted near the top of the west wall just above grade. However, the crack does not extend 
through to the inside surface of the tank. (Picture 12) 

o Rebar was exposed and rusted within the tank cover at the two access openings. (Picture 9) 
o The pipes have rigid connections through the tank walls. (picture 10) 

• Slab on grade: The slab on grade in the east area of the building appeared to be in good structural 
condition. However, a horizontal gap was noted between the slab on grade and the east wall of the 
surge tank. The horizontal gap was -1" at the north end and -1/4" at the south end. 

• Pool deck adjacent to the north wall. The pool deck appears to have dropped -3" adjacent to the north-
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west corner of the building. The 3" dimension was measured from the original caulk line on the building 
foundation to the top of slab. Therefore the 3" settlement is in relation to the present location of the 
building foundation. (Picture 11) 

ATLAS RESTORATION PROPOSAL AND CHANGE ORDER 

Atlas Restoration's original proposal included the installation of 9 piles on the outside of the tank structure 
spaced along the north, south and west walls of the tank. A change order was issued due to limited access to 
the exterior of the tank due to the presence of utilities. The change order proposed installation of 8 piles on the 
inside of the tank. 

The change order included several assumptions and preliminary load estimates: 

• Assumed the settlement was the result of the west wall of the tank supporting the west building wall 
and roof. 

• Assumed soil strength was adequate to support the tank and contents. Atlas piles were sized to 
support the building CMU wall and roof only. 

• Assumed the soil strength supporting the mat foundation below the east tank wall was adequate 
without piers. 

DISCUSSION OF FINDINGS 

The 2010 report indicates the original geotechnical report prepared in 1992 noted poor soils were found on the 
west area of the site where the adjacent Bathhouse is located. Limited borings were taken in the area of Filter 
Building; however, the report indicated conventional shallow foundations could be used for the building. The 
Filter Building was therefore constructed using conventional shallow foundations. The surge tanks have 
settled over the years due to the presence of poor soils in the area. 

The typical repair recommendation for settlement of this type is underpinning. One the most widely used 
underpinning methods is the placement of micropiles which attach to the foundation and extend through the 
poor soils into an acceptable bearing strata. This method was recommended in the 2010 report and installed 
during that time period. 

Although the gaps in the control joints have changed only slightly from the measurements taken in 2010, the 
new horizontal crack in the west wall indicates the tank is still settling even with the micropiles. The north end 
of the crack was measured to be -1/2" therefore the tank is assumed to have settled an additional%" since 
2010. The settlement has not significantly impacted the structural framing but it has impacted the rigid pipe 
connections that pass through the wall resulting in the recent damage to the pipes passing through the west 
wall. 

The Atlas Restoration assumptions listed in their change order indicated they assumed the micropiles would 
work in combination with the existing soil to share in carrying the weight of the tank including its contents and 
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the building wall and roof. Therefore they estimated the typical load on the 5 east most piles to be 25,000 lb. 
The total load of the concrete tank, the contents, building wall and roof is approximately 400,000 lb. If the soil 
was not capable of supporting any loads, then the piles would be required to support the entire load. The load 
per pile would then be 400,000/8=50,000 lbs per pile. We are not aware of any geotechnical testing being 
performed at that time to confirm these assumptions. 

Leaking pipes in the area outside the structure would also reduce the soil load carrying capacity. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

• A geotechnical testing service should obtain soil borings both outside and inside the building to 
determine the strength and properties of the soils and provide recommendations for any additional 
underpinning. The report should also indicate if the sharing of load between soil bearing and the 
micropiles is still a valid assumption. Additional piles may be required if this assumption is no longer 
valid. 

• The piping system should be tested for leaks and repaired if leaks are found. The geotechnical testing 
service should be notified if leaks are found and they should extend their investigation to the area of the 
leaks. 

• Remove all rust from the exposed tops of the micropiles. The condition of the piles after cleaning 
should be determined and if they are acceptable, coat with an epoxy paint that can resist the chemicals 
used in the tanks. (Pictures 7 & 8) 

• The rusted and exposed rebar at the openings to the tanks should be cleaned and concrete patched. 
(Picture 9) 

• The exterior crack in the top of the tank wall should be epoxy injected to minimize water penetration 
into the wall. (Picture 12). 

• An Aquatic or mechanical engineer should investigate using a flexible connection for the pipes that 
pass through the walls. The flexible connection would allow some future settlement. (Picture 10). 

• CMU control joints should be cleaned out and a flexible sealant installed. 

1. North West Corner of Filter Building 
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2. North Elevation of Filter Building 

North Wall Control Joint (Ext . . enor view) 
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4. North Wall Control Joint (Interior view) 

5. West Wall Horizontal Crack in CMU 
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6· West Wall Control Joint 

7. Micropiles in North Tank 
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8. Micropile on North Wall of North Tank 

9. Deteriorated rebar at tank openings typical north and south tank 

24 



VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
POOL ASSESSMENT 

10. Rigid Pipe Connection through west wall 
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11. Pool slab depressed north west corner of building 
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12. Horizontal crack top of tank wall West Exterior Elevation 
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RECOMMENDATIONS 

The following recommendations and opinion of probable cost address major items identified in this 
report as needing repair, replacement or renovation. 

It is recognized that this Consultant or Owner have no control over the cost of labor, materials or 
equipment, over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices, or over competitive bidding, and 
market or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, the Consultant cannot, and does not, warrant or 
represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Owner's project budget or from any 
opinion of construction cost or evaluation prepared or agreed to by the Consultant. 

Each recommendation has been assigned a priority level which determines the importance of the 
repair/replacement. The priority level assigned to a recommendation is based on the following: 

Priority Time Frame 

1 Immediate to 1 year 

2 1 year to 2 years 
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Deterioration of structure; 
health and human safety 
deficiencies; maintenance 
items that will reduce 
future maintenance; Illinois 
Swimming Pool and 
Bathing Beach Code 
compliance Illinois 
Swimming Pool and 
Bathing Beach Code 
compliance. 

Repairs that will be 
required in the near future; 
improvements that will 
reduce or eliminate future 
maintenance. Illinois 
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Swimming Pool and 
Bathing Beach Code 
compliance; maintenance 
improvements that can be 
performed by the Park 
District 

3 1 year to 4 years Improvements that will 
improve the performance 
of the facility; 
improvements that will 
provide greater enjoyment 
for patrons 

AQUATIC SYSTEMS, POOLS AND DECKS 

RECOMMENDATION PRIORITY LEVEL PROBABLE COST 
RANGE 

LAP POOL- REPAIR DETERIORATED 1 $55,000 to $75,000 
GROUT JOINTS UNDER THE STAINLESS 
STEEL PERMITER GUTTER. 
(APPROXIMATELY 120 LINEAR FEET, 
ASSUME REPLACING ALL GROUT UNDER 
GUTTER) THIS SHOULD EXTEND THE LIFE 
EXPECTANCY 10 TO 15 YEARS. 

REPLACE LAP POOL DECKS AND DECK 1 $200,000 TO $255,000 
DRAINAGE (12,723 SQ. FT.). THIS SHOULD 
EXTEND THE LIFE EXPECT ANCY 20 TO 30 
YEARS. 

REPLACE EXISTING DIVE POOL/WADING 2 $175,000 TO $200,000 
POOL PRESSURE SAND FILTRATION 
SYSTEM WITH NEW PRESSURE SAND 
FILTERS. THIS SHOULD EXTEND THE LIFE 
EXPECT ANCY 20 TO 25 YEARS. 
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REPLACE EXISTING LAP POOL PRESSURE 
SAND FILTRATION SYSTEM WITH NEW 
PRESSURE SAND FILTERS. THIS SHOULD 
EXTEND THE LIFE EXPECTANCY 20 TO 25 
YEARS. 

PROVIDE NEW STAINLESS STEEL 
STRAINER WALLS IN THE DIVE 
POOL/WADING POOL SURGE TANK. 9'-6" X 
8'-0" HIGH, 11 GA STAINLESS STEEL WALL, 
WITH DOOR ACCESS, PROVIDED WITH 1/8" 
ROUND HOLES ON 3/16" CENTERS 
PROVIDE NEW STAINLESS STEEL 
STRAINER WALLS IN THE LAP POOL 
SURGE TANK. 10'-0" x4'-0" x 8'-0" HIGH 11 
GA STAINLESS STEEL "L" SHAPED WALL, 
WITH DOOR ACCESS, PROVIDED WITH 1/8" 
ROUND HOLES ON 3/16" CENTERS. 
REPLACE THE 8" WADING POOL MAIN 
DRAIN ISOLATION VALVE. PROVIDE WITH 
REMOTE OPERATED STAINLESS STEELL 
VALVE EXTENSION 

REPLACE THE 10" DIVING POOL MAIN 
DRAIN ISOLATION VALVE. PROVIDE WITH 
REMOTE OPERATED STAINLESS STEEL 
VALVE EXTENSION 

PROVIDE NEW MODULATING FLOAT ARM 
ASSEMBLY FOR THE 1 O" DIVE POOL MAIN 
DRAIN FLOAT OPERATED MODULATING 
VALVE 

PROVIDE TWO NEW MODULATING FLOAT 
ARM ASSEMBLIES FOR THE 12" LAP POOL 
MAIN DRAIN FLOAT OPERATED 
MODULATING VALVE 
PREP AND REPAINT MAIN POOL (12,835 
SQ. FT. WALL AND FLOOR AREAS). 
INCLUDES BRUSH BLAST, PSP WASH AND 
TWO COATS TNEMEC 161 EPOXY PAINT. 
THIS MAINTENANCE ITEM SHOULD LAST 4 
T06YEARS. 

2 $235,000 TO $250,000 

3 $18,000 TO $22,000 

3 $20,000 TO $24,000 

1 $2,000 to $2,250 

1 $2,250 to $2,500 

1 $200.00 
(INSTALLATION NOT 

INCLUDED) 

1 $400.00 
(INSTALLATION NOT 

INCLUDED) 

2 $71,600 to $77,000 
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PREP AND REPAINT WADING POOL (2,620 
SQ. FT. WALL AND FLOOR AREAS) 
INCLUDES BRUSH BLAST, PSP WASH AND 
TWO COATS TNEMEC 161 EPOXY PAINT. 
THIS MAINTENANCE ITEM SHOULD LAST 4 
TO 6 YEARS. 
REPLACE SURGE TANK LADDER RUNGS. 

PROVIDE A DEDICATED CHEMICAL 
CONTROLLER FOR THE WADING POOL 
AND USE THE EXISTING CHEMICAL 
CONTROLLER FOR THE DIVE POOL ONLY 
PROVIDE TWO SAMPLING STREAM 
PUMPS, ONE FOR THE DIVE POOL 
CHEMICAL CONTROLLER AND ONE FOR 
THE WADING POOL CHEMICAL 
CONTROLLER. SAMPLING SHOULD BE 
TAKEN OFF THE BOTTOM OF THE GUTTER 
COLLECTION LINES. 

REFINISH EXISTING RAINDROP WATER 
FEATURE AND KIDDIE SLIDE IN WADING 
POOL. 
REPAIR GUTTER GRATING SUPPORT IN 
MAIN POOL AT NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
THE DEEP END. 

mWILLIAMS 
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2 $14,500 TO $16,000 

1 $20.00 PER LADDER 
RUNG. INSTALLED BY 

STAFF. 
1 $8,000 to $10,000 

3 $5,000 to $7,000 

1 $500 

ELECTRICAL SERVICE 

RECOMMENDATION PRIORITY LEVEL PROBABLE COST 
RANGE 

INSTALL A 125 KVA VOLTAGE REGULATOR $70,000 to $80,000 
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STRUCTURAL ISSUES 

RECOMMENDATION PRIORITY LEVEL 

OBTAIN SOIL BORINGS AT FILTER 1 
BUILDING 

INSTALL ADDITIONAL PILES 2 

TEST PIPING SYSTEM FOR LEAKS 1 

REPAIR PIPE LEAKS (IF DISCOVERED) 1 

REMOVE RUST FROM EXISTING PILES. 1 
COAT WITH EPOXY PAINT 
CLEAN REBAR & REPAIR CONCRETE 1 

EPOXY INJECT CRACK IN TANK 1 

CLEAN & REPAIR CONTROL JOINTS 1 

NOTES 

PROBABLE COST 
RANGE 

$5,000 to $10,000 

$2,000 TO $2,500 
PER PILE 

$2,000 TO $5,000 

UNKNOWN 

$1,500 TO $2,500 

$500 TO $1,000 

$500T0$1,000 

$500 TO $1,000 

1. Costs are for 2019 construction season. We recommend adding 5% escalation for each year 
beyond 2019. 

2. Other related costs include architectural I engineering fees, permit fees, testing, general 
conditions and contingencies. These fees can vary substantially depending on the scope of 
work being performed. 

3. We recommend adding 20% to the above costs to account for professional fees and other 
potential related costs. 
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Village Pool Improvement Plan - Year One 

Recommendation Year Total 

LAP POOL - REPAIR DETERIORATED GROUT JOINTS UNDER THE 
STAINLESS STEEL PERMITER GUTTER (APPROXIMATELY 120 
LINEAR FEET, ASSUME REPLACING ALL GROUT UNDER 
GUTTER) THIS SHOULD EXTEND THE LIFE EXPECTANCY 10 TO 
15 YEARS. 

1 $ 75,000 
REPLACE LAP POOL DECKS AND DECK DRAINAGE (12,723 SQ. 
FT.). THIS SHOULD EXTEND THE LIFE EXPECTANCY 20 TO 30 
YEARS. 1 $ 255,000 

PROVIDE A DEDICATED CHEMICAL CONTROLLER FOR THE 
WADING POOL AND USE THE EXISTING CHEMICAL 
CONTROLLER FOR THE DIVE POOL ONLY. PROVIDE TWO 
SAMPLING STREAM PUMPS, ONE FOR THE DIVE POOL 
CHEMICAL CONTROLLER AND ONE FOR THE WADING POOL 
CHEMICAL CONTROLLER SAMPLING SHOULD BE TAKEN OFF 
THE BOTTOM OF THE GUTTER COLLECTION LINES 

1 $ 10,000 

REPAIR GUTTER GRATING SUPPORT IN MAIN POOL AT 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE DEEP END. 1 $ 500 

TEST PIPING SYSTEM FOR LEAKS 1 $ 5 ODO 
REPAIR PIPE LEAKS (If Discovered) 
(Estimated 5 Repairs at $10,000) 1 $ 50,000 
REMOVE RUST FROM EXISTING PILES. COAT WITH EPOXY 
PAINT 1 $ 2 500 

CLEAN REBAR & REPAIR CONCRETE 1 $ 1,000 

EPOXY INJECT CRACK IN TANK 1 $ 1 ODO 

CLEAN & REPAIR CONTROL JOINTS 1 $ 1,000 

PREP AND REPAINT MAIN POOL (12,835 SQ. FT. WALL AND 
FLOOR AREAS). 1 $ 77,000 

REPLACE THE 8" WADING POOL MAIN DRAIN ISOLATION VALVE. 
PROVIDE WITH REMOTE OPERATED STAINLESS STEELL VALVE 
EXTENSION (TO BE COMPLETED BY VILLAGE STAFF) 

1 $ 2,250 

REPLACE THE 10" DIVING POOL MAIN DRAIN ISOLATION VALVE. 
PROVIDE WITH REMOTE OPERATED STAINLESS STEEL VALVE 
EXTENSION(TO BE COMPLETED BY VILLAGE STAFF) 

1 $ 2,500 

PROVIDE NEW MODULATING FLOAT ARM ASSEMBLY FOR THE 
10" DIVE POOL MAIN DRAIN FLOAT OPERATED MODULATING 
VALVE(TO BE COMPLETED BY VILLAGE STAFF) 

1 $ 200 

PROVIDE TWO NEW MODULATING FLOAT ARM ASSEMBLIES 
FOR THE 12" LAP POOL MAIN DRAIN FLOAT OPERATED 
MODULATING VALVE(TO BE COMPLETED BY VILLAGE STAFF) 

1 $ 400 

REPLACE SURGE TANK LADDER RUNGS.(TO BE COMPLETED BY 
VILLAGE STAFF) 

1 $ 80 
PUMP MOTOR REHAB/REPLACEMENT(TO BE COMPLETED BY 
VILLAGE STAFF) 1 $ 15 ODO 
REPLACEMENT OF POOL H~ATER(TO BE COMPLETED BY 
VILLAGE STAFF) 1 $ 10,000 

AQUATIC CLIMBING WALL(TO BE COMPLETED BY VILLAGE 
STAFF) 1 $ 17,000 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1 $ 95,600 

Total Year One $ 621,030 



Village Pool Improvement Plan - Year Two 

Recommendation Year Total 5°/o Cost for Annual Adjustments 

REPLACE EXISTING DIVE 
POOL/WADING POOL PRESSURE 
SAND FILTRATION SYSTEM WITH 
NEW PRESSURE SAND FILTERS. 
THIS SHOULD EXTEND THE LIFE 
EXPECTANCY 20 TO 25 YEARS. 

2 $ 200,000 $ 210,000 

REPLACE EXISTING LAP POOL 
PRESSURE SAND FILTRATION 
SYSTEM WITH NEW PRESSURE 
SAND FILTERS. THIS SHOULD 
EXTEND THE LIFE EXPECTANCY 
20 TO 25 YEARS. 

2 $ 250,000 $ 262,500 

PREP AND REPAINT WADING 
POOL (2,620 SQ. FT. WALL AND 
FLOOR AREAS) INCLUDES BRUSH 
BLAST, PSP WASH AND TWO 
COATS TNEMEC 161 EPOXY 
PAINT. THIS MAINTENANCE ITEM 
SHOULD LAST 4 TO 6 YEARS. 

2 $ 16,000 $ 16,800 

REPLACEMENT OF POOL 
HEATER(TO BE COMPLETED BY 
VILLAGE STAFF) 2 $ 12,000 $ 12,000 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2 $ 93,200 $ 97,860 

Total Year TWo $ 571,200 $ 599,160 
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Village Pool Improvement Plan - Year Three 

Recommendation Year Total 
5o/o + 5% Cost for Annual 

Adjustments 

PROVIDE NEW STAINLESS 
STEEL STRAINER WALLS IN THE 
DIVE POOUWADING POOL 3 $ 22,000.00 $ 24,255.00 
PROVIDE NEW STAINLESS 
STEEL STRAINER WALLS IN THE 
LAP POOL SURGE TANK 10'-0" x 3 $ 24,000.00 $ 26,460.00 
REFINISH EXISTING RAINDROP 
WATER FEATURE AND KIDDIE 
SLIDE IN WADING POOL 3 $ 7,000.00 $ 7,717.50 
OBTAIN SOIL BORINGS AT 
FILTER BUILDING 3 $ 10,000.00 $ 11,025.00 

INSTALL ADDITIONAL PILES 3 $ 15,000.00 $ 16,537.50 

PUMP MOTOR 
REHAB/REPLACEMENT(TO BE 
COMPLETED BY VILLAGE 
STAFF) 3 $ 18,000.00 $ 18,000.00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3 $ 15,600.00 $ 17,199.00 

Total Year Three $ 111,600.00 $ 121,194.00 
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Village Pool Improvement Plan - Year Four 

Recommendation Year Total 
5°/o + 5o/o +5% Cost for Annual 

Adjustments 

INSTALL A 125 KVA VOLTAGE 
REGULATOR 1 $ 80,000 $ 92,610.00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3 $ 16,000.00 $ 18,522.00 

Total Year Four $ 96,000.00 $ 111,132.00 
. 



Attachment #3 

Est:. 1 B 7 3 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: July 25, 2019 

TO: President Cauley and the Village Board of Trustees 

CC: Kathleen A Gargano, Village Manager 

FROM: Heather Bereckis, Superintendent of Parks & Recreation 

RE: Hinsdale Community Pool Usage 

A review of pool patronage shows that Hinsdale Residents are the dominate users of 
the pool, but nonresidents make up approximately Y,, of the visits. Since 2011 there has 
been a decline in resident memberships, while nonresident memberships are 
increasing. The largest increase of nonresidents was in 2014 with the addition of the 
Neighborly pass. The chart below shows the neighborly growth from 2018 to 2019. 

As of July 22, 2019 

Resident 
Nanny + Nanny Supe 

Faml!y Primary 
Family Secondary 

lndii,idua I 
Senior Pas ' 

' Family Supe 

Resident Tota 

Neighborly 

I 

y Neighbor Famil 
Neighborly lndi>Adua 

Neighbor Add! 
I 
., 

Neighborly Tota I 

Non-Resident 
Non Resident Famil y 

Non Resident Family Secondary 
I Non Resident lndi\oidua 

Non Resident Senio 
Non Resident Nann 

Non-resident Tota 

y 
I 

10-ViSI 
TOTA L 

Aso!July22,2018 
2018 Pass Revenue 

Now Renew 
Passes Passes Total Revenue 

37 34 71 $4,410 
80 199 279 $82,885 

299 655 954 
7 10 17 $2,225 

13 25 38 $3,040 
79 18 97 $4,850 

515 941 1456 $97,410 

43 46 89 $33, 187 
2 1 3 $760 

144 171 315 
189 218 407 $33.947 

3 0 3 $1,595 
14 0 14 
0 2 2 $545 
3 4 7 $1,085 

14 5 19 $1,710 
34 11 45 $4 935 

208 208 $16,810 
2116 $153,102 

Now Renew 
Passes Passes 

46 32 
101 172 
329 610 

7 7 
12 23 
78 19 

573 863 

70 60 
3 1 

239 206 

312 267 

0 1 
6 4 
1 0 
6 7 

19 10 

32 22 

238 

As of July 22, 2019 
2019 Pass Revenue 

Actual% 
Change 

Over Prior 
Total Revenue Year 

78 54,490 2% 
273 580,415 -3% 
939 

14 $1,855 -17% 
35 $2,720 -11% 
97 $4,850 0% 

1438 $94,330 -3% 

130 $48,020 45% 
4 $1,020 34% 

445 
579 $49,040 44% 

1 $515 -68% 
10 

1 $285 -48% 
13 $2,015 86% 
29 $2,520 47% 
54 $5 335 8% 

238 $18,918 13% 
$167,623 9•;. 

Actual $ 
Change 
Over the 
prior year 

$80 
-52.470 

-$370 
-$320 

$0 
-$3 080 

$14,833 
$260 

$15,093 

-$1,080 

-$260 
$930 
5810 
5400 

$2,108 
$14,521 



MEMORANDUM 

The following table provides a breakdown of the resident vs. non-resident usage for the 
past five years during the month of June, as well as full year data. Also included is an 
average of the five years of visits. 

Non Non Non 

Resident Resident Resident Resident Resident Resident Res% of NR % of 
Visitor Residency Saturday Saturday Sunday Sunday Weekday Weekday Resident Non Resident Total Total 
June Comparison Visits Visits Visits Visits Visits Visits Total Total Visits Visits 

Season 

2015 558 163 661 223 2379 623 3598 1009 78% 22% 

2016 865 324 675 138 2796 858 4336 1320 77% 23% 

2017 691 104 1122 147 2777 699 4590 950 83% 17% 

2018 1110 198 872 207 2336 497 4318 902 83% 17% 

2019 473 119 212 81 2293 682 2978 882 77% 23% 
5 year Average 739 182 708 159 2516 672 3964 1013 79% 21% 

Non Non Non 

Visitor Residency Resident Resident Resident Resident Resident Resident Res% of NR %of 

Full Season Saturday Saturday Sunday Sunday Weekday Weekday Resident Non Resident Total Total 
Comparison Visits Visits Visits Visits Visits Visits Total Total Visits Visits 

Season 

2015 2217 795 2150 792 8015 2331 12382 3918 76% 24% 

2016 2103 749 2331 712 8734 2989 13168 4450 75% 25% 

2017 2405 464 3027 486 8478 2670 13910 3620 79% 21% 
2018 2624 464 3703 861 8608 1907 14935 3232 82% 18% 

2019* 1548 348 968 229 7602 2021 10118 2598 80% 20% 

5 year Average 2179 564 2436 616 8287 2384 12903 3564 78% 22% 

*only half season so far 



--------------------------------------- - - ----

-- Eat. 1873 --

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda - EPS 

SUBJECT: Bid #1669 - Custodial Services 

MEETING DATE: March 16, 2020 

FROM: Garrett Hummel, Administrative Analyst 

Recommended Motion 

AGENDA ITEM# ?ell.-> 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Public Services & Engineering 

To approve the award of Custodial Services Bid #1669 to Bravo Service, Inc., for custodial 
services within Village facilities for one term (20 Months), in the amount not to exceed 
$117,000. 

Background 
Every two years, the Village solicits competitive pricing for custodial cleaning services to the 
following Village facilities: Village Hall, Memorial Building, Water Treatment Plant, Public 
Services Garage, Police Department, Brush Hill Depot, and the Highland Station. In February 
2020, Public Services staff solicited sealed bids for the 2020 through 2022 custodial services. 

Public Services staff published the bid package on Monday, February 3, 2020. Staff provided 
the bid package to sixteen (16) vendors, placed a legal ad in the Daily Herald, and posted the 
bid package on the Village website. A pre-bid meeting was held on Wednesday, February 12, 
2020, that allowed prospective bidders to view the Village facilities and ask questions 
regarding the scope of the bid. The bid opening took place on Wednesday, February 26, 
2020 and the Village received three (3) competitive bids. 

Due to the Village's change to a calendar year budget, staff has attempted to enter into 
contracts that align with the calendar year. The previous custodial contract expires in April 
2020, staff decided to make the first "year" of this contract twenty (20) months, instead of an 
eight (8) month contract. This twenty (20) month term will expire in December 2021. The 
Village has the option to renew the contract for 2022. 

Discussion & Recommendation 
Public Services staff recommends Bravo Service, Inc. ("Bravo") for custodial cleaning 
services throughout the various Village facilities. As the Village has no past experience with 
Bravo, staff conducted a thorough reference check to ensure Bravo has been responsive and 
performed satisfactory work for previous clients. Of the references contacted, all provided 
positive responses related to their experience with Bravo. In the event that Bravo's 
performance is not satisfactory, after the first term of the contract (20 months), the Village 
reserves the right to not renew the custodial contract for a second year. Please see table 
following for a breakdown of bids received. 
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----------------------------------- - - ----

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

-Est. 1873-

Bravo 
Best Quality 

Eco Clean 
Services, Maintenance, 

Inc. 
Cleaning Inc. 

Year One (2020) - 8 Months $46,800 $47,880 $48,480 
Year One (2021) - 12 Months $70,200 $71,820 $72,720 
Total Year One (20 Months) $117,000 $119,700 $121,200 

Year Two (2022) $72,900 $74, 160 $72,720 
Total $189,900 $193,860 $193,920 

Budget Impact 
The Village uses funds from various Village departmental budgets for custodial cleaning 
expenses. After factoring in the first four (4) months of expenses owed to the Village's 
previous custodial services contractor (contract expires April 2020), the Village has $65,623 
remaining in the CY2020 Budget. Bravo's Year 1 proposal of $46,800 for the remaining eight 
(8) months of CY2020 is $18,823 under budget. The Year 1 proposal also includes the twelve 
(12) months of 2021. In the event that Bravo provides a satisfactory performance, near the 
expiration of the contract's first term, Village staff will request approval to renew the contract 
for Year 2 (2022). 

Village Board and/or Committee Action 
Per the Village's approved meeting policy, this award is included on the Consent Agenda 
without the benefit of a First Reading because it meets the definition for a routine item: it is 
included in the approved budget, is under budget, and is less than $500,000. 

Documents Attached 
1. Bid #1669 - Bravo Services, Inc. Proposal 
2. Bid #1669 - Custodial Services Bid Tabulation 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

CONTRACT FOR 

CUSTODIAL SERVICES 

BID #1669 

BIDDER'S PROPOSAL 

FullNameofBidder ,...bQAvO ~JW 
Principal Office Address J...'iJ0CJ f:. C)E\11~ 

s(~ 

I !NC 
SvliE 

l 

("Bidder") 

Contact Person SJ\'vJtLt :\1\.lJW\.Slwtelephone 773 52.L( ~40\7 
TO: Village of Hinsdale 

19 E. Chicago A venue 
Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 
ATTN: Garrett Hummel 

("Owner") 

Bidder warrants and represents that Bidder has carefully examined the Work Site 
described above, respective environments, and has reviewed and understands all 
docnments includfd, referred to, or mentioned in this bound set of documents, including 
Addenda Nos. , which are securely stapled to the end of this Bidder's Proposal [if 
none, write "NONE"] ("Bid Package"). 

Bidder acknowledges and agrees that all terms capitalized in this Bidder's Proposal shall 
have the meaning given to them in the documents included in the Bid Package. 

l. Work Prooosal 

A. Contract and Work. If this Bidder's Proposal is accepted, Bidder proposes, and 
agrees, that Bidder will contract with Owner, in the form of the Contract included 
in the Bid Package: (I) to provide, perform and complete at the site or sites 
described in the Bid Package ("Work Site") and in the manner described and 
specified in the Bid Package all necessary work, labor, services, transportation, 
equipment, materials, apparatus, machinery, tools, fuels, gas, electric, water, 
waste disposal, information, data and other means and items necessary for the 
CUSTODIAL SERVICES; (2) to procure and furnish all permits, licenses and 
other governmental approvals and authorizations necessary in connection 
therewith except as otherwise expressly provided in Attachment A to the Contract 
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included in the Bid Package; (3) to procure and furnish all Bonds and all 
certificates and policies of insurance specified in the Bid Package; (4) to pay all 
applicable federal, state and local taxes; (5) to do all other things required of 
Contractor by the Contract; and (6) to provide, perform and complete all of the 
foregoing in a proper and workmanlike manner and in full compliance with, and 
as required by or pursuant to, the Contract; all of which is herein referred to as the 
"Work." 

B. Manner and Time of Performance. If this Bidder's Proposal is accepted, Bidder 
proposes, and agrees, that the Bidder will perform the Work in the manner and 
time prescribed in the Bid Package and according to the requirements of Owner 
pursuant thereto. 

C. General. If this Bidder's Proposal is accepted, Bidder proposes, and agrees, that 
Bidder will do all other things required of Bidder or Contractor, as the case may 
be, by the Bid Package. 

2. Contract Price Proposal 

If this Bidder's Proposal is accepted, Bidder will, except as otherwise provided in 
Section 2.1 of the Contract, take in full payment for all Work and other matters set forth 
under Section 1 above, including overhead and profit; taxes, contributions, and 
premiums; and compensation to all subcontractors and suppliers, the compensation set 
forth on the following "Schedule of Prices" ("Price Proposal"), which Schedule of Prices 
Bidder understands and agrees will be made a part of the Contract: 

SCHEDULE OF PRICES 

IB) A. LUMP SUM CONTRACT 

For providing, performing, and completing all Work, the total Contract Price 

Dv.e . £~ v~ . ~ ~ ~~-~Dollarsand . o~ ·- Cents 
(in writing) (in writing) 

__,18~5"'"'+-ei~()'-"Q"--· ____ Dollars and 
\ (in figures) 

-o- Cents 
(in figures) 

IBJ B. UNIT PRICE CONTRACT 

For providing, performing, and completing all Work, the sum of the 
products resulting from multiplying the number of acceptable units of 
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Unit Price Items listed below incorporated in the Work by the Unit 
Price set forth below for such Unit Price Item: 

CUSTODIAL SERVICES COMPLETE 
(20MONTHS) CONTRACT IA 
May 1, 2020 - December 31, 2021 

FACILITY INCLUDED IN 
$PERMONTH 

$PER 
MONTHLY$ IN WORDS TERM CONTRACT 

VILLAGE HALL/ MEMORIAL \....:xi tvw<J-~-' ~T~ 2.,:J..50.00 41) lJOO. Jl'D BUILDING ~~;~ \ 00/1.fJ.:J 
t 

20,170.87 square feet 
POLICE STATION ~~" \A ·• .I '-il.<;0,_ ~~I.-.::> I 1.Q')O.OO .Z.15 oru o:: 
8,758.25 square feet " . \I ~ ... ~i.:Jv. l . 

n ' -
WATER PLANT <!,...'k_ ~A,\l,,G ~· fj I I 6-S-o.oo 13 l90J .QC 6,018 sauare feet --- .r /~ ... "- ~ I 

PUBLIC SERVICES l)'<\ft...'""t{' -~· . , ... .I~ 11.Q,oO.oO :24 10()1.~0 18,904 square feet -ii ~.1. •\.ion.\ \)Q/n.,--· 

BRUSH HILL STATION ~. ~~v u°f.iv ::b'..J.O'O 60~.~-= 838 square feet I 
HIGHLAND STATION l'wu tkA.~ "fUJ.J Qoo.oo ~ 061.DO 

253 sauare feet I 
U\/\€..l~u.11,, IJS,-p, ,o,,JJ,.d<A 

TOTAL COST FOR TERM ONE ~U,~(J,~ ~· ~;· 
May 1, 2020 -December 31, 2021 

.,1,\1'1
1 
000. QO 
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CUSTODIAL SERVICES COMPLETE 
(12 MONTHS) CONTRACT 28 

January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022 

FACILITY INCLUDED IN 
CONTRACT MONTHLY$ IN WORDS $PER MONTH $PER YEAR 

VILLAGE HALL/ MEMORIAL 
BLDG 

20,170.87 s uare feet 
POLICE STATION 
8, 758.25 s uare feet 
WATER PLANT 
6,018 s uare feet 

PUBLIC WORKS 
18,904 s uare feet 

BRUSH IDLL STATION 
838 s uare feet 

HIGHLAND STATION 
253 s uare feet 

TOTAL COST FOR ONE YEAR 

January 1, 2022 - December 31, 2022 

GRAND TOT AL for TWO TERMS 
(ITEMS lA + 2B) 

May 1, 2020-December 31, 2022 

D. BASIS FOR DETERMINING PRICES 

It is expressly understood and agreed that: 

l. The approximate quantities set forth in this Schedule of Prices for each 
Unit Price Item are Owner's estimate only, that Owner reserves the right to 
increase or decrease such quantities, and that payment for each Unit Price 
Item shall be made only on the actual number of acceptable units of such 
Unit Price Item installed complete in place, measured on the basis defined 
in the Contract; 
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ATTACHMENT#2 

Village of Hinsdale 
Bravo Services, Inc. Best Quality Cleaning Eco Clean Maintenance, Inc. 

BID 1669 - CUSTODIAL SERVICES 
2500 E. Devon, Suite 175 10015 Pacific Ave 515 W. Wrightwood Avenue 

Des Plaines, IL 60018 Franklin Park, IL 60131 Elmhurst, IL 60126 
Bid Tabulation 

Bid Bond Bid Bond Bid Bond 

YEAR 1 {20 MONTHS\ Monthlv Amount $ oer Year Monthlv Amount $per Year Monthly Amount $ ner Year 
VILLAGE HALUMEMORIAL BLDG $2 250.00 $45 000.00 $1 800.00 $36 000.00 $1 800.00 $36 000.00 

POLICE DEPT $1 250.00 $25 000.00 $1 600.00 $32 000.00 $1 700.00 $34 000.00 
WATER PLANT $650.00 $13 000.00 $725.00 $14 500.00 $720.00 $14 400.00 

PUBLIC SERVICES $1 200.00 $24 000.00 $1 200.00 $24 000.00 $1 200.00 $24,000.00 
BRUSH HILL STATION $300.00 $6 000.00 $330.00 $6 600.00 $320.00 $6 400.00 
HIGHLAND STATION $200.00 $4 000.00 $330.00 $6 600.00 $320.00 $6 400.00 

TOTAL COST FOR ONE TERM (5/1/20 -12131/21) $5,850.00 $117,000.00 $5,985.00 $119,700.00 $6,060.00 $121,200.00 

YEAR2 Monthlv Amount $ oerYear Monthlv Amount $ oerYear Monthlv Amount $per Year 
VILLAGE HALUMEMORIAL BLDG $2 300.00 $27 600.00 $1 860.00 $22 320.00 $1 800.00 $21 600.00 

POLICE DEPT $1,275.00 $15 300.00 $1 680.00 $20 160.00 $1 700.00 $20 400.00 
WATER PLANT $675.00 $8 100.00 $740.00 $8 880.00 $720.00 $8 640.00 

PUBLIC SERVICES $1 250.00 $15 000.00 $1 200.00 $14 400.00 $1 200.00 $14 400.00 
BRUSH HILL STATION $350.00 $4 200.00 $350.00 $4 200.00 $320.00 $3 840.00 
HIGHLAND STATION $225.00 $2 700.00 $350.00 $4 200.00 $320.00 $3 840.00 

TOTAL COST FOR ONE YEAR (1/1/22 -12/31/22) $6,075.00 $72,900.00 $6,180.00 $74,160.00 $6,060.00 $72,720.00 

GRAND TOTAL FOR TWO YEARS {511/20·12/31/22) $189,900.00 $193,860.00 I I $193,920.00 
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AGENDA SECTION: Second Reading - ZPS 

AGENDA ITEM# <::6~ 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Community Development 

SUBJECT: 

Exterior Appearance and Site Plan to Redevelop and Expand the 
existing 1-story Paddle Court warming Hut at KLM Memorial Park 
5901 S. County Line Road in the OS Open Space District 
Case A-01-2020 

MEETING DATE: March 16, 2020 

FROM: Chan Yu, Village Planner 

Recommended Motion 
Approve an Ordinance approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for expansion and 
redevelopment of a paddle court warming hut - Hinsdale Platform Tennis Association - 5901 
S. County Line Road. 

Background 
The Village of Hinsdale has received an Exterior Appearance/Site Plan review application from 
the Hinsdale Platform Tennis Association requesting approval to expand the existing Village 
owned 1-story, paddle court warming hut from 1,028 SF to 1,787 SF, at the southeast corner 
of the 52-acre Katherine Legge Memorial Park at 5901 S. County Line Road in the Open Space 
District. 

The current paddle court warming hut is surrounded by 6 paddle tennis courts to the west, east 
and south. The entrance is located at the north end of the building, and is where the expansion 
is being proposed. The plan includes a 759 SF building expansion, a new 524 SF raised deck, 
updated perimeter boardwalk and garbage enclosure to the east of the building . The elevation 
drawings indicate textured cellular PVC board , treated wood for the deck and ramps, and new 
roof cupola with windows. The new 3' -6" roof cupola was designed to allow additional natural 
light down through the center of the building. 

The proposed additional windows at the front entrance is consistent with the existing multiple 
windows on the other sides of the building , and the width of the building will not change. Per 
the architect, the materials were chosen to match the existing warming hut structure and 
ancillary structures. The landscape area, north of the raised deck on the site plan is proposed 
to be for a future landscape plan. Per section 9-104(D)(1), this request is a minor addition to 
the 52-acre site, and no additional parking spaces are required . 

Discussion & Recommendation 
At the February 12, 2020, Plan Commission meeting, the PC unanimously recommended 
approval for the proposed exterior appearance and site plan improvements, as submitted, 6-0 , 
and 2 absent. There were no public comments at the PC meeting by neighbors regarding the 
request. 

Page 1 of 2 



REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

- Eu . I S7l -

Village Board and/or Committee Action 
At the March 3, 2020, Board of Trustees meeting, the Village Board had no issues with the 
request and moved the item forward for Second Reading. 

Documents Attached 
Ordinance 

The following related materials were provided for the Board of Trustees of this item on March 
3, 2020, and can be found on the Village website at: 
https://www.villageofhinsdale.org/document centerNillageBoard/2020/03%20MARNBOT%2 
Opacket%2003 %2003%2020. pdf 

Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Application and Exhibits 
Zoning Map and Project Location 
Street View of 4 sides of Paddle Hut 
Aerial View of Paddle Hut at KLM Park 
Draft Plan Commission Findings and Recommendations 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ _ 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN FOR 
EXPANSION AND REDEVELOPMENT OF A PADDLE COURT WARMING HUT -
HINSDALE PLATFORM TENNIS ASSOCIATION- 5901 S. COUNTY LINE ROAD 

WHEREAS, the Hinsdale Platform Tennis Association (the "Applicant") has 
submitted an application (the "Application") seeking exterior appearance and site plan 
approval for an expansion of the existing Village-owned one-story, paddle court 
warming hut at the southeast corner of the 52-acre Katherine Legge Memorial Park at 
5901 S. County Line Road (the "Subject Property"). The Subject Property is located in 
the OS - Open Space Zoning District and is legally described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is currently improved with a one-story paddle 
court warming hut, surrounded by six (6) paddle tennis courts to the west, east and 
south. The Applicant seeks to expand the existing hut with a 759 square foot building 
addition, from 1,028 square feet to 1, 787 square feet. The plan also includes a new 524 
square foot raised deck, an updated perimeter boardwalk and a garbage enclosure to 
the east of the building. The proposed improvements are depicted in the Exterior 
Appearance and Site Plans attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Plan Commission of the 
Village and has been processed in accordance with the Hinsdale Zoning Code ("Zoning 
Code"), as amended; and 

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2020, the Plan Commission of the Village of 
Hinsdale reviewed the Application at a public meeting pursuant to notice given in 
accordance with the Zoning Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission, after considering all of the testimony and 
evidence presented at the public meeting, recommended approval of the proposed 
Exterior Appearance and Site Plans on a vote of six (6) ayes, zero (0) nays, and two (2) 
absent, as set forth in the Plan Commission's Findings and Recommendation in this 
case ("Findings and Recommendation"), a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit C and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees have duly considered the 
Findings and Recommendation of the Plan Commission, and all of the materials, facts 
and circumstances affecting the Application, and find that the Application satisfies the 
standards established in subsection 11-604F of the Zoning Code governing site plan 
review, and the standards established in subsection 11-606E of the Zoning Code 
governing exterior appearance review, subject to the conditions stated in this 
Ordinance. 
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NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees 
of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this 
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees. 

SECTION 2: Approval of Exterior Appearance and Site Plans. The Board of 
Trustees, acting pursuant to the authority vested in it by the laws of the State of Illinois 
and Sections 11-604 and 11-606 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, adopts the Findings and 
Recommendation of the Plan Commission, and approves the Exterior Appearance and 
Site Plans attached to, and by this reference, incorporated into this Ordinance as 
Exhibit B (the "Approved Plans"), subject to the conditions set forth in Section 3 of this 
Ordinance. 

SECTION 3: Conditions on Approvals. The approvals granted in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance are expressly subject to all of the following conditions: 

A. Compliance with Plans. All work on the exterior of the Subject Property 
shall be undertaken only in strict compliance with the Approved Plans 
attached as Exhibit B. 

B. Compliance with Codes, Ordinances, and Regulations. Except as 
specifically set forth in this Ordinance, the provisions of the Hinsdale 
Municipal Code and the Hinsdale Zoning Code shall apply and govern all 
development on, and improvement of, the Subject Property. All such 
development and improvement shall comply with all Village codes, 
ordinances, and regulations at all times. 

C. Building Permits. The Applicant shall submit all required building permit 
applications and other materials in a timely manner to the appropriate 
parties, which materials shall be prepared in compliance with all applicable 
Village codes and ordinances. 

SECTION 4: Violation of Condition or Code. Any violation of any term or 
condition stated in this Ordinance, or of any applicable code, ordinance, or regulation of 
the Village, shall be grounds for rescission by the Board of Trustees of the approvals set 
forth in this Ordinance. 

SECTION 5: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. Each section, 
paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any section, 
paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid 
for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or 
provision shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other 
than that part affected by such decision. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts 
thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict 
are hereby repealed. 
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SECTION 6: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from 
and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law. 

ADOPTED this ___ day of _________ , 2020, pursuant to a 
roll call vote as follows: 

AYES: 
--------------------~ 

NAYS: 
--------------------~ 

ABSENT: 
-------------------~ 

APPROVED by me this day of ________ , 2020, and 

attested to by the Village Clerk this same day. 

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President 

ATTEST: 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT BY THE APPLICANT TO THE 
CONDITIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE: 

By: ------------------

Its: 

Date: , 2020 
--------~ 
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EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

TRACT NUMBER 1: THE NORTH 401 FEET OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE NORTH 1550 FEET THEREOF) OF 
SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS; 

TRACT NUMBER 2: THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE NORTH 1951 FEET THEREOF) OF SECTION 18, ALSO THE 
NORTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

P.l.N.: 18-18-300-001-0000 and 18-18-108-001 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 5901 S. COUNTY LINE ROAD, HINSDALE, IL 60521 
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EXHIBIT B 

APPROVED EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLANS 
(ATTACHED) 
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EXHIBIT C 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 

(ATTACHED) 



HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 

Application: Case A-01-2020 -Applicant: Hinsdale Platform Tennis Association 

Request: Exterior Appearance/ Site Plan - KLM Memorial Park at 5901 S. County Line Road in the Open Space District 

DA TE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW: 

DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 15
T READING: 

February 12, 2020 

March 3, 2020 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 

I. FINDINGS 

1. The PC heard testimony from the applicant, Mr. Bryan Freel, on behalf of the Hinsdale Platform Tennis Association, 
and summarized the plans, including expanding the current building 28 feet in addition to an open space deck to the 
north while maintaining the building width. The expansion shape and roofline would be consistent with the existing 
building and the proposed cupola on the roof is intended to allow natural sunlight into the building. The fa~ade 
redevelopment material was reviewed as a wood vertical siding, white trim and asphalt roof. The applicant also 
brought and offered material samples for the Plan Commission to review. (11-604(F)(1) and 11-606(E)). 

2. A Plan Commissioner asked if the applicant has plans for new lighting for the building. The applicant responded 
there will be a new recessed down lighting on the north side of the building due to the new canopy, and reviewed 
the current exterior lighting on the north and south ends of the building. There was a question regarding a past 
application years ago that involved neighbor concerns over lighting. The applicant responded that pertained to the 
exterior court lights, and added the courts and lighting are not changing as part of this application (11-604(F)(1 )(f)). 

3. A Plan Commissioner asked if they will be back to develop the landscaping and parking spaces on a future site 
plan. Chan, Village Planner, clarified in his memo, which stated that the Village will include funds for an additional 
11 parking spaces; after speaking with Village senior staff, it was made aware that approximately 5 buildings at the 
Village owned 52 acre KLM Park are not being used, and thus, the parking will need to be recalculated. It was noted 
that since this is zoned OS Open Space, the Village is sensitive to not paving additional parking spaces if it is not 
necessary. A comprehensive parking calculation was done many years ago and should consider the 5 buildings not 
utilized. The project architect, Vincenzo Caprio, stated at the public meeting that the current parking lot is 
underutilized and in his opinion, paving for additional parking spaces would be a waste of money. A few Plan 
Commissioners agreed, citing that the time of use are also not aligned to be used simultaneously (11-604(F)(1 )( j)). 

4. In general, the Plan Commission commented that the proposed request looks good and would be an upgrade to the 
facility, and believes it would not cause an issue with the neighbors since the development would be north and 
away from the residential area (11-604(F)(1 )(f)). 

5. There were no public comments at the Plan Commission public meeting on February 12, 2020 (11-604(E)). 

II. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed exterior appearance and site plan as submitted, the 
Village of Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of six (6) "Ayes,", and three (3) "Absent," recommends that the 
President and Board of Trustees approve the application as submitted. 

THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By: -VJP+"'+'~~l+"'-'-VJ-\+'--'J. ~~~"'-'-'-'WIV\iJ~, Chairman 

Dated this [\1\1day of MA@8 '2020. 
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AGENDA SECTION: Second Reading - ZPS 

AGENDA ITEM# ~b 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Community Development 

SUBJECT: 
Consideration of a Request for Variation-5500 S. Grant Street 
(Hinsdale Central) 

MEETING DATE: 

FROM: 

March 16, 2020 

Robert McGinnis, Director of Community DevelopmenUBuilding 
Commissioner 

Recommended Motion 
Approve an Ordinance Approving Variations Relative to the Replacement and/or Construction 
of New Improvements for Hinsdale Central High School at 5500 S. Grant Street, Hinsdale, 
Illinois - Hinsdale Township High School District 86 - Case Number V-05-19 

Background 
In this application for variation, the applicant requests relief from; 

1. 9-104(J)(1)(e)(xi) To allow a reduction in required parking from 882 to 583 spaces. It 
should be noted that the existing count is 560 and that the plan is to increase the count 
as part of the project to 583. 

2. 9-104(H)(2)(g&i); 9-105(c)(2); 9-107(A)(1&2); 9-107(B) To waive landscape island, 10' 
open space buffer, and loading space screening requirements in order to maximize the 
number of parking spaces. 

3. 9-12-3(E) To waive the 8' height limitation on fences for the construction of safety 
netting at the baseball field on the northeast corner of Grant and 5?1h. 

4. 9-12-3(D&E); 7-310 To waive the 8' height limitation on fences and the setback 
requirements in order to replace the existing chain link tennis court fencing, track 
fencing, baseball field backstop, and miscellaneous athletic field fencing. 

5. 7-310; 9-107(H)(2) To waive the building setback, building height, and screening 
requirements for the construction of 2 soccer field team shelters and a press box. 

This relief is being requested in order to replace and/or construct new improvements as part 
of the capital improvement program for Hinsdale Central High School. The requested 
variations are explained in the attached Application for Variation and summarized on the 
Table of Compliance. 

A copy of the Final Decision for those variation requests approved by the Zoning Board of 
Appeals is attached as well. 

Discussion & Recommendation 
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REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

-- Est. 1873 --

Following a public hearing held on January 15, 2020, the Zoning Board of Appeals of the 
Village of Hinsdale ("ZBA") recommended approval of the Requested Variations on a 
unanimous vote of six (6) in favor and zero (0) opposed, with one (1) member absent. 

Budget Impact 
N/A 

Village Board and/or Committee Action 
At their meeting of March 3, the Village Board agreed to move this item forward for a second 
reading at their next meeting. 

Documents Attached 
1. Draft Ordinance 
2. Approved Findings of Fact and Recommendation 
3. ZBA Application 
4. ZBA Final Decision 
5. Transcript 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

ORDINANCE NO.-----

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING VARIATIONS RELATIVE TO THE REPLACEMENT 
AND/OR CONSTRUCTION OF NEW IMPROVEMENTS FOR HINSDALE CENTRAL 
HIGH SCHOOL AT 5500 S. GRANT STREET, HINSDALE, ILLINOIS - HINSDALE 

TOWNSHIP HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 86 - CASE NUMBER V-05-19 

WHEREAS, the Village of Hinsdale received an application (the "Application") 
from ARGON Associates, Inc. on behalf of Hinsdale Township High School District 86 
(the "Applicanf') for variations relative lei the replacement and/or construction of new 
improvements at Hinsdale Central High School, on property located in the IB 
Institutional Buildings Zoning District at 5500 S. Grant Street (the "Subject Property"); 
and 

WHEREAS, the improvements proposed by the Applicant at this time are Phase 
I of a program of improvements and upgrades to the High School over the next three (3) 
years. The general scope of Phase I improvements includes a natatorium addition, 
buildings and grounds addition, parking lot reconfigurations and modifications due to 
loading dock relocation; associated landscaping, artificial turf replacement, tennis court 
and fencing replacement, running track and fence replacement, separation of storm and 
sanitary utilities due to Flagg Creek Water Reclamation District requirements, chain-link 
baseball field backstop and fence replacement, baseball field sports safety netting 
installation, privacy fencing, soccer field team shelter and press box replacements, 
emergency generator replacement, and various other ADA and health/life safety 
improvements on site (collectively, the "Phase I Improvements"); and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant has requested variations to the following Sections of 
the Zoning Code of the Village of Hinsdale ("Zoning Code") over which the Village 
President and Board of Trustees, upon a recommendation from the Zoning Board of 
Appeals of the Village of Hinsdale ("ZBA") has final authority: 

438354_! 

• A variation from Section 9-104(J)(1 )(e)(xi) of the Zoning Code, to allow a 
reduction in required parking from 882 to 583 spaces (existing parking count 
is 560, so Phase I Improvements will actually increase the count to 583); 

• A variation from Section 9-104(H)(2)(g & i); 9-105(c)(2); 9-107(A)(1&2); 9-
107(8) of the Zoning Code, to provide relief from landscape island, ten (10) 
foot open space buffer, and loading space screening requirements in order to 
maximize the number of parking spaces on the Property; and 

• A variation from Section 9-107(H)(2) of the Zoning Code, to provide relief 
from the building setback requirements for the construction of two (2) soccer 
field team shelters and a press box. 



Collectively, these variation requests are the "Requested Variations;" and 

WHEREAS, in addition to the Requested Variations, additional variations were 
requested over which the Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village has final authority. 
Those additional variations were approved by the Zoning Board of Appeals; and 

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is legally described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Zoning Board of Appeals of 
the Village, and has been processed in accordance with the Zoning Code, as amended; 
and 

WHEREAS, on Wednesday, January 15, 2020, the Zoning Board of Appeals of 
the Village of Hinsdale held a public hearing pursuant to notice given in accordance with 
State law and the Zoning Code, relative to the Requested Variations; and 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, after considering all of the testimony 
and evidence presented at the public hearing, recommended approval of the Requested 
Variations on a unanimous vote of six (6) in favor and zero (0) opposed, with one (1) 
member absent; and · 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals has filed its report of Findings and 
Recommendation regarding the Requested Variations in Case NumberV-05-19 with the 
President and Board of Trustees, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and 
made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale have 
reviewed and duly considered the Findings and Recommendation of the Zoning Board 
of Appeals, and all of the materials, facts, and circumstances related to the Application; 
and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees find that the Application 
satisfies the standards established in Sections 11-503 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code 
governing variations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees 
of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and state of Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this 
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees. 

SECTION 2: Adoption of Findings and Recommendation. The President and 
Board of Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale approve and adopt the findings and 
recommendation of the Zoning Board of Appeals, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
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Exhibit B and made a part hereof, and incorporate such findings and recommendation 
herein by reference as if fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 3: Requested Variations. The President and Board of Trustees, 
acting pursuant to the authority vested in it by the laws of the State of Illinois and 
Subsection 11-503(A) of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, GRANT the following Requested 
Variations as follows: 

• A variation to Section 9-104(J)(1)(e)(xi) of the Zoning Code, to allow a 
reduction in required parking from 882 to 583 spaces (existing parking 
count is 560); 

• to Section 9-104(H)(2)(g & i); 9-105(c)(2); 9-107(A)(1&2); 9-107(8) of the 
Zoning Code, to provide relief from landscape island, ten (10) foot open 
space buffer, and loading space screening requirements; and 

• to Section 9-107(H)(2) of the Zoning Code, to provide relief from the 
building setback requirements for the construction of two (2) soccer field 
team shelters and a press box. 

These Requested Variations are granted for the Subject Property commonly known as 
5500 S. Grant Street, and legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a 
part hereof. 

SECTION 4: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. If any section, 
paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held invalid, the invalidity of 
such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the other provisions 
of this Ordinance, and all ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 
with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

SECTION 5: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from 
and after its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner 
provided by law. 
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PASSED this __ day of ______ 2020. 

AYES: --------------------~ 
NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

APPROVED by me this __ day of ______ 2020 and attested by the 
Village Clerk this same day. 

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President 

ATTEST: 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 
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EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

PARCEL I: LOTS 1 AND 2, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE 
FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PARINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING 
TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 
141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL II: THE EAST 350 FEET OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF 
OF LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL Ill: THE EAST 350 FEET OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF 
OF LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL IV: THE NORTH HALF OF LOT 3 (EXCEPT THE EAST 350 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL V: THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF (EXCEPT THE EAST 350 
FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, 
BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING 
TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 
141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
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PARCEL VI: THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR 
BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 
13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL VII: THE NORTH HALF OF LOT 4, (EXCEPT THE EAST 200 FEET 
THEREOF) IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OFR SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL VIII: LOT 1, IN PENZES RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 
4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR 
BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 
13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL IX: LOT 5, (EXCEPT THE EAST 150 FEET THEREOF), IN PENZES 
RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST ·oF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL X: THE WEST 75 FEET OF THE EAST 150 FEET OF LOT 5, IN PENZES 
RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
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PARCEL XI: THE EAST 75 FEET OF LOT 5, IN PENZES RESUBDIVISION OF THE 
SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, 
IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE 
EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) 
OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRIL 5, 1920AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XII: THE EAST 60 FEET OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE 
EAST 60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE 
FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING 
TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 
141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XIII: THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE 
SOUTH 33 FEET THEREOF, IN DUPAGE COUTNY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XIV: LOTS 11 THROUGH 20, BOTH INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 2, IN 
BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDVISION OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE 
EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) 
OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 5500 South Grant Street, Hinsdale, Illinois 
PINS: 09-13-100-017, 09-13-100-008, 09-13-100-011, 09-13-100-012, 09-13-100-
013, 09-13-100-014, 09-13-100-015 & 09-13-101-027 
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EXHIBIT B 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION 

(ATTACHED) 



FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE 
VILLAGE OF HINSDALE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS TO 

THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

ZONING CASE NO: 

PETITIONER: 

APPLICATION: 

MEETING HELD: 

PROPERTY: 

V-05-19 

ARGON Associates, Inc. on behalf of Hinsdale Township 
High School District 86 

For certain Variations from the Zoning Code of the Village of 
Hinsdale (''Zoning Code") relative to the replacement and/or 
construction of new improvements at Hinsdale Central High 
School, at 5500 S. Grant Street, Hinsdale, Illinois. 

A Public Hearing was held on Wednesday, January 15, 
2020, in Memorial Hall, in the Memorial Building, 19 East 
Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, pursuant to a notice 
published in The Hinsdalean on November 28, 2019. 

The subject property is commonly known as 5500 S .. Grant 
Street, Hins.dale, Illinois (the "Property") and is legally 
described. in Exhibit A attached· hereto ·and ·made a ·part · 
hereof· · ·. · · · · · · 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The Village of Hinsclale has received a request· from 
ARGON Associates, Inc., on behalf of property owner Hinsdale Township High School 
District 86 (the "Applicanf') for certain variations relative to the replacement and/or 
construction of new improvements to the existing building known as Hinsdale Central 
High School located on the Property at 5500 S. Grant Street (the "Application"). The 
improvements proposed at this time are Phase I of a program of improvements and 
upgrades to the High School over the next three (3) years. The general scope of Phase 
I improvements include a natatorium addition, buildings and grounds addition, parking 
lot reconfigurations and mo.difications due to loading dock relocation; associated 
landscaping, artificial turf replacement, tennis court and fencing replacement, running 
track and fence replacement, separation of storm and sanitary utilities due to Flagg 
Creek Water Reclamation District requirements, chain-link baseball field backstop and 
fence replacement, baseball field sports safety netting installation, privacy fencing, 
soccer field team shelter and press box replacements, emergency generator 
replacement, and various other ADA and health/life safety improvements on site 
(collectively, the "Phase I Improvements"), 

This Property is located in the IB Institutional Buildings Zoning District in the Village of 
Hinsdale at the southwest corner of Ogden Avenue and Oak Street 

The Applicant has requested variations to the following Sections of the Village Code 
and Zoning Code of the Village of Hinsdale (''Zoning Code") over which the Village 
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President and Board of Trustees, upon a recommendation from the Zoning Board of 
Appeals of the Village of Hinsdale ("ZBA") has final authority: 

• to Section 9-104(J)(1)(e)(xi) of the Zoning Code, to allow a reduction in required 
parking from 882 to 583 spaces (existing parking count is 560, so Phase I 
Improvements will actually increase the count to 583); 

• to Section 9-104(H)(2)(g & i); 9-105(c)(2); 9-107(A)(1&2); 9-107(B) of the Zoning 
Code, to provide relief from landscape island, ten (10) foot open space buffer, and 
loading space screening requirements in order to maximize the number of parking 
spaces on the Property; and 

• to Section 9-107 (H)(2) of the Zoning Code, to provide relief from the building 
setback requirements for the construction of two (2) soccer field team shelters and 
a press box. 

Collectively, these variation requests shall be referred to herein as the "Requested 
Variations." 

In addition to the Requested Variations, additional variations aver which the Zoning 
Board of Appeals of the Village of Hinsdale ("ZBA") has final authority were considered. 
Those variationswere: 

• to Section 9-12~3(E) ofthe Village Cade, to allow a fence'_higher than the eight(B) 
foot limitation on fences in order to provide for the construction of safety netting at 
the baseball field on the northeast earner of Grant and 57th Street; and 

• to Section 9-12-3(0 & E) of the Village Code anci Section 7-310 of the Zoning 
Code, to allow a fence higher than the eight (8) foot height limitation on fences and 
to allow a location fOr such fences where not otherwise allowed by the setback 
requirements in order to provide for the like-kind replacement of the existing chain 
link tennis court fencing, track fencing, baseball field l:)ackstop and miscellaneous 
athletic field fencing; and 

• ta Section 7-310 of the Zoning Cade· to allow building height anci screening 
requirements in excess of those allowed by the Zoning Code for the construction of 
two (2) soccer field team shelters and a press box 

Together, these are the "Additional Variations" and, collectively with the Requested 
Variations, the "Variations". The final decision of the ZBA on the Additional Variations is 
detailed in a separate Final Decision issued by the ZBA. The collective Variations are all 
described in more detail in the Application, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit B and made a part hereof. 

On January 151h, 2020, following the conclusion of the public hearing on this matter, the 
ZBA indicated its approval of the Requested Variations on a vote of six (6) in favor, zero 
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(0) opposed, and one (1) absent, and directed the preparation of this Findings and 
Recommendation. 

PUBLIC HEARING: At the combined public hearing on the Variations, Project Architect 
Nick Graal testified as the representative of the Applicant on the Variations. 

The representative of Applicant reviewed the Variations for the benefit of the ZBA. and 
how, in the opinion of the Applicant, the standards for Variations had been met. 

In terms of the variation for off-street parking and the off-street parking lot and loading 
zone landscape and screening requirement, the representative of Applicant noted that the 
Property has been an existing public high school since 1948. The existing parking facilities 
do not currently have landscape screening or landscape islands, and the cummt parking 
lot count does not meet the count requirements. The high school has expanded 
throughout the years as population and academic needs have grown and changed, but 
additional land acquisitions are limited and cost prohibitive due to land value in the area. 
They are proposing an expansion of the southeast parking lot, and proposing alleviation of 
the landscape and screening requirements in order to maximize the amount of parking 
provided onsite. Current parking demands outweigh available parking. There is enough 
parking for staff, but there is µ high request for student;parking, despite busing being 
available throughout the.District. . , 

None of the Phase I Improvements expand th~ student population, 'but are instead 
addressing current needs of tlie facility. They are attempting to increase parking to 
accommodate demand, bwt cannot provide an increase if required to meet landscape 
island and other requirements. Meeting the required parking requirements in the Zoning 
Code would require removal of the junior varsity baseball field, and even then, the Code 
requirements could not be met. If. current facilities are sacrificed to meet parkipg 
requirements, the High School will not be able fo provide the same level of service to the 
community as it does today. 

.. 
A parking garage was not part of the referendum that is funding the Phase I 
Improvements; and a parking garage may· have a severe detrimental impact on 
surrounding 'properties. It was noted that the Variations may decrease congestion in the 
public streets due to the added parking spaces. 

The representative of the Applicant then addressed the Variations for tennis court fencing, 
track fencing, baseball field backstop and fencing and miscellaneous athletic field fencing. 
All fields are currently fenced; the Variations address replacement of existing fencing. The 
Applicant also proposes a Variation to allow protective.netting in the form of safety sports 
netting, at the Junior Varsity Baseball Field, to address some community concerns 
regarding foul balls and home runs. The position of the Junior Varsity Baseball Field on the 
lot relative to the adjacent properties to the east and south creates a unique physical 
condition. The safety netting would prevent foul balls from going off-site, and home runs 
from striking vehicles in the parking lot The Phase I Improvements will increase the safety 

437000_1 3 



J 

of the area. Fencing materials other than chain-link would prevent viewing the sports 
activities taking place. 

While the Applicant is seeking a Variation for landscape screening, it does intend to 
provide landscaping to the extent feasible at the perimeter of the parking lot expansion, 
including about seventeen (17) six-foot (6') tall Arborvitaes. 

The Variation for the soccer field accessory structures was also addressed. The existing 
physical layout of the site presents design challenges, as does the existing water tower 
public utifity on-site. Grading issues prevent shifting the soccer field any further east. The 
only practical solution is to replace the player shelters and press box in their current 
locations within the setback. Better quality materials matching the aesthetic of the softball 
field are proposed. The structures are screened by existing, very tall evergreen trees and 
grading on the east end portion of the site. A height Variation is sought to allow the press 
box to be nineteen (19) feet tall, which; according to the. representative of ihe Applicant, is 
a pretty standard height for site lines from a press box. · 

During his presentation, the representative of the Applicant answered various questions 
posed by the members of the ZBA. 

John Ochoa of 5620 S. Washington was present to e)l'.press general suppo"rt for the 
·Variations:. His home abuts the east side of the teacher's parking lot. He stated t.hat the. · 
Variations are mo·re appealing than the alte'matiyes necessary to meet Code. · · 

There being no further questions or members of the public wishing to speak on the 
application, the portion of the Public Hearing related to the Requested Variations was 
closed. 

Members discussed the Requested Variations and agreed that the standards for 
variations set forth in 11-503(F) of the Hinsdale Zoning Code had been met. Motions to 
approve the Requested Variations were made by Member Alesia and seconded by 
Member Engel. 

AYES:. 

NAYS: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

Members Moberly, Murphy,Podliska, Alesia, Engel, 
Chairman Neiman 

None 

None 

Member Giltner 

FINDINGS: The following are the Findings of the ZBA relative to the Requested 
Variations: 
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1. General Standard: Carrying out the strict letter of the provisions of the Zoning Code 
would create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty, based on satisfaction of the 
standards below: 

2. Unique Physical Condition: The Subject Property is exceptional as compared to 
other lots subject to the same provision by reason of a unique physical condition, 
including presence of an existing use, structure, or sign, whether conforming or 
nonconforming; irregular or substandard shape or size; exceptional topographical 
features; or other extraordinary physical conditions peculiar to and inherent in the 
subject property that amount to more than a mere inconvenience to the owner and that 
relate to or at1se out of the lot rather than the personal situation of the current owner of 
the lot. The Property is landlocked and there are limited opportunities for expansion. All 
members agree that the long,existing precode school structure on the Property, along 
with the physical layout of the structures, athletic fields, uses and parking· on the 
Property, proximity of the use to the adjacent neighbors, safety concerns, and 
landlocked nature of the Property, are driving the request for the Requested Variations 
and create a unique physical condition. The Requested Variations in some cases 
concern like-kind replacements of existing fences and other structures. 

3. Not Self-Created: The unique physical condition is not the result of any action or 
inaction of the owner, or of the owner's predecessors in title and known to the owner 
pri.or to· acguisition of the subject property, arid existed· at the time of the enactment of · 

· the provisions from which a variation' is sought or was created by .natural forces or wa.S 
the result-of goi;etnmehtal action, other thari the adoption of the Zoning Code, for which · 
no compensation was paid. The need for the Requested Variations is not self-created, 
and is in part driven by the existing .physical conditions present on the Property, and the 
landlocked nature of the Property. The ZBA finds this standard to have been met. 

4. Denied Substantial Rights: The carrying out of the strict letter of the provisions from 
which a variation is sought would deprive the owner of the subject property of 
substantial rights "commonly enjoyed by owners of other lots subject to the same 
provision. In this case, requiring .the Applicant to conform to the provisions of the Zoning 
Code for which relief is sought would cause the loss of various on-site amenities to the 
community provided by Applicant, and would negatively impact both the neighbors and 
the Applicant's ability to serve the community. The proposed parking expansion will 
actually decrease the extent of an existing non-conformity in the same manner as other 
comparable schools. 

5. Not Merely Special Privilege: The alleged hardship or difficulty is not merely the 
inability of the owner or occupant to enjoy some special privilege or additional right not 
available to owners or occupants of other lots subject to the same provision, nor merely 
an inability lo make more money from the use of the subject property; provided, 
however, that where the standards herein set out exist, the existence of an economic 
hardship shall not be a prerequisite to the grant of an authorized variation. The 
Variations are not sought to make more money from use of the Property, but are instead 
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sought in order to make necessary improvements to the Property without negatively 
impacting site conditions and adjacent neighbors. 

6. Code And Plan Purposes: The variation would not result in a use or development of 
the subject property that would not be in harmony with the general and specific 
purposes for which the Zoning Code and the provision from which a variation is sought 
were enacted or the general purpose and intent of the official comprehensive plan. The 
Variations are consistent with the existing use. The ZBA found this standard to ·have 
been met. 

7. Essential Character Of The Area: The variation would not result in a use or 
development on the subject property that: 

(a) would be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to the 
enjoyment, use, development, or value of property or improvements permitted in the 
vicinity; or (b) would materially impair an adequate supply of light and air to the 
properties and improvements in the vicinity; or (c) would substantially· increase 
congestion in the public streets due to traffic or parking; or (d) would unduly increase 
the danger of flood or fire; or (e) would unduly tax pub°lic utilities and facilities in the 
area; or (f) would endanger the public health or safety. 

The granting of the Requested Varia_tions will allow needed improvements to occur at ; 
the Property, Without negatively impacting .existing site amenities or adjacent neighbors. 
The building, fields, fencing. and other structures already exist, and the utilities are 
already in place. The Requested Variations will not endanger the public health or safety. · 

8. No Other Remedy: There is no means other than the requested variations by which 
the alleged hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to · 
permit a reasonable use of the subject property. Limited options exist at this landlocked 
site. The ZBA finds this standard to have been met. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Based on the Findings set forth above, the ZBA, by a vote of six (6) in favor, zero 
(0) opposed and one (1) absent, recommends to the President and Board of 
Trustees that the following Requested Variations, as described in the Application, 
a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof, relative to 
construction of the Phase I Improvements located in the IB Institutional Building 
Zoning District at 5500 S. Grant Street, be GRANTED: 

• to Section 9-104(J)(1)(e)(xi) of the Zoning Code, to allow a reduction in 
required parking from 882 to 583 spaces (existing parking count is 560, so 
Phase I Improvements will actually increase the count to 583); 
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• to Section 9-104(H)(2)(g & i); 9-105(c)(2); 9-107(A)(1&2); 9-107(8) of the Zoning 
Code, to eliminate the landscape Island, ten (10) foot open space buffer and 
screening requirements in the existing/modified parking lot west of Grant 
Street, existing parking lot east of Grant Street and the new parking lot 
extension east of Grant Street, and eliminate the loading space screening 
requirements, all in order to maximize the number of parking spaces on the 
Property; and 

• to Section 9-107(H)(2) of the Zoning Code, to provide relief from the building 
setback requirements for the construction of two (2) soccer field team 
shelters and a press box in a comer yard setback. 
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EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

PARCEL I: LOTS 1 AND 2, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE 
FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE . 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PARINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN 
DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL II: THE EAST 350 FEET OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF OF 
LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 
1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, JN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL Ill: THE EAST 350 FEET OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF OF 
. LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 

SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST · 

.·QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 
1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL IV: THE NORTH HALF OF LOT 3 (EXCEPT THE EAST 350 FEET THEREOF), 
IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION 
OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THEO NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE 
EASTHALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF 
SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL. 
MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL V: THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF (EXCEPT THE EAST 350 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 
1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL VI: THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS 
HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND 
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THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN 
DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL VII: THE NORTH HALF OF LOT 4, (EXCEPT THE EAST 200 FEET THEREOF) 
IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION 
OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE 
EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) 
OFR SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, . 
1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL VIII: LOT 1, IN PENZES RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 
(EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS 
HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF. THE NORTHWEST· QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRILS, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN 

··.· DUPAGE COUNTY, ILUNOIS · . . . , .... 
; '. 

-PARCEL IX: LOT 5, (EXCEPT THE EAST . 150 FEET THEREOF), IN PENZES 
RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 
1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILUNOIS 

PARCEL X: THE WEST 75 FEET OF THE EAST 150 FEET OF LOT 5, IN PENZES 
RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET · 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 
1920AS DOCUMENT N0.141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XI: THE EAST 75 FEET OF LOT 5, IN PENZES RESUBDIVISION OF THE 
SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN 
BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST 
HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF 
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SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XII: THE EAST 60 FEET OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE 
EAST 60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE 
FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN 
DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XIII: THE EAST HALF OF THE . NORTHWEST - QUARTER OF THE 
-NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST 
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE SOUTH 33 
FEET THEREOF, IN DU PAGE COUTNY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XIV: LOTS _11 THROUGH 20, BOTH INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 2, IN BRANIGAR 
BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST .QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF. SECTION -13, 
TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD, PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; 

·ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRI( 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT 
N0.141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILUNOIS 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 5500 South Grant Street, Hinsdale, Illinois 
PINS: 09-13-100-017, 09-13-100-008; 09-13-t00-011, 09-13-100-012, 09-13-100-013, 
09-13-100-014, 09-13-100-015 & 09-13-101-027 
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EXHIBITS 

APPLICATION FOR VARIATIONS 
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Zoning Calendar No. I/-() S"- I ? 

VILLAGE OF ffiNSDALE 

APPLICATION FOR VARIATION 

ARGON Associates, Inc 
NAME OF APPLICANT(S): Nicholas Graal, Project Architect 

Hinsdale Central High School· 
ADDRESS OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: 5500 South Grant Street 

TELEPHONE NUIVIBER(S):_6_30_-4_9_5_-1_9o_o_._:~------~,..--~~ 

If Applicant is not property owner, Applicant's relationship to property owner. 

District Architect 

DA TE OF APPLICATION: November 11, 2019 
~~~~~~~~~~~---,-~ 
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SECTION I 

Please complete the following: 
Hinsdale Township 

L Owner. Name, address, and telephone number ofowner: High School District 86 

5500 South Grant Street, Hinsdale, llli~ois 60521, 630-655-61 OD 

2. Trustee Disclosure. In the case of a land trust the name, address, and telephone number of 

all trustees and beneficiaries of the trust: _N_o_t_A~P~P_li_c_a_bl_e __________ ~ 

3. Applicant. Name, address, and telephone number of applicant, if different from owner, and 

app!foallt's interest in the subject property:----~-------~--­

ARGON Ai;sociat~s; Inc., 2050 S. Finely Road, Suite.40, Lombard, lllin,ois 60148 
630-495-1900, District Ar.chltect · . · .· , · . · · .•· ·.·. . · 

4. 

s. 

·-·- - ..... ,. ... ,. ... -·-

&'ubjectPropertv. Address and legal d~scription ·~fthe subjectpropen;ii: (Use separate sheet . ' - . - ,. 

for legal descriptfon if necessary.) _S_e_e_A_t_ta_c_h_m_e_n_t_'A_' -----------

·consultants. Name and address of each professional consultant -advisfog applicant with 
respect to tliis.application: · 

H'odges, Lcizzi,,Eiser,ihammer; Rodick & l<ohn_ LLP- _ 
a. Aitomey; · 3030 Salt Creek-lane, Suite 2(]2, Arlington-Heights, fllino!s 60005 

Eriksson Engineering Assi;iciates, LTD. 
b. Engineer: 145 Commerce Drive, Suite A, Grayslake, Illinois 60030 

Owner's· Representatlv!!:- Gotter Consultlng 
c. 745 McClintock Drive. Sulle 130: Burr Ridge. Illinois 60527 

construction Manager: Pepper Conslr.uct!on 
d. 411 Lake Zurich Road Barrington, IUlno!s 60010 
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6. Village Personnel. Name and address of any officer or employee of the Village with an 

interest in the Owner, the Applicant, or the Subject Property, and the nature and extent of 

that interest: 

7. 

3, 

9. 

Steve Cashman, Hinsdale IL, Chair of Village of Hinsdale Plan Commission, 
._ School District 86 Facilities Committee Member 

b.~~~~~~~~~'--~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Neighboring Owners. Snbmitwith this application a list showing the name and address 
·of each owner of (1) property within 250 lineal feet in all directions from the subject 
property; and (2) property located on the same frontage or frontages as the front lot 
line or corner side lot line of the subject pr.ope1·ty or on a frontage directly opposite any 
such frontage or on a frontage immediately adjoining or across an alley.from any such 

frontage. See Attachment 'B' 

After the Village has prepared the legal notice, the applicant/agent must mail by 
certified mail, "return receipt requested" to each property owne1·/ occupant. The 
applicant/agent must then fill out, sign, and notarize the "Certification· of Proper 

. ·Notice" fonn, ret~rn'llig that form and all certified mail receipts .to the vm~g~· 

S~rvev. Submit with this ~pplication a recent snrv.ey, certifledby a registered !and surveyor, 
showing existing lot lines and dimensions, a~ well as all easements; all public and private 
rights-of-way, and 'all streets across and adjacent to the Subject Property. 
Survey attached · . . 
Existing Zmring. Submit with tl1is application a description or graphic representation of the 
existing zoning classification, use, and development of the Subject Property, and the adjacent 
area for at least 250 feet in all directions from the Subject Property. 
Site Plan attached ·and see attachment 'F' · 

10. Conf01mi1;y. Submit with this application a statement conceming the conformity or lack of 
confonnity of the apprnval being requested to the Village Official Compr.ehensive Plan and 
the Official Map. Where .the approval being requested does not conform to the Official 
Comprehensive Plan or the Official Map, the stat.ement should set forth the reasons 
justifying the approva.1 despite such lack of conformity. 
See Attachmenl 'C' 

l L Zoning Standards. Submit with this application a statement specifically addressing the 
rnannerin which it is proposed to satisfy each standard that the Zoning Ordinance establishes 
as a condition of, or in connection with, the approval being sought. 
See Attachment 'C' 

12. Successive Application. In the case of any application being filed Jess than two years after 
the denial of an application seeking essentially the same relief, submit with this application a 
statement as required by Sections 11-501 and 11-601 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code. 

See Attachment 'C' 
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SECTION II 

When applying for a variation from the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, you must provide the 
data and infmmation required above, and in addition, the following: 

I. Title. Evi4ence of title or other interest you have in the Subject Project, date of acquisition 
of such interest, and the specifio nature of such interest. 
See Attachment 'D' 

2. Ordinance Provision. The specific provisions of the Zoning Ordinance from which a 
vatjatlon is sOught: 

See Attachment 'E' 

3. Variation Sought.· The precise variation being sou~ht, the purpose therefor, and the specific 
feature ·at fe~tures of the proposed use, construction, or development that require a variation;. 
(Attach separate sh~et if additional space i~ needed,). · 

See Attachment 'E' 

4. Minimum Varjation.Astatement of the minimum variation of the provisions ofthe'Zoning 
Ordinance that would be necessaiy to pomiit the proposed nse, construction, ot development: 
(Attach separate sheet if additional space is needed.) 

See Attachment 'E' 

5. Standards for Variation. A statement of the characteristics of Subject Property that prevent 
compliance with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance and the specific facts you believe 
suppoit the grant of the required variation. In addition to your general explanation, you must 
specifically address the following requirements for the grant of a variation: 
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(a} Unique Physical Condition. The Subject Property is exceptional as compared to 
other lots subject to the same provision by reason of a m1ique physical condition, 
including presence of an existing use, structure of sign, whether confonning or 
nonconforming; irregular or substandard shape or size; exceptional topographical 
features; or other extraordinary physical conditions peculiar to and inherent in the 
Subject Property that amount to more than a mere inconvenience to the owner and 
that relate to or arise out of the lot rather than the personal situation ofthe current lot 
owner. 

(b) 

(c) 

{d) ' 

(e} 

Not Self-Created. The aforesaid unique physical condition is not the result of any 
action or inaction of the owner, or of the owner's predecessors io title and knownto 
the owner prior to acquisition of the Subj.eel Property, and exisied at the time ofthe 
enactment of the provisions from which a variation is sought or was created by 
nstural forces or was the result of goverrnnental action, other than the adoption of 
this Code, for which no compensation was paid. 

Denied Substantial Rights. The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision from 
which a variation is sought would deprive the owner of the Subject Property Of 
substantial rights commonly enjoyed by owners of other lots subjec.t to the same 
provision, 

Not Merely Suecial P1ivilege. The alleged hardship cir difficulty is not merely the 
inability of the owneror occupant to enjoy soine special.privilege or additional right 
not available to owners or occupants ofother lots subjectto the same provision, nor 
merely an inability to make mere mcmey from the use of tlie subject propeity; 
provided, however, that where the standards herein set out exisi, the existence of an 
economic hardship shall not be a prerequisite to the grant of an authorized variation. 

Code and Plan Purposes. The variation would not result in a use or development of 
the Subject Property that would not be in harmony .with the general and specific 
putposes for.which this Code and .. the provision from which a variation is sought 
were enacted or the general purpose and intent ofthe Official Comprehensive Plan. 

(f} Essential Character of the Area. The variation would not "result in a use or 
development of the Subject Property that: 

(1) Would be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious 
to the enjoyment, use development, or value of property of improvements 
permitted in the vicinity; or 

(2} Would materiallyhnpair an adequate 5upply oflight and air to the properties 
and improvements in the vicinity; or 

(3) Would substantially increase congestion in the public streets due to traffic or 
parking; or 
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(4) Would unduly increase the danger of flood or fire; or 

(5) Would unduly tax public utilities and facilities in the area; or 

(6) Would endanger the public health or safety. 

(g) No Other Remedy. There is no means other than the requested variation by which 
the alleged hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to 
permit.a reasonable use of the Subject Project. 
(Attach separate sheet if additional space is needed.) 

See Attachment 'E' 

stctioN lit . 

.· ln addition to the daia~nd i_nformation required pursuant to any applicati~n as herein set fo11h, eve1y 
Applicant shall submit such other and additional data, infom1"tion, or documentation as the Village 
Manager or any Board of Commission before. which its application is pending may deem necessary 
or appropriate to a full and proper consideration and disposition of the pa11icular application. 

1. A copy of preliminary architectural and/or surveyor pla11s showing the floor plaris, exterior 
elevations, ai,d site plan Jteeds to be submitted with each copy of the zoning petitions for the 
improvements. 
Plans Attached. 

2. ·The architect or land surveyor needs to provide zoning information concerning the existing 
zoning; for example, building coverage, distance to pi·operty lines, and floor area ratio 
calcuiations and data on th.e plans or" supplemental docµments for the proposed 
improvements. 

See Attachment 'F' and Site Plan 
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SECTION IV 

l. Annllcalian:Fee and Escrow. Eveiy application must be acco.mpanied by a non-refundable 
application fee of $250.00 plus an additional $600.00 initial escrow amount. The applicant 
must also pay the costs of the court reporter's transcription fees au.d legal notices for the 
variation request.· A separate invoice will be sent if these expenses are not covered by the 
escrow that was paid with the original application fees. 

2. MditielialE~lirow Requests. Should the Village Manager at any time determine that the 
escrow account established in .connection with any application is, or is likely to become, 
insufficient to pay the actual costs of processing.such application, the Village Manager shall 
inform the Applicant of that fact and demand an ad.ditia·nal deposit in an amount deemed by . 

. him to be sufficient to cover foreseeable additional costs. Unless imd m1til such additional 
amount is deposited by the Applicant, the VillageManagermay directthatprocessingofthe 
application shall be suspended or tenninated. 

. " 

.Establishment of Lien, The owner of the Subject Property, and if different, the Applicant, 
are jointly and severiilly liable for the payment of the application fee. By signing the 
•.pplicant, the 0W11er has agreed to pay said foe; and to consent.to the filing and foreclosure 
of a lien against the Subject Property fOrthe fee plus costs ofcol!ection, if the account.isnot 
settled within 30 days ,Uter \he malling of a demand for paymeiit. · · 

SEC1IONV 

The owner states that he/she consents to the filing of this application and that all information 
contained herein is true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge. 

Name of Owner: 

Signature of Owner: · 

Name of Applicant 

Signat1.1re of Appl\canc: 

Date: 

-:fQ,MtA'/ °P(1 ~£5. \ ~!\~~\::-. 

,j-;.fWil T W;..,, 
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Hinsdale Township High School District 86 

Hinsdale Central High School 

ATTACHMENT A 

5500 S. Grant Street, Hinsdale, Illinois 60521 

PARCELi: 

LOTS 1 AN02, IN BLOCK7, IN B[!ANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OFTHE 
. SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEFQUARTER (EXCEPTTHE EAST HALF OFTHE NORTHWEST 

QUARTER OF THE NORTH.WEST QUART.ER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF 
THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RE(ORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS 
DOCUMENT N0.141390, IN OUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PARCEL II: 

THE EAST 35Q FEET OF}HEN~RTl:t HALFOFT_H~ NORTH _HALF.OF~OT 31JN aJ,QCK. 7, [N B_RA.f'!]GAB 
BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 5UBIJIVISIDN PF THE 50.UTH.WEST QUARTER AND THE· 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF.OF THE NORTHWEST QUf\RTER O~THENORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13,'TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 ~AST OFTHETHIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLATTHEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT Nb.141390; IN OUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PARCEL Ill: 

THHAST350 FEET OF THE SOUTH HALF bFTHE NORTH HALF OF LOT 3, IN. BLOCK 7, IN BRANiGf\R 
BRQTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBIJIVISION OFTHE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEH QUARTER.OF THENORTH.WEST 
QUARTER) Of SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 

ACCORDIN_G TQ.Tf!.E pLAlJHEl\];QF_~];<;.OR!ll;P_A.PRlk.5, lS~o AS DPCIJMENT ND. 14.139!1,IN.DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILUNOIS. 



PARCEL IV: 

THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF OF LOT 3 (EXCEPTTHE EAST 350 FEET THEREOF), JN BLOCK 7, IN 
BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND TliE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OFTHE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLATTHEREDF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN OUPAGE 
·COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PARCELV: 

THE.SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF (EXCEPTTHE EAST 3SO FEETTHJ;REOF) OF LOT3, IN BLOCK 7, IN 
BRANIGAR BR OT.HERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWIB QUARTER OF THE NORTKWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRILS, 1920 AS DOCUMENT Nd.141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS. '-· 

PARCEL VI: 

THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPTTHE EAST HALF 
OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13,'TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, 
RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRlk S, 1920 AS DOCUMENT N0.141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PARCEL Viii 

THE NORTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 200 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS 
HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OFTHE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPTTHE EAST HALF DFTHE NORTHWEST QUARTER Of THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF 
SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING 
TO THE PLArTHEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT ND.141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS. 



PARCEL VIII: 

LOT 1, IN PENZES RES!JBOIVISJON Of THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPTTHE EAST 60 FEET THERE:Of ), 

IN BLOCK 7, JN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER ANO THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) Of SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OFTHHHIRD 

PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, A~CORDING TO THE PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION RECORDED APRIL 16, 1946 AS 

DOCUMENT NO. 495827, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, IUINOIS. 

PARCELIX: 

LOT 5 (EXCEPTTHE EAST 150 FEETTHEREOF), IN·PENZES RESUBDIVISION OFTHE·SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 
(EXCEPTTHE EAST 60 FEETTHEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 

SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEpT THE· EAST HALF 
OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, 
RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, /\CCOROING TO THE PLAT OF RESUBDIVISIQN 
. RECORDEO APRIL 16; 1946 AS DOCUMENT NO. 495827, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILUNOIS. . 

PARCELX!. 

THE WEST 75 FEET OF THE EAST 150 FEET OF LOT 5, IN PENZES. RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF 
LOT 4 (EXCEPTTHE EAST.60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, 
BEING A SUBDIVISION OFTHE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPTTHE 
EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) Of SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 

38 NORTH, RANGE :tl EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF 
RESUBDIVISJON RECORDED APRIL 16, 1946 AS DOCUMENT NO. 495827.-IN OUPAGE COUNTY, ILUNOIS. 

PARCEL XI: 

THE EAST 75 FEET OF LOT 5, IN PENZES RESUBDIVISION OFTHE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 

60 FEETTHEREDF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF 
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPTTHE EAST HALF Of THE 

NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 
11 EAST OF THETHIRO PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION RECORDED 
APRIL 16, 1946 AS DOCUMENT NO. 495827, IN DUPAGE·COUNTY, ILllNOIS. 



PARCEL XII: 

THE EAST 60 FEET Of THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4, IN BLOCK7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE 
FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEP.T 
THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, 
TOWNSHIP 3g NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PARCEL XIII: 

THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE. NORTHWEST QUARTER Of SECTION 13, 
TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF TH ETH I RD PRINCIPAL MERllJIAN, EXCEPTING THEREFROM 
THE SOUTH 33 FEET THEREOF, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PARCEL XIV: 

LOTS 11 THROUGH 20, BOTH INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 2, IN BRANIGl\R BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING 
A SUBDIV.1.SION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER[EXCEPTTHE EAST HALF 
OFTHE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, 
RANGE 11. EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRILS, 1920 AS DOCUMENT ND. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 
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ATTACHMENT C 

Section I 

9. Existing Zoning: 
Subject Property is Zoned 18 and Is surrounded by the following zoning districts. 

a, North of Subject Property: R-2 to the Northeast and R-4 to the Northwest. 
b. East of Subject Property: R-3. 
c. South of Subject Property: R-3 to the Southeast and Southwest, R-5 to the South. 
d. West of Subject Property: R-6 and unincorporated DuPage County. 
e. See attached graphic representation (AACON). 

10. Conformity: 
The Subject Property ls currently zoned IB-lnstituticn Bullding District, of \Vhlch, buildings owned 
by a public body Is a permitted use. The Subject Property is cu_rrently in conformity with Vfllage 
Compr'ehensive plan ahd the.Official Map zoned use and will continue to be in conformity ifth.e 
approval requested is granted. 

U. Zoning Standards: 
on April 2, 2019, the voters of District 86 approved a bond proposition in the amount of $139.8 
million ttiat will snable the District. to make critical Improvements and upgrades to the facilities 
at ·Hinstjale Central High School over t~e next tliree years. Thls. application is specifically for 
Phas:e l of these improvements only. Under separate cover. the District will submit applitations 
to the. V(llag~ of Hii:1sdale concernln_g the.future_ ah~ses. Work in future phases has been 
g~nerally shown on the site plans subtiiit_ted herewith for informcitronal-purposes ·onlv, 

The general scope of Phase I work at Hinsdale Central High School for which th~ District is 
seeking variation Is as fdllciws: a natatorium addition; buildi~gs and grounds additicin; parking 
lot reconfigurations and modifications due .to loading dock relocation; associate.d landscaping; 
artlficial turf r~piacement; tennis court and fencing replacement; running track and fen_c~ 
replacement; separatio~ of storm and sanitary utilities due to Flagg Creek Water Redaniation 

· District requirements; chain-link baseball field backstop and fence replacement, baseball field 
sports safety netting installatlo:n; privacy fencing; soccer fie Id team shelter and press box 
replacements, emergency generator replacement, an.d various_ other ADA and health/life.s<ifety 
improv~ments on-Site . 

. Phaser. con~r.uction ls tentatively scheduled to begin in the spring of 2020. Loter phases are 
tentaiiVely scheduled to begin 1n the spring of _2021. 

The following Zoning Drdinance standards will be followed for the 16-lnstitutlonal Building 
District {Sec. 7-302): 
(Sec. 7-310) 
Minimum Lot Area: 350,000 SF, Width 200 FT x DEPTH 250 FT 

Lot Area West of Grant Street: 1,501,284 SF 
Lot Area East of Grant Street: 374,657 Sf 



Maximum floor Area Ratio: .SO {750,642 SF west af Grant Street) allowed. 

Maximum Height: 40'-0", increase remote from single family districts 11-0" fpr every S'wO" aver a 
251-0" setback for a maximum of lO'wO". Therefore, mal<imurn height is SO'wO' when 7S'-O" or 
more from single famHy districts. 

Proposed poof addition is 48'-0" (more than 75' from single family) 

Setbacks: Front & Corner Yards: 35', Other yards: 25' 

Proposed setbacks of additions are in excess of the requirements.. 

[Title 9, Chapter 12 Sec_ 9·12-3) 

Fences 

{Sec. 7~310, E, 2) 

AccesSory Structure height Limitatfon: 15' from grade. 

(Sec. 9-101, D, l) 

~ccessory Storage Str~cture will not e}lceed 10% of either the fiaor area.or the volume of the 
: .principal structure-. 

· _(Sec ... 9.,104) _ :. ... .. • ·-
Off Street ·Parking Requirements ... 

(Sec. 9-104, I, 6) 

Exemption for lnstltutlonal Uses, stall dimensions reduced by one-half foot In width (typical stall 
dimensions In new parkirgJots is 8'-6"(W)x 18'-0"(L). 

(Sec. 9-105) . 
Off Str~et. loadh1g Requirements. 

(Sec. 9-106) 
Signs , 

(sec. 9-107) 

Buffers and Landscaping 

(Sec. 9-107, G) 

New mechanlc;:il rooftop equipment will be fully screened. 

See Zoning Code Matrix on the Site Plan sheet for further Information. 

i2. Successive Application: 

To the best of the applicant's knowledge there has been no prior application seeking essentially 
the same relief contained herewith. 
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File No: 2977574 

COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

Issued By 

FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

NOTICE 

IMPORTANT-READ CAREFULLY: THIS COMMITMENT IS AN OFFER TO ISSUE ONE OR MORE IDLE INSURANCE 
POllCIES. ALL CLAIMS OR REMEDIES SOUGHT AGAINST THE COMPANY INVOLVING THE CONTENT OF THIS 
COMMITMENT OR THE POUCY MUST BE BASED SOLELY IN CONTRACT. 

THIS COMMITMENT IS. NOT AN ABSTRACT OF TITLE, REPORT OF THE CONDITION OF TITLE, LEGAL OPINION, 
OPINION OF TITLE, OR OTHER REPRESENTATION OF THE STATUS OF TITLE. THE PROCEDURES USED BYTHE. 
COMPANY TO DETERMINE lNSURABILITY OF THE TffiE, INCLUDING ANY SEARCH AND EXAMINATION, ARE 
PROPRIETARY TO liiE COMPANY, WERE PERFORMED SOlRY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE COMPANY, AND CREATE NO 
EXTRACONTAACTUAL LIABILITY TO ANY PERSON, INCLUDING A PROPOSED INSURED. 

JHE COMPANY'S OBLIGATION UNDER THIS COMMITMENT JS TO ISSUE A POLICY TO A PROPOSED INSURED 
IDENTIAED JN SCHEDULE A JN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF THIS COMMITMENT. THE 
COMPANY HAS NO LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION INVOL VlNG THE CONTENT OF THIS COMMITMENT TO ANY OTHER 
PERSON. 

COMMITMENT TO ISSUE POLICY 

Subject to the Notice;. Sch~dule B, Part f-Requirements; Schedule B, Partn-Exceptions; and the. Co,;,rhitment Conditions, . 
FirstAmstican Tit/s Insurance Company, a Nebraska Corporation (the "Company"), commits fo issue the Policy 

.according to the terms and provisions of this Commitment_ This Commitment is effective as of the Commitment Date · 
·shown Jn Schedule A for each Policy described In Schedule A, only when the Company has entered in.Schedule A both the 
specified dollar amount as the Proposed Policy Amount and the name of the Proposed Insured. · 

If all of the Schedule B, Part I-Requirements have not been met within six months after the commitment Date, this 
. Commitment terminates and the Company's liability and obligation end. 

First Am~ican Tilfe Insurance Comp<1ny 

ftr-{/' Jf tL 
Oe11ni$ J. Giff'i!01$ 
p[eskf.ant ' 

#fuQ·~~ 
Jeffrey S. l'tobloson 
Se<:nl!nry 

If this jacket v..as created electronkally, It constitutes an orlglnal document. 

This page ls- only ii part ofa 2016 Al TA@ Commitment for Tille Insurance issued by Fltst American Title Insuraflce Compiiny. This Commitment Is not 
valid without the NotiCe: the Cammilment tv Issue Polley: the camm;tment Condiffons; Schedule A; Schedule S. Part I-Requirements/ Schedule 8, Part 
U~Exceptmns: and a cuunte~slgnature by the Company or i/5 fssulng agent tltat may be in electronrc ronn. 

Copytight2006~2016 American Land Title Association. All ti!!hts reserved, 

The use of this Form (or any derivative th.ereof) ts restricted ta ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good .stanctrng as of the date of use. All other uses 
are prohibited. Reprinted ur.der lrcense from the American land Title Association. 
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COMMITMENT CONDITIONS 

1, DEFINIDONS 
(a) "Knowledge" or ''Known": Ad;ual or imputed knowledge, but not constructrve notice Imparted by the Public Records. 
(b) "Land": The land descrlbed Jn Schedul~ A and affixed Improvements that by law coflstitute real property. The term "Land" 

does not include any property beyond the lines of !:he area described In Schedule A, nor any right, tltleJ interest, estate, or 
easement rn abutting streets, roads, avenues, alleys, lanes, ways, or waterways, but this does not modify ot llinlt the extent 
that a right of access to and from the Land is to be Insured by the Policy. 

(c) "Mortgage": A mortgage, deed of trust, or other security Instrument, including one evidenced by electronfc means authorized 
byfaw. 

(d) "Policy": Each contract of title Insurance, In a form adopted by the American Land Title Assodatlon1 Issued or tD be Issued by 
the Company pursuant to this COmmltment, 

(e) "Proposed Insured11
; Each person Identified In Schedule A as the Proposed Insured of each Pollc.y to be Issued pursuant ta this 

Commitment. · 
(f) "Proposed Polley Arnounttl: Each dolrar amolUlt spec:ffied In Schedule A as the Proposed Policy Amount of each Policy to be 

Issued pursuant to this Commitment. 
(g) "Pubffc Records'r: Records establlshed under state statutes at the Commitment Date for the purpose of imparting con$trUctlve 

notlct! of matters relating to real property to purthasers for value and without Knowledge. 
(h} 11Title'.': The estate or interest described in Schedule A. 

2. If all of the Sched,ule · B, Part I-Requirements have not been. met within the time period specified In the Commitment to Issue 
Policy, this Corilrhftment termiilates cind the Company's llability and obllgation end. . 

3. The Company~ liability and obligation ls limfted by and this Commitment Is not valld without; 
(a) the Notice; · 

4. 

(b) the Commitment to Issue Polley; 
(c) the Commibnent Condltionsi 
(d) Schedufe A; 
(e) Schedule B, Part !---:Requirements; 
(f) sdu~dule B, Part II-Exceptions; and . 
_(~) a count~r~.signature by the company or its issuing agent that may be in el~dronlc form_. 

COMPANY'S RIGHT TO AMEND . · · · 
T_he-·eomPa~Y may-am.end .. tJiis .. Com·mJtrm:Jnt~t an)Tti(n~:·:rf thf!:~CCiln'Pdily-· arnendS this committnenl:1'o adCI a df:fe?f, ne-n~ 
encumbranteradverse-daim,_oi: other matter recOrded In the-Publlc Records prior to the Commitment Date, a(ly-nabJ!lty.of the 
C{li:npany is limit~d by Commitme[lt Caridition 5. The c;:ompatJ'I shall not be liable for.any other amendment to t!'lls _Co~mitment. 

-···.' 

S. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILijy 
(a) The Company's li.abmty· urider Commitment Condition 4 is limited to the ProPosed !nStJred's actual expense Incurred-in th.e 

Interval be~een the Company~s dellvery to the Proposed iris4red of the Commitme~t and the deliv.ery of the amended 
Comm!tment, resultrng from the Proposed InrureO's good faith reliance to: 
0) comply with the Schedule B, Part I-Requirements; · 
(ii} eliminate, with the Crimpany's written consent, any Schedule 8, Pilrt II-Exceptions; or 
(iii) acqulre the Title or .create the Mortgage co\tered by this Commitment. 

(b) The Company shall not be liab!e under Commitment Condition S(a) If the Proposed Insured requested the amendinent or had 
Kn~Jedge of the matter and did not notify the Company about it in writing. 

(c) The ·Company w/11 only hcive llabfflt~ under Commitment Conditio_n 4 tf the Proposed -Insured would not have incurred the 
expense had the Commitment Tncludecl the added matter when the Co111tnitment was first delivered· to the Proposed Insured, 

(~) The Company's lfqbiDty shall not exceed the lesser of.the Proposed Insured's actual expense incurred In good fafth and 
described in Commitment conditions 5(a)(i] through S(~)(ilf) or the Propos~d PoOcy Amount. 

(e) The Campany shall not be liable for the content of the Transaction Identification Data, if any. 
(f) In no event shall the Company be obligated to issue the Policy referred to in this Commltmenfunless all of thei Schedule B, 

Part I-Requirements have been met to the satisfaction 9f the Company. 
(g) In any event, the: Company's liabillty Is limited by the terms and provisions of the Polley. 

This page ts onfy ~part of a 2016 ALTA@ Commitment For Tille Insurance. Issued by Ffrst American 71tle Insurance CtJmpany. This commitment Is not 
val/dwithout the NotiCe; t//e Commitment to Issue Polley,' the Commitment Conditions; Sdledule A; Schedule 8, Part !-Requirements; Schedule Br Pert 
II-Ext:eptl01JS; and i1 countet-sfgnaf:t.tre by the Company OJ" its Issuing agent that may be Jn e!ectroni'c form, 

Copyright 2006-2.D16 A111erkan Land title Assodatloh. All rights reserved. 
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to Ali A Htensces and ALTA members in good standing ~ of the date of use. All other uses 
are prohibited. Reprinted under lft'em:e from tile Amerlcan Land Title Association. 
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6. LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY MUST BE BASED ON THIS COMMITMENT 
(a) Only a Proposed Insured Identified in Schedule A, and no other person, may make i3 claim under this Commitme"t. 
(b) Any cfalm must be based In contract and must be restricted solely to the terms and provislons of thJs Commitment. 
(c) Until the PoKcy Is issued, this Commitment, as last revised, is the exclusive and entire agreement between the parties with 

respect to the subject matter rf thls Commitment and supersedes: all prtor commitment negotiations, representations, and 
proposars of any kind, whetller written or oral, express or implled, relating to the subject matter of this Commitment. 

(d) The del!!!tlon or modification of any Schedule. B, Part II-Exception does not constitute an agreement or obligation to provide 
coverage beyond the terms and provisions of this Commitment or tile Polley. 

{e) Any amendment or endc:irsement to thrs Commitment must be rn wrlting and authenticated by a person authorized by the 
Company. 

(f) When the Policy is issued, all liability and obligation under this Commitment will end and !lie Company's only liability will be 
under th.e Policy. 

7. IF TillS COMMITMENT HAS BEEN ISSUED BY AN ISSUING AGENT 
The Issuing agent Is the Company's agent only for the l!m~ed purpose of rssulng titre Insurance commitments and policies. The 
Jssuing agent ls not the Compants agent for the purpose of providing dosing or settlement services. 

8. PRO-fORMA POLICY 
The Comp<!ny may provide, at the request of a Proposed Insured, a pro~forma policy illustrating the coverage that the Company 
may provide, A pro-forma policy neither reflects the status of Title at the time that the pro-forma poficy is delivered to a Proposed 
Insured, nor Is it a comm!tment to insure. 

9, ARBITRATION 
The Policy contains an arbitration dause. All arbitrable matters when.the Proposed Policy Amount Is $21000,DOO or less shall be 
arbitrated at the option of either the Company or the Proposed Insured as the exclusive remedy of the parties. A Propos-ed lnsured 
may review a copy of the arbitration rules at http:l!wWw.alta.orqlarbltration. 

This page is only a palt of a 2016 ALTA@ Commitment Tor Tille insurance fssued by Fir5t American Title lnsumnc:e Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice/ the Commitment trJ Issue Polic:y; the commitmentConditfons; Schedule A; Schedule 8, Part I-Requirements; Schedule 4 Part 
D-Excep#ans; and a c(Jllnter-slgnatu~ by the company or Its /55uin9 agent that may be In electronic form; 

CopyrJght 20D6·2016Amerlc:an Land Title AssocJatron. All rig~ te$Uil'V'ed. 

The use of this Form (or any lierivat'ive thereof} is restricted to ALTA Ucensees and ALTA members in goad standing as of the date of use. All other uses 
are prohibited. Reprinted under license from the American land Title Association. 
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.. ~~ J.lol·~.£'0.. I ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance 
··~ First American ISSUED BY 

Schedule A First American Tltle Insurance Company 

File No: 2977574 

Transaction Identification Data for reference only: 
First American Title Insurance Company - Metro Commercial Title e-mail: cmcc.il@firslam.com 
Center· · 
27775 Diehl Rd, Warrenville, IL 60555 
Phone: (866)553-7707 
Commitment No.: 2977574 
Property Address: 5500 S. Grant Street, Hinsdale, IL 60521 
Revision Date: July 18, 2019; July 23, 2019 

Escrow e-mail: figures.il@firstam.com 
Customer Reference: 

SCHEDULE A 

1. · Commitment Date: June 25, 2019 B:OO AM 

2. Policies to be Issued: 

(a) ALTA® Owner's Policy 
Proposed Insured: None 
Proposed Policy Amount: $0.0D 

(b) . ALTA® Lo.an Policy 
Proposed Insured: NONE 
Proposed Policy Amount: NONE 

3. The.'estate or·!nteresththetand.d.escribed on~ferredto:in thl.sCommitment Is 

Fee Simple 

4. The Title Is, at the Commitment Date, vested In: 

Board of Education-Hinsdale Township High School. District No. 86, as to Parcel I; 

Trustees of Schools ofTownship 38, North Range 11 East, DuPage County, llfinols, as to Parcels !I and 
III; 

. Trustees of Schools of Township Thlrty·eight North, Range Eleven, East of the Third Principal Meridian, In 
DuPage County, Illinois, an Illlnols corporation, as to Parcel IV; 

County Board of School Trustees of DuPage County, Illinois for the use and benefit of Hinsdale Township 
High School District #86, DuPage and cook Counties, Illinois, as to Parcel V; 

County Board of School Trustees of DuPage County,. Illinois, for the use and benefit of Hinsdale Township 
High School District No. '86;· DuPage and Cook Counties, Illlriols, as to· Parcel VI; 

County Board School Trustees of DuPage County, Illinois, for the use and benefit of Hinsdale Township 
High School District Number 86, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illlnois, as to Parcel VU, and Lots 11, 12, l~ 
and 15 of Parcel XIV; 

Board of Education of Hinsdale Township High School District 86, DuPage and Cook Counties, as to Parcel 

Thir; page is on/JI a pcirt of a 2016 AL TA@ Cammitment fer Title Insurance ls5Ued by First American TiUe Insurance Campany. This Ccrmmitment iii not 
valid without the Notlc_e; the Commitment to ls5ue Polley; the Commitment Conditions: Schedule A; Sclredule ~ Part J~Requfrements; Schedule 8, Part 
!/~Exceptions/ iltui a rounter-slgnature by the Company or il:5 l5sufng agent that may be Jn electronlc fbrm. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title As5aciation, All .rights reserved. 

The U5c of this Form {or any derivative thereof) Is restricted to ALTA licensees aQd At.TA mBmbers In g()od standing as of the date of use. All other uses 
are prohiilited. Reprinted undE!r license from the American Land Title Assoc:ialjon. 
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VIII; 

Hinsdale Township High School District #86, as to Parcel IX; 

Board of Education, Hinsdale Township High School, District 86 of DuPage and Cook Counties, as to 
Parcel X; 

Board of Education, Hinsdale Township High School District 86, as to Parcel XI; 

Board of Education Hinsdale Township Highschool Dist. 86, DuPage and Cook Counties, IL, as to Parcel 
XII; 

Board of Eduction Hinsdale Township High School District Number Eighty-six (86), as to Parcel Xllf; 

County Board of School Trustees of DuPage County, Illinois for the use and benefit of Hinsdale Township 
High School District Number #86, as to Lot 14 of Parcel XIV; 

Trustees of Schools ofTownship No. 38 North, Range 11 East of the Third Princlpal Meridian, for the use 
and benefit of Hinsdale Township High School District Number 86, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as 
to Lot 16, Parcel XIV; 

Trustees of Schools ofTownshlp No, 38 North, Range No. 11 East, for the use and benefit of School 
District Number 86 of DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as to lot 17 of Parcel XIV; 

Trustees of Schools ofTownship No. 38 North, Range No. 11 East, for the use and benefit of School 
District Number 86 of DuPage County, Illinois, as to Lot 18 of Parcel XIV; 

Trustees of Schools Of Township No. 38 North, Range No. t1 ·East, for the use and benefit of School 
District Number 38.ofDuPage and Cook C.ountles, llnnals, as tci Lot 19 of .Parcel XIV;· 

and 

'Trustees of Schools of Township No. 38·N0rth, Range No."11, East of the Third Principal Meridia~, 
DuPage County, Illinois, for the use· and benefit of Hinsdale Township High School district Number 86, 
DuPage and Cook Counties, Illil1ols, as to Lot.zo of Parcel XIV 

5. The land is described as follows: 
SEE EXHIBIT A ATIACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF 

First American Title Insurance Company 

By: 
Authorized Count~rsigna.ture 

ThiS prige Is only a part of a 20J5 Al TA@ Commitment for Title Insurance /5sued by FlrstAmerfcan Title Insurance Company_ This Commitment ls not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Polley; the Commitment Conditions,- Schedufe A; Schedule~ hrt I-Requirements: Sdledule B, Part 
II-Exceptions; and a cou11ter·s/gnature by the company or Its Issuing agent that may be In e/ecrron;c fann. 
Copyrigflt 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights resl!f'Ved. 

The use of this form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted til ALTA Jltensees and ALTA members fn good stllndlng as of the date nf use. All citheruses 
are ptohlbited. Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Assodat1on. 
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i~ j First American 

Schedule BI & Bii 

Commitment No.: 2977574 

ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance 
ISSUED BY 

First American Title Insurance Company 

File No: 2977574 

SCHEDULE B, PART I 

Requirements 

All of the following Requirements must be met: 

1. The Proposed Insured must notify !fie Company in writing of the name of any party not referred to in 
this Commibnent who will obtain an interest in the Land or who will make a loan on the.Land. The 
Company may then make additional Requirements or Exceptions. · 

2. Pay the agreed amount for the estate or interest to be insured. 

3. Pay the premiums, fees, and charges for the Policy to the Company. 

4. Documents satisfactory to the Company that convey the Title or create the Mortgage to be insured, 
or both, m~st be properly authorizedl executed, deliveredr and recordf;ld in the Pubfic.Records. · 

SCHEDULE B, PART II 

Exceptions 

THIS COMMITMENT ODES NOT REPUBLISH ANY COVENANT, CONDiTION, RESTRICTION, OR LIMITATION 
CONTAINED IN ANY DOCUMENT REFERRED TO IN THIS COMMITMENT TO THE EXTENT THAT TI-IE 
SPEOFJC COVENANT, CONDillDN, RESTRICTION, OR LIMITATION VIOLATES STATE OR FEDERAL LAW 
BASED ON RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, SEX, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, GENDER IDENTITY, HANDICAP, 
FAMILIAL STATUS, OR NATIONAL ORIGIN. 

The Polley will not insure against loss or damage resulting from the tenms and provisions of any lease or 
easement identified in Schedule A, and will include the following Exceptions unless cleared to the 
satisfaction of the Company: 

This page 1~ only a part of iJ 2016 AlTA@ Commitment tor Tlt!e Jnsufilnce issued by Rrst Amerfcan Title Insurance Campany. This Commitmf:Flt Is not 
valid Without the Notice,.· the Commitment to Issue Polley; the Commlflnent Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule~ Part I-Requirements; ScheduleB, Part 
Il-Exc:eption!fi; and a covnter·slgnalIJre by the company or I/Jr murng iigent that may be In e/ectron!r: farm. 

Copyright 2()06'-2016 Amerlc:ao Land Title Association. AH rights reserved. 

The use of this Fann (or any det~atlve thereof) Is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members In good standing as cf the date of use. All other uses 
are prohibited. Reprinted under license rrom the Am!;rlcan Land Title Association. 
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~ I First American 

Schedule BI & BII (Cont.) 

AL TA Commitment for Title Insurance 
ISSUED 8Y 

First American Title Insurance Company 

Fiie No: 2977574 

Commitment No.: 2977574 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

. 5. 

7. 

SCHEDULE B, PART II 

Exceptions (Continued) 

Rights or claims of parties Jn possession not shown by the public records. 

Easements or claims of easements, not shown by Public Records. 

Any encroachments, encumbrance1 violation, variation, or adverse circumstance affecting Title that 
would be disclosed by an accurate survey of the Land pursuant to the "Minimum Standards of 
Practice,' 68 II!. Admln Code, Sec. 1270.56(b)(6)(P) for residential property or the ALTA/NSPS land 
title survey standards far commercial/industrial property .. 

Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor, or materlal heretofore or hereaft~r furnished, imposed 
by law and not shown by the public records. 

Taxes, .or_ special a~essments, if any, not shown as existing liens by, th~. Public Records. 

Any :defect, Hen; encumbrance, advers~ dai~, or.- other- matter that appears f~r the first time in the · 
Public Records cir is created, attaches, or is disclosed between the C~mmltment Date and the date on 
whkh all of the Schedule a; Part I-Requirements are met. · · 

General taxes and assessments for the year 2019, and subsequent years which are not yet due and 
payabie. 

Tax identification no.: 09-13-100-017 
(Affects Parcels I through VII) 

Note for informational purposes 2018 taxes: 

1st.Installment In the amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. (Due Date 06/03/2019) 
2nd Installment In the amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. ·(Due Date 09/03/2019 ) 

Note: If applicable, an original tax bill must be presented If taxes are ta be paid at time of closing. 

8. General taxes and assessments for the year 2019, and subsequent years which are not yet due and 
payable. 

Tax identification no.: 09-13-100-008 
(Affects Parcel Vil!) 

This pDge is only a PHrt of a 2016 ALTA@ Cof"Tllffltmentfbr Title Insurance lssaed by First American 11t/e Insurance Company. This Commitment i5 not 
volid wit.lwutfh,:; Notfce; the commitment to l5StJe Poll~· the OJmmltment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule~ Part I-Requirements; Schedllfe ~ Part 
ll-EKaptlons; and a counter-signature by the Campany or Its lssutng agent that may be ;n electronic form. 

Copyright 2DD6·2D1G American Land Title Association. All rights reserved. 

The use of this Form (or any derlVatlve thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees. and ALTA members in good standfng as oft he date of use. AU other uses 
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Note for informational purposes 2018 taxes: 

!st Installment in the amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. (l:Jue Date 06/03/2019) 
2nd Installment in the amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. (Due Date 09/03/2019 ) 

Note: IF applicable, an original tax bill must be presented W taxes are to be paid at time of closing. 

9. General taxes and assessments for the year 2019, and subsequent years which are not yet due and 
payable. 

Tax Identification no.: 09-13-100-011 
(Affects Parcel IX) 

Note for informational purposes 2018 taxes: 

1st Installment in the amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. (Due Date 06/03/2019) 
.2nd Installment In the amount cf $0.00 with a status of Nqt Biiied. (Due Date·09/03{2019) 

Nate: If applicable, an original tax bill must be presented if taxes are to be paid at time cf closing. 

10. General taxes and assessments for the year 2019, and subsequent years which are not yet due and 
payable. 

Tax identification no.: 09-13-100-012 
(Affects Parcel X) 

Note for i11_fo~mational purposes 2018 taxes: 

.1st Instaf/~ent irr theC,,mounto~$0.00 with-11 status-of-NotBilled. (Due Date 05(03/2019) . 
2nd Installment In the· amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed, ·(Due Date 09/03/2019 ) 

Note: If appRcable, an original tax bill must be prese~ted if taxes ~re to be paid at time of clo~ing. 

11. General taxes and assessments for the year 2019, and subsequent years which are not yet due and 
payable. 

Tax Identification no.: 09-13-100-013 
(Affects Parcel XI) 

Note for informational purposes ~018. taxes: 

1st Installment In the amount of $0.00 With a status of Not Biiied. (Due Date 06/03/2019) 
2nd Installment Jn the amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. (Due Date 09(03/2019) 

Note: If applicable, an origin<> tax bill must be presented if taxes are to be paid at time of closing. 

12. General taxes and assessments for the year 2019, and subsequent years which are not yet due and 
payable. 

Tax identification no.: 09·13-100-014 
(Affects Parcel Xll) 

7/iis page is only iJ part ofa 2015 Al TA@ Commitment for ntle l!J5urance Issued by First American 7lt/Q Insura11ce Company. This commitment Is not 
Vf!/id without the //Jatlce; the Commllmi!nt to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedvle A; Schedule~ Part l-Req11i'remenls/ Sdiedule B, Part 
Il-Exceptfons; iJnd a counter-s[!Jnatllre by the Company or Its issuing agent that may be In electronic form. 
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Note for informational purposes 2018 taxes: 

1st Installment In the amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. (Due Date 05/03/2019) 
2nd Installment in the amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. (Due Date 09/03/2019 ) 

Note: If applicable, an original tax bill must be presented if taxes are to be paid at time of closing. 

13. General taxos and assessments for the year 2019, and subsequent years which are not yet due and 
payable. 

Tax Identification no.: 09-13-100-015 
(Affects Parcel XIII) 

Note for Informational purposes 2018 taxes: 

1st Installment In the amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. (Due Date 06/03/2019) 
2nd Installment in the amount of $0.00 With a status of Not Billed. (Due Date 09/03/2019 ) 

Note: If applicable, an original tax bill must be presented.if taxes are to be paid at time of closing. 

14. General taxes and assessments for the year 2019, and subsequent years which are not yet due and 
payable. 

Tax Identification no.: 09-13-101-027 
(Affects Parcel XIV) 

. . 

Note for 1rif0rmation~.I PUrposes 2018 taxes: 

1st Installment in the amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. (bue bate 06/03/2019) 
2nd Installment in the ·amount of $0.00 with a status of Not Billed. (Due Date 09/0:3/2019) 

Note: If applicable, an original tax bill must be presented if tax.Sare to be paid at time of dosing. 

15. We should be furnished with evidence of payment of charges to the Sanitary District as noted herein 
through the month of closing. 

16. We shoujd be furnished with evidence of payment of Special Service Area charges. IF paid through 
the real estate tax bill, please provide a copy Of the detailed \ax bill reflecting SSA as a fine item. 

17. . We find no outstanding voluntary liens of record affecting subject property. An inquiry should be 
made concerning the existence of any unrecorded lien or other indebteOness which could "give rise· to 
any security interest in the subject property. 

18. We should be provided evidence of appropriate compliance With Illinois Statutes regarding the 
purchase/sale of the land by the Board of Education Hinsdale Township High School District No. 86, 
as to Parcel I; Trustees of Schools ofTownship 38, North Range 11 East, DuPage County, Illinois, as 
to Parcels II and lll; County Board of School Trustees of DuPage County, Illinois for the uso and 
benefit of Hinsdale Township High School District #85, DuPage and Coak Counties, Illinois, as to 
Parcel V; County Board of School Trustees of DuPage County, Illino'1s, for the use and benefit of 
Hinsdale Township High School District No. 86, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as to Parcel VI; 
county Board School Tiustees ofDuPageCiiunty; Illinois, for the Lise an·a benefit of flinsdale 
Township High School District Number 86, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as to Parcel VII, and 

This page is only a part of a 2Q16 Al TA@ Commitment tbr TiHe Inavrance /5Sl/ed by Fir.st Amedeo« Title insurance Company. Thfs Commitment is not 
valkf without th'!! Notice; the commitment to Issue Polley; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule ~ Part I-Requirements; Schedule B, Part 
II-Exceptions; and ii counter~slgnature by the Company or Its /ssufng agent that may be In efedronic fonn. 

Copyright 20C6·l01~ American Lllnd Ti:tle Association. All rights reserve.d. 
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Lots 11, 12, 13 and 15 of Parcel XIV; Board of Education of Hinsdale Township High School District 
86, DuPage and Cook Counties, as to Parcel Vll1; Hinsdale Township High School District #Bfi, as to 
Parcel IX; Board of Education, Hinsdale Township High School, District 86 of DuPage and Cook 
Counties, as to Parcel X; Board of Education, Hinsdale Township High School District 86, as to Parcel 
XI; Board of Education Hinsdale Township Highschool Dist. 86, DuPage and Cook Counties, IL, as to 
Patee! XII; Board of Eduction Hinsdale Township High School District Number Eighty-six (86), as to 
Parcel Xlll; County Board of School Trustees of DuPage County, Illinois for the use and benefit of 
Hinsdale Township High school District Number #86, as to Lot 14 of Parcel XIV; Trustees of Schools 
ofTownship No. 38 North, Range No. l1 East, for the use and benefit or· school District Number 86 
ofDuPage and cook Counties, Illinois, as to Lot 17 olParcel XIV; Trustees of Schools of Township 
No. 38 North, Range No. 11 East, for the use and benefit of School District Number 86 of DuPage 
County, llllnois, as to Lot 18 of Parcel X!V; Trustees of Schools of Townslilp No. 38 North, Range No. 
11 East, for the use and benefit of School Dlsbict Number 38 of DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, 
as to Lot 19 of Parcel XIV; and Trustees of Schools of Township No. 38 North, Range No. 11, East of 
the Third Principal Meridian, DuPage County, llllnols, for the use and benefit af Hinsdale Township 
High Scttool district Number 86, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as to Lot 20 of Parcel XIV; and 
Trustees of Schools ofTownshlp No. 38 North, Range 11 East of the Third Principal Meridian, for the 
use and benefit of Hinsdale Township High School District Number 86, DuPage and Cook Counties, 
Illinois, as to lot !6, Parcel XlV. 

19. Upon a conveyance or mortgage of the land, a certified copy of proper resolutions passed by the 
authorned representative(s) of Illinois authorizing the execution of the deed of conveyance or 
mortgage should be furnished. ·· · · 

20_ We should. be furnished with a certificate of Good Standing from the Illinois Secretary of State for 
Trustees of Schools of T ownshlp Thirty·elght North, Range Eleven, East of the Third ?rlndpal 
Meridian, In DuPage County, llllnols, an Illinois corporation, as to Parcel IV, a Corporation of Illinois. 

21. - Arty.fien,-or-~ight fo-a lien.In f.ivor'ofa property.maiiage.r empleyed· tci managethe·ian&-Note:-we­
should be furnished elth~r (a) an alridayit from .the owner indicating that there is no property 
manager.employed; or (b) a final lien waiver from the property manager acting on behalf ofthe 
owner. 

22. E:Xistrng unrecorded. leases,,if any, and rights of parties. in poss~ssfon ·under such unrecorded leases. 

Z3. Nate; If any contemplated deed of conveyance of the land Is exempt from the operation oi the 
provisions of paragraph !(a) of 755 ILCS 205/1, the plat act, such deed should be accompanied by a 
proper affidavit e0tabllshlng to the 5atfsfaction··of the retor.der 9f deeds of DuPage county, Illinois, 
that the conveyance is so exempt. If said conveyance is not so exempt, compflance should be had 
with the provisions of said paragraph 1(a). 

24. It appears that the land described herein lies within the municipal boundaries of Hinsdale, please 
contact the municipality for. any requireme.nts which must' be complied with prior to dosing. The 
municipal phone number may be found at www .firstam.i::omltlfe/il under Products and Resources, 
then Forms and Documents, then Municipal Transfer Stamp Requirements. 

25. Relative to the deletion of Standarrl Exceptions! through p, we should be furnished the following; 

a) A current survey of the land, properly certified to the Company, made In accordance with (i) the 
accuracy requirements of a survey pursuant to the 'Minimum Standerd Detail Requirements .for 
Land Title Surveys' Jointly Established and Adopted by the American land Title Association and 
National Society of Professional Surveyors (NSPS) February 23, 2016; and (ii) the Laws of the 
State of Illinois_ 

This page is only a part of a 2016 Al TA@ Commitment for 77de Insurance i5SCJed by First American 71f/e Insurance Campany. Thfs Commitment is not 
valld wi'thout the. Noffce; Ute Commitment tv Issue Polley/ the Commitment Condltrons; Schedule A; Sctledute B, P'1rt i·Requtremenl5i Schedule 8,. Part 
II-Exceptions; and a counter--stgnaiuteby the Company or its 1Ss11ing agent that may bE in electronic form. 
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b) A properly executed ALTA 2006 Loan and Extended Coverage Statement. 

26. Note: The premises In question are located within the Flagg Creek Sanitary District which is accepting 
federal grants for pollution control pursuant to Public Law 92-500. The District must charge user 
charges separate from ad valorem taxes, which charges rnay be a continuing lien on the property. 
Attention is directed to ordinance recorded as document R/5-19171. 

Note: The Company should be provided with a letter from the sanitary District stating all fees in 
connection with said services are paid current through the date or closing. The telephone number is 
of the Flagg Creek Sanitary District Is (630)323-3299: 

27. Flagg Creek Water Reclamation District Amended ·Ordinance No. 756 recorded as document no. 

28. 

29. 

30. 

31-

32. 

. 33. 

34. 

R2009-037066 requiring payment of user charges prior to sale or transfer of real estate and further 
requiring evaluation of connection permits fur sales of commercial property, and the terms and 
conditions contained therein. 

Rights of way for drainage tiles, ditches, feeders and laterals, If any. 

Rights of the Public, the State or Ulinois and the Municipality in and to that part of the land~ if any, 
taken or used fat road purposes. 

Rights of the interested parties to the free and unobstructed flow of the waters of the stream which 
may flow on or through the land. 

Easements for public utilities, as shown on the plat of subdivision. 
(Affects the East 8 feet of Parcel VITI; the North 5 feet of Parcels IX, X and XI) 

Terms and c~ncfitiOns of.the·ease~ent provisJons noted on the piat pf subdivision. 
. . . 

Building ·setback line(s) as shown on the. plat of subdivision . 
(Affects the West 25 feet·of Parcel XIV) 

Agreement for easements for the Village of Hinsdale recorded as.document no. 787107 for a cast 
Iron water piPe, and the terms and coriditionS' contained thereiri. 

(Affects Parcels I, I!, Ill and XIII) 

35. Easement agreement with the Village of Hinsdale recorded as document no. R91-056252 for the 
purpose of Installing highway improvements, and the terms and conditions contained therein. 

(Affects Parcels I, XIII and XIV} 

36. Memorandum of grant of easement recorded as document no. R2010-127250, made by and between 
Board of Education of Hinsdale Township High School District No. 86, DuPage and Cook Counties, 
Illinois and Chicago SMSA Limited Partnership, d/b/a Verizon Wireless, and the terms and conditions 
contained therein. · 

(Affects Parca XIII) 

This page Is only 11 pilrt of a 2016 Al TA@ Commitment for Title Insunmce Issued by FirstAmerk:an Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
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37. Memorandum of easement agreement recorded as document no. R2014·052403 made by and 
between Board of Education cf Hinsdale Township High School District 86 and New angular Wireless 
PCS, LLC, and the terms and conditions oontalned therein. 

38. Agreement between the VIiiage of Hinsdale and the Board of Education of School District 86 recorded 
as document no. R2001·056072 for the regulation of traffic, and the terms and conditions contained 
therein. 

39. Agreement between the Village of Hinsdale and Hinsdale Townsf1ip High School District 86 recorded 
as document no. R2019·001680, and the terms and conditions oontalned therein. 

40. The property Is subject to restrictions contained In Paragraph 5 of a contract dated October 21, 1997, 
as disdosed ·by a Trustee's Deed .recorded as document no. R97-183981. 

(Affects Parcel VIII) 

41. Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Environmental No FUrther Remediation Letter recorded 
February 19, 2019 as document number R2019·011437. 

Note: Land use restrictions/limitations: None 

(Affects Parcels I through VII; Xlll and XIV) 

42. Ordinance recorded as document no. 603845 annexing property to the VIiiage of Hinsdale, and the 
terms and conditions contained therein . 

. (Affects Parcels, I, II, III, IV and Xlll) · 

-· -· -- -· - - - -··- -· ........ _ ........ --·- -···-- .. ··-·--·- --·· -··--······- . 
43. Ordinance recorded as doccmentho. 910424 annexing certain property to the Village of Hinsdale,-· 

·and the terms and conditions contained therein. · 

(Affects Parcel XIV) 

44. Ordinance No. 093·36 recorded as document no .. R93o303069 eetablishing Special Seivice Area 
Number7, and the terms and conditions contained therein. 

45. Ordinance No. 094-3 recorded as document no. R94-022094 establishing VR!age .of Hinsdale Special 
Service Area Ni;i. 7, and the terms ·and conditions contained t~.erein. 

46. Note: The Extended Coverage Endorsement, deleting Standard Exceptions 1 through 6, Will be 
considered for approval upori receipt and review of the requirements ref~renced herein. 

Limitation of Llabllitv for Informational Reoott 

Il\1P_ORTANT c REl!.Q_CAREJ'IJIJ.Y;_ THIS.REP.ORT l~_NOL.~fl/ INSUR~O PRODUCT OR SERVICo OR A 
REPRESENTATION OF THE CONDITION OF TITLE TD REAL PROPERTY. !TIS NOT AN ABSTRACT, LEGAL 
OPINION, OPINION OF TITLE, TITLE INSURANCE COMMITMENT OR PRELIMINARY REPORT, OR ANY 
FORM OF mLE INSURANCE OR GUARANTY. THIS REPORT IS ISSUED EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE BENEFIT 
OF THE APPLICANT THEREFOR, AND MAY NOT BE USED OR RELIED UPON BY ANY OTHER PERSON. 
THIS REPOITT MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY MANNER WITHOUT FIRST AMERICAN'S PRIOR 
WRITTEN CONSENT. FIRST AMERICAN DOES NOT REPRESENT OR WARRANT THAT THE INFORMATION 
HERBN JS COMPLETE OR FREE FROM ERROR, AND THE INFORMATION HEREIN IS PROVIDED 

This page Is only a part of a 2016 Al TA@ Commitment for Title Insurance issued by First Am.man Tifleinsur;incs Company. This commitment Is not 
valid without the Notlcei the Cammitmerit m Issue Policy; tire Commitment Condfdons/ Schedule A; Schedu/e Bi Part I~Requi!t!menis; Scltedule 4 Part 
lJ-EXceprions/ and a counter--sfgnature by the. company ot Its Issuing agent that may be In electronic !Qrm. 
Copyright 2006·2016 American Land Title Ai=saciatlon. All rlghts reserved. 
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WITHOUT ANY WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, AS-IS, AND WITH ALL FAULTS. AS A MATERIAL PART OF 
THE CONSIDERATION GIVEN IN EXCHANGE FOR THE ISSUANCE OF THIS REPORT, RECIPIENT AGREES 
THAT FIRST AMERICAN'S SOLE UABILITY FOR ANY LOSS. OR DAMAGE CAUSED BY AN ERROR OR 
OMISSION DUE TO INACCURATE INFORMATION OR NEGLIGENCE IN PREPARING THIS REPORT SHALL 
BE LIMITED TO THE FEE CHARGED FOR THE REPORT. RECIPIENT ACCEPTS THIS REPORT WITH THIS 
LIMITATION AND AGREES THAT FIRST AMERICAN WOULD NOT HAVE ISSUED THIS REPORT BUT FOR 
THE LIMITATION OF LIABUlTY DESCRIBED ABOVE. FIRST AMERICAN MAKES NO REPRESENTATION 
OR WARRANTY AS TO THE LEGALITY OR PROPRIETY OF REOPIENT'S USE OF THE INFORMATION 
HEREIN. 

This page isar1/y a part of a 2016 ALTA@ Commitmen_t for 77tle JnsurMce Issued by first Am~rican Title lns11riince Company. This Commitment Is not 
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11-ExcepNons/ and a counter-signature hy the Company or its Issuing 'f:gent that may be in etectronlc form. 
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Exhibit A 

Commitment File No.: 2977574 

ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance 
ISSUED BY 

First American Title Insurance Company 

Fiie No: i977574 

The Land referred to herein below is situated in the County of Dupage, State of IL, and is described as follows: 

Parcel I: 
Lots 1 and 2, in Block 7, in Branigar Brothern Hinsdale Farms, being a subdivision of the Southwest quarter and the 
Northwest quarter (except the East half of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter) of Section 13, Township 38 
North, Range 11 East of the Third Principal Meridian, according to the platthereof recorded Aprtl 5, 1920 as document 
no.141390, In DuPage County, Ilflnois. 

Parcel II: 
The East350 feet of the North half of the North ha/fof Lot 3, in Block 7, in Branigar Brothers Hinsdale Farms, being a 
subdivision of the Southwest quarter and the Northwest quarter (except the East half of the Northwest quarter of the 
Northwest quarter) of Section 13, Township 38 North, Range 11 East of the Third Prtncipal Meridian, according to the plat 
thereof recorded April 5, 1920 as document no. 141390, in DuPage County, ·111rnois. 

Parcel III: 
The East 350 feet of lhe South half of the North half of Lot 3, In Block 7, In Bran/gar Brothers Hinsdale farms, being a 
subdivision of the Southwest quarter and the r.rorthwest quarter (except the _East half.of the Northwest quarter of the 

· Nortliwest quarter) of Section -13, Township 38 North; Range 11 East ·onhe Third Principal -Meridiaq;according· to.the plat 
thereof recorded April 5; 1920 as document no. 141390, in DuPa9e County, Illinois.. · 

Parcel [V: 
The North half of the North half of Lot 3 (except the East 350 feetthereof), In Block 7, in Branigar Brothers Hinsdale 
Farms, being a subdivision of the Southwest quarter and the Northwest quarter (except the East half of the Northwest 
quarter of the Northwest quarter) of Section 13, Township 38 North, Range 11 East of the Third Principal Meridian, 
according to the plat thereof recorded April S, 1920 as document no. 141390, In DuPage County, U/ino/s. 

Parcel V: . . . . . 
The South. halfof the North half (except the East 350 feet thereof) of Lot 3, in Block 7, in Branlgar Brothers HiRSdale 
Farms, being a subdivision of the Southwest quarter and the Northwest quarter (except the East half of the Northwest 
quarter .of the Northwest quarter) of Section 13, Township 38 North, Range 11 East of the Third Principal Meridian, 
according to the plat thereof recorded April 5, 1920 as document no. 141390, in DuPage County, Illlriois. 

Parcel VI: 
The South half of Lot 3, in Block 7, in Branlgar Brothers Hinsdale Farms, being a subdivi<ion of the Southwest quarter and 
the Northwest quarter (except the East half of th_e Northwest quarter of the Northwest qua1ter) of Section 13, Township 
38 North, Range 11 East of the Third Principal Meridian, according to the plat thereof recorded April 5, 1920 as document 
no, 141390, in DuPage County, Illinois. 

Parcel VII; 
This page is an/yB part ofil 2016 ALTA@ Commitment for ntfe Insurance issued by First American Title Insur<:mce Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment tr1 Issue Polley; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; ScJ1ed11/e ~ Part I ·Reqwi'ements/ Schedule 81 Pert 
U-Except/ans; and a counter-signature Dy the company or 11:$ lssufng agent that may be In e/ectranlc rarm. 
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The North half of lot 4 {except the East 200 feet thereof), in Block 7, in Branigar Brothers Hinsdale Farms, being a 
subdivision of the Southwest quarter and the Northwest quarter (except the East half of the Northwest quarter of the 
Northwest quarter) of Section 13, Township 38 North, Range 11 East of the Third Prtnclpal Meridian, according to the plat 
thereof recorded April 5, 1920 as document no. 141390, in DuPage County, Illinois. 

Parcel VIII: 
Lot 1, In Penzes Resubdivision of the South half of Lot 4 (except the East 60 feet thereof), in Block 7, Jn Branlgar Brothers 
Hinsdale Farms, being a subdivision of the Southwest quarter and the Northwest quarter (except the East half of the 
Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter) of Section 13, Township 38 North, Range 11 East of the Third Principal 
Meridian, according ID the plat of resubdivlslon recorded April 16, 1946 as document no. 495827, In DuPage County, 
Illinois. 

Parcel IX: 
lot 5 (except the East 150 feet thereof], in Penz es Resubdivision of the South half of Lot 4 (except the East 60 feet 
thereof), in Block 7, In Branlgar Brothers Hinsdale Farms, being a subdivision of the Southwest quarter and the Northwest 
quarter (except the East half of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter) of Section 13, Township 38 North, 
Range 11 East of the Third Principal Mertdian, according to the plat of resubdivision recorded April 15, 1946 as document 
no. 495827, In DuPage County, Illinois. 

Parcel X: 
The West 75 feet of the East 150 feet of Lot 5, In Penzes Resubdivision of the South half of Lot 4 (except the East 60 feet 
thereof), In Block 7, in Branigar Brothers Hinsdale Farms, being a subdivision of the Southwest quarter and the Northwest 
quarter (except the East half of the Northwest quarter of.the Northwest quarter) of Section 13, Township 38 North, 
Range 11 East of the Third Principal Meridian, according to the plat of resubdivislon recorded April 16, 1946 ·as document 
no. 495827, in DUP<1ge county, Illinois. · 

Parcel.XI: . . . 
The East 75 feet oflot 5, in Penzes Resubdivlsion'of the souih half of lot 4 (except the East 60 feet thereof], In Block 7, 
in Branig.ar Brothers Hinsdale Farms, being a subdivision of the Southwest 'quarter and. the Northwest quarter (except the 

. East half of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter) of Section i3, Township 38 North, Range 11 East of the 
Third Principal Meridian, according to the plat of resubdivision recorded April 16, 1946 as document no. 495827, in 
DuPage County, Illinois. 

Parcel XII:' 
The East 60 feet of the South half of Lot 4, in Block 7, in Branigar Brothers Hinsdale Farms, being a subdivision of the 
Southwest quarter and the Northwest quarter (except the East half of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter) of 
Section 13, Township 38 North, Range 11 East of the Third Principal Meridian, a'°ording to the plat thereof recorded April 
S, 1920 as document no. 141390, in DuPage County, Illinois. 

Parcel XIII: 
The East half of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 13, Township 38 North, Range 11 East of the 
Third Principal Meridian, excepting therefrom the South 33 feet thereof, in DuPage County, Illinois. 

Parcel XIV: 
Lots 11 through 20, both inclusive, in Block 2, in Branigar Brothers Hinsdale Farms, being a subdivision of the Southwest 
quarter and the Northwest quarter (except the East half of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter) of Section 13, 

This page is onfy a part of a 2016 ALTA@ CDmmltment for Title Insurance issued by First AmerlciiJn litle In5Ul'iJflce. company. This Com1171tment Is not 
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Township 38 North, Range 11 East of the Third Principal Meridian, according to the plat thereof recorded April s, 1920 as 
document no. 141390, in DuPage County, Illinois. 

Note: For Informational purposes only, the land Is known as : 

5500 5. Grant Street 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

T/Jls fllige is only &J part of a 2016 AL TA@ Commitment for Title Insµrance is5JJed by FlrSt American 'Title Insurance Company. This Commitment Is not 
valid without tire Notlce; the Commitment to &ue Pa/icy,· the Cammltment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B~ Pi/ft I-Requirements/ sd1edule B, Part 
ll·Exl:eptfuns; ond a counter-sfgni!ltute by the Company or/ts IS5Ufng agent that may be In elect(lln/c form. 
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are prohibited. Reprinted under lic~ns:e From the American Land Title Assoclation. 
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ATIACHMENT E 

Section fl 

2, Ordinance Provisio11: 

a. Sec. 7-310: Bujk, Space and Yard Requirements- Accessory Structures in required 

corner y.ard setback. 
b. Sec. 9-101, H, 2, g & i: Screening, Landscaping and Tree Planting Areas. 
c. Sec. 9-1041 J.1, e, xi: Required number of parking spaces for Secondary Schools. 
d. Sec. 9-105, C, 2: Off Street Loading Screening. 
e. Sec. 9-107, A, 1 &2: Parking Lot Screening and Parking Lot Interior Landscaping. 
f. Sec. 9-107 B: Loadrng Space screening reejuirements. 
g. Sec. 9-107, H, 3: Screening for Outdoor Activity Areas. 
h. Title 9, Ch•pter 12, Sec, 9-12-3, subsection D: Construction Sta'ndards (material). 
L Title 91 Chapter 12, Sec. 9-12·3, subsection E: Protectfve Fences. 

3. Variation Sought: 
In regards to Phase 1 additions and renovations to Hinsdale Central H!gh Schooli the District is 
seeking the foJlowing approvals from the Village of Hinsdale for lack of conformity to the 
VHlage1s zoning and land use requirements aS follows. 

QuantitVof off-street 'parking:·• . 
· GenerOi: Currt::r:i.t a.lloCations-of th~ use" of land b')i ei~er:buildi.ngS or athl eti( ile\dS limits. the 
ability of the District to add a significant qua.ntity of additional off-street parking stalls. The 
project in its entirety does not raise the student or staff popuiations of the building. The 
additions and renovations are brl~ging the school's facilities on pe1r with other locaf peer high 
schOol districts' fatilities in regards to usabll!ty, condition and features. The current quantity of 
parking stalls on site is 560. The proposed modifications increase this quantity to 583. It would 
cause undue hardship if the owne·r \'\/as to conform with the ·required 882 stalls. Reference Sec. 

9~104, J, 1~ e, xi: 

Unfque Physical Condition: The Subject Property is an existing public high school. The existing 
off-street parking counts do n~t meet ci.trrent Zoning requirements. 
Not Self-Created: The Subject Prqperty has been a public high school since 1948 and has been 
expanded as the populatron and academic needS have grown in the community ~ince that time. 

Additional land acquisitions for parking are limited and infeasible due to increased property 
costs in the area. 
Denied Substantial Rights: The carrying out of tlie strict letter of the provision of the zoning 

code would interfere with the public high school's ability to provide academic, co-curricular and 
athletic activities on the site. 
Not Merely Special PrivHege: In order to help alleviate parking concerns on-site1 tfie District is 
providing an addition 23 parking stalls over the existing amount. The addition of any further 
parking stalls would reduce the areil of the site dedicated to buildings, athf etic fields, open 
space and require-d property line setbacks. 



Code and Plan Purposes: The Variation sought would not result in a use of the Subject Property 

that would not be in harmony with the Official Comprehensi\te Plan or current zoned district of 
IB Institutional Building. 
Essential Character af the Area: The variation would not be detrf ment!ll .to the public welfare 
and is in character of the existing use of the site. Existing parking stalls will not be reduced. The 
variation would not impaTr an adequate supply of light and airs to any property in the vfclnltY­
The variation would not substantially increase congestion in the public streets, and would resu[t 
in an overall modest decrease, due.to the extra stalls ~elng provided. The variation would not 
unduly increase the danger of Hood and fire, or unduly tax public utilities and facilities. The 
Subject Property will comply with the local authorities having jurisdiction in regards to 
star~water management of the. property. The variation would not endanger the public heath 
or safety cf the surrounding properties. . . 
Na Othet Remedy: There.is no ·mean$" other than-the requested variation that would permit a 

reasonable use of the SubjectProject. Providing additiopal parking stalls would result in a 
reduction of building addition footprints (for academically needed facilities), athletic fields, 
setbacks, and other open landscaped areas on site. 

,'Off street parking lo.t and loa~ing, iandscaplng and screening re.quirern.ents: 
G_eiteral:. rn order to maximize l;ind use and ability to ;adc;J pa,rking stalls, the.District is seeking to 
eliminate the l~ndscilped parkin_g island, 10' landscaped open space sCreen/ng requiremetit <ind 
,ioading..sp~ce.scr:&ei:ling-r:eqi.dremeot. .Cu-r..r.antty.,:the-exi.sting pafkin-8:-.faciUti~·"10-not-c0ilfG(m:to · 
. these reqUirerhents. To conform With th"ese requirements would resu[t i~ ~reduction .of off-. 
street parking stalls in lieu of an increase. lsliinds wpuld atso increase. the time needed to clear 
parking lots of.snow an~ maintain school start times. ~eference Secs. 9-104, H, 2 g & I; 9-105, 
C, 2; 9-i07, A, 1 & 2; Sec. 9-107 B; 
Unique Physical-Conditlo_n: The Subject Property is ah existing public high school. The existing 
off-street parking _lots ~o ·not meet current Zoning requir~ments for landscaping. The existing 
la:a:ding dock will be relocated to accommodate a future phase addition (Fine Arts). The existing 
loading dock Is oniy scree~ed on three sides .. 
NotSelf-Crei:ited: The Subject Property has been a public high school since 1948 and has been 
exPanded as· the populat!on and academic needs have grovvn in the _community since thf,lt time. 
Ad<;fitional land acquisitia.ns for pa~king or loading zones are limited and infeasible due to 
increased propertY costs in the area. 
Denied Substantial Rights: The carrying out of the strict letter of the piovisfon of the zoning­
code would.interfere with the public high school's abtlity to provide academic, co-curricular and 
athletic activities on th.e site. 
Not Merely Special Privilege: The Subject Property currently does not meet the required 
number of off-street parking stalls and would be subject to a further decrease if the buffer and 
landscape requirements are not ·waived. The relocated loading area Is in-set of the site, 
substantially away from adjacent properties. 
Code and Plan Purposes: The Variation sought would not result in a use of the Subject Property 
that would not be in harmony with the Official Comprehensive Plan or current zoned district of 
IB Institutional Building. 



Essential Character of the Area: The variation would not be detrimental to the public welfare 
and is in character of the existing use of the site. Existing parking stalls will not be reduced. 

Required loading spaces will be provided. Refuse containers will be fully screened. The 
variation would not impair an adequate supply of light and airs to any property in the vicinity. 
The variation wolild not substantially increase congestion in the pub Ile streets, and would result 
in an overall modest decrease, due to the ex.tra stalls being provided. The variation would not 
unduly increase the danger of flood and fire, or unduly tax public utilities and facilities. The 
Subject Property will comply with the local authorities having jurisdiction ln regards to 
stormwater managem~nt cf the property. The variation would not endanger the public health 
or safety of the surrounding properties. 
No Other Remedy: There is no means other than the requested \/ariation that would-permit a 
reasonable use of the Subject Project. Providing addition•i landscaping and buffers would result 
In a redu.ction of parking iot stalls, buildi~g addition footprints (for academically needed 
facilit~es), athletic fields, setbacks, and.other open landscaped areas on site. 

Sports Safetv Netting (Protectfve Fence): 

General: 50' high 5ports safety netting systems are planned for the southern edge and nor:thern 
·edge of the baseball field located In the southeast co·rn.er of the site. The netting along 57th 
Street is to prevent foul"balls from hitting adjacent properties acr.o$s the street, a current 

. problem. Neitting aiong th~ north- is required to.protect. pa_r.ked vehides in t~!'!,extendE'.d parking 
·lat. At th.e r)orth parking Jot, .[tis prdposed t~ provide rE!movable windscreen at the bottom of 
the ·safety netting struciUre to allow sna·w.remova.1 in the winte~ 'months.' the netting systems. 
are In excess ·of the 81 ~011 high maximum fencfng requirements. Reference Title .9, .. Chapter 12 

Sec: 9-12-3, subsectlon·E; · · 
Unique Physical Condition: The Subject Property is an existing public high school. The existing 
haseball field abuts to the adjacent off-site residential properties and as well as the District 
owned parking lot to the North~ 

Not Self-Created: The Subject Property has be<>n a public h.lgh school since 1948 and has been 
expanded as the popu!ation and academic needs have grown in the comm'unity since that time. 
A~ditfonar land acquisitions for open spaces are limited ~nd infeasible dµe to increased property 
costs in the <'!re.a. 

·Denied Substantial Rights: The carrying out of the strict fetter oft.he provision of the zoning 
code would interfere with the public high school's ability to further protect the general public's 
property for the surround neighborhood, as well as on~sfte. 

Not Merely Spec/a/ Prlvllege: The variation addresses adjacent property owner's concerns about 
foul balls damaging property across s71h street 
Coc/e and Plan Purposes: The Variation sought would not result in a use of the Subject Property 
that would not be in harmony with t~e Official Comprehensive Plan or current zoned district of 
IB Institutional Building, 
Essential Character of the Area: The variation would not be detrimental to the public welfare 
and is in character of the existing use of the site. The netting would provide additional safety 
measures against property damage. The variation would not impair an adequate supply of l!ght 

and airs to any property in the vicinity. The netting system would be a mesh type system with 



I 

metal support pales, which would allow air and light to pass through. The variation would not 
substantially increase congestion in the public streets. The variation would 11ot unduly Increase 
the danger of flood and fire, or unduly tax public utihties and facllltie.s. The variation would not 
endanger the pub!ic health or safety of the .sµrrounding properties. It will further fmptove 
safety. 
/Vo Other Remedy' Standard height fencing systems would not provide adequate protection to 
the surrounding properties or parking Jot to the north. 

~Tennis Court Fencing. Traci<: f~flcing". baseball field backstop and fencing. miscelli'!neous athletic 
field fe•cing 

. GenerCt1:· 'various exiSting chaln-lir)k fences are proposed including: 
a)· ·Replacement of existing chain lin~ tennis court fencing wfth windscreens. New is 

proposed to be Vfnyl Coated, green color, 10 feet high. 
b) Replacement of eMisting chain link track fencing. New Is proposed to· be Vinyl 

Coated, black color,+/· 4 feet high, 
c) Replacement of existing basebatl field chain-link backstop, first and third base line 

chain link fencing. New is proposed to be Vinyl Coated, black color, match existing 
back stop height, base line fences+/- 4 feet high. The existing back-stop is currently 
in the required 35• corner yard Setback off of 57in· StrEet." Moving the baseball field 

··--· ···--· ··· ._... -·----··-to··correct1:his-cbnditio n:-is-ri:Ot f eas·i~)·e·on""S"ite:wi t hb~f tli e-ioss-of:_parki ng.-and-wo ul d · 
· negatively,affect the adjacentprciperties to the east. . · -

d) Repair and Infill of existing miscellaneous athletic field chain.link fendr\g (adjacent 
to the football field and track area). New is proposed to ,be vinyl coated, black color 
in some areas, galvanized In others (to match to existing/adjacent), +/-4 feet to 8 

feet high. 
e) Reference Title 9, Chapter 12 Sec. 9-12-3, subsection D and E; Sec 7-310 .. 

Unique Physical Condition: The Subject Property Is a• existing public high ·school. The existing 
_ chain-'link fencing is a widely accepted standard fencing for the sPort and other High Schools and 

athletic fields/parks in the area. 
Not Self-Created: The Subject Property has been a public high school since 1948 and has been 
expanded as the population and ~cademlc needs have grown in the community since that time. 
Denied Substantial Rights: The carrying out of the strict letter of the provision of the zoning 
.code would Interfere With the public high school's ability to further protect the general public's 
property for the surround neighborhood, as well as on-site. 
Not Merefy Special Privilege: Chain-link fencing is an existing cendition and ls a W[dely accepted 

standard for athleti<S. 
Code and Plan Purpos~: The Variation sought would not result in a use of ~he Subject Property 
that would not be In harmony with the Official Comprehensive Plan or current zoned district of 
18 Institutional Building. 
Essential Character of the Area; The variation would not be detrfmental to the public welfare 
and is in character of the existing use of the site, it matches an existing condition. The variation 
would not impair an adequate supply of light and airs to any property in the vicinity. The 
variation would not substahtlally increase congestion in the pubHc streets. Tlie variation would 



no1 unduly increase the danger of flood and fire, or unduly tax public utilities and facilities. The 
variation wourd not endanger the public health or safety of the surrounding properties. 
No Other Remedy: Different types of fencing would not provide adequate protection and would 
also block spectator viewing. 

Soccer Field accessorv structures: 
6enera1: Replacement ·of (2} team shelters and (1) press box building. The existing accessory 
structures are c:urren~y located within the required corner yard setback of the subject property, 
The proposed new structures would generally the same footpril}t size of the ~Kisting. This 
woUJd also require a variance for the 20' perimeter tanciscaped open sPace/ 1andscap~ 
buffer/scree~lng requirement per code."· Height·cf new press. bi;:rx s~rui;:ture would also require a 

varltince. Proposed building is >i9 feet high, Reference·secs. 7~310; 9-107, H, 2. 

NOTE: future application will seek variance to increa.Se the size of the foOtbaJI field·west side 
bleachers. Exact design Is to be deterniine~ and will be submitted In the future1 under separate 
cover. 
Unique Physical Condition: The Subject Property Is an existing public high school. The existing 
soccer field cannot be located anywhere else on~site. 
Not Se!fCreated: The Subject Property has been a public high school since 1948 and has been 
exp!J.nded as the population and _academlc needs hnve grqwn i.n the community since that t~me . 

. AdditiiJ.nal land· ;;icquisiti.ans for OP,en spa-·~es are limited an9· i __ nfea!!ible due tO incrE!ased property 
cOStS.in the area. 
Denied Substanti~/ Rights: The carrying out cif the str.ict letter of the provision of the. zoning 
code would interfere with the public high school's ability ta have soccer field that meets today's 
competitive standards. 
Nat Merely Special Privilege: 
Code and Plan Purposes: The Variation sought would not result In a use of the Subject Property 
that would not be fn harmony with the Official Comprehensive Plan or current zoned district pf 
IB lnstltutlonal Building. 
Essentitiltharacter of the Area: The variation v11ould not be detrlm.ental to the public w~(fare 
and ·ls in character of the eJ<lsting use of the site,. it matches an ~isting condition. The variation 
would not impa·1r an adequate supply of lig!it and airs to any property itt the vicinity. The 
variation woufd not substantially Increase congestion in the public streets. The variatio.n would­
not unduly increase the danger of flood and fire, or und~ty taX public utilities and fac_llities. The 
varla~lon would not endanger the public health or safety.of the surrounding properties. 
No Other Remedy: The soccer field c:annot be moved Elsewhere the subject property. Spectator 
bleachers are located on the opposfte side of the field. 
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4. Minimum Variation: 
·auantity Of off~street parking: 
Allow 583 tatal p~rkingstalls In lieu of the required 882 for the subject property.·· 

·oft street pai-klng lot and loading. landscaping and st:reening requjrements: 
Eliminate the off~street parking lot landscaped parking lsrand. requirements for the 
existing/modified parking lot west of Grant Street, ·existing parking lot east of Grant Street and 
new Parking rot extension east of Grant Street: 

· ~li~in;;1te the~ff".street parking lot open space scr~ening req1,.1irem~11ts for the existing/modiflE!d 
parking lot wesi of Grant Street, existjng parking let east of G.r,int Street and new parking lot 
e><te"nsion east Of Grant Street. 
Eliminate the loading space screening requirement for the new loading dock area (Buildings and 
Grounds addition}~. 

Sports Safety Netting (Protective fence): 
. Allow a 50' protective netting fence system atthe southern and AOrthern edges o(the baseball 
field located in the southeast corner of the site. · 

. . 

Te:i1.nis·Court Fencing. Track fencing. baseball field backstop and fencing. miscellaneous.athletic 
. , .· .fieJd..f@hGir.1g-----·:~-:-·-·--~~--"·-.:__. __ :m--,-·- ... ~..:. .. ~ .... :.. . ...,.:-··-·--~-.. ·-~-----~---.-~ - -- · ~- --_,..-.. :. 

Tennis_ Courts·- Al!~w viMyl·coatect cha_ln-!ink tennis ~ourt fencing, 10 feet" high, with 
windscreens.-

Track-Allow vinyl coated chain-link track fencing,+/- 4 feet high' 

Baseball field-Allow vinyl coated chain-link backstop and baseline fencing, high to match to 
existing. 

Repair and infill of existing miscellaneous athletic field chal.n link fencing-Allow use of chain-link 
fencing to m~tch to existing_. 

Soccer Field accessory structures: 
Ail ow the replacement of (2) team shelters and (1) press bo.x structure within the required 
earner yard setback. Allow press bOx to be 19' high. 

s. Standards for Variation: Refer to above responses. 
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TABLE OF COMPLIANCE 

Address of subject property:~.~5§~0_0=,S~··o~u~th~. _G~ra'-"ncct~S_lr_e_e~I --------~~~=---

The following table is based on the --"'IB'--_Zoning District.. 

·vo;:, may write -"NI~' ·rthe' . Mininiuin Code ·'Existing · .. -- Proposed· 
... ·-·· .... 

application does NOT affect the Requirements Development Development 
building/subject property. 

, , , ' 

, 

· Lot Area (SF) 350;000 SF 1,501,285 SF :No CHANGE 

Lot Depth 250' 1263' 
, 

NO CHANGE 

Lot Width 200' , 1252' NO CHANGE 

. Builain!1 Height 50( VARIES BUT 47'·6 .. MAX. 48'·0~ (Natatorium Addition) 

Number of Stories NOT LISTED 2 STORIES 2STORIES 
Front Yard Setback 35' VARIES BUT> 3$' NO CHANGE 

Corner Side Yard Setback 35' VARIES BUT,as· NO CHANGE 

·Interior Side Yard Setback 25' VARIES BUT> 25' NO CHANGE 

Rear Yard Setback 25' NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE 

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 
.50 I 750,643 SF .32 I 477,311 SF .34 I 511,098 SF (F.A.R,l*. 

Maximu·m Total Building · 
Coveraqe* NOT LISTED 17% I 254,937 SF 19%./ 280,272 SF 

Maximum Total Lot 
CoveraQe* NOT LISTED 83% / 1,246,348 SF 81% / 1,221,013 SF 

Parking Requirements 

882 STALLS S60 STALLS 583 STALLS 

Parking front.yard setback 35' >35' NO CHANGE 

Parking corner siae yard 
setback 35' WITHIN SETBAC.K NO CHANGE 

Parking interior side yard 
setback 25' >25' NO CHANGE 

. Parking rear vard setback 25' WITHIN SETBACK NO CHANGE 

Loading Reauirem.ents (3) (4) NO CHANGE 

Accessory Structure SAME AS BUILDING EXCEPT 

Information IN REAR OR SIDE YARDS WITHIN SETBACK NO CHANGE 

* Must proVJde actual square footage number and percentage • 
. •-:::,, .. :· 

Where any lack of compliance is shown, state the reason and explain the Village's authority, if any, to approve the 
application despite such lack of compliance:---~~----~--~~~---~----

SEE ATTACHED SHEET 

2017 Version 
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CERTIFICATION 

The Applicant certifies and acknowledges and agrees that: 
A. The statements contained In this application are true and correct lo the best of the Applicant's knowledge and 

belief. The owner of the subject property, If different rram !he applicant, states that tie or she consents ta the filing 
ofthis·applicatlon and that afl information contained in this application is true and correct to the besl of his or her 
knowledge. 

8. The applicant understands that an incomplete or nonconfonnlng application will not be considered. In addition, 
the applicant understands that the Village may require additional information prior to the consideration of this 
application which may include, but is not limited to, the following Items: 

1. Minimum yard and setback dfmsnslons and, where relevant. relation of yard and setbaCk dimensions 
to the heigh~ width, and depth of any structure. 

2. A vehicular and pedestrian circulation plan showing the location, dimensions, gradient, and number of 
all vehlcuJar and pedestrian oirculatfon elements including rights-of-way and streets; driveway 
entrances, curbs, and Cllrb cu~; parking spaces, laadfng spaces, and circulation aisles; sidewalks, 
walkways, .and pathways; and total lot coverage of all circulation elements divided as .between 
·vehicular and pedestrian ways. 

3. AU existing and proposed surface and subsulfaca drainage and retention and detention facilities and 
all existing and proposed water, sewer, gas, electric, telephone, and cable commuliicatlons lines and 
easements and all other utmtr facilities. 

4. Location, size, and arrangement of all outcioor signs and JJghting. 

5, LoiJ:aflan and height of fen€es er screen plantlngs and the type or kink of building materials or 
plantings used for fending or scresnii"lg. 

6. A detaired landscaping pfan1 showing locati<ln, size, and species of all trees, shrubs, and other plant 
materi~I: · 

·7. A tr~·ffic study if required. by the VIiiage Manager or the Board or CommissiOn h~aring th~.applicaJion. 
C. The Applicants shall mak~ the property that Is Ina ~u~ject of. this application available fodnspection by the Village 

at reasonable times; · 

D. If any information Provided in this applfcation changes or becomes incor:np!ete or inapplicable far any i:aasa·n 
following subm'fsslon of ·this ·application, the AppljCants shall submit a supplert_1ental application or other 
acceptable written statement containing the new or vorrected ln.forma!;iQn as soon as practicable but not less than 
ten days following the change, and that failure to do so shal.f be grounds for denial of the application; and 

E. The Applicant understands that he/she Is responsibfe for all applloation fees and any other fees, which the VIiiage 
assesses under the provisions af Subsection 11..-301 D of the Vif/age: of" Hinsdale Zoning Code as amended April 
25, 1989. 

F. THE OWNER OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY AND, IF DIFFERENT, THE APPLICANT ARE JOINTLY. AND 
SEVERALLY LIABLE FOR THE PAYMENT OF TH.E APPLICABLE APPLICATION FEE. BY SIGNING THE 
APPLICATION, THE' OWNER HAS AGREED TO PAY SAID FEE, AND TO CONSENT TO THE FILING AND 
FORECLOSURE OF A LIEN AGAINST SUBJECT PROPERTY FOR THE FEE PLUS COSTS OF COLLECTION, 
IF THE ACCOUNT IS NOT SETTLED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER THE MAILING OF A DEMAN.D FOR 
PAYMENT, 

On the, 3't;A , day of'l:>ece .. Y,.(c , 2D\<I\, JIWeti ·.~•read.,< "ii.Q.QVecertification, understand it, and agree 
to abide by !ls conditions. 

Name of applicant or atithorized .agent 

(} ~· ~ tJ,,. ---~~- =·<7' 14@: ... ·_; 
Notary Public · 

4 

OFFiciALSEAi. 
CATHERINE T HANNON 

NOTARY FUBUC • STATE OF ILLJNOIS 
MYCOM~ISSION EXPIRES 11/19/21 
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ZONING CASE NO: 

PETITIONER: 

APPLICATION: 

MEETING HELD: 

PROPERTY: 

FINAL DECISION 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

PETITION FOR VARIATION 

V-05-19 

ARGON Associates, Inc. on behalf of Hinsdale Township 
High School District 86 

For certain Variations from the Zoning Code of the Village 
of Hinsdale ("Zoning Code") relative to the replacement 
and/or construction of new improvements at Hinsdale 
Central High School, at 5500 S. Grant Street, Hinsdale, 
Illinois. 

A Public Hearing was held on Wednesday, January 15, 
2020, in Memorial Hall, in the Memorial Building, 19 East 
Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, pursuant to a notice 
published in The Hinsdalean on November 28, 2019. 

The subject property is commonly known as 5500 S. Grant 
Street, Hinsdale, Illinois (the "Property") and is legally 
described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part 
hereof. · 

SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The Village of Hinsdale has received a request from 
ARGON Associates, Inc., on behalf of property owner Hinsdale Township High School 
District 86 (the "Applicanf') for certain variations relative to the replacement and/or 
construction of new improvements to the existing building known as Hinsdale Central 
High School located on the Property at 5500 S. Grant Street (the "Application"). The 
improvements proposed at this time are Phase I of a program of improvements and 
upgrades to the High School over the next three (3) years. The general scope of 
Phase I improvements include a natatorium addition, buildings and grounds addition, 
parking lot reconfigurations and modifications due to loading dock relocation; 
associated landscaping, artificial turf replacement, tennis court and fencing 
replacement, running track and fence replacement, separation of storm and sanitary 
utilities due to Flagg Creek Water Reclamation District requirements, chain-link 
baseball field backstop and fence replacement, baseball field sports safety netting 
installation, privacy fencing, soccer field team shelter and press box replacements, 
emergency generator replacement, and various other ADA and health/life safety 
improvements on site (collectively, the "Phase I Improvements"). 

This Property is located in the IB Institutional Buildings Zoning District in the Village of 
Hinsdale at the southwest corner of Ogden Avenue and Oak Street. 
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I 
I 

The Applicant has requested variations to the following Sections of the Village Code 
and Zoning Code of the Village of Hinsdale ("Zoning Code") over which the Zoning 
Board of Appeals of the Village of Hinsdale ("ZBA") has final authority: 

• to Section 9-12-3(E) of the Village Code, to allow a fence higher than the eight (8) 
foot limitation on fences in order to provide for the construction of safety netting at 
the baseball field on the northeast corner of Grant and 57th Street; and 

• to Section 9-12-3(0 & E) of the Village Code and Section 7-310 of the Zoning 
Code, to allow a fence higher than the eight (8) foot height limitation on fences and 
to allow a location for such fences where not otherwise allowed by the setback 
requirements in order to provide for the like-kind replacement of the existing chain 
link tennis court fencing, track fencing, baseball field backstop and miscellaneous 
athletic field fencing; and 

• to Section 7-310 of the Zoning Code to allow building height and screening 
requirements in excess of those allowed by the Zoning Code for the construction 
of two (2) soccer field team _shelters and a press box 

Collectively, these variation requests shall be referred to herein as the "Requested 
Variations." 

In addition to the Requested Variations, additional variations over which the Village 
President and Board of Trustees have final authority were sought and recommended 
for approva·I by the ZBA. Those variations were: 

• to Section 9-104(J)(1)(e)(xi) of the Zoning Code, to allow a reduction in required 
parking from 882 to 583 spaces (existing parking count is 560, so Phase I 
Improvements will actually increase the count to 583); 

• to Section 9-104(H)(2)(g & i); 9-105(c)(2); 9-107(A)(1&2); 9-107(8) of the Zoning 
Code, to provide relief from landscape island, ten (10) foot open space buffer, and 
loading space screening requirements in order to maximize the number of parking 
spaces on the Property; 

• to Section 9-107(H)(2) of the Zoning Code, to provide relief from the building 
setback requirements for the construction of two (2) soccer field team shelters and 
a press box. 

Together, these are the "Additional Variations" and, collectively with the Requested 
Variations, the "Variations". The findings and recommendation of the ZBA on the 
Additional Variations are detailed in a separate Findings and Recommendation from 
the ZBA to the Board of Trustees in this matter. The collective Variations are all 
described in more detail in the Application, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit B and made a part hereof. 

On January 15th, 2020, following the conclusion of the public hearing on this matter, 
the ZBA indicated its approval of the Requested Variations on a vote of six (6) in favor, 
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zero (0) opposed, and one (1) absent, and directed the preparation of this Final 
Decision. 

PUBLIC HEARING: At !he combined public hearing on the Variations, Project Architect 
Nick Graal testified as the representative of the Applicant on the Variations. 

The representative of Applicant reviewed !he Variations for the benefit of the ZBA, and 
how, in the opinion of the Applicant, the standards for Variations had been met. 

In terms of the variation for off-street parking and the off-street parking lot and loading 
zone landscape and screening requirement, the representative of Applicant noted that 
the Property has been an existing public high school since 1948. The existing parking 
facilities do not currently have landscape screening or landscape islands, and the current 
parking lot count does not meet the count requirements. The high school has expanded 
throughout the years as population and academic needs have grown and changed, but 
additional land acquisitions are limited and cost prohibitive due to land value in the area. 
They are proposing an expansion of the southeast parking lot, and proposing alleviation 
of the landscape and screening requirements in order to maximize the amount of parking 
provided onsite. Current parking demands outweigh available parking. There is enough 
parking for staff, but there is a high request for student parking, despite busing being 
available throughout the District. 

None of the Phase I Improvements expand the student population, but are instead 
addressing current needs of the facility. They are attempting to increase parking to 
accommodate demand, but cannot provide an increase if required to meet landscape 
island and other requirements. Meeting the required parking requirements in the Zoning 
Code would require removal of the junior varsity baseball field, and even then, the Code 
requirements could not be met. If current facilities are sacrificed to meet parking 
requirements, the High School will not be able to provide the same level of service to the 
community as it does today. 

A parking garage was not part of the referendum that is funding the Phase I 
Improvements, and a parking garage may have a severe detrimental impact on 
surrounding properties. It was noted that the Variations may decrease congestion in the 
public streets due to the.added parking spaces. 

The representative of the Applicant then addressed the Variations for tennis court 
fencing, track fencing, baseball field backstop and fencing and miscellaneous athletic 
field fencing. All fields are currently fenced; the Variations address replacement of 
existing fencing. The Applicant also proposes a Variation to allow protective netting in the 
form of safety sports netting, at the Junior Varsity Baseball Field, to address some 
community concerns regarding foul balls and home runs. The position of the Junior 
Varsity Baseball Field on the lot relative to the adjacent properties to the east and south 
creates a unique physical condition. The safety netting would prevent foul balls from 
going off-site, and home runs from striking vehicles in the parking lot. The Phase I 
Improvements will increase the safety of the area. Fencing materials other than chain-link 
would prevent viewing the sports activities taking place. 
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While the Applicant is seeking a Variation for landscape screening, it does intend to 
provide landscaping to the extent feasible at the perimeter of the parking lot expansion, 
including about seventeen (17) six-foot (6') tall Arborvitaes. 

The Variation for the soccer field accessory structures was also addressed. The existing 
physical layout of the site presents design challenges, as does the existing water tower 
public utility on-site. Grading issues prevent shifting the soccer field any further east. The 
only practical soh.!tion is to replace the player shelters and press box in their current 
locations within the setback. Better quality materials matching the aesthetic of the softball 
field are proposed. The structures are screened by existing, very tall evergreen trees and 
grading on the east end portion of the site. A height Variation is sought to allow the press 
box to be nineteen (19) feet tall, which, according to the representative of the Applicant, is 
a pretty standard height for site lines from a press box. 

During his presentation, the representative of the Applicant answered various questions 
posed by the members of the ZBA. 

John Ochoa of 5620 S. Washington was present to express general support for the 
Variations. His home abuts the east side of the teacher's parking lot. He stated that the 
Variations are more appealing than the alternatives necessary to meet Code. 

There being no further questions or members of the public wishing to speak on the 
application, the portion of the Public Hearing related to the Requested Variations was 
closed. 

Members discussed the Requested Variations and agreed that the standards for 
variations set forth in 11-503(F) of the Hinsdale Zoning Code had been met Motions to 
approve the Requested Variations were made by Member Alesia and seconded by 
Member Engel. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

Members Moberly, Murphy, Podliska, Alesia, Engel, 
Chairman Neiman 

None 

None 

Member Giltner 

FINDINGS: The following are the Findings of the ZBA relative to the Requested 
Variations: 

1. General Standard: Carrying out the strict letter of the provisions of the Zoning 
Code would create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty, based on satisfaction 
of the standards below: 

2. Unique Physical Condition: The Subject Property is exceptional as compared to 
other lots subject to the same provision by reason of a unique physical condition, 
including presence of an existing use, structure, or sign, whether conforming or 
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nonconforming; irregular or substandard shape or size; exceptional topographical 
features; or other extraordinary physical conditions peculiar to and inherent in the 
subject property that amount to more than a mere inconvenience to the owner and that 
relate to or arise out of the lot rather than the personal situation of the current owner of 
the lot. The Property is landlocked and there are limited opportunities for expansion. All 
members agree that the long-existing precode school structure on the Property, along 
with the physical layout of the structures, athletic fields, uses and parking on the 
Property, proximity of the use to the adjacent neighbors, safety concerns, and 
landlocked nature of the Property, are driving the request for the Requested Variations 
and create a unique physical condition. The Requested Variations in some cases 
concern like-kind replacements of existing fences and other structures. 

3. Not Self-Created: The unique physical condition is not the result of any action or 
inaction of the owner, or of the owner's predecessors in title and known to the owner 
prior to acquisition of the subject property, and existed at the time of the enactment of 
the provisions from which a variation is sought or was created by natural forces or was 
the result of governmental action, other than the adoption of the Zoning Code, for 
which no compensation was paid. The need for the Requested Variations is not self­
created, and is in part driven by the long-existing physical conditions present on the 
Property, and the landlocked nature of the Property. The ZBA finds this standard to 
have been met. 

4. Denied Substantial Rights: The carrying out of the strict letter of the provisions 
from which a variation is sought would deprive the owner of the subject property of 
substantial rights commonly enjoyed by owners of other tots subject to the same 
provision. In this case, requiring the Applicant to conform to the provisions of the 
Zoning Code for which relief is sought would cause the loss of various on-site 
amenities to the community provided by Applicant, and would negatively impact both 
the neighbors and the Applicant's ability to serve the community in the same manner 
as other comparable schools. 

5. Not Merely Special Privilege: The alleged hardship or difficulty is not merely the 
inability of the owner or occupant to enjoy some special privilege or additional right not 
available to owners or occupants of other Jots subject to the same provision, nor 
merely an inability to make more money from the use of the subject property; provided, 
however, that where the standards herein set out exist, the existence of an economic 
hardship shall not be a prerequisite to the grant of an authorized variation. The 
Variations are not sought to make more money from use of the Property, but are 
instead sought in order to make necessary improvements to the Property without 
negatively impacting site conditions and adjacent neighbors. 

6. Code And Plan Purposes: The variation would not result in a use or development 
of the subject property that would not be in harmony with the general and specific 
purposes for which the Zoning Code and the provision from which a variation is sought 
were enacted or the general purpose and intent of the official comprehensive plan. The 
Variations are consistent with the existing use. The ZBA found this standard to have 
been met. 
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7. Essential Character Of The Area: The variation would not result in a use or 
development on the subject property that: 

(a) would be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to the 
enjoyment, use, development, or value of property or improvements permitted in the 
vicinity; or (b) would materially impair an adequate supply of light and air to the 
properties and improvements in the vicinity; or (c) would substantially increase 
congestion in the public streets due to traffic or parking; or (d) would unduly increase 
the danger of flood or fire; or (e) would unduly tax public utilities and facilities in the 
area; or (f) would endanger the public health or safety. 

The granting of the Requested Variations will allow needed improvements to occur at 
the Property, without negatively impacting existing site amenities or adjacent 
neighbors. The building, fields, fencing and other structures already exist, and the 
utilities are already in place. The Requested Variations will not endanger the public 
health or safety. 

8. No Other Remedy: There is no means other than the requested variations by 
which the alleged hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree 
sufficient to permit a reasonable use of the subject property. Limited options exist at 
this landlocked site. The ZBA finds this standard to have been met. 

In addition, Section 9-12-3 of the Village Code provides certain standards for fence 
variations. Those additional standards are that: 1) the petitioner is affected by unique 
circumstances justifying relief from the provisions of Section 9-12-3, 2) the variation will 
not alter the essential character of the locality, 3) the variation will be in harmony with 
the general purpose and intent of Section 9-12~3, 4) the variation will set no 
unfavorable precedent either to the locality or to the village as a whole, 5) the variation 
will be the minimum necessary to afford relief to the petitioner, and 6) the variation will 
not adversely affect the public safety and general welfare. The ZBA finds all of the 
foregoing standards to have been met, for the various reasons set forth above. In 
addition, due to the uniqueness of the Property as a high school, the variation will set 
no unfavorable precedent. 

FINAL DECISIONS: 

Based on the Findings set forth above, the ZBA, by a vote of six (6) in favor, zero 
(0) opposed and one (1) absent, APPROVES and GRANTS the following 
Requested Variations; as described in the Application, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof, relative to construction of 
the Phase I Improvements located in the IB Institutional Building Zoning District 
at 5500 S. Grant Street: 

1. A Variation to Section 9-12-3(E) of the Village Code to allow a fence higher 
than the eight (8) foot limitation on fences in order to provide for the construction 
of fifty (50) foot high protective safety netting system at the baseball field on the 
northeast corner of Grant and 57th Street; and 
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2. A Variation to Section 9-12-3(0 & E) of the Village Code and Section 7-310 of 
the Zoning Code, to allow a fence higher than the eight (8) foot height limitation on 
fences and the setback requirements in order to provide for the replacement of the 
existing chain link tennis court fencing with ten (10) foot high vinyl-coated fencing 
with windscreens, vinyl-coated four (4) foot high track fencing, vinyl-coated chain­
link backstop and baseline baseball fencing with heights that match the existing 
fencing, and use of miscellaneous chain-link athletic field fencing for repair and 
infill of existing fencing; and 

3. A Variation to Section 7-310 of the Zoning Code to allow building height and 
screening requirements In excess of those allowed by the Zoning Code for the 
construction of two (2) soccer field team shelters and a nineteen (19) foot high 
press box without the required twenty (20) foot perimeter landscaped open 
space/landscape buffer/screening requirement. 

Signed: ~--:::-:--,-:--;---:-----,,.,.-:-------­
Robert Neiman, Chair 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Village of Hinsdale 

Filed this _day of _____ ,, 2020, with the office of the Building Commissioner. 
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--------------------------- ------ ------

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

PARCEL I: LOTS 1 AND 2, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE 
FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PARINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN 
DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL II: THE EAST 350 FEET OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF OF 
LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL Ill: THE EAST 350 FEET OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF OF 
LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRIL 5, 1920AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL IV: THE NORTH HALF OF LOT 3 (EXCEPT THE EAST 350 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRIL 5, 1920AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL V: THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF (EXCEPT THE EAST 350 
FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, 
BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST 
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF 
RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS 

PARCEL VI: THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS 
HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO 
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THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN 
DUPAGE COUNTY, ILUNOIS 

PARCEL VII: THE NORTH HALF OF LOT 4, (EXCEPT THE EAST 200 FEET 
THEREOF) IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OFR SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL VIII: LOT 1, IN PENZES RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 
(EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS 
HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN 
DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL IX: LOT 5, (EXCEPT THE EAST 150 FEET THEREOF), IN PENZES 
RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PARCEL X: THE WEST 75 FEET OF THE EAST 150 FEET OF LOT 5, IN PENZES 
RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER 
(EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE 
THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XI: THE EAST 75 FEET OF LOT 5, IN PENZES RESUBDIVISION OF THE 
SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN 
BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST 
HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF 
SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILUNOIS 

PARCEL XII: THE EAST 60 FEET OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE 
EAST 60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE 
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FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN 
DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XIII: THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST 
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE SOUTH 33 
FEET THEREOF, IN DUPAGE COUTNY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XIV: LOTS 11 THROUGH 20, BOTH INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 2, IN BRANIGAR 
BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, 
TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, 
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT 
NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 5500 South Grant Street, Hinsdale, Illinois 
PINS: 09-13-100-017, 09-13-100-008, 09-13-100- 011, 09-13-100-012, 09-13-100-013, 
09-13-100-014, 09-13-100-015 & 09-13-101-027 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
SS: 

COUNTY OF DU PAGE 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

In Re the Matter of: 

5500 South Grant Street 
Hinsdale Central High School 
Case No. V-05-19 

1 

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony 

taken at the Public Hearing of the above-

entitled matter before the Hinsdale zoning Board 

of Appeals, at 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, 

Illinois, on the 15th day of January, 2020, at 

the hour of 6:48 p.m. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

MR. ROBERT NEIMAN, Chairman; 

MR. JOSEPH ALESIA, Member; 

MS. KATHRYN ENGEL, Member; 

MR. GARY MOBERLY, Member; 

MR. THOMAS MURPHY, Member; 

MR. JOHN PODLISKA, Member. 

KATHLEEN Y./. BONO, CSR 630-834-n79 



I 
2 

1 ALSO PRESENT: 

2 MR. ROBERT MC GINNIS, Director of Community 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Development/Building; 

MS. CHRIST1NE BRUTON, Deputy Clerk and 

Board's secretary; 

MR. NICHOLAS GRAAL, Arcon Associates, 
Architect; 

MR. JOHN OCHOA. 

8 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: The next case on our 

9 agenda for public hearing Is Case V-05-19 -

.,,~~ ..... 10 5500 South Grant Street, Hinsdale Central High 

11 School. 
12 MR. GRAAL: Good evening. I'm Nick 

13 Graal with Arcon Associates, project architect 

14 representing School District 86 tonight. 

1'5 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: So to suggest a way 

16 to go through this case, because there are five 

17 separate variance requests, if you could take us 
18 through a very brief overview of each variance 

19 or variance requests one at a time, go through 

"'·""""' 20 why you believe you meet criteria for the 

21 variance, and then move on to the next --

22 Should we, Robb, is it your 

1 suggestion that we vote on each one? Or go 

2 through all five, then close the hearing, and 

3 then vote on each of the five? 

4 MR. MC GINNIS: Correct, 

5 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: The latter? 

6 MR. MC GINN£S; Yes. That would be 

7 great, yes. 

3 

8 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: So if you could take 

9 us through one variance request at a time, why 

ourn•Y 10 you meet the criteria. 

11 MR. GRAAL: Sure. 

12 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: And then move (')n to 

13 11 2, 3, 41 and s. Then we will hear from 

14 anybody else who wishes to address us. Then we 

15 will close the publfc hearing, and then we will 

16 vote. Okay. Glad we got it. 

17 MR. GRAAL: I will try to be as brief 

18 and try to do it in a summary fashion as 

19 possible. 

We do have several variances that 

21 we are requesting. The first variance fs the 

22 quantity of off-street parking. And really with 

4 

1 meeting the seven criteria, you wlll probably 

2 hear me repeat the same things for each one with 

3 some nuances there. 

4 As far as unique physical 

5 condition, the subject property has been an 

6 existing publfc high school since 1948. This is 

7 not self-created. 

8 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN; Well 1 tell us 

9 which -- We are just talking about the parking 

........ ~ 10 one first? That's what I was suggesting. 

11 MR. GRML: Correct. I will go through 

12 the parking variance first . 

13 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: The parking, okay. 

14 MR. MURPHY: It looks to me like land 

15 2, It's all the same answers for all the same 

16 issues for the amount of required parking and 

17 the removal of the landscape island. It looks 

18 like 3 and 4, with respect to the height of the 

19 fence, I'm just --

"'' .. ''"" 20 Is there any reason -- We could 

21 just address 1 and 2 collectively and 3 and 4? 

22 I'm just trying and make it simple. 

5 

1 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: That will work. 

2 MR. MOBERLY: Good idea. 

3 MR. MURPHY: If you go 5 times 7, 

4 that's 35 different headings. We're cutting it 

5 down a little bit by combining. I'm trying to 

6 make it easier. But, yes, you need to address 

7 the parking issues by themselves. How long the 

8 high school has been there, but the parking 

9 issues by themselves. And does that make sense? 

"'·"""~ 10 MR.. GRAAL: Okay. To address the 

11 variances No. 1 and 2 in regards to quantity of 

12 off-street parking and the off-street parking 

13 lot and loading zone landscape and screen 

14 requirements. 

15 Unique phys!cal condition, again, 

16 this property has been a school since 1948. The 

17 existing parking facilities right now do n(')t 

18 have landscape screening or landscape islands in 

19 them currently, and the current property does 

....,,,, .. ~ 20 not meet the current parking lot count to zoning 

21 today. 

22 Not self-created, the school has 
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1 been expanded throughout the years as the 

2 population and academic needs have grown and 

3 changed throughout the community. And 

4 additional land acquisitions are limited and 

5 cost prohibitive due to land value In the area. 

6 In order to address the quantity of 

7 parking, we are doing an expansion of the 

8 parking Jot. We are requesting alleviation of 

9 the zoning and the landscape and the screening 

,,.,,_..,.,.. 10 requirements In order to maximize the amount of 

11 parking we can provide onslte. 

12 MR. ALESIA: To the south end of the 

13 lot an the screen? 

14 MR. GRAAL: Correct, to the southeast 

15 portion. 

16 MR. MC GINNIS: So you are going to 

17 lose some of that grass? 

18 MR. GRAAL: Correct. 

8 

1 they had their license, the answer was no. I 

2 believe there was some sort of lottery system, 

3 So not every senior could even get a parking 

4 spot. They encouraged carpooling and walking 

5 and using the public transportation; but it's a 

6 very, very hot commodity. 

7 MR. POOL!SKA: And is that expected to 

8 become greater or less In future years? 

9 MR. GRAAL: We are not expanding. None 

··-· 10 of the additions that are proposed to the 

11 building are expanding the student population. 

12 They are addressing current needs of the 

13 facility. So I can 1t predict how many more 

14 people will want to drive In the future, but I 

15 would suspect that the need will be sustained. 

16 The request will be sustained throughout the 

17 near future. 

18 MR. PODUSKA: Because I guess this 

19 MR. PODUSKA: The requests for parking 19 would be an easier call if at the present time 

•. ,, .. ~ 20 now, are you able to meet the demand for parking ~···· 20 you only had, say, 400 applications for parking 

21 as it presently exists? In other words, I take 21 spaces and you were dealing with the difference 

22 it there has to be, If you want to park, if you 22 between 500 versus 800. But it's more 

7 9 

1 are a student, you want to park, you have to 

2 apply. 

3 MR. GRAAL: That's correct. And demand 

4 outweighs what is available. We do have enough 

6 parking for staff, but there is a high request 

6 for student parking. But the school district 

7 does provide busing capabilities throughout the 

8 community. 

9 MR. MURPHY: Property that backs up 

•="• 10 against 55th Street, you could make a lot of 

11 money for parking spaces for students in your 

12 drivevvay. 

13 MR. PODUSKA: Can you give us an idea 

14 of how many requests for parking permits the 

15 school gets as opposed to how many they can 

16 accommodate? 

17 MR. GRAAL: [don't know that offhand. 

18 I would have to look to the school district. We 

19 don't have that Information. 

MR. MOBERLY: My information is eight 

21 years old, but at that time only seniors could 

22 apply to park. Juniors and sophomores, even if 

1 problematic If we are already at a point where 

2 people need more parking spaces than we are able 

3 to _provide now. 

4 MR. GRAAL: I think we are addressing 

5 that. We are increasing the amount of parking. 

6 The proposed plan has a modest increase of about 

7 10 or so spots. 

8 And lf we were to provide landscape 

9 islands and the other requirements, we would be 

""'~,.·~ 10 less than providing ten more. We would even be 

11 providing less than what's there now. So we are 

12 trying to address the parking situation as best 

13 we can without taking up athletic fields, 

14 reducing the size of the additions. There Is 

15 not much else we can do there that makes sense. 

16 I mean the parcels that are on the 

17 south, the residential parcels that kind of form 

18 an island on the southwest portion of the site, 

19 they are so far removed from the rest of the 

""'"'""'' 20 building, and there is grading concerns, and the 

21 sheer size of land available, it's not really 

22 feasible to add parking. 
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1 MR. PODUSKA: In that southwest 

2 corner? 

3 MR. GRAAL: In that southwest corner, 

4 what the school district property currently 

5 owns. Even if we expanded to the other parcel, 

6 if that was a possibility, which it really Isn't 

7 at this time, you are not gaining much at all. 

8 MR. PODUSKA: So it looks like that if 

9 you had to meet the zoning requirement it wOuld 

""""" 1G be that junior varsity baseball field that would 

11 have to be sacrificed I take it, right? 

12 MR. GRAAL: Yes. The current lot 

13 encroaches onto that field slightly but not --

14 It is still an appropriate size junior varsity 

15 field, so, yes. If we were to meet the zoning 

16 requirement, that JV ball field would no longer 

17 be useable. 

18 MR. PODUSKA: That's what's in the 

12 

1 you are making a good point, but service to the 

2 community is having JV ball fields rather than 

3 more parking. 

4 MR. PODLISKA: Which that articulates 

5 the hardship we face here if we try to push to 

6 what the code requires, right? 

7 MR. GRAAL: Right. You would lose 

a facilltles. 

9 MR. MOBERLY: I'm going to get a lot of 

.-_;. • .., 10 angry, irate emails or something from all the 

11 children that want to drive to school. Sorry. 

12 MR. GRAAL: So I think through those 

13 comments we touched on denied substantlal 

14 rights. If we do carry out to the letter of the 

15 law, we will lose current facilities; and we 

16 will not be able to provide the same level of 

17 service to the community as we do today. 

18 MR. PODUSKA: Has there been any 

19 balance here. We might as well try and sort 19 discussion about a garage, in other words, doing 

•• ,,~ 20 this out. Would that field, would that give us _,, 20 a second level? 

21 the whole 800 and some odd spaces; or would you 21 MR. GRAAL: No. That was not Included 

22 still be short? 

11 

1 MR. GRAAL: No, you'd still be shy. 

2 With the amount of what's available onslte, 

3 really it's not feasible to meet the letter of 

4 the law to the code. We would lose more than 

5 the JV ball fields. We would start getting into 

6 the other areas, which is a detriment to what 

7 the school can provide as far as cocurricular 

8 and athletic activities. It would be a 

9 detriment to the community because we couldn't 

,. ..... ~" 10 provide those services. 

11 MR. MOBERLY: But all the staff has a 

12 place to park, is that correct? 

13 MR. GRAAL: That's correct. 

14 MR. MOBERLY: And they drive from 

15 Naperville and Aurora and Chicago, all over. So 

16 they need a place to park. I'm not sure a 

17 healthy 16-, 17-, 18-year-old needs to have a 

18 parking spot when there is busing service and 

19 bicycle. You and I walked uphill every day each 

"'""'"~ 20 way to school for four miles in a blizzard. So 

21 the word need to me is subjective. I would 

22 rather have a junior varsity ball field. I know 

22 in the referendum that was passed by the 

13 

1 corn mu nity. 

2 MR. PODUSKA: Well, that would be the 

3 first point that we are talking about, very 

4 substantial financial commitment to do that. 

5 MR. GRAAL: Correct. And it would, the 

6 aesthetics for surrounding property versus a 

7 surface lot to a parking garage, I would say 

B that would be a severe detrimental impact to the 

9 surrounding properties. 

""~'" 10 Not merely special privilege. The 

11 variations sought are common to other high 

12 schools in the area. This also -- again, we 

13 touched on this -- maintains the status quo in 

14 order to provide the current level of academlcsr 

15 cocurricular activities, athletics onsite. 

16 Code and plan purposes, the 

17 variations being sought are all inline in 

18 regards to the parking. With the current use of 

19 the subject property zoned IB Institutional, no 

,,.. ... ,.~ 20 changes are proposed, This is a high school. 

21 We are going to keep it as a high school. 

22 Essential character of the area, 
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1 the variations would not materially be 

2 detrimental to public welfare or materially 

3 injurious to the enjoyment, use, or deyelopment 

4 of surrounding properties. We are expanding an 

5 existing parking lot and reconfiguring another 

6 existing parking lot for load Ing zone purposes. 

7 The variations would not impair 

B adequate supply of light or air to the adjacent 

9 properties. It's a surface parking lot. 

"'-"'""'"" 10 The variations would not increase 

11 congestion in the public streets due to traffic 

12 or parking. It will decrease with the modest 

13 increase In parking. I'm not saying Jes going 

14 to improve that much, but we are proposing the 

15 adding of parking spaces. 

16 Variations would not unduly 

17 increase the danger of fire or flood. These 

18 surface improvements are all going through the 

19 appropriate authorities having jurisdiction as 

"'''"~'"" 20 far as stormwater management; so getting the 

21 appropriate approvals there. 

22 The variations would not tax the 

15 

1 public utilities and facilities in the area. 

2 Again, we are working with the local authorities 

3 having jurisdiction as far as stormwater 

4 management, site runoff. 

5 The variations would not endanger 

6 the public health, safety, or welfare. Again, 

7 this is an extension of existing lots or 

8 reconfiguring the existing tots. 

9 No other remedy. The proposed 

"'-""""" 10 parking lats maximize what we have onsite. 

11 Again1 if we were to expand those lots, the 

12 first thing that would go would be JV baseball 

13 fields and, again, the other athletic fields and 

14 green spaces onsite. 

15 Shall I move on to items 3 and 4 

16 in regarding fencing? 

17 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Anybody have any 

18 questions about the parking, anything further? 

19 Please. 

16 

1 athletic field fencing. These fencings are all 

2 currently onsite. We are calling out for their 

3 replacement. 

4 We are also proposing a variation 

5 to allow protective netting, safety sports 

6 netting, at the JV baseball field, to currently 

7 address some community concerns in regards to 

8 fou I bal Is. 

9 

"''°"''"" 10 

The unique physical condition here 

is the position where the JV baseball field is 

11 located on the lot in regards to the adjacent 

12 properties to the east and south. 

13 MR. ALESIA: Speaking of community just 

14 In general, have we received any objections from 

15 any neighbors as to any of these variances? 

16 MR. GRAAL: No objections so far. We 

17 did have some community contact. Mr. Ochoa did 

18 ask us to take a look at the parking lot 

19 expansion to see if there was any way to soften 

., ........ 20 that edge. We are asking for variances 

21 regarding the landscape screening, but we do 

22 propose to have some landscape over there. 

17 

If I can zoom in here-. If you see 

2 to the right-hand portion of the screen, we are 

3 proposing to add at the eastern edge of the 

4 parking lot several, actually more than several 1 

5 about 17 Arborvitaes, 6-foot tall, to help 

6 soften that edge against the property line 

7 there. 

8 So although we are seeking 

9 variances in regards to landscaping, we are 

... ,,~fl'" 10 trying to provide as much landscaplng as 

11 feasible and also to help address some concerns 

12 that were raised. 

13 Other than that, there has been no 

14 real negative responses. We did go to Plan 

15 Commission the other week. We are doing Plan 

16 Commission in conjunction wlth this application 1 

17 and some concerns were raised about just 

18 communication as we go through construction and 

19 construction traffic. 

MR. GRAAL: Variances are requested for •·""'" 20 We are looking at ways with the 

21 tennis court fencing, track fencing, baseball 

22 field backstop and fencing, and miscellaneous 

21 District to help keep the community and 

22 surrounding neighbors informed on a more 
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1 up-to-date and timely basis. 

2 The fencing, not self-created. 

3 Again, these are existing athletic fields and 

4 ball fields. And in regards to the safety 

5 netting that's proposed, that is in regards to 

6 some community concerns about foul balls an that 

7 field; and that's being proposed to protect 

8 errant foul balls from going offsite. 

9 MR. ALESIA: What about home runs for 

~-.. 10 the new parking lot? I know some klds that are 

11 coming up. 

12 MR. GRAAL: We look forward to that for 

13 sure. We do propose safety netting along the 

14 south edge of the new parking lot, which would 

15 take care of any good home runs to protect the 

16 vehicles onsite. 

17 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Especially important 

18 in light of the video camera in center field 

19 relaying the signals to the Hinsdale Central 

°'·"~'"" 20 dugout. 
21 MR. MOBERLY: You are joking, of 

22 course. 

19 

1 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. 

2 MR. MOBERLY: Be careful, let's 

3 clarify. LT is listening to this. 

4 MR. GRAAL: Denied substantial rights. 

5 If we were carrying out to the letter for 

6 zoning, we wouldn't be able to provide athletic 

7 fields that are of equal quality to any public 

8 park or public high school facility. Chainlink 

9 fence Is a common fencing material for those 

"""'""' 10 purposes. Again, it's what's out there now. 

11 For the safety netting, if we did 

12 not provide that, we would not be addressing the 

13 communrtyis concerns and foul balls or home runs 

14 could potentially be an Issue. 

15 Not merely a special privilege. 

16 Again, the safety netting is due to community 

17 concerns and safety concerns. And the chalnlink 

18 fence replacements are related to general 

19 athletic field standards. 

Code and plan purposes. Again, we 

21 are not changing the use of any of these 

22 athletlc fields. The tennis courts will be 

20 

1 tennis courts. The baseball field will be a 

2 baseball field. The track will be the track. 

3 These are really maintenance items at the end of 

4 the day. 

5 Essential character of the area. 

6 These will not be a detriment to the public 

7 welfare. They actually increase the safety of 

8 the area. The fencing ~roposed does not lmpair 

9 any supply of light or air. The netting that's 

"'°"'"'""' 10 proposed is a standard netting, see-through, 

11 light and air can pass through. Chainlink fence 

12 also, by nature, light and air passes through. 

13 The variations will not increase 

14 traffic or parklng In the existing facilities. 

15 The variations will not increase the danger of 

16 flood or fire. Variations will not tax 

17 utilities. These are fencing. The variations 

18 will not endanger the public health or safety. 

19 They actually help to improve it. 

'"'"'""~ 20 No other remedy. If we were to go 

21 with a different fencing type, spectators would 

22 not be able to view the tennis match. 

21 

1 Spectators would not be able to view really any 

2 of the athletic activities going on. If we were 

3 denied the right to put safety netting with that 

4 variance, we would not be able to address the 

5 communityrs concerns. Standard backstop and 

6 fence for a baseball field just won't cut it. 

7 The final variation. This is in 

8 regards to the soccer field accessory 

9 structures. These are on the west portion of 

•••• ., 10 the site. The soccer field is just south of the 

11 football stadium. Currently there are two 

12 player shelters. They are of a wood stud and 

13 siding construction, as well as a storage and 

14 press box building that's in the center of 

15 those. 

16 The unique physical condition is 

17 the location of that soccer field onsite. 

18 Again, the east portion of the athletic fields 

19 we have the football stadium, the tennis courts, 

o~ .. ,-.. 20 practice field, and soccer field, and as well as 

21 another challenge onslte. There is a water 

22 tower public utility that we have to work 
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1 around. 

2 The variations in regards to these 

3 accessory structures being within the required 

4 setback, we cannot shift the soccer field any 

5 further to the east due to grading issues with 

6 the surrounding fields and the layout. This 

7 isn't self-created. We are replacing the 

8 structures one-for-one in their existing 

9 locations. 

"'~'·""" 10 Denied substantial rights. If we 

11 are not granted the variance to demolish and 

12 rebuild these structures where they are 

13 currently at, we would not be able to provide 

14 player shelters or press box for -- This is the 

15 varsity. This is where the varsity plays for 

16 the soccer team. 

17 We are also proposing better 

18 aesthetic quality materials more matching the 

19 softball field. Behind the District 

"'"~-""" 20 Administration Center, there is a softball field 

21 to the northeast of the site. We are matching 

22 those player shelters and dugouts. It's painted 

23 

1 masonry with standing seam metal roof, They are 

2 more decorative than the current wood stud and 

3 wood siding structures that are out there 

4 currently. 

5 Not merely special privilege. It1s 

6 pretty common for soccer fields to have player 

7 shelters and a press box structure as compared 

8 to other high school athletic fields. 

9 Code and plan purposes. Again, 

"'·•=•" 10 these are for the soccer fields, one-to-one 

11 replacement. We are not changing what the 

12 athletic field is, what services we provide, or 

13 changing the zoning from IB Institutional. 

14 Essential character of the area. 

15 variations will not be a material detriment to 

16 the public welfare or injurious to the enjoyment 

17 of surrounding properties. It's one-for-one 

18 replacement of the structures that are out 

19 there. 

"", ... ,~ 20 Variations would not impair an 

21 adequate supply of light and air to the adjacent 

22 properties or improvements. The structures 

24 

1 themselves are screened by existing, very tall 

2 evergreen trees and grading on the east end 

3 portion of the site. 

4 We are seeking a variance for the 

5 press box to be 19 feet, which is pretty 

6 standard for site lines for a press box. 

7 The variations would not increase 

8 congestion on the public streets or traffic or 

9 parking. Again, it1s one-for-one replacement of 

,,,,.,., ... 10 existing structures. We are not expanding the 

11 soccer fields or adding another soccer field. 

12 Variations would not unduly 

13 increase the danger of fire or flood. Again, 

14 it's a one-for-one replacement of the 

15 structures. We are working with the local 

16 authorities, having jurisdiction as far as 

17 stormwater management. We are proposing to 

18 regrade the soccer field. There is currently 

19 drainage issues on that field we are looking to 

.,,,.,.. .. ~ 20 correct. 

21 Variations would not tax the public 

22 utilities and facilities in the area. The 

25 

1 varia.tions would not endanger the public health 

2 or welfare of the surrounding properties. 

3 No other remedy. If we were not 

4 allowed to build these structures within the 

5 setback, we would not be able to replace the 

6 structures that are there currently. We would 

7 have to take those down because they are in need 

B of repair( and we would not be able to replace 

9 them. We cannot move the soccer field any 

'"•'=" 10 further to the east, so we would have to go 

11 without. 

12 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Any Board members 

13 have any questions about the fifth variance? 

14 MR. ALESI!>.: So the new ones are going 

15 where the old ones are? 

16 MR. GRAAL: That's correct. 

17 MR. MOBERLY: You said it's a painted 

18 masonry? 

19 MR. GRAAL: That's correct. 

"'""' 20 MR. MOBERLY: What color? 

21 MR. GRAAL: I believe the ones out 

22 there right now are white? Are they tan? I was 
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1 going to say they are tan. 

2 MR. MOBERLY: Just don't paint it 

3 black. Robb, you got that joke? Don't paint it 

4 black. 

5 MR. MC GINNIS: Got it. 

6 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Are you going to let 

7 us in on that? 

8 MR. MOBERLY: After the meeting, It's 

9 somewhat controversial, although it was a great 

·~'&""" 10 song. 
11 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: You are dating 

12 yourself, Gary. 

13 Okay. Any other questions? 

14 Okay. Thank you. 

15 Anyone else in the audience who 

16 wants to address the Board on this matter? 

17 MR. OCHOA: Good evening. My name is 

18 John Ochoa. I live at 5620 South Washington 

19 Street. In full disclosure, I am also currently 

"""~'"'' 20 
21 

sitting on a special committee of the school 

board to assist the building committee with the 

22 referendum implementation. And a number of 

27 

1 years ago, I was sitting on your side of the 

2 table, tao. 

3 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Congratulations on 

4 your promotion. 

5 MR. OCHOA: Thank you for your service. 

6 So I'm here to speak generally in 

7 support of the variances that are being 

8 requested. My house abuts the east side of the 

9 teacher parking lot there. And so when you talk 

.,.,,~,p~ 10 about the parking variances, as you already 

11 discussed, the alternatives are kind of less 

12 appealing than granting the variances, either a 

13 parking structure, which, as a neighbor, would 

14 not be desirable, or paving aver more of the 

15 area where the ball field is now would also not 

16 be desirable as a neighbor. So I'm in support 

17 of that. 

18 Jn support, generally speaking, of 

19 the fencing for the safety purposes for foul 

."."'" 20 balls and such. What originally brought this to 

21 my attention really was the fencing along the 

22 east side of the parking lot there because 

28 

1 that's where a parking lot abuts residential 

2 property. And the ordinance requires landscape 

3 buffers, as well as fencing, screening fencing, 

4 to separate residences from parking lots. So 

5 I'm glad to see that the school district is 

6 proposing a solid fence. Details matter here so 

7 I am interested in what kind of fence exactly, 

8 what the color will be, what the details will 

9 look like. 

0-., .. 111~ 1-0 I'm also glad to see that there 

11 looks like they are putting some landscaping in 

12 some areas. Although it's a little bit hard to 

13 tell, Nick, exactly how far these Arborvitae 

14 stretch. But whatever landscaping could be 

15 provided would be beneficial to all the 

16 residences there because you are still kind of, 

17 even though there Is a fence, you are still 

18 looking at a parking lot and a school property. 

19 One suggestion I might have, might 

''""'" 20 be a bit unorthodox, is to offer to put the 

21 landscaping on the residents' side of the fence 

22 as opposed to the school side of the fence. 

29 

1 These are all very deep lots on Washington 

2 Street. They are all 300-foot deep lots, and I 

3 dare say some of the neighbors might actually 

4 appreciate landscaping even if it was on their 

5 own property. They would do a better job of 

6 screening both the fence and the parking lot 

7 that way and not impinge on the parking, the 

8 parking lot area. 

9 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Wouldn't the school 

oom"'" 10 district then have to go to each of the property 

11 owners to see if that's what they want? 

12 MR. OCHOA: I would imagine so, yes. 

13 l'm just throwing that out there as a means to 

14 kind of make both, a win-win for both parties. 

15 The landscaping, more landscaping would be 

16 desirable. I think the ordinance actually 

17 requires a wider landscape strip than they are 

18 probably providing right now. So I think that, 

19 I'm not sure how all the other neighbors would 

"''"'" 20 feel. Speaking for me personally, I would be 

21 happy to let them plant evergreens on my 

22 property and save their asphalt on their side of 
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1 the property; but other neighbors may feel 

2 differently. 

3 So generally speaking, like I said, 

4 I'm speaking here in favor of the variances that 

5 are required; and that1s my statement. 

6 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Great. Thank you. 

7 Anybody else who wishes to address the Board on 

8 any of these Items? 

9 Okay. Do I hear a motion to close 

'"'"" 10 the public hearing on Case V-05-2019? 

11 MR. ALESIA: So moved. 

12 MS. ENGEL: Second. 

13 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll call, please. 

14 MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly? 

15 MR. MOBERLY: Yes. 

16 MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia? 

17 MR. ALESIA: Yes. 

18 MS. BRUTON: Member Murphy? 

19 MR. MURPHY: Yes. 

20 MS. BRUTON: Member Engel? 

21 MS. ENGEL: Yes. 

22 MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska? 

31 

1 MR. PODUSKA: Yes. 

2 MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman? 

3 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. 

4 * * * 
5 (Which were all the proceedings had 

6 in the above-entitled cause.) 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF DU PAGE ) 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS 
SS: 

COUNTY OF DU PAGE 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

In Re the Matter of: 

5500 South Grant Street 
Hinsdale Central High School 
Case No. V-05-19 

1 

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony 

taken at the Deliberations of the Public Hearing 

in the above-entitled matter before the Hinsdale 

Zoning Board of Appeals, at 19 East Chicago 

Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on the 15th day of 

January, 2020, at the hour of 7:22 p.m. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 

MR. ROBERT NEIMAN, Chairman; 

MR. JOSEPH ALESIA, Member; 

MS. KATHRYN ENGEL, Member; 

MR. GARY MOBERLY, Member; 

MR. THOMAS MURPHY, Member; 

MR. JOHN PODLISKA, Member. 
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1 ALSO PRESENT: 

2 MR. ROBERT MC GINNIS, Director of Community 

Development/Building~ 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

MS. CHRISTINE BRUTON, Deputy Clerk and 

Board's secretary; 

MR. NICHOLAS GRAAL, Arcon Associates, 

Architect; 

MR. JOHN OCHOA. 

9 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: So before we begin 

"'""'~'"" 10 our deliberations, we have been given a 
11 memorandum from the Village counsel on the 

12 level, limited level of deference that the 

13 Zoning Board of Appeals should apply when 
14 considering a variance request from a school 

15 district. That limited standard rs that schoots 
16 are stlll subject to municipal zoning authority 

17 and processes as long as the municipality, in 

18 this case the Zoning Baard of Appeals, does not 
19 act in a matter that either regulates 

.,2., .. ,. 20 educational activities or frustrates a school 

21 district's statutory duties. 

22 I'm not sure any of the variance 

3 

1 requests before us thfs evening would Involve 

2 our regurating educational activities, might be 

3 regulating sports activities. We might want to 

4 consider athletlcs as part of the educational 

5 purposes of Hinsdale Central. 

6 I don't think the school district 

7 has a statutory duty to do any of these things. 

8 So I'm just throwing that out there because I 

9 think there ls a very limited level of deference 

.,.n.,,,,... 10 that applies given these particular variance 

11 requests. 

12 That being said, who wants to begin 

13 deliberations? 

14 MR. MOBERLY: 1 wltl start. I'm In 

15 support of all the variances. Two of our 

16 chlldren have been through -- the only two --

17 have been to Hinsdale Central. I know the area. 

18 It's a very tight faclllty. It's landlocked. 

19 There is limited opportunities for expansion. 

"'~"'"'" 20 They've got a lot done, and they are going to 

21 get even more done within the parameters of the 

22 property that they own. Sor think the one that 

4 

1 keeps screaming out to me Is no other remedy, no 

2 other remedy. We keep tweaking the different 

3 things, and they really don't have a whale lot 

4 of other remedies. 

5 Mr. Ochoa, 1 don't know about lfwe 

6 have the authority to tell the school board 

7 where to landscape and where not to landscape, 

8 or that's In the purview of the trustees or the 

9 Plan Commission or some other body, but-I don't 

.,., .. .,," 10 think that's our wheelhouse. But, yes, I 

11 support the variances. 

12 MS. ENGEL: I would say certainly for 

13 the Increased safety of everybody that drives 

14 through there and llves there, fencing Is 

15 definitely something that I agree with. 

16 I also walked quite a ways to 

17 school back and forth ln all kind of inclement 

18 weather, and I didn't have a car. So the idea 

19 or the necessity to drive when you have a bus, I 

"'·'•"'" 20 think as long as the faculty and the staff has 

21 sufficient parking It's probably suitable. It 

22 does seem a quite substantial amount of 

1 additional parking to me, requirement, anyway. 

2 MR. ALESIA: I would agree with Gary 

3 for all the reasons stated. 

4 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: John? 

5 

5 MR. PODUSKA: I'm in agreement as well 

6 with the statements that were made. 

7 MR. MURPHY: Me, too. 

8 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Okay. The only thing 

·9 I would add Is neighbors adjoining the -- I 

'"'"::'"" 10 guess it's the soccer field and the landscaping, 

1 ~ 10-foot Arborvitae, if properly spaced, they 

12 grow really tall and really wide. So whlle the 

13 first couple of years there may be space in 

14 between, they get really big If they are taken 

15 care of and that should provide adequate 

16 screening as well. 

17 But I agree with the other Board 

18 members that the variation requests, the 

19 variation standards have been met for each of 

",a"''" 20 the five requests. 

21 Robb, do you want us to vote 

22 separately on each of the five; or can we vote 
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1 on all of them together? 

2 MR. MC GINNIS: I think what's 

3 important is to try and draw a distinction 

4 between those that you have final authority over 

5 and those that are going to the Board as a 

6 recommendation. 

7 So 3 and 4 and part of 5, If you 

8 look at my memo, are within your purview. 5, 

9 partially. You have got authority over building 

•u•• 10 setback under 7-310. So 3, 4, and part of 5 

11 would be part of your.final decision. 

12 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: But part of 5 has to 

13 be recommended? 

14 MR. MC GINNIS: Correct. The building 

15 height and screening requirements for the press 

16 box and the team shelters would move on to the 

17 Board as a recommendation. But the building 

18 setback is within your authority, and that1s 

19 specifically 7-310. 

.,,,,., 20 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Thank you for that 

21 clarification. 

22 MR. PODUSKA: Robb, reading your memo, 

7 

1 at the bottom, it seems to be sayfng that we do 

2 have authority with respect to the soccer team 

3 shelters and the press box. But you are saying 

4 now that we do not, is that correct? 

5 MR. MC GINNIS: I'm sorry. It's 

6 increase in fence height and setback for the 

7 baseball field backstop and the soccer team 

8 shelters and press box but not for the height 

9 and screening of those structures. I'm sorry if 

•n"~'N 10 that last sentence wasn't clear. 

11 

12 

MR. PODUSKA: Oh, okay. 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Okay. So given that 

13 the first two variance requests have to do with 

14 the parking lot and are recommended decisions --

15 Correct? 

16 MR. MC GINNIS: Correct. 

17 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Do I hear a motion to 

18 approve those first two variance requests to 

19 recommend? 

""'·'"" 20 
21 

22 

MR. ALESIA: So moved. 

MS. ENGEL: Second. 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll call, please. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly? 

MR. MOBERLY: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia? 

MR. ALESIA: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Murphy? 

MR. MURPHY: Yes. 

MS. BRUTDN: Member Engel? 

MS. ENGEL: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska? 

MR. PODUSKA: Yes. 

8 

MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman? 

CHA£RMAN NEIMAN: Yes. 

I guess the next one we should deal 

14 with, let's deal with the recommended part of 5; 

15 or should we go to 3, 4, the part 3, 4, and the 

16 part of 5 that are in our jurisdiction? 

17 MR. MC GINNIS: How about the 

18 recommendation on 5 to the Board, and we will 

19 keep those grouped. 

""""" 20 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Okay. So is there a 

21 motion to recommend to the Board the portion of 

22 the fl~h variance request regarding building 

9 

1 height and screening requirements for the 

2 construction of two soccer field, team shelters, 

3 and a press box? 

4 MR. ALESIA: So moved again. 

5 MS. ENGEL: Second again. 

6 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll call, please, 

7 MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly? 

8 MR. MOBERLY: Yes. 

9 

~l:<IP~ 10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia? 

MR. ALESIA: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Murphy? 

MR. MURPHY: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Engel? 

MS. ENGEL: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska? 

MR. PODUSKA: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman? 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. 

And then the last vote I think we 

'"·~-»PM 20 need to take is whether or not to approve the 

21 third variance request, the fourth variance 

22 request, and the building setback portion of the 
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1 fifth variance request. 

2 MR. MURPHY: So motion. 

3 MR. MOBERLY: Second. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Roll call, please. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Moberly? 

MR. MOBERLY: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Alesia? 

MR. ALESIA: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Murphy? 

MR. MURPHY: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Engel? 

MS. ENGEL: Yes. 

MS. BRUTON: Member Podliska? 

MR. PODUSKA: Yes. 

15 MS. BRUTON: Chairman Neiman? 

16 CHAIRMAN NEIMAN: Yes. 

17 And Chris, I would again ask, 

18 especially on the portions of our decision, our 

19 recommended decisions, these approvals that you 

"7JC.m~ 20 spell out based on both the record and the 

21 application why we found that the applicant met 

22 the variation standards. Thank you. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

11 

•• * 
(Which were all the proceedings had 

in the above-entitled cause.) 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF DU PAGE ) 

12 

I, JANICE H. HEINEMANN, CSR, RDR, CRR, 
do hereby certify that I am a court reporter 
doing business in the State of Illinois, that l 
reported in shorthand the testimony given at the 
hearing of said cause, and that the foregoing is 
a true ~nd correct transcript of my shorthand 
notes so taken as aforesaid. 

bf.ice H. Heinemann CSR,_ RDR, CRR 
License No. 084-001391 
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AGENDA SECTION: Second Reading - ZPS 

AGENDA ITEM#~ 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Community Development 

SUBJECT: 

Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for New Natatorium and various 
Renovations for the Hinsdale Central High School 

MEETING DATE: 

FROM: 

5500 S. Grant Street in the IB Institutional Buildings District 
Case A-39-2019 

March 16, 2020 

Chan Yu, Village Planner 

Recommended Motion 
Approve an Ordinance approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for a new natatorium 
and various other improvements for Hinsdale Central High School at 5500 S. Grant Street -
Hinsdale Township High School District 86. 

Background 
The Village of Hinsdale has received an Exterior Appearance/Site Plan review application from 
ARGON Associates, Inc. on behalf of Hinsdale Township High School 086, requesting 
approval to construct a new 2-story, 33,040 SF natatorium in addition to various other site 
renovations at the Hinsdale Central High School at 5500 S. Grant Street. The majority of 
improvements will not affect the exterior appearance of the high school and related to replacing, 
for example, the: tennis courts and fencing, soccer field re-grading and re-soddening, soccer 
field shelter and press box replacement, and football field turf replacement. The proposed 
project will not increase the student population. 

This request was also reviewed by the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) , concurrently, for five 
(5) variation requests related to the: (1) number of parking spaces, (2) parking lot landscape 
island and screening, (3) height limitation to install a baseball safety netting system, (4) height 
limitation and setback requirements on fences to replace the tennis court, track, baseball field 
backstop and various other athletic fencing, and (5) waive building setback, height and 
screening requirements for the 2 soccer field team shelters and press box. On January 15, 
2020, the ZBA unanimously approved the request, as submitted, 6-0, 1 absent. 

Discussion & Recommendation 
At the January 8, 2020, Plan Commission meeting, the PC unanimously recommended 
approval for the proposed exterior appearance and site plan improvements, as submitted, with 
the condition it is contingent on ZBA approval, 5-0, 1 abstained and 2 absent. There were public 
comments at the PC meeting by neighbors regarding construction updates and traffic during 
construction. The applicant were able to answer the questions by the neighbors. 

Village Board and/or Committee Action 
At the March 3, 2020, Board of Trustees meeting, the Village Board had no issues with the 
request and moved the item forward for Second Reading . 
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Documents Attached 
Ordinance 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

The following related materials were provided for the Board of Trustees of this item on March 
3, 2020, and can be found on the Village website at: 
https://www.villageofhinsdale.org/document centerNillageBoard/2020/03%20MARNBOT%2 
Opacket%2003%2003%2020.pdf 

Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Application and Exhibits 
Zoning Map and Project Location 
Street View of 5500 S. Grant Street (to illustrate the existing building color and materials) 
Aerial View of 5500 S. Grant Street 
Approved Plan Commission Findings and Recommendations 
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VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

ORDINANCE NO. ------

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN FOR 
A NEW NATATORIUM AND VARIOUS OTHER IMPROVEMENTS FOR HINSDALE 
CENTRAL HIGH SCHOOL AT 5500 S. GRANT STREET - HINSDALE TOWNSHIP 

HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 86 

WHEREAS, ARGON Associates, Inc. on behalf of property owner Hinsdale 
Township High School District 86 (the "Applicant") has submitted an application (the 
"Application") seeking exterior appearance and site plan approval for a new natatorium 
and various other improvements for Hinsdale Central High School, on property located 
at 5500 S. Grant Street. (the "Subject Property"). The Subject Property is located in the 
Village's IB Institutional Buildings District and is legally described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the improvements proposed at this time are Phase I of a program of 
improvements and upgrades to the High School over the next three (3) years. The 
general scope of Phase I improvements includes a 33,040 square foot natatorium 
addition, buildings and grounds addition, parking lot reconfigurations and modifications 
due to loading dock relocation; associated landscaping , artificial turf replacement, tennis 
cou rt and fencing replacement, running track and fence replacement, separation of 
storm and sanitary utilities due to Flagg Creek Water Reclamation District requirements, 
chain-link baseball field backstop and fence replacement, baseball field sports safety 
netting installation, privacy fencing , soccer field team shelter and press box 
replacements, emergency generator replacement, and various other ADA and health/life 
safety improvements on site (collectively, the "Phase I Improvements"). The proposed 
work related to the Phase I Improvements is depicted in the Exterior Appearance Plans 
and Site Plan attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Plan Commission of the 
Village and has been processed in accordance with the Hinsdale Zoning Code ("Zoning 
Code"), as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Applicant concurrently went before the Zoning Board of Appeals 
seeking variations related to the: (1) number of parking spaces, (2) parking lot 
landscape and screening , (3) height limitation to install a baseball safety netting system, 
(4) height limitation and setback requirements on fences to replace the tennis court, 
track, baseball field backstop and various other athletic fencing , and (5) waive building 
setback, height and screening requirements for two (2) soccer field team shelters and 
press box; and 

WHEREAS, on January 8, 2020, the Plan Commission of the Village of Hinsdale 
reviewed the Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Application at a public meeting 
pursuant to notice given in accordance with the Zoning Code; and 
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WHEREAS, the Plan Commission, after considering all of the testimony and 
evidence presented at the public meeting, recommended approval of the proposed 
exterior appearance and site plan improvements on a vote of five (5) ayes, zero (0) 
nays, one (1) abstention , and two (2) absent, subject to Zoning Board of Appeals and 
Board of Trustees approval of the various concurrently requested variations for the 
Phase I Improvements, all as set forth in the Plan Commission's Findings and 
Recommendation in this case ("Findings and Recommendation"), a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit C and made a part hereof. The Plan Commission has filed 
its report of Findings and Recommendation regarding the approval sought in the 
Application with the President and Board of Trustees; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees have duly considered the 
Findings and Recommendation of the Plan Commission, and all of the materials, facts 
and circumstances affecting the Application, and find that the Application satisfies the 
standards established in in subsection 11-604F of the Zoning Code governing site plan 
review, and the standards established in subsection 11-606E of the Zoning Code 
governing exterior appearance review, subject to the conditions stated in this 
Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees 
of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this 
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees. 

SECTION 2: Approval of Exterior Appearance and Site Plans. The Board of 
Trustees, acting pursuant to the authority vested in it by the laws of the State of Illinois 
and Sections 11-604 and 11 -606 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, approves the Exterior 
Appearance and Site Plans attached to, and by this reference, incorporated into this 
Ordinance as Exhibit B (the "Approved Plans"), subject to the conditions set forth in 
Section 3 of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 3: Conditions on Approvals. The approvals granted in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance are expressly subject to all of the following conditions: 

A. 

B. 

Compliance with Plans. All work on the exterior of the Subject Property 
shall be undertaken only in strict compliance with the Approved Plans 
attached as Exhibit B. 

Compliance with Codes, Ordinances, and Regulations. Except as 
specifically set forth in this Ordinance, and the Final Decision of the 
Zoning Board of Appeals and Ordinance approved by the Board of 
Trustees relative to the requested variations for the Phase I 
Improvements, the provisions of the Hinsdale Municipal Code and the 
Hinsdale Zoning Code shall apply and govern all development on, and 
improvement of, the Subject Property. All such development and 
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improvement shall comply with all Village codes, ordinances, and 
regulations at all times. 

C. Building Permits. The Applicant shall submit all required building permit 
applications and other materials in a timely manner to the appropriate 
parties, which materials shall be prepared in compliance with all applicable 
Village codes and ordinances. 

D. Approval of Concurrently Requested Variations. The Exterior Appearance 
and Site Plan approvals are specifically conditioned on Zoning Board of 
Appeals and Board of Trustees approval of the concurrently requested 
variations for the Phase I Improvements. 

SECTION 4: Violation of Condition or Code. Any violation of any term or 
condition stated in this Ordinance, or of any applicable code, ordinance, or regulation of 
the Village, shall be grounds for rescission by the Board of Trustees of the approvals set 
forth in this Ordinance. 

SECTION 5: Severability and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. Each section, 
paragraph , clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any section, 
paragraph , clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid 
for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or 
provision shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other 
than that part affected by such decision. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts 
thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict 
are hereby repealed . 

SECTION 6: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from 
and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law. 
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ADOPTED this ___ day of _________ , 2020, pursuant to a 
roll call vote as follows: 

APPROVED by me this day of -------, 2020, and 
attested to by the Village Clerk this same day. 

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr., Village President 

ATTEST: 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT BY THE APPLICANT TO THE 
CONDITIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE: 

By: ----------------~ 

Its: -------- ------
Date: _ _______ , 2020 



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

PARCEL I: LOTS 1 AND 2, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE 
FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PARINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING 
TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 
141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL II: THE EAST 350 FEET OF THE NORTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF 
OF LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL Ill: THE EAST 350 FEET OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF 
OF LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL IV: THE NORTH HALF OF LOT 3 (EXCEPT THE EAST 350 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL V: THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTH HALF (EXCEPT THE EAST 350 
FEET THEREOF) , IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, 
BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING 
TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 
141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
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PARCEL VI: THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 3, IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR 
BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 
13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL VII: THE NORTH HALF OF LOT 4, (EXCEPT THE EAST 200 FEET 
THEREOF) IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OFR SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL VIII: LOT 1, IN PENZES RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 
4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR 
BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF 
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 
13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL 
MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL IX: LOT 5, (EXCEPT THE EAST 150 FEET THEREOF) , IN PENZES 
RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL X: THE WEST 75 FEET OF THE EAST 150 FEET OF LOT 5, IN PENZES 
RESUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET 
THEREOF), IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141 390, IN DUPAGE 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS 



PARCEL XI: THE EAST 75 FEET OF LOT 5, IN PENZES RESUBDIVISION OF THE 
SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE EAST 60 FEET THEREOF) , IN BLOCK 7, 
IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE 
EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) 
OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XII: THE EAST 60 FEET OF THE SOUTH HALF OF LOT 4 (EXCEPT THE 
EAST 60 FEET THEREOF) , IN BLOCK 7, IN BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE 
FARMS, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 
NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING 
TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 
141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XIII: THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE 
SOUTH 33 FEET THEREOF, IN DUPAGE COUTNY, ILLINOIS 

PARCEL XIV: LOTS 11 THROUGH 20, BOTH INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 2, IN 
BRANIGAR BROTHERS HINSDALE FARMS, BEING A SUBDVISION OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER AND THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (EXCEPT THE 
EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER) 
OF SECTION 13, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST OF THE THIRD 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED 
APRIL 5, 1920 AS DOCUMENT NO. 141390, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 5500 South Grant Street, Hinsdale, Illinois 
PINS: 09-13-100-017, 09-13-100-008, 09-13-100- 011, 09-13-100-012, 09-13-100-
013, 09-13-100-014, 09-13-100-015 & 09-13-101-027 
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EXHIBIT B 

APPROVED EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLANS 

(ATTACHED) 
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NORTHWEST VIEW 
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STREET VIEW 1. 57TH STREET AND BUS LOOP WITH BUILDING ADDITION 

. \!RCON 

•• 
STREET VIEW 3. MADISON AT SOCCER FIELD WITH BUILDING ADDITION 

Hinsdale Townshie...!:il_gh School District 86 
ADDITIONS & RENOVATIONS AT HINSDALE CENTRAL HIGH SCHOOL 

PRO JECT NO 19048 Decembe• I I , 2019 

POOL ADDITION 

STREET VIEW 2. MADISON AT 56TH STREET WITH BUILDING ADDITION 

POOL ADDITION 

STREET VIEWS OF POOL ADDITION 
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EXTERIOR - B & G - VIEW 1 
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EXTERIOR - B & G - VIEW 2 

Hinsdale Township High School District 86 BP-2 - BUILDING & GROUNDS PERSPECTIVES 
ADDITIONS & RENOVATIONS AT HINSDALE CENTRAL HIGH SCHOOL 
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KicK™ - K4 Small Scale I TYPE 

FEATURES 

• Integral Motion Sensor • IES Type II . Il l and IV distributions 120-277. 347 and 480VAC input 

• wiScape enabled • 3000K 4000K. 5000K CCT • Staggered twin mounting 

• IDA approved • Integral thermal protection • ANSIC 13631·20104GRated 

• 20kV/10kA surge protection • 0- lOV d1mm1ng ready 

• ANSI C 136 41 receptacle • IP66 optical system 

Site . ) c@us IK10 Ge 
See OPL 

ORDERING CODE 

2 3 4 5 6 7 

Model Optics Optical Finish Light Engine Controls Fuse Voltage 

1. MODEL 
4" wide lumina1re 

K41 
K42 
K43 
K4 4 

2. OPTICS 

Single fixture 
Two fixtures 180' apart 
Three lixlures 90' ap;11t 
Four fixtures 90' apart 

D1stnbut1on Type. see "Lummaire Performance· on 
page3 

T2 /ES Type/I 
T3 /ES Type Ill 
T 4 /ES Type IV 

3. OPTICAL FINISH 
Standard white or may choose one. See 
'Luminaire Performance· on page 3 for detail. 

M 0 Optics m Malle Black finish 
FO Optics m fixture finish 

4. LIGHT ENGINE 
Lumen package, see 'Lummaire Performance' on 
page 3 for detail 

7050 SOOOK CCT. CR! 10, 64 walls 
7040 4000K CCT, CR! 10, 64 walls 
7030 3000K CCT. CR! 10. 64 walls 
5050 SOOOK CCT. CR! 10, 46 walls 
5040 4000K CCT. CR! 10, 46 walls 
5030 3000K CCT. CR! 10, 46 walls 

560nm monochromatlC amber and or custom lumen package 
avmlable by request. 1 

5. CONTROL 
Options 

MCPCR 
WIR 
WIRSC 
SCP 
SWP 
SWPM 

7-pin Receptacle 
wiScape connectivity 
wiScape + motion sensor 
Motion sensor+ Photocell ' 
SiteSync Pre-commissioned • 
S1teSync Pre-commissioned + Motion Sensor 

Accessories: 

SCPREMOTE 
SWUSB 

Handheld commissiomng tool ' 
Sites> nc loaded on USB flash drive 
(Windows' operating sys/em only) 5 

SWTAB SiteSync Windows-' based Tablet ; 
SWBRG S1teSync Wireless Bridge Node 
SW7PR S1teSync 1-Pm Module 
NXOFM-1R1D-UNV NX 1-pmModule 

ARCHITECTURAL AREA LIGHTING 

6. FUSE 
(may choose one) 

SF 120, 211, 341 Volt input 
OF 208, 240. 480 Volt input 

7. VOLTAGE 

120-211VAC input standard or may choose 
one 

347 341VAC mput 
480 480VAC input 

8. MOUNTING 

Integral Pole 

PS410- 125 10' luminaire height. 
PS4 12-125 12' luminaire height. 
PS414-125 14' /uminaireheighl. 
PS416-1 25 16' luminaire height. 
PS418-125 18' luminalfeheight. 
PS420-125 20' tuminaire height. 

Tenon Mount 

TA23 Slips over a 2 3/B" I 60mm 
@x ./"I 102mm tall tenon 

Side Mount 

SMK Mounts to the side of a square pole. 
K.ft only 

Wall Mount 

WMK K.ft only 

9. MOUNTING OPTIONS 

Twin mount at staggered heights 
Mounting holes for a frxture at 180°, K4 1-... 
PS4 ... only may choose one 

TS8 8' from bottom 
TS 10 10' from bottom 
TS 12 12· from bottom 
TS 14 14'frrom bollom 
TS 16 16'from bottom 
TS 18 18' from bottom 

Pole Accessories 
May choose one 

GFI GFCI receptacle. 2.f" from top of pole 
R BC Duplex receptacle box with clear cover 

wiring devicefs) not included 

_,,-- % 
architectural 
area lighting 

17760 Rowland Street I C1l y of Industry I CA 9 1748 
P 626 968 5666 I F 626 369 2695 I www.aal.nel 
Copyright © 20 14 September 18, 20 18 12A6 PM 

JOB 
TYPE 
NOTES 

JOOOK and warmer ((Ts only 
MO-XXJO configurations only 

8 9 10 

Mounting Mounting Options Fixture Finish 

10. FIXTURE FINISH 

Standard Color 
AGN Antique Green 
BL Black 
BLT Malle Black 
CRT Carten 
DB Dark Bronze 
DGN Dark Green 
GT Graphite 
LG Light Grey 
MAL Malle Aluminum 
MOB Bronze Metallic 
MG Medium Grey 
TT Titanium 
WH Arctic White 
WDB Weathered Bronze 
VBU Verde Blue 

Premium Color 
SHK Shamrock 
SPP Salt and Pepper 
SFM Seafoam 
WCP Weathered Copper 
RAL RAL 4 digit Color 
CUSTOM Custom Color 

Contact factory 

Handheld commissioning tool is reqwred to 
separately configure or ad111st any number of 
SCP sensors 

Specify group and zone at time of order See 
ww1v.hubbelllighting.coml sitesync for more 
details. Order at least one SiteSync interface 
accessory SWUSB or SWTAB. Each option 
contains SiteSync Ucense. GUI. and Bridge 
Node. 

When ordenng with S1teSync, one of the 
following interface op/ions must be chosen 
and ordered separately. Each option contains 
the SiteSync License. GUI and Bridge Node. 

I 1 I 

Attachment 1 



KicK™ - K4 Small Scale 

Side Mounted Luminaire 4 .0'" 

Mounts to the side of 4·1 102mm square pole 

MODEL K41 -... -SMK 
13.5" I 10.3'" 

-1 

32.4"' / 823mm 
OVERALL HEIGHT 13.5" / 343mm 
OVERALL LENGTH 

15 lbs. 
OVERALL WIDTH 4" / 102mm 
WEIGHT 
EPA 1.03 

- 7.8" -
(WALL t.IOUNT SHOWN IN DASHED LINE) 

Integral Pole Luminaire 

See page 6 ~ 
for height and 
mounting detail 

· Weight and 
EPA for fixtures 
only 

MODEL K41-. .. -PS4XX-125 K42-... - PS4XX-125 
Overall Length 36.4" / 925mm 10" / 254mm 
Overall Width 10" /254mm 68 9· 1 1750mm 
WEIGHT 15 lbs. 301bs 
EPA· 1.03 206 

Tenon Mount Luminaire 

Slips over a 2 3/8"'/60mm diameter by 4··1102mm 1all 1enon 

MODEL 
Overall Height 
Overall Lengtn 
Overall Widlh 
WEIGHT 
EPA" 

~ SQ 
architectural 
area lighting 

K41-... -TA23 K42-. .. -TA23 
17.5"' / 445mm 17.5"' / 445mm 
36 4" / 925mm 10" /254mm 

4" / 102mm 68 9" / 1750mm 
18.5 lbs. 33 5 lbs 

1.33 2.42 

ARCHITECTURAL AREA LIGHTING 
17760 Rowland Street I City of Industry I CA 9 1748 
p 626 968 5666 I F 626.369 2695 I WWW aal net 
Copyright © 20 14 September 18. 20 18 124 6 PM 

JOB 
TYPE 
NOTES 

TYPE 

32.4" 

!OPTIONAL MOTION SENSOR SHOWN IN DASHED LINE) 

t««<«~((~:i! I 

K43-... ·PS4XX-125 
36.4" / 925mm 

68.9" / 1750mm 
45 lbs. 

2.61 

K43- ... -TA23 
17.5"' /445mm 
36 4" /925mm 

68.9" / 1750mm 
48 5 lbs. 

2.61 

tOPTIONAl 7-P tN RECEPTACLE 
SHOWN IN DASHED LINE) 

l 
2.5" 

6.0" 

' 
.5" 

+ 

K44-... - PS4XX-125 
68.9" / 1750mm 
68.9" I 1750mm 

60 1bs 
2.61 

K44-.. . -TA23 
17.5"' / 445mm 

68.9" I 1750mm 
68 9· I 1750mm 

63.5 lbs. 
2.6 1 

I 2 I 

Attachment 1 



KicK™ - K4 Small Scale 

LUMINAIRE PERFORMANCE 

Configuration 

Light Engine J Optical Finish J Distribution I Ordering Code 

Standard 
Tyoe2 _R 

White TJ:Qe3 T3 
Tv[>E_ T4 

Fixture Tvoe2 T2-FO 
7000 series Matched Tvoe3 THO 

TyQe -1 T4-FO 
T~oe2 T2-MO 

Matte Black ,__ jyQe3 T3-MO 
Tyoe.J T4-MO 

Standard T2 
T3 White 
T4 

Fixture T2-FO 
5000 series Matched T3-FO 

T4-FO 
T2-MO 

Matte Black T3-MO 
T4-MO 

Oeliv ered 
ens Lum 

69 

- 59· 

- 1§9 

-
~ 

561 
578 
~1 3 
56 
57 

1 
02 
73 

L s11 

5239 
5130 
5456 
400~ 
4048 
4503 
4003 
4048 
4503 

5050 
113 2 
111 2 
118 2 
87 2 __ 1_ 
88 2 1 
98 2 - - -
87 0 
88 0 
98 0 

-MO 1es files should be used for -FO configurat ons in application layours 

tSOLINE TEMPLATES 14' Mounting Height 

K4x-T2-7050 K4x-T3-7050 

ELECTRICAL CHARACTERISTICS 

I TYPE 

Ordering Code 

5234 
5125 
5451 
4010 
4044 
4524 
4000 
4045 
4499 

K4x-T4-7050 

Input Source/ 

r er ng Current Wattage Amps AC Power THD Range (V) n 

Inrush Current Peak 

(A) T@50%(1JS) 0 d I 

I 
LED System Min. Max I Dimming SI k 

Code (mA) (W) r--~-~---T- Hz Factor (%) Current :1" 
______ ...._ ___ 120 277 347 4ao _,_ __ _,,_ _ _.. _ ___ -i _ _ <m_A_>_...._120 L277 347 480 120 277 347 480 

64 05 023 02 013 70XX 

soxx 
700 

500 
--- 5060 >0 9 20 0·10 15 32 41 63 50 155 

J6 04 017 01 0.10 

~StreetSide 

SENSOR DETECTION RANGE 

6.J 

46 

f----.:..;SE=N=SO=Rr-oM=O, U=N'""Tl,_,N=-G -'+HE=IG=H-'>-'T-l RATIO 
8' 10' 12' 14' 16' 18' 20' a 111 l 1 111 OJIJ , ,.,, .. ., 

/ · - ' 
Fixture SCP Pole '-

_ _,,.,-- ' ARCHITECTURAL AREA LIGHTING 
17760 Rowland Street I City of Industry I CA 917-18 JOB 

architectural p 626 968 5666 I F 626 369 2695 I WWW aal.net TYPE 
area lighting Copyright © 2014 September 18, 2018 12'46 PM NOTES I 3 I 
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KicK™ - K4 Small Scale I TYPE 

TM-21 LIFETIME CALCULATION DIMMING CURVE 

l ·~ l "5 
a. 
"5 
0 

0 

Ambient Projected Lumen Maintenance (Khrs) Reported I L70 
Environment •c 

25 50 60 (TM-21) 75 100 >60Khrs. 
25 gs11, 95•. 94» 92•, I 9()", I 

- 40 -~· 96'"o 95'. 93'• I 9·1, I 

0 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

Dimming Voltage (VOC) 

Not; Fixlure dces ncl ctr- lo oil. lrxture drms 10 10% mrnrmum oulpul. 

COLOR CHARACTERISTICS SPECTRAL POWER DISTRIBUTION COMPARISON 

Value 
Ordering Code 

~o j XX40 xxso 
Rf 69 I 69 7· 

Ag 99 99 98 

CCT:K1 3"22 3852 5020 

0111 ooo· 00004 00005 
CIE Ra i4 i3 74 

Noll T~l-30 ·q:-0re1 ii the d1sc-ete l EO IC-•el. no· lrrture l~1el. 

COLOR VECTOR GRAPHIC 

---- XX30 
XX40 
xx so 

100% 

80% 

:;; 
;: 
0 

0.. 6oqo 
111 
> ·;::; 

"' Qi 
~ 40% 

20% 

0% 

380 

, ..... , ,; 
,' !~ ~ 
I ! 1: I : 1: 
, 1: 

1: 
1: 
1: 
1: 1: 
1: 
1: 1: 
1: 
1: 
, : 
, \ 
1: 

' :>:·.~./· 

430 480 

, , 

' ' 

530 

-Reference lllumin.i nt - Te'St Source --+ Seriu l --+ Senesl - Refe rence Illuminant - hst Source --t- Seuesl __.. Ser1esl 
__.. Seriesl 

-+ suies7 

--- 4 architectural 
area lighting 

XX30 

_.. SeriesJ 
__., Series7 

ARCHITECTURAL AREA LIGHTING 
17760 Rowland Street I City of Industry t CA 91748 
p 626 968 5666 I F 626 369 2695 I WWW aal.net 
Copyright © 201 -1 September 18. 2018 t246 PM 

XX40 

JOB 
TYPE 

NOTES 

580 

' 
' 

630 

Wavelength (nm) 

' 
' 

' 
' 

680 730 780 

- Reference Illuminant - Test SoufCe --+ Sem~s l --+- Senesl 
-+ Set1esJ Se11u J SenesS • Se11es6 
• seuu7 

XX50 

I 4 I 

Attachment 1 



KicK'"M - K4 Small Scale 

SPECIFICATIONS 

HOUSING 

• Housing shroud shall be of fabricated 5052-
H32 aluminum alloy with a rear mounting 
interface that shall be of fabricated 304 
stainless steel. 

• Housing mounting interface shall have a 
stamped silicone gasket. 

• Luminaire housing shall be free of any 
visible heat fins. hardware or fasteners. 

• Bracketry and hardware shall be stainless 
steel. 

OPTICAL ARRAY 

• LEDs shall be mounted to a metal printed 
circuit board assembly (MCPCB) with a 
uniform conformal coating over the panel 
surface and electrical features . 

• Optical lenses shall be c lear injection 
molded PMMA acrylic. 

• Each MCPCB and optic shall be sealed to 
an extruded 6063-T6 aluminum alloy heat 
spreader and sealed with a continuous 
one piece injection molded silicone rubber 
gasket. IP66. 

• Patent Pending design of optical array shall 
independently shield each LED optic across 
the length of the aperture. 

• Optical surfaces shall be painted white 
unless the optional fixture finish (FO) or 
matte black finish (MO) is selected. 

• Optional matte black finish optics (MO) are 
required to meet UO classification with zero 
percent uplight. 

• Optional fixture finish optical surfaces 
(FO) shall not exceed BUG ratings of the 
standard white finish and shall be greater 
than or equal to the delivered lumens o f the 
optional matte black optical surface finish 
(MOJ 

ELECTRICAL 

• Drivers shall be in direct contact with the 
aluminum housing across the entire surface 
area of the widest face for maximum thermal 
transfer. 

• Luminaires shall have integral surge 
protection that shall be U.L. recognized and 
have a surge current rating of 10.000 Amps 
using the industry standard 8/20uSec wave 
and surge rating of 372J Surge protection 
device shall be wired in series. 

• Drivers shall be U.L recognized. 

• Drivers shall not be compatible with current 
sourcing dimmers. consult factory for 
current list of known compatible dimming 
systems approved dimmers include Lutron 
Diva AVTV. Lutron Nova NFTV and NTFTV. 

• Luminaire shall be capable of operating at 
100% brightness in a 40°C environment. 
Both driver and optical array shall have 
integral thermal protection that will dim the 
luminaire upon detection of temperatures 
in excess of 85"C. 

• Luminaires not configured with a control 
system or ANSI C t36 receptacle option 
shall be provided with 0-10 purple and 
gray dimming leads. 

.----~ 

CONTROLS 

Standard In ut Black (+) 

White -

Green (GND) 

Gra Dimmin Lead (-) 

Purple Dimming Lead (+) 

- - 30mAMax 

• Wireless enabled fixtures shall support 
bi-directional radio frequency (RF) 
communications utilizing IEEE 802.15.4 
operating in the 2.4GHZ ISM band 

• Up to 1000' wireless range may be 
reduced by physical obstructions 
between lighting fixtures. 

• Motion Sensor shall use passive infrared 
(PIR) sensing technology that reacts 
to changes in infrared energy (moving 
body heat) within the coverage area. 
Careful consideration must be given to 
obstructions that may block the sensor's 
line of sight. 

• Factory default settings for SCP option 
shall be 

High mode. lOV 

Low mode: lV 

Ramp-up rate: disabled 

Fade-down rate: disabled 

Photocell: Off 

Sensitivity: Full 

Time Delay: Fade to low. 5 minutes 

Time Delay Fade to off. 1 hour 

MOUNTING AND INSTALLATION 

• Integral pole mount luminaires shall 
require assembly of fix ture(s) to the pole. 
mounting hardware. anchor bolts and 
anchor bolt template shall be included. 
See page 6 for additional considerations 
specific to the integral pole. 

• Tenon mount luminaires shall require 
assembly of fixture(s) to the tenon adapter. 
mounting hardware shall be included. 
Tenon adapter shall be secured to the 
tenon with eight 5/ 16 -1 8 stainless steel set 
screws 

~ 4 
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I TYPE 

• Side mount luminaires shall be supplied 
with hardware compatible with AAL 
mountings. 

• Twin mounted staggered height fixtures 
shall be configured separately. 

SERVICI NG 

• Service access to the optical array and 
driver assembly shall be via a tool-less 
internal latch and have an audible click. 

• Optical array shall be able to hang freely 
in an open service position for inspection 
of internal wire connections.Once in 
service position. the optical array shall be 
able to be removed for service by lifting 
the assembly up off the rear hinge and 
disconnecting the wiring plugs. 

• Driver assembly shall be mounted 
to a prewired internal tray with quick 
disconnects for removal. 

FINISH 

• Luminaire finish shall consist of a five 
stage pretreatment regimen with a 
polymer primer sealer. oven dry off. and 
top coated with a thermoset super TGIC 
polyester powder coat finish. 

• Luminaire finish shall meet the AAMA 
605.2 performance speci fication which 
includes passing a 3000 hour salt spray 
test for corrosion resistance. 

CERTIFICATION 

• Luminaire shall be listed with UL for 
outdoor. wet location use. UL1598. UL 
8750 and Canadian CSA Std. C22.2 
no.250. 

ANSI C136.31-20 10 4G Vibration tested 
and compliant. 

• IEC 66262 Mechanical Impact Code IK10 

• IDA approved. 3000K and warmer CCTs 
only. 

Warranty I Terms and Conditions of Sale 
Download. 
htto ://www.hubbelllighting.com/resources/ 
warranty/ 

I s I 

Attachment 1 



KicK™- K4 Small Scale I TYPE 

SPECIFICATIONS 

Integral Pole 

HEIGHT SHAFT MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE EPA (MPH) 

MODEL OVERALL POLE SECTION WT 85 90 100 110 120 130 140 
K4X-PS4 10-125 10· 7 5" I 3.24m 10' 4" so x .125" 281bs 15.4 13.5 10.4 8.1 64 50 4.0 
K4X-PS412-125 12· 7 5" I 3.85m 12' 4" so x 125" 32 1bs 11.8 10.2 7.6 5.7 43 3.2 2.3 
K4X-PS414 -125 14· 7.5" I 4.46m 14' 4'' so x .125" 37 1bs 9.1 7.7 5.5 3.9 2.6 1.7 0 95 
K4X-PS416-125 16' 7 5" I 5.07m 16' 4" so x .125" 421bs 6.9 5.7 3.8 2.3 1.3 0.46 
K4X-PS418- 125 18' 7.5" I 5.68m 18' 4" so x .125" 481bs 4 .9 3.9 2.2 0.95 0.0 1 
K4X-PS420- 125 20' 7.5" I 6.29m 20' 4" so x .125" 531bs 3.2 22 0.75 

• - Consult factory fo r thicker shaft profi les and or custom he ights not shown above. 

CONSTRUCTION 

• Base shall be cast aluminum #356 alloy and 
be heat trea1ed to a T-6 condition. 

• Shafi snail be extruded aluminum 6061 alloy 
and heat 1rea1ed 10 a T-6 condition. 

• Anchor bolts shall be hot dip galvanized sleel 
Eight galvanized hex nuts and flal washers.and 
a bolt circle template shall be provided. 
Ancnor bolt for poles are 3/4" x 24" x 3". 

WARNINGS 

• Caution must be exercised in the selection of 
a design wind speed when the pole 1s to be 
installed in a special wind region (as indicated 
by the wind map) or 1n an area where wind 
speed is unpredictable. 

• AAL recommends consulting a local engineer 
when the pole is to be installed in an area that 
may be subject to vibration. oscillations. and 
other fatigue effects which are not covered by 
the AAL warranty 

• Tne use of banners or 01her appendages 
can severely affect the loading of a pole. No 
banner or other appendage may be attacned 
to an AAL pole unless approved by AAL 

• If the products are to be used on an existing 
foundation or on other structures. the customer 
assumes all responsib ility for the structural 
integrity of the existing foundation. anchorage 
or structures and all the consequences arising 
there from 

CAUTION 

• Poles should never be erected without tne 
lumina1re installed Warranty is voided if the 
pole 1s erected without the luminaire. 

WARRANTY I TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 
SALE 
Download 
hllo.Uwww hubbelll1ght1ng com/resources/ 
warrantv/ 
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EXHIBIT C 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 

(ATTACHED) 



HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 

Application: Case A-39-2019 - Applicant: ARCON Associates I Hinsdale Central High School/ District D86 

Request: Exterior Appearance and Site Plan - 5500 S. Grant Street in the IB Institutional Buildings District 

DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW: January 8, 2020 

DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1sr READING: March 3, 2020 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 

I. FINDINGS 

1. The PC heard testimony from the applicant's architect, Mr. Nick Graal , on behalf of the Hinsdale Township High 
School District 086, and reviewed the plans through a PowerPoint presentation and reiterated the multiphase 
project that will be presented to the PC when it is ready (this being Phase 1). The plans for three new buildings, 
tennis courts and parking lot, field/turf replacement work were all covered . It was noted that the main featu re of the 
request is for the new natatorium in the middle of the subject property. A few colored elevation slides of the 
natatorium was focused on, and stated the intent is to complement and match the existing buildings. The brick 
material, glazing, metal panel near the roof and curtain wall/frosted glazing (although illustrated as what appears to 
be a blank wall) is for solar control and privacy. In regards to the street view, it was shown to be very difficult to see 
the natatorium due to far setback distances and existing streetscape features (11-604(C)). 

2. A Plan Commissioner requested that the applicant make its best effort to match the existing brick of the existing 
buildings. The applicant stated that they are trying and that a brick specialist has been to the school at least 3 times 
to match the brick (11-604(F)(1)(i)). 

3. A Plan Commissioner asked if they have had any feedback from the neighbors. The applicant responded yes, in 
regards to the parking lot screening; and in response, addressed concerns by adding arborvitae on the east side of 
the parking lot to soften the edge. It was noted that the chain link fence will be replaced with a PVC privacy fence 
with painted metal supports (11-604(F)(1)( h)). 

4. A neighbor asked about the traffic impact during construction on 57t11 and Madison. The applicant explained that 
they have not finalized their construction operations plan with the school district, however, acknowledged some 
construction traffic will occur (11-604(E)(4)). 

5. A Plan Commissioner asked they have held any neighborhood meetings. The applicant replied yes, they hold a 
public meeting once a month, and will have a construction portal on the website with frequent updates on the 
construction. 

6. The applicant has completed the notification requirements for the public meeting, and public comment was made by 
a few neighbors at the public meeting. The concerns raised included traffic during construction and notification 
updates throughout the construction process (11-604(E)(3)). 

7. Chairman Cashman recused himself for this request because he is on the special committee for District 86, and 
asked Commissioner Crnovich to lead the public meeting. 

II. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed exterior appearance and site plan as submitted, with 
the condition it is contingent on Zoning Board of Appeals approval (V-05-19), the Village of Hinsdale Plan 
Commission, on a vote of five (5) "Ayes,", one (1) "Abstained and two (2) "Absent," recommends that the President 
and Board of Trustees approve the application as submitted. 

THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By: #~ U . M U\1111 , Chaimlae 

Dated this day of U~, trz,, , 2020. 
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AGENDA SECTION: Second Reading - ZPS 

AGENDA ITEM#~ 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Community Development 

SUBJECT: 

Exterior Appearance and Site Plan to Redevelop and Expand the 
existing 1-story building at 110 E. Ogden Avenue in the 0-2 Limited 
Office District - Case A-02-2020 

MEETING DATE: March 16, 2020 

FROM: Chan Yu , Village Planner 

Recommended Motion 
Approve an Ordinance approving an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for expansion and 
redevelopment of an existing building - Dr. Vanwormer-Hartman - 110 E. Ogden Avenue. 

Background 
The Village of Hinsdale has received an Exterior Appearance/Site Plan review application from 
Studio21 Architects, on behalf of Dr. Cara Vanwormer-Hardman, requesting approval to 
redevelop and construct a second story onto the existing vacant 1-story commercial building 
at 110 E. Ogden Avenue in the 0 -2 Limited Office District. The proposed scope of work includes 
comprehensive fa9ade and rear parking lot landscaping improvements. The applicant intends 
to purchase and occupy the subject property as a med ical office building with future medical 
office tenants. 

The application proposes to utilize the existing 1-story building and construct a second story 
addition. The existing building has a legal nonconforming front yard setback of 72.02 feet from 
the Ogden Avenue centerline, and 3.38' side yard setback. The second story addition would 
maintain the front and side yard setbacks, and the new expansion to the rear of the building 
will conform to the 10-foot side yard setback. The rear building expansion would be 
approximately 22 feet and have a new rear yard setback from the current 125'-5" to 103'-3". 
The proposed height and floor area ratio (FAR) are under what the Code permits in the 0-2 
Limited Office District, and the lot coverage would improve due to the landscape improvements 
in the existing parking lot. 

0-2 Limited Office District Code Existing Proposed 

Building Height Max. (height/stories) 40ft I 3 12'-8" I 1 29'-8" I 2 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) Max. 0.5 0.13 0.32 

Lot Coverage Max. 80% 87% 77.5% 

The proposed materials of the building include: stone veneer, cut stone caps, horizontal siding, 
EIFS, wood and features several windows on all 4 walls. It should be noted that the rear building 
elevation is scaled more along the lines of a 1-story building with the exception of the interior 
stairway and elevator shaft. 
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~ REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

-- Eat. 1 873 --

The existing rear parking lot would be restriped for the required 30 parking spaces while 
decreasing the lot coverage by nearly 10% due to new additional greenspace/landscaping. 
Five parking lot lights are proposed at 15' tall and a color temperature of 3000K. A Code 
compliant photometric plan is included in the application. 

The subject property is adjacent to 0-2 Limited Office District parcels to the east and west, and 
R-4 Single Family Residential to the north (across Ogden Avenue) and to the south . The (south) 
rear lot line abuts two residential lots and the applicant has reached out to both, in addition to 
the certified mailing notification. As of February 6, 2020, the two neighbors have not responded 
and no inquiries have been made. 

Discussion & Recommendation 
At the February 12, 2020, Plan Commission meeting, the PC unanimously recommended 
approval for the proposed exterior appearance and site plan improvements, with the condition 
that the applicant consider: a more toned down building color, extending the existing rear 
residential fence, and dimming the lights to security level after hours, 6-0, and 3 absent. There 
were no public comments at the PC meeting by neighbors regarding the request, however, an 
email dated February 12, 2020, by a neighbor was presented to the PC, requesting for 
consideration to continue the existing white fence on the rear residential lot. The applicant will 
present its fence proposal to the Village Board at the March 3, 2020, meeting. 

Village Board and/or Committee Action 
At the March 3, 2020, Board of Trustees meeting, the Village Board had no issues with the 
request and moved the item forward for Second Reading. 

Documents Attached 
Ordinance 

The following related materials were provided for the Board of Trustees of this item on March 
3, 2020, and can be found on the Village website at: 
https://www.villageofhinsdale.org/document centerNillageBoard/2020/03%20MARNBOT%2 
Opacket%2003%2003%2020.pdf 

Exterior Appearance and Site Plan Application and Exhibits 
Zoning Map and Project Location 
Street View of 110 E. Ogden Avenue 
Aerial View of 110 E. Ogden Avenue 
Draft Plan Commission Findings and Recommendations 
Neighbor Email dated February 12, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 



VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

ORDINANCE NO. ------

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN 
FOR EXPANSION AND REDEVELOPMENT OF AN EXISTING BUILDING - DR. 

VANWORMER-HARTMAN - 110 E. OGDEN AVENUE 

WHEREAS, Studio21 Architects, on behalf of Dr. Cara Vanwormer-Hartman 
(the "Applicant") has submitted an application (the "Application") seeking exterior 
appearance and site plan approval for the construction of a second story and other 
redevelopment of the existing commercial building at 110 E. Ogden Avenue (the 
"Subject Property"). The Subject Property is located in the 0-2 Limited Office Zoning 
District and is legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is currently improved with a vacant one-story 
commercial building. In addition to the second story addition, comprehensive fa9ade 
and rear parking lot landscaping improvements are also proposed. The Applicant 
desires to purchase and occupy the Subject Property as a medical office building with 
future medical office tenants. The proposed improvements are depicted in the Exterior 
Appearance and Site Plans attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Application has been referred to the Plan Commission of the 
Village and has been processed in accordance with the Hinsdale Zoning Code 
("Zoning Code"), as amended; and 

WHEREAS, on February 12, 2020, the Plan Commission of the Village of 
Hinsdale reviewed the Application at a public meeting pursuant to notice given in 
accordance with the Zoning Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission, after considering all of the testimony and 
evidence presented at the public meeting, recommended approval of the proposed 
Exterior Appearance and Site Plans on a vote of six (6) ayes, zero (0) nays, and 
three (3) absent, as set forth in the Plan Commission's Findings and Recommendation 
in this case ("Findings and Recommendation"), a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit C and made a part hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees have duly considered the 
Findings and Recommendation of the Plan Commission, and all of the materials, facts 
and circumstances affecting the Application , and find that the Application satisfies the 
standards established in subsection 11-604F of the Zoning Code governing site plan 
review, and the standards established in subsection 11-606E of the Zoning Code 
governing exterior appearance review, subject to the conditions stated in this 
Ordinance. 
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NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of 
Trustees of the Village of Hinsdale, DuPage and Cook Counties and State of Illinois, 
as follows: 

SECTION 1: Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this 
Ordinance by this reference as findings of the President and Board of Trustees. 

SECTION 2: Approval of Exterior Appearance and Site Plans. The Board of 
Trustees adopts the Findings and Recommendation of the Plan Commission, with the 
exception of the Commission's recommended condition regarding the extension of the 
fence along the rear property line. The Board of Trustees find that the fence extension 
condition proposed by the Commission is unnecessary, as the tightly planted row of 
arborvitaes along the rear lot line as shown on the Applicant's landscape plan are 
sufficient for visual separation and act as a deterrent from people passing through to 
the properties to the south. With that change, the Board of Trustees, acting pursuant 
to the authority vested in it by the laws of the State of Illinois and Sections 11-604 and 
11-606 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code, approves the Exterior Appearance and Site Plans 
attached to, and by this reference, incorporated into this Ordinance as Exhibit B (the 
"Approved Plans"), subject to the conditions set forth in Section 3 of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 3: Conditions on Approvals. The approvals granted in Section 2 of 
this Ordinance are expressly subject to all of the following conditions: 

A. Compliance with Plans. All work on the exterior of the Subject Property 
shall be undertaken only in strict compliance with the Approved Plans 
attached as Exhibit B. 

B. Compliance with Codes. Ordinances. and Regulations. Except as 
specifically set forth in this Ordinance, the provisions of the Hinsdale 
Municipal Code and the Hinsdale Zoning Code shall apply and govern all 
development on, and improvement of, the Subject Property. All such 
development and improvement shall comply with all Village codes, 
ordinances, and regulations at all times. 

C. Building Permits. The Applicant shall submit all required building permit 
applications and other materials in a timely manner to the appropriate 
parties, which materials shall be prepared in compliance with all 
applicable Village codes and ordinances. 

D. Color of Building. The Applicant shall revise the color of the building in 
the proposed plans reviewed by the Plan Commission from bright white 
to ivory or another more muted color. 

E. After Hours Lighting . The Applicant shall dim the parking area lights to 
security levels during non-business hours. 
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SECTION 4: Violation of Condition or Code. Any violation of any term or 
condition stated in this Ordinance, or of any applicable code, ordinance, or regulation 
of the Village, shall be grounds for rescission by the Board of Trustees of the approvals 
set forth in this Ordinance. 

SECTION 5: Severabil ity and Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances. Each 
section, paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is separable, and if any 
section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 
or invalid for any reason , the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section , paragraph, 
clause or provision shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part 
thereof, other than that part affected by such decision. All ordinances, resolutions or 
orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent 
of such conflict are hereby repealed . 

SECTION 6: Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 
from and after its passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law. 
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ADOPTED this ___ day of _________ , 2020, pursuant to a 
roll call vote as follows: 

APPROVED by me this day of , 2020, and -------
attested to by the Village Clerk this same day. 

Thomas K. Cauley, Jr. , Village President 

ATTEST: 

Christine M. Bruton, Village Clerk 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT BY THE APPLICANT TO THE 
CONDITIONS OF THIS ORDINANCE: 

Its: -----------------
Date: ________ , 2020 
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EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

THAT PART OF LOT NUMBER 3 OF JELLIES SUBDIVISION AND LOT NUMBER 
5 IN BLOCK NUMBER 3 OF THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF FULLERSBURGE (EXCEPT 
THAT PORTION INCLUDED IN JELLIES SUBDIVISION) AND (EXCEPT THE 
WESTERN PORTION THEREOF) AND LOT NUMBER 4 IN BLOCK 3 (EXCEPT 
THAT PORTION THEREOF DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT NUMBER 4; THENCE WEST 83 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 358 LINKS; THENCE EAST 75 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 
LOT NUMBER 4; THENCE NORTH 358 LINKS TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING) IN 
THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF FULLERSBURG AND ORE PARTICULARY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY 
RIGHT OF WAY OF OGDEN AVENUE 71 FEET NORTHEASTERLY OF THE 
INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF OGDEN AVENUE WITH 
THE WEST LINE OF VACATED GARFIELD AVENUE; THENCE EASTERLY 
ALONG THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF OGDEN AVENUE 79 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 235.85 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF 
LOT 4 IN BLOCK 3 OF THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF FULLERSBURG; WHICH SAID 
POINT IS 104 FEET NORTHEASTERLY OF THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH 
LINE OF LOT 5 IN BLOCK 3 OF THE ORIGINAL TOWN OF FULLERSBURG WITH 
THE EAST LOT LINE OF LOT 3 IN JELLIES SUBDIVISION; THENCE 
SOUTHWESTERLY 104 FEET TO SAID INTERSECTION; THENCE 
NORTHWESTERLY TO THE PLACE OF THE BEGINNING, ALL IN THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION NUMBER 1, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, 
RANGE 11, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN DUPAGE COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS. 

P.l.N.: 09-01-202-202-0000 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 110 E. OGDEN AVENUE, HINSDALE, IL 60521 
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EXHIBIT B 

APPROVED EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLANS 

(ATTACHED) 
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EXHIBIT C 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 

(ATTACHED) 



HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 

Application: Case A-02-2020 - Applicant: Dr. Cara Vanwormer-Hartman 

Request: Exterior Appearance/ Site Plan - 110 E. Ogden Avenue in the 0-2 Limited Office District 

DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW: February 12, 2020 

DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 15T READING: March 3, 2020 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 

I. FINDINGS 

1. The PC heard testimony from the applicant, Dr. Cara Vanwormer Hartman. She reviewed her profession and 
services as a chiropractic physician in Hinsdale, and owns the clinic at 230 E. Ogden Avenue. Due to the growth at 
her current location, is seeking a larger space and believes the subject property at 11 O E. Ogden Avenue is a nice 
option. The goal of the exterior appearance plan is to provide a modern day wellness center. The second story 
addition would be helpful by bringing in a like-minded tenant to the site to help with the cost and complement their 
medical office services ((11-604(F)(1) and 11-606(E)). · · 

2. The project architect, Mr. Bill Styczynski of Studio21 introduced himself and reviewed the proposed architecture and 
site plan improvements. He reviewed that the lot is a nonconforming size, and the plan is to add a second floor onto 
the existing building. The nonconforming aspects of the front building setback and lot coverage was also briefly 
discussed. It was shown while reviewing the site plan that the parking spaces will meet the requirements for medical 
office use and improving lot coverage with landscaping will also be achieved. The building material, elevation 
illustrations, landscape and photometric plans were also presented via PowerPoint. The light fixtures would have 
internal baffles to shield light from the property line ((1 1-604(F)(1) and 11-606(E)). 

3. The Plan Commission Chair referenced a neighbor's letter, which asked to consider extending the existing white 
fence along the rear property line. The architect stated that they anticipated that this would need to be addressed as 
part of the project ((11 -604(F)(1 )(f)). 

4. The Plan Commission Chair asked what the hours of operation are. The applicant stated currently, 9AM to 7PM, 
Mon., Weds. through Friday, and 9AM to 3 PM on Saturday. However, with this new location, they would be open 
on Tuesday. A follow-up question was if they will dim the lights after hours. The architect replied that the fixtures are 
dimmable and programmable. To this end, the Chair stated that the PC would like it dimmed to security levels after 
hours ((11-604(F)(1)( f)) . 

5. A Plan Commissioner asked if the Vi llage allowed EIFS due to the historical issues . Chan replied that he reviewed 
this with the Building Commissioner and it is permitted ((11-605(E)(2)(g)) . 

6. A Plan Commissioner asked if the proposed color of the building, which is a bright white, could be toned down. The 
applicant replied yes, and referenced a home in the vicinity that is more of an ivory color. On the other hand, they 
had some renderings done in a grey color but it appeared to be too dark and did not achieve the intended pos itive 
bright wellness vibe ((11-606(E)). 

7. In general , the Plan Commission commented that the proposed request looks great, a huge improvement, and 
complimented the easy to follow and thorough application. ((1 1-604(F) and 11-606(E)). 

8. A Plan Commissioner asked about client rotation and staff, in the context of traffic. The applicant responded that 
they currently have 5 staff members and would have 7 at the new location. The patient flow she anticipates would 
be 3 to 5 people an hour. The PC Chair mentioned that some of the morning traffic would be less of a concern due 
to the 9AM opening ((11-604(F)(1 )( g)) . 

9. A Plan Commissioner complimented the refuse location per the site plan. The architect provided and reviewed the 
elevation drawings for the refuse container and the paint to match the building ((11-604(F)(1 )( h)). 

10. There were no public comments at the Plan Commission public meeting on February 12, 2020 (1 1-604(E)). 



11. The PC Chair complimented the shorter rear design of the building , which is smaller in scale and faces the 
residential district (11-606(E)). 

11. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed exterior appearance and site plan , with the condition 
that the applicant consider: a more toned down building color, extending the existing rear residential fence, and 
dimming the lights to security level after hours, the Village of Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of six (6) 
"Ayes,", and three (3) "Absent," recommends that the President and Board of Trustees approve the application as 
stated. 

THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By: 

Dated this 1 l1Wday of _.M~'t\c:..:V-=lVJ'-'--'-----' 2020. 



Village of Hinsdale 

HinsdJe 
SHOP ' DINE • DISCOVER 
CHAMBER a/COMMERCE 

Tom Cauley, Village President and Board of Trustees 
19 E. Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

February 24, 2020 

Dear President Cauley and Board of Trustees, 

The Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce would like to thank the Village Board and staff 
for your dedication and continued support in an effort to enhance and maintain a 
healthy vibrant Hinsdale business community. Hinsdale continues to develop and 
prosper; touted as a "destination" shopping location the entire community can be proud 
of. In those efforts the Chamber appreciates our partnership and strong working 
relationship we have established with the Village of Hinsdale in order to produce the 
annual community special events planned for 2020. 

As the summer months are just around the corner, the Chamber has been hard at 
work coordinating all aspects of the traditional seasonal events soon to launch. 

Enclosed is a copy of the Chamber's proposed calendar for 2020 including Special 
Events dates and specific requests for assistance in order to host and conduct the safest, 
finest and orderly run activities possible for our residents and the surrounding area 
visitors. The Chamber is requesting permission from the Village of Hinsdale to promote 
and conduct these annual events on the dates suggested. We look forward to another 
successful special event season and we are honored to host them each and every year. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Melissa Waters, Chairman of the Board 
Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce 

cc: Kathleen Gargano; Village Manager 



HinsdJe Hinsdale Chamber of 

Commerce 2020 
Schedule of Events 

SHOP , DINE , DISCOVER 
CHAMBER of COMMERCE 

June 6-7 

June 11-
August 13 

June 1-
0ctober 12 

July 10 & 11 

HINSDALE FINE ARTS FESTIVAL, Saturday and Sunday, in Burlington Park, 10:00 
a.m. -5:00 p.m. both days. Over 120 juried artists take to the park for this 
wonderful, eclectic art show. Music, children's activities, giveaways and more. 

UNIQUELY THURSDAYS, Thursday evenings. 6:00 -9:00 p.m., 
in Burlington Park, located between Garfield and Washington Streets on Chicago 
Avenue. Live music by some of the Midwest's top bands. Food vendors, 

sponsor giveaways, family fun each Thursday night in Hinsdale. 

FARMER'S MARKET, Mondays only. in Burlington Park, located 
between, Garfield and Washington Streets on Chicago Avenue. From 7:00 a.m. 
to 1:00 p.m. Over 25 vendors displaying the area's finest home grown, home 
spun products. 

SIDEWALK SALE, Friday and Saturday, on sidewalks in front of participating 
businesses, from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. both days. 

SepteR1eer 1;! MERCM 0 111+i G,O.R.'\GE S'bli iA tee P"llliE Wsrl<s Garage Sat"rElay frsRI 9:00 
a.FA. ts q:QG [3.ffi. fsrt/::te geReral [3b18lie. ~Je jtJAk, RS jelce! Ceme early te get blf3 

October 15 

ta 7S% eff! CR.QPP~C ***LACK OF VENDORS TO MAKE THIS EVENT 

WORTHWHILE*** 

ANNUAL HINSDALE WINE WALK -5 - 7:30 PM in the downtown Hinsdale 
Business District -Co-sponsored with Village of Hinsdale. 

October 17 HINSDALE FALL FESTIVAL-Saturday at Hinsdale Middle School, 11:00 a.m. -
2:00 p.m. In conjunction with the Village of Hinsdale - Halloween fun in 
downtown Hinsdale. Co-sponsored with Village of Hinsdale. 

December 4 CHRISTMAS WALK - Friday, from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. in all business districts 
-downtown, Grant and Gateway Squares. Merchant's stores open to celebrate 
the holiday season with customers and visitors to Hinsdale. Live music, 30' 
carousel, trackless train, ice carvers, costume characters, giveaways and more! 
Visit Santa in Burlington Park: Sat, Dec 12 & Dec 19 from 11 am - 3 pm. 

*events and/or scheduled dates subject to change upon approval of the Chamber Board 
of Directors. 



BANNER DISPLAY REQUEST 2020 

RE: Fine Arts Festival, Farmers Market, Merchant Sidewalk Sale, Uniquely Thursdays, Wine 
Walk and Christmas Walk banners 

This letter is to request banner location and installation in the Village of Hinsdale for the 
upcoming Chamber Special Events. 

Requested horizontal banner placement at train depot for the following events: 

Farmers Market to be placed Monday, June 8 (train depot after Fine Arts Event) 
Fine Arts Festival to be placed Friday, May 18 to Monday June 8 
Uniquely Thursdays to be placed Friday, May 22 
Merchant Sidewalk Sale to be placed Friday, June 26 to July 13 
Wine Walk to be placed Monday, September 28 to October 16 
Christmas Walk to be placed Friday, November 20 to December 7 

*Ogden and York (Sidewalk Sale & Christmas Walk) 

*Brush Hill Train Depot (See above for the events) 

*Burlington Park - (Fine Arts Festival Only) 

*Corner of 55•h and Garfield - (Sidewalk Sale & Christmas Walk) 

•55th and County Line Road - (Sidewalk Sale & Christmas Walk) 

Additional request for vertical/lamppost banner installation for the following events: 

Farmers Market: Monday, May 11 
Fine Arts Festival: Monday, May 11 to June 8 
Uniquely Thursdays: Monday, June 8 
Christmas Walk: Friday, November 13 to December 7 

We look forward to the Village's reply. Thank you for your time in advance. 

Best Regards, 

Eva Field 
President & CEO 
Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce 



Village of Hinsdale Board of Trustees 
Thomas Cauley, Jr.; Village President 
19 E Chicago Ave 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

Dear President Cauley and Board of Trustees, 

HinsdaJ~ 
SHOP • DINE • DISCOVER 
CHAMBER of COMMERCE 

The Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce has begun work on the 47th Annual Hinsdale Fine 
Arts Festival scheduled for Saturday and Sunday, June 5th & 7th, 2020. The F"1ne Arts Festival 
Committee wishes to make the annual request for permission from the Village of Hinsdale to 
close the portion of Chicago Avenue between Garfield Street and Washington Street beginning 
Friday, June 5th at 9:00 a.m. until Sunday, June 7th at 6:00 p.m. 

Traditionally, the committee's additional requests of the Village are as follows: 
• Allow the Hinsdale Memorial Building restrooms to remain open to the public for 

the duration of the festival. 
• Provide twelve additional trash receptacles within the festival area, to be emptied 

periodically throughout Saturday and Sunday. 
• Provide ten tables and eight chairs for the information booth. 
• Provide a hose hook-up for the food concession. 
• Schedule grass to be cut and park marked two days prior to event set-up. 
• Permission to post promotional banners two weeks prior to the festival as 

requested. 

• Permission to display ten (10) vertical banners on village lampposts for a maximum 
of three (3) weeks as requested. 

• Provide a uniformed community service officer on site for both days of the event. 
• Allow the participants to begin their set up process after 9:00 a.m. on Friday 

morning. A security guard will be provided by the Hinsdale Fine Arts Festival 
committee, to be present in the park in the overnight hours on Friday and Saturday 
evenings as an additional safety measure to the artist's equipment & materials. 

• Permission to allow artists traveling with large trailers or mobile homes to park in 
the Public Services Garage lot overnight. 

• The Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce respects and appreciates all of the support and 
special efforts made by the Village staff in order to promote and execute an event 
such as this. We are truly grateful for your consideration of these issues. You may 
direct any further questions to the Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce 630-323-3952, 
Thank You. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Eva Field; President & CEO 
Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce 

Cc: Kathleen Gargano; Village Manager 



Hinsd~f~ 
SHOP • DINE • DISCOVER 
CHAMBER a/COMMERCE 

UNIQUELY THURSDAYS 

Village of Hinsdale Board of Trustees 
Thomas Cauley, Jr.; Village President 
19 E Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

Dear President Cauley and Board of Trustees, 

The Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce is planning to conduct Uniquely Thursdays for ten 
weeks. Celebrating our 13th season, the Uniquely Thursday's event has continued 
success in drawing to new and returning visitors and residents into downtown Hinsdale. 
Uniquely Thursdays has become an established favorite and very popular event the 
community thoroughly enjoys and supports! The Chamber is requesting the following: 

• Uniquely Thursday's event to be in Burlington Park and is asking the 
Village's permission to close Chicago Avenue between Garfield 
Street and Washington Street each Thursday evening between 4:00 
p.m. to 10:00 p.m. starting on June 11th through August 13th. 

• Support of the Public Services Department: the Chamber requests 
additional assistance from the Village of Hinsdale for the physical 
set-up/break down of the event equipment; tables, tent, pop-up 
canopies, garbage cans, ice for beer & wine products, coolers, 
signage and electrical & water hook-ups. 

• The Chamber requests assistance from the Hinsdale Police 
Department for the control of liquor on the premises (not sold at 
the event) and the assistance to prohibit outside solicitation, on 
event nights (10 Thursdays throughout the summer.) 

• Allow two portable restrooms to be placed in the park each 
Thursday. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at the Chamber Office 
(630) 323-3952. I thank you for your time in advance. 

Best Regards, 
Eva Field 
President & CEO 
Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce 
CC: Kathleen Gargano; Village Manager 
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FARMERS MARKET 

Village of Hinsdale Board of Trustees 
Thomas Cauley, Jr.; Village President 
19 E Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

Dear President Cauley and Board of Trustees, 

The Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce Farmers Market season will get underway on 
Monday, June 1, 2020 and run through October 12, 2020. The Burlington Park location 
provides a beautiful setting with great visibility for the market and it continues to grow 
in popularity; especially for the lunch crowd. The Committee wishes to request 
permission from the Village of Hinsdale for the following items: 

• Close a portion of Chicago Avenue between Garfield Street and Washington Street 
from 6:30 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. on a weekly basis for the duration of the event. The 
time requested would allow the farmers/vendors time to setup/take down and 
clean up safely. 

• Permission to mark the pavement for the farmer/vendor booth space locations. 
• Provide a policeman or community service officer to assist in the opening and 

closing of Chicago Avenue. 
• Post promotional vertical banners three weeks prior and horizontal banners two 

weeks prior to the Farmers Market opening day as requested. 
• Permission to host "Fitness in the Park" in Burlington Park. 

The Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce appreciates and respects the continued support 
and special efforts made by the Village staff for the execution and assistance of 
Chamber events. Further questions may be directed to the Hinsdale Chamber of 
Commerce 630-323-3952. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Eva Field; President & CEO 
Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce 
Cc: Kathleen Gargano; Village Manager 
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2NDANNUALHl~DAlE 

WINE WALK 

Hinsdale Wine Walk 

Village of Hinsdale Board of Trustees 
Thomas Cauley, Jr.; Village President 
19 E Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

Dear President, Cauley and Board of Trustees, 

Hinsdal~ 
SHOP • DINE • DISCOVER 
CHAMBER of COMMERCE 

The Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce will once again conduct the 2cd Annual Hinsdale Wine Walk 
event on Thursday, October 15, 2020 in the central business district from 5-7:30 pm. 

Event details include: 

Public pre-sale tickets to be capped at 500 (last year was 350 tickets sold in a week). A portion of 
ticket sales will be donated to a local charity to be determined at this time. 

The Hinsdale Wine Shop will be the check-in point to have ID'S checked by Basset trained 
chamber member volunteers along with wine walk map, lanyards, and plastic/acrylic souvenir 
wine glass. No street closures are requested for this event. The Chamber has discussed this 
event with the Hinsdale Police Department so they are aware and can provide a police presence 
as needed. 

Approximately 25 (last year 23 tasting stops) retailers will be participating as wine tasting 
locations to serve no more than a 1 ounce pour to each paid attendee per location. Wine walk 
participants will be able to sample up to 15 (last year 12), 1-ounce pours. Each participating 
retailer will offer light bites. Each participant will be applying for a D-2 one-time special event 
license with the Village in order to participate. Due to the number of anticipated one-time 
special event licenses, the Chamber is requesting a reduction in the $100 fee for each business. 

The Hinsdale Wine Walk is an excellent way to highlight Hinsdale and Hinsdale's business district 
as a thriving community to a broader audience. 

As always, the Chamber appreciates the continued support and partnership for the Hinsdale 
community. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact our office at (630) 323-

3952. 

Thank you, 

Eva Field 
President & CEO 
Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce 



Village of Hinsdale 
Village President; Tom Cauley and Board of Trustees 
19 E Chicago Avenue 
Hinsdale, IL 60521 

Dear President Cauley and Village Board of Trustees, 

HinsdJ~ 
SHOP 0 DINE 0 DISCOVER 
CHAMBER of COMMERCE 

The Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce is working diligently planning this year's festivities. 
Here is an overview of the activities we have developed. 

The 55th Annual Hinsdale Christmas Walk is scheduled for Friday, December 4, 2020. As 
always, the traditional activities will include a tree lighting ceremony, carolers, Santa, 
and other costumed characters, 30' carousel, trackless train, live reindeer, merchants 
thanking their valued customers with goodies and treats during extended shopping 
hours, ice carvers, food vendors, and more. 

Also, Santa will be visiting with the children in the Gingerbread House the two 
Saturdays following (the weekend of the Christmas Walk) and children may deliver their 
letters to Santa at the North Pole Post Office. The Chamber is requesting the North Pole 
Post Office and the Gingerbread Santa House to be placed on display in Burlington Park 
for holiday season. 

The Chamber will be responsible for hosting visits with Santa on Saturday December 
12th & 19th. Santa will be on site in the Gingerbread House between the hours of 11:00 
a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on those Saturdays. 

Promotional advertising for the event may include lamppost banners, street banners, 
posters, newsprint advertising, and social media outlets. 

In support of the holiday festivities the Chamber would like to request the following 
items from the Village: 

• Placement of Gingerbread Santa house, North Pole Post Office, and the 
Gingerbread Man forms in Burlington Park. Installation complete by Friday, 
December 4, 2020. 

• Request storing Gingerbread Santa house and North Pole Post Office near public 
service garage off season while not on display. 



• Police security in and around town on December 4, 2020 with continued security 
for prevention of vandalism of Santa house and North Pole Post Office throughout 
the season. 

• Public Services support in working with the Chamber on Christmas Walk set up 
(i.e.) barricades at street closures. Please note: the Chamber would like to be 
able to close Washington Street (between Hinsdale Avenue & Second Street) on 
Friday, December 4th between the hours of 4:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. and request 
to be able to close Washington & Second Streets at 2:30 pm to accommodate 
the delivery, setup and operation of the 30' carousel ride attraction at 
Washington & Second Street. Close West of First St to Harrison Place. Close East 
First St to Garfield which will include closing Village Place to accommodate an 
attraction at this end of the street for the businesses located there. 

• Public Services and Hinsdale Police Department support in closing a portion of 
First Street (east of Washington Street up to the first alley-way located on the 
north side of First Street) on Friday, December 4th between the hours of 4:00 
p.m. and 8:00 p.m. to accommodate the delivery, setup and operation of the 
children's train-ride attraction. 

• Hinsdale Fire Department to provide a fire truck escort for Santa to arrive at Village 
Hall for the tree lighting ceremony at 5:00 p.m. 

Lamppost Banner placement (as requested) to be displayed (for holiday season) on 
designated lampposts. 

We thank you for your time and consideration of this Holiday proposal. As always, we 
appreciate and look forward to the continued support of the Hinsdale Chamber of 
Commerce by the Village, its Officials and Staff. 

Best regards, 

Eva Field; President & CEO 
Hinsdale Chamber of Commerce 

CC: Kathleen Gargano; Village Manager 
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Introduction 

Integrated Pest Management (IPM) is the management of insects, disease, weeds and other 
pests through environmentally sensitive practices. The Village of Hinsdale adopted an IPM 
policy on November 21 , 1995, which requires an annual report from the Pest Management 
Coordinator. Listed in this report are practices used by the Village in order to maintain quality flora 
while limiting adverse effects on people and the environment. The Village has developed a diverse 
program in order to manage a large scope of pests. This report contains IPM information regarding 
turf maintenance, sustainable landscaping, prairie maintenance, tree preservation and mosquito 
abatement. 

Definitions 

"Integrated Pest Management" or IPM means an effective and environmentally sensitive 
approach to pest management that relies on a combination of common-sense practices. 

"Ecosystem" means a community of living organisms (plants, animals and microbes) in 
conjunction with the nonliving components of their environment (things like air, water and 
mineral soil) , interacting as a system. 

"Sustainable Plants" means perennial (returning every season) plants that can withstand 
adverse environmental conditions (i.e., drought and salt tolerance) 

"Chemical Pesticides" means any chemical or mixture of chemicals (Including both active 
and inert ingredients) principally intended to prevent, destroy, repel , or control pests. This 
includes (without limitation) chemicals directed against vertebrates, insecticides directed 
against insects, herbicides directed against plants, fungicides directed against fungi , antib iotics 
or bactericides directed against bacteria. This term does not include materials or substances 
that may prevent, destroy, repel , or control pests as a subsidiary effect or consequence. 

"Herbicide" means a substance that is toxic to plants and is used to destroy unwanted 
vegetation . 

"Pest" means any vertebrate or invertebrate animal, plant, organism, bacterium, virus or 
other biological agent that can cause disease or damage to vegetation , humans, animals, or 
property, or any plant meeting the definition of a "weed" as set forth in the Illinois Pesticides 
Act. 

"Pesticide" means any substance or mixture of substances intended for preventing, 
destroying , repelling, or mitigating any pest or any substance or mixture of substances intended 
for use as a plant regulator, defoliant or desiccant. Herbicides, insecticides and fungicides are 
all considered pesticides. 

"Weed" means any plant growing in a place where it is not wanted. 
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The Village continues following the guidelines laid out in the 1995 IPM Policy. The ultimate goal 
of the policy is to ensure that Village property is managed in a manner that best protects 
and promotes public health, safety and welfare . The IPM policy and procedures provides a 
framework for limiting pesticide use and promoting best management practices. 

1 - Turf Maintenance 

The Village's IPM Policy examines methods to enhance the quality of turf before utilizing 
chemical herbicides. Methods to improve turf conditions include aeration, seeding , watering , 
fertilization , soil amending and weed control. A combination of these methods provides a 
diverse and effective turf management program. In 2019, the following measures were taken to 
maintain or improve turf conditions: 

Table 1 A - Activity Measures 
Measure 2019 (Target) 2019 (Actual) 

Aeration 47 acres 22.2 acres 
Over Seeding 2510 pounds 2800 pounds 
Fertilization As needed 0 acres 
Irrigation As needed As needed 
Soil Amending (top dress) 6.7 acres 22.2 acres 
Organic Herbicide As needed 0 acres 
Chemical Herbicide As needed 0 acres 

The Village contracted with a turf maintenance company to complete a 'deep tine aeration ' with 
over seeding at Veeck Park in March and November and Robbins Park in November. 280 tons of 
sand were used to top dress the parks and 2000 pounds of grass seed was added. Parks Crews 
top dressed and over seeded worn turf areas such as goal mouths in the athletic fields and bare 
turf areas in the Village's green spaces on a weekly basis. Fert ilizer and chemical herbicide were 
not used on turf areas in 2019. Fertilizer and herbicide applications are best conducted locally in 
September, which is the time of season when these products are most effective. Athletic and 
other uses of the Village's parks are in high demand at this time so applications were suspended. 
The program continues to focus on cultural practices to maintain turf areas. 

Veeck Park Top Dress and Over Seed 
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1.1 - Chemical Herbicide Alternatives 
Efforts to reduce chemical pesticides have been well received by the community. 
Although the Village takes numerous precautions before applying chemical pesticides, 
residents continue to express concern about herbicide use on Village green spaces. 
Chemical herbicide alternatives like corn gluten meal (CGM) have been tested on 
Village grounds. CGM is a byproduct of corn processing. CGM is effective as a pre­
emergent weed control (inhibits seeds from germinating), but the product shows little 
promise on established weeds. CGM is 14.5 times more costly than conventional 
herbicide. If the Village applied CGM to its 140 acres of green space it would cost 
over $120,000, far more expensive than conventional herbicide, Tri-Power Selective. 

Method Price Per Acre Village Green Space Total Cost 
Conventional Herbicide (Tri-Power) $60.00 140 acres $8,400 

Organic Herbicide (corn gluten meal) $870.00 140 acres $121,800 

When necessary, the Village will apply Tri-Power to control weeds in turf grass. Unlike 
corn gluten meal, Tri-Power chemical herbicide is a post-emergent weed control 
(applied on established weeds). Tri-Power chemical herbicide is very effective at 
eliminating turf grass weeds. After weeds have been eliminated from turf grass, regular 
maintenance is necessary to prevent their return (over seeding, fertilizing, watering 
and aerating). Chemical herbicide has the best results when applied in late summer or 
early autumn. The current practice during chemical herbicide application includes: 

• Area closed signage containing pertinent information in regards to the chemical treatment. 
• Notification to area schools, newspaper, Village website, and Channel 6. 
• Areas that were treated should be over seeded 30 days after chemical application to 

ensure grass replaces eliminated weeds. 

2 - Tree Preservation 

The Village of Hinsdale is continually updating its forestry program. The goal is to establish and 
maintain a safe, healthy, energy efficient and aesthetically attractive community forest, using 
cost effective and professional management techniques. 

The Village has an estimated 14,673 trees on public property. This includes parkways, parks, 
street islands, and alleys. The forestry program's objective is to manage healthy, suitable 
and vigorous trees on parkways and Village properties, as well as to provide current 
information and expertise to homeowners regarding both public and private property trees. The 
forestry program consists of a Superintendent of Parks and Forestry and Public Services Staff, 
which currently includes 3 certified arborists, involved with tree planting, tree pruning, tree 
preservation, tree and stump removal, and insect and disease management. 

2.1 - Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) 
The Village has been managing the threat of EAB in several ways: 
• Education and extension. 



• Incorporating management of the pest into the forestry program. 
• Continued communication with other municipalities to examine their response to EAB in 

order to develop management strategies for Hinsdale. 

Of the total public tree population, there are approximately 589 trees in the ash group (green, 
white, and European Ash) that are susceptible hosts to EAB, roughly 4% of the total tree 
population. In 2011 over 11 % of the public tree population was in the ash group. There are 
equally as many ash trees on private property. Very few areas within the Village do not have 
ash trees in the parkways. The impact of tree loss caused by EAB is being felt by all 
residents. 

In 2019, the Village treated 279 ash trees with insecticides by soil injections 
through the Village's Ash Preservation Program. The Village removed 42 ash trees 
due to EAB infestation this year and 1,521 since February 2011, when the pest was 
discovered. 

2.2 - Dutch Elm Disease (OED) 
Hinsdale has been managing DED since 1955 with a variety of programs. Thanks to public 
support, the Village continues to manage an estimated 1,386 public American elm trees. In 
2019, the Village lost 14 public American elm trees, 11 to DED and 3 to other causes. Of 
the 11 elms lost to DED 1 O had been on a treatment cycle and 1 had not been treated. 
In addition, 4 private American elm trees were removed due to Dutch elm disease. As part 
of the elm preservation program, 317 American elm trees were treated with fungicide 
(Arbortect) in 2019. The loss of elm trees treated on this three-year cycle has been minimal. 

2.3 - Tree Planting 
The number of trees planted in the Village outnumbered the number of trees removed in 
2019. This is to reforest the Village due to ash tree loss. A total of 321 trees were 
planted; 318 trees were planted through the Village's planting programs, 1 tree was 
planted by residents through the Village's reimbursement program and 2 trees were 
planted through the Village's Tribute Tree Program. 

2.4 - Tree Pruning 
The purpose of tree pruning is to improve tree structure, enhance vigor, and maintain safe 
conditions for all motorists and pedestrians as they move th rough the street corridor. 
Pruning is also a preventative measure against pests like insects and disease. The benefits 
from establishing a tree pruning program on a regular cycle include: 

• The enhancement of tree condition and shape, and preservation of value 
• A reduction in service request calls 
• A reduction in number or severity of storm related damages 
• A reduction in power line clearance related interference 
• A reduction in the number of trees which undergo drastic changes in their appearance 

from pruning 
• A reduction in pruning cost due to less work required on each tree and less wood waste 

generated 

Hinsdale's pruning activities can be split into three different classifications. The forestry 
program administers the first two: cyclical pruning and request pruning. Cyclical pruning 

. consists of s.ch~duling cill par~waytre~s. wit.~in_a .SPE'!C:i~c; area of the VillagE! for prun!ng, 



generally during the winter months. Request pruning activities occur all year long, subject to 
needs such as storm damage or clearance problems. The third type, utility pruning, is 
administered and performed by the utility companies for adequate clearance from overhead 
utility wires on a timetable established by the utility. 

• In 2019, 1391 trees were pruned in the cyclical program. The area of the Village that 
was pruned in this cycle is encompassed by N Garfield Street on the West, Mills Street 
on the East, Ogden Avenue on the North and Symonds Drive on the South. 

• As part of the request pruning program, Village crews pruned 201 trees throughout 
the Village in 2019. In addition, Village crews responded to numerous requests to 
repair and remove broken and hanging branches due to wind, ice, snow and other 
events. 

Table 2A- Tree Removal History (Public Trees) 

Year OED EAB Other Activity Total 
2019 11 42 190 243 
2018 11 64 208 283 
2017 11 78 248 337 
2016 24 282 188 494 
2015 37 338 146 521 
2014 22 286 80 388 
2013 22 270 121 413 
2012 27 42 146 Annual ash injections 215 
2011 12 13 102 EAB confirmed 127 
2010 13 93 106 
2009 60 80 140 
2008 56 140 196 
2007 97 79 Cvclical elm inoculations 176 
2006 175 167 342 

Table 28 - Public Elm and Ash Injections 

Year Elm Injections Ash Injections 
2019 317 279 
2018 307 307 
2017 402 288 
2016 409 346 
2015 331 388 
2014 420 477 
2013 425 449 
2012 326 420 
2011 429 0 
2010 225 0 
2009 436 0 
2008 466 0 
2007 515 0 
2006 21 0 
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Table 2C-T ree Pl f an mg 
Year Trees Planted 2019 
2019 324 Type of Planting #of Trees 
2018 343 Spring 176 
2017 310 Fall 91 
2016 272 Resident 4 
2015 266 Tribute 2 
2014 220 Arbor Day 2 
2013 148 CBD 2 
2012 131 Village Parks 47 
2011 90 Total 324 
2010 51 

3 -Sustainable Landscaping 

The Village has embarked on various sustainable landscaping projects. Sustainable 
plants provide an appealing landscape and less maintenance than tender annual plants. 
The Village's sustainable plantings include: the Woodlands Rain Gardens, the Burlington 
Park Wall , and various planting beds in the Central Business District. Rain gardens have 
been installed as part of the Woodlands Green Infrastructure project. Rain gardens offer a 
multitude of benefits, which are outlined below. 

3.1 - Woodlands Rain Gardens 
Rain gardens have been installed in the Woodlands neighborhood in 
conjunction with Phase I, II & Ill construction . Rain gardens are known as a 
best management practice for storm water. While the Woodland rain 
gardens and underground storage have managed runoff, there have been 



several resident requests to improve the above ground planting bed 
appearance. In order to manage dandelion and other weed species, it is 
recommended to continue to use a pre-emergent herbicide with the active 
ingredient Oryzalin . This herbicide inhibits the germination of weed seeds. The 
herbicide should be used sparingly and only when existing weeds become 
unmanageable. In conjunction with the herbicide application , hand weeding is 
also scheduled in order to manage the rain gardens. The application of this 
pre-emergent is intended as a tool to control weeds when determined 
necessary by the pest management coordinator. Potential exposure will 
remain limited as signage and notifications will be provided to residents. 
Rain gardens are considered a best management practice because they 
recharge ground water, filter pollutants, reduce mosquitoes, and provide a 
habitat for wildlife. 

Recharges Groundwater 
In traditional storm water systems, runoff is collected in catch basins under Village streets and is 
slowly diverted through a series of underground structures, eventually dispersing into local bodies 
of water including creeks, streams, rivers and lakes. Hinsdale's runoff is sent to Salt Creek, 
Flagg Creek, the Des Plaines River and eventually the Mississippi River. Instead of 
sending storm water away through underground infrastructure, rain gardens offer an alternative 
solution that helps contain water locally. Storm runoff is diverted into the gardens where water is 
utilized by plants and the excess slowly percolates down to the water table (aquifers). 

Diagram 3A- Recharging Ground Water 
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Filters Pollution 
Roof tops, roads, bridges and parking lots are impermeable surfaces that rain water moves 
across, collecting pollutants in the process. Pollutants include dirt, dust, rubber and metal 
deposits, antifreeze, engine oil , pesticides, fertilizers , discarded cups, plastic bags, cigarette 
butts, pet waste, and other litter. As mentioned above, storm runoff is generally sent to local 
bodies of water, pollutants included. The ecosystem incorporated in the rain gardens assists in 
filtering out pollutants, especially petroleum based chemicals. Plants and microorganisms help 
filter these pollutants onsite before they are sent down stream. 

Reduces Mosquitoes 
Rain gardens replace a traditional catch basin , thus reducing the need for chemical treatment. 
A mosquito needs 72 hours to complete metamorphosis in standing water. Traditional storm 
water systems contain catch basins where water is "captured" and eventually dispersed. A catch 
basin is designed to have a sump basin below the outgoing sewer plumbing. The sump basin 
functions as a collection area to keep debris out of the outgoing plumbing, thus preventing 
blockages. However, the bottom of a catch basin often houses standing water, creating a site for 
mosquitoes to lay eggs. These catch basins are treated through the Village's mosquito 
abatement program. A well designed and maintained rain garden will completely drain before 
mosquito eggs have time to develop into adult mosquitoes. 

Diagram 38 - Anatomy of a Catch Basin 
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Wildlife Habitat 
The palette for the Woodlands rain gardens 
includes various native plant species. Native plants 
provide food and shelter to beneficial insects and 
small animals, creating a balanced ecosystem. 
Native plants, insects and animals evolved 
together and have a symbiotic relationship (i.e., 
Monarch Butterflies lay eggs on Milkweed plants. 
Monarch larvae feed on the plant while adults 
pollinate which produces seed). There are many 
additional examples in which plants, insects and 
animals interact and create a harmonious 
relationship. Development has disturbed natural 
areas leaving many native plants, insects and 

Rain Garden Located in the Woodlands 
animals in danger of extinction. Rain gardens will 

not completely reverse the adverse effects of suburban development; however they do assist in 
creating a sustainable direction for future developments and help retain the current ecosystem. 

Woodland Rain Garden Revitalization Program 
Residents of Woodlands have provided feedback, which is being incorporated into a new 
program to provide needed maintenance to the hardscape and plant materials in selected rain 
gardens. This pilot program identifies two to four rain gardens that will undergo restoration of the 
hardscape, rejuvenation of existing plants and installation of new plants. In 2019, one rain garden 
underwent restoration . Staff is working with residents to develop plants to restore additional rain 
gardens in 2020. 

Rain Garden Improvements 

700 Cleveland (before) 700 Cleveland (after) 



3.2 - Central Business District Sustainable Plantings 
The Village continues to make landscape improvements in the central business district. In 
the spring of 2014, sustainable plants were installed in the Burlington Park living wall. The 
primary function of the wall is to retain the grade between Burlington Drive (cab stand) 
and Burlington Park. The wall also offers seating for park patrons attending such 
events as Uniquely Thursdays or the 
Fine Arts Festival. Runoff from Burli11gto11 Wall Pla11ti11g Bed 
Burlington Drive also flows into the 
wall 's planting bed through cut outs in 
the curb. The plant material and 
microorganisms in the soil offer the 
same benefits as the Woodlands rain 
gardens by recharging ground water, 
filtering pollution , reducing mosquitoes 
and providing a wildlife habitat. Plant 
material continues to establish in the 
wall. In addition to the Burlington Wall, 
staff is exploring other areas where 
sustainable plants can be utilized. 
Throughout the central business 
district, there are sites where 
sustainable planting improvements 
can be made. These sites include the 
Vi llage Parking Lot, Memorial Hall 
Grounds, and Brush Hill Station . 

4 - Prajrje Maintenance 

Parks maintenance staff performs prescribed prairie burns at two locations. These locations 
are the Charleston Road Aquatic Garden and the Hinsdale Prairie. The Charleston Road 
Aquatic Garden is a 1.5 acre site located in the center of Charleston Road , West of County 
Line Road (across from Katherine Legge Memorial Park). The Hinsdale Prairie is a 3 acre 
parcel located on the West side of Jackson Street between 7th and 8th Streets. 

Prescribed burns are an effective form of weed control and also help to invigorate native 
plants. Prescribed burns can be conducted in the early spring before plant growth initiates, or 
in late fall/early winter after a hard frost occurs. Public Services performed the prescribed 
burns on March 27, 2019. A summary of the burns is outlined below: 

• Duration-
Length of time the prescribed burn lasted. 

• Fire intensity-
The estimated surface heat generated by the burn, rated on a 1-10 scale; 10 being 
very intense. The heat generated by the fire is a determining factor on how wel l it 
destroys non- native plant root systems. 



• Percent blackened-
A measure of how many acres were actually burned. Some areas do not burn for a 
variety of reasons, including moisture levels or lack of plant material as fuel. 

Duration 
Fire Percent 

Intensity Blackened 
Charleston Road 2 hours 6 80% 
Hinsdale Prairie 5 hours 8 90% 

Hinsdale Prairie Charleston Road Aquatic Garden 
Prescribed burns have been scheduled for late of March in 2020. Notification of the burn will be 
made via newspaper and letters to residents in close proximity. 
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5 - Mosquito Abatement 

The Village's mosquito management program is completed by Clarke Mosquito Management, 
Inc. for the areas in DuPage County and Des Plaines Valley Mosquito Abatement District for the 
areas in Cook County. Mosquito abatement services include surveillance, monitoring, larva and 
adult control (as needed). Services begin in May and continue through September. Cases of 
West Nile Virus decreased in 2019. A total of 28 human cases occurred in Illinois. There were 14 
reported cases in Cook County and 6 in DuPage County. 

Clarke Mosquito Management is treating Village catch basins with larvicides that contain 
naturally derived active ingredients. The product is named Natular and contains Spinosad, a 
product derived from a naturally occurring soil bacterium. Spinosad alters the function of insect 
receptors. Natular is the first larvacide evaluated as a reduced risk product by the EPA. Clarke is 
scheduled to utilize Natular in catch basin treatments during the 2020 season. 

6 - Annual Pest Management Review Meeting 

The November 1995 policy requires an annual review meeting to be held at a public meeting 
before the end of February. The Annual Pest Management Review meeting shall specifically 
consider the issue of chemical pesticide use on Village property, alternative means for the 
management of pests on Village property and any recommendations of the Pest Management 
Coordinator, concerning pest management on Village property. The tentative date for this 
meeting will be Monday, March 16, 2020. Any technical or scientific questions regarding the 
compliance report must be submitted in writing, no less than seven days before the IPM Review 
Meeting. It is appropriate that the Village Board of Trustees make a motion to approve the report. 
Proper notice will be given in local media outlets. 

7 - 2020 Pest Management Schedule 
March 17, 2020 

a. IPM Annual Review Meeting 

March 19, 2020 
a. Conduct prairie burns on Hinsdale Prairie and Charleston Rd (weather permitting) 

April 1, 2020 
a. Begin aeration program 
b. Over seed depleted turf areas Rate: Varies per application 
c. Ash tree soil injections 

Type: Xytect (EPA Reg 42750-117-74779) 
Rate: 1.6 oz per 24-48" diameter 

d. Spring Fertilization Program - Apply as needed based on action thresholds 
Type: 16-28-12 
Rate: 275 lbs/acre 

e. Contractual maintenance on Woodlands rain garden. 

June1, 2020 

Type: Surflan Pro Pre-Emergent Herbicide (62719-113-829) 
Rate: 1.5oz per 1000ft2 

a. Elm tree inoculation program 

, _, .-· -

- ----



Type: Arbortech (EPA Reg 100-892) 
Rate: 12 fl oz per 5inches of diameter 

b. Ash tree trunk injections 
Type: Tree-age (EPA Reg 100-1309-74578) 
Rate: 10-15 ml of product per inch of diameter 

c. Mosquito abatement program 
Type: VectoBac (EPA Reg 2724-375) 
Rate: 0.25-2qts/acre 
Type: Altosid (EPA Reg 1021-1688-8329) 
Rate: 1 briquette/100ft2 up to 2 ft water depth 
Type: Anvil (EPA Reg 1021-1688-8329) 
Rate: 1.9 oz/min at 5mph 

August 3, 2020 
a. Second round of aeration program 
b. Over seed depleted turf areas 

Rate: Varies per application 

September 7. 2020 
a. Fall fertilization program 

1. Apply as needed based upon action thresholds 
Type: Lesco 24-0-16 
Rate: 1 lbs N/1 000f12 

b. Fall weed control 
1. Apply as needed based upon action thresholds 

Type: Tri-Power selective herbicide 

November 2. 2020 
a. Athletic field maintenance 

Top dress resting athletic fields with soil or organic materials 
b. Final round aeration program 
c. Dormant seed depleted turf areas 

Rate: Varies per application 
d. Late fall fertilization program (excluding seeded areas) 

Type: 22-3-11 
Rate: 200lbs/acre 



8 -Turf Evaluations !August 2019) 

Site# Location Location Description Turf Dens. Weed Pop. Appearance 

Al ADAMS ST. @OGDEN Adams cul-de-sac off North St N/A Area under construction 

A2 BITIERSWEET & COLUMBIA B'1ttersweet dead end east of Columbia Av 7 5 7 

A3 BRUSH HILL Between Elm St and Park Av north of Symonds Dr 6 5 6 

A4 BURLINGTON AND STOUGH Retention area northwest corner of W Hinsdale train parking lot 6 5 6 

AS CHARLESTON RD Median area in middle of road 7 5 6 

A6 CHESTNUT ST. PARKING LOT Vine St and Chestnut Av 5 5 5 

A7 CHICAGO & PRINCETON Southwest corner of Chicago Av and Princeton Rd 7 7 7 

AB CHICAGO AVE. GARFIELD TO ELM Along the railroad platform 6 6 6 

A9 COUNTY LINE COURT County Line Court cul-de-sac 5 4 5 

AlO DALEWOOD ISLAND Dalewood cul-de-sac 8 8 8 

All HINSDALE AVE: GARFIELD TO STOUGH South railroad corridor from Garfield St to Stough St 5 s 5 

A12 JACKSON ST. CUL-DE-SAC Southside of Jackson cul-de-sac 6 5 5 

A13 LINCOLN LOT Southwest corner of 1st St & Lincoln 6 5 6 

A14 MADISON @ OGDEN Northeast and Southeast corner of Ogden Av and Madison St 7 5 6 

AlS MILLS ST-THE LANE NORTH East side of Mills St from The Lane North past Fuller Rd 6 6 6 

A16 HIGHLAND STATION North of the tracks off County Line Rd 6 s 6 

A17 PARKWAYS@ Hinsdale Middle School Parkways along angle parking on 2nd St & Washington St 6 6 6 

A18 POLICE/FIRE BUILDING Symonds Dr and Post Cir 5 4 5 

A19 PUBLIC WORKS GARAGE Symonds Dr near Elm St 6 4 6 

A20 RAVINE & COUNTY LINE RD Island at Ravine Rd and County Line Rd 6 6 7 

A21 RAVINE & OAK Islands at Ravine Rd and Oak St 6 6 7 

A22 SYMONDS DRIVE Parkways along tracks Symonds Dr: Garfield St to Elm St 6 5 6 

A23 VILLAGE LOT(@ Mobile Station) Washington St and Lincoln St North of the tracks 4 4 4 

A24 WASHINGTON @ OGDEN West side of Washington St@ Ogden Ave & Bonnie Brae 6 3 5 

A25 WASHINGTON CIRCLE North of Washington Cir@ 9th & Washington 7 7 7 

A26 WASHINGTON LOT East side of Washington St@ 2nd N/A Area under construction. 

A27 WATER PLANT Park Av & Symonds Dr 

West of Plant 7 3 7 

South of Plant 6 5 6 
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Reservoir (North Side) 6 5 7 

A28 WEST HINSDALE STATION Parkways off Railroad Av and Hinsdale Av 6 5 6 

A29 WEST OF POST CIRCLE Garfield St and Post Cir 6 5 6 

A30 WOODLAND ROAD ISLANDS Woodland Rd between County Line and Taft 6 6 6 

A31 WOODSIDE & COLUMBIA Dead end of Woodside Av - east of Columbia 6 6 6 

A32 YORK & WALKER York Rd @Walker Rd 5 3 5 

A33 FULLER RIGHT OF WAY Village right of way east of Walker Rd 6 2 5 

A34 ELM RIGHT OF WAY: 9TH TO SSTH Right of way between 9th St and 55th St 6 5 6 

A35 JACKSON ST: HINSDALE TO 8TH West side of Jackson St from Hinsdale to gth 6 6 6 

A36 COLUMBIA AV: lST TO 3RD East side of Columbia St between 1st and 3rd 6 5 6 

A37 lST & PRINCETON Island located at 1st & Princeton 6 5 6 

A38 3RD & PRINCETON Island located at 3rct & Princeton 6 5 6 

A39 4TH ST ISLANDS 4th St between Garfield and County Line 7 6 7 

A40 6TH & PRINCETON 5th St@ Princeton 6 6 6 

A41 7TH & HARDING 7th St@ Harding 6 6 6 

A42 7TH & WILSON 7th St@ Wilson 6 6 6 

A43 8TH & CLAY Clay St cul-de-sac off gth St 6 5 6 

A44 8TH & VINE Vine St cul-de-sac off gth St N/A Area under construction. 

A45 OAK@ 9TH Pedestrian area from Oak St cul-de-sac to SS1
h St 5 5 5 

A46 9TH & STOUGH 900 block of south Stough St on the west side 6 5 6 

A47 59TH ST: GIDDINGS TO - ELM Retention area west of Elm St near 59th St 7 7 7 

A48 W CHICAGO & STOUGH W Chicago Ave: Route 83 to Stough 6 5 6 

A49 "806" FRANKLIN Lot located at 806 N Franklin St 6 6 6 

ASO SSTH & TAFT Harding Rd @SS" 6 s 6 

ASl CHESTNUT CUL-DE-SAC Dead end of Chestnut St - west of Stough 4 s s 
AS2 BRUSH HILL TRAIN STATION Hinsdale Av: Garfield to Washington 7 6 7 

AS3 CLEVELAND CUL-DE-SAC South end of Cleveland Road 6 s 6 

Bl BROOK PARK Woodside Av and 6th St East of Springlake Av 

Playing Fields 7 7 7 

Fringe Areas 7 7 7 

B2 BURLINGTON PARK Garfield St and Washington St South of Chicago Av 6 s 6 

63 BURNS FIELD Madison St and Vine St North of Hickory St 
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Ice Rink 6 5 7 

Playground 6 4 6 

Soccer Area (off Madison) 6 5 7 

Fringe Areas 5 4 6 

B4 DIETZ PARK Bodin St and Adams St South of 7th St 6 6 6 

BS DUNCAN FIELD North of Ogden east of the Arnita Health Building N/A N/A N/A 

86 EHRET PARK Monroe St and Rosalie Ct South of Chestnut St 6 5 7 

B7 ELEANOR'S PARK Southeast corner of Clay St @ Chicago Av 7 4 7 

88 HIGHLAND PARK Oak St and County Line Rd North of E Chicago Av 

Passive 6 6 7 

Parkways 6 5 6 

B9 HINSDALE COMMUNITY POOL Hinsdale Ave@ Monroe St 

Interior 6 5 5 

North 6 6 6 

South 6 5 s 
West 6 6 7 

BlO MELIN PARK Qu'incy St cul-de-sac off 8th St 7 6 7 

Bll MEMORIAL BUILDING Garfield Av and Washington St North of E Chicago Av 

North 6 4 6 

South 7 4 6 

B12 PEIRCE PARK South of Walnut St and East of Mills St 

Far East Fields 7 6 7 

Near East Fields 7 6 7 

Passive Areas 6 4 6 

Far West Field 6 5 6 

B13 ROBBINS PARK 6th St and 7th St West of Grant St 

NE- North-half of Soccer fields 5 6 6 

NE- South-half of Soccer fields 5 6 6 

Central 6 6 6 

Southwest 7 6 7 

Parkways 6 6 6 

Football 5 5 5 
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B14 STOUGH PARK Stough St and Bruner St South of Town Pl 

Ice Rink 7 7 7 

Railroad Bank N/A Area under construction. 

East Passive 7 7 7 

Central Passive 6 6 6 

BlS VEECK PARK North of 47th St and East of County Line Rd 

Soccer Area 5 8 5 

Softball Area 7 6 7 

Passive Areas 6 6 6 

B16 WOODLAND PARK 7th St and 55th St East of Harding Rd 7 6 7 

B17 KATHERINE LEGGE MEMORIAL PARK 57th St and 59th St East of County Line Rd 

North of Creek 5 5 5 

Athletic Field 7 6 7 

South of Access Road 6 6 6 

Lodge/Zook House/Annex 5 5 5 

Concert Hill 6 5 6 

B18 OAK STREET BRIDGE PARK West of Oak Street South of the bridge 6 6 6 

B19 BURLINGTON PARK WALL Burlington Park North of the cab stand 6 5 6 
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9 - Turf Recommendations 12020! 

Site# Location Location Description Notes & Recommendations 

Al Adams St. @Ogden Adams cul-de-sac off North St Top dress and over seed in the spring. 

A2 Bittersweet & Columbia Bittersweet dead end east of Columbia Av Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A3 Brush Hill Between Elm St and Park Av north of Symonds Dr Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A4 Burlington And Stough Retention area northwest corner of W Hinsdale Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

train parking lot 

AS Charleston Rd Median area in middle of road Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A6 Chestnut St. Parking Lot Vine St and Chestnut Av Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A7 Chicago & Princeton Southwest corner of Chicago Av and Princeton Rd Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

AS Chicago Ave. Garfield To Elm Along the railroad platform Overseed all bare spots in the spring time. 

A9 County Line Court County Line Court cul-de-sac Top dress and overseed in the spring. 

AlO Dalewood Island Dalewood cul-de-sac Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

All Hinsdale Ave: Garfield To South railroad corridor from Garfield St to Stough St Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 
Stough 

A12 Jackson St. Cul-De-Sac Southside of Jackson cul-de-sac Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A13 Lincoln Lot Southwest corner of 1st St & Lincoln Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A14 Madison @ Ogden Northeast and Southeast corner of Ogden Av and Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Madison St 

A15 Mills St - The Lane North East side of Mills St from The Lane North past Fuller Continue with maintenance as scheduled, monitor tollway construction. 

Rd 

A16 Highland Station North of the tracks off County Line Rd Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A17 Parkways@ Hinsdale Middle Parkways along angle parking on 2"d St & Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

School Washington St 

A18 Police/Fire Building Symonds Or and Post Cir Top dress and overseed in the spring. 

A19 Public Works Garage Symonds Or near Elm St Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A20 Ravine & County line Rd Island at Ravine Rd and County Line Rd Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A21 Ravine & Oak Islands at Ravine Rd and Oak St Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A22 Symonds Drive Parkways along tracks Symonds Dr: Garfield St to Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Elm St 

A23 Village Lot(@ Mobile Washington St and Lincoln St North of the tracks Top dress and overseed in the spring. 

Station) 

A24 Washington @ Ogden West side of Washington St@ Ogden Ave & Bonnie Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Brae 

A25 Washington Circle North of Washington Cir@ 9th & Washington Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A26 Washington Lot East side of Washington St@ 2nd Continue with maintenance as scheduled, monitor deck construction. 
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A27 Water Plant Park Av & Symonds Dr I I I 
West of Plant Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

South of Plant Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Reservoir (North Side} Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A28 West Hinsdale Station Parkways off Railroad Av and Hinsdale Av Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A29 West of Post Circle Garfield St and Post Cir Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A30 Woodland Road Islands Woodland Rd between County line and Taft Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A31 Woodside & Columbia Dead end of Woodside Av - east of Columbia Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A32 York & Walker York Rd @ Walker Rd Top dress and overseed in the spring. 

A33 Fuller Right of Way Village right of way east of Walker Rd Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A34 Elm Right of Way: 9th To Right of way between 9th St and 55th St Cut back buckthorn to improve growing conditions. 
SS th 

A35 Jackson St: Hinsdale to 8th West side of Jackson St from Hinsdale to gth Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A36 Columbia Av: 1st To 3rd East side of Columbia St between 1st and 3rd Continue with maintenance as scheduled, monitor tollway construction. 

A37 1st & Princeton Island located at 1•1 & Princeton Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A38 3rd & Princeton Island located at 3rd & Princeton Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A39 4th St Islands 4th St between Garfield and County line Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A40 6th & Princeton 5th St @ Princeton Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A41 7th & Harding 7th St@ Harding Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A42 7th & Wilson 7th St @ Wilson Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A43 8th & Clay Clay St cul-de-sac off gth St Overseed all bare spots in the spring time. 

A44 8th & Vine Vine St cul-de-sac off gth St Overseed all bare spots in the spring time. 

A45 Oak@ 9th Pedestrian area from Oak St cul-de-sac to 55th St Cut back buckthorn to improve growing conditions. 

A46 9th & Stough 900 block of south Stough St on the west side Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A47 59th St: Giddings To - Elm Retention area west of Elm St near 59th St Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

A48 W Chicago & Stough W Chicago Ave: Route 83 to Stough Cut back buckthorn to improve growing conditions. 

A49 "806" Franklin Lot located at 806 N Franklin St Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

ASO SSth & Taft Harding Rd @ SS'h Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

ASl Chestnut Cul-De-Sac Dead end of Chestnut St - west of Stough Overseed all bare spots in the spring time. 

A52 Brush Hill Train Station Hinsdale Av: Garfield to Washington Sod or seed east end of platform, top dress and overseed bare areas. 

AS3 Cleveland Cul-De-Sac South end of Cleveland Road Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Bl Brook Park Woodside Av and 6th St East of Springlake Av 

Playing Fields Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Fringe Areas Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 
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B2 Burlington Park Garfield St and Wash·ington St South of Chicago Av Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 

B3 Burns Field Madison St and Vine St North of Hickory St 

Ice Rink Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 

Playground Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 

Soccer Area (Off Madison) Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 

Fringe Areas Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fa!!. 

B4 Dietz Park Bodin St and Adams St South of 7th St Aerate and overseed east half of park in spring or fall. 

BS Duncan Field North of Ogden east of the Arnita Health Building N/A 

B6 Ehret Park Monroe St and Rosalie Ct South of Chestnut St Remove brush, top dress and overseed bare areas. 

B7 Eleanor's Park Southeast corner of Clay St@ Chicago Av Reduce and restore planting beds, top dress and overseed new turf areas. 

B8 Highland Park Oak St and County Line Rd North of E Chicago Av 

Passive Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Parkways Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

B9 Hinsdale Community Pool Hinsdale Ave@ Monroe St 

Interior Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

North Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

South Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

West Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

BlO Melin Park Quincy St cul-de-sac off 8th St Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Bll Memorial Building Garfield Av and Washington St North of E Chicago 

Av 

North Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 

South Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 

B12 Peirce Park South of Walnut St and East of Mills St 

Far East Fields Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Near East Fields Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendaf1ons at this time. 

Passive Areas Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Far West Field Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

B13 Robbins Park 6th St and 7th St West of Grant St 

NE- North-Half Of Soccer Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 

Fields 

NE- South-Half Of Soccer Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 

Fields 

Central Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 
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Southwest Aerate and overseed in the spr'1ng and/or fall. 

Parkways Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 

Football Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall. 

814 Stough Park Stough St and Bruner St South ofTown Pl 

Ice Rink Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Railroad Bank Continue with maintenance as scheduled, monitor railway construction. 

East Passive Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Central Passive Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

BlS Veeck Park North of 47" St and East of County Line Rd 

Soccer Area Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall 

Softball Area Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall 

Passive Areas Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall 

816 Woodland Park 7" St and SS" St East of Harding Rd Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

817 Katherine Legge Memorial S7th St and S9th St East of County Line Rd 
Park 
North of Creek Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fall 

Athletic Field Aerate and overseed in the fall or spring. 

South of Road Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

Lodge/Zook House/Annex Aerate and overseed in the spring and/or fa!! 

Concert Hill Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

818 Oak Street Bridge Park West of Oak Street South of the bridge Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 

819 Burlington Park Wall Burlington Park North of the cab stand Continue with maintenance as scheduled, no recommendations at this time. 
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10 - Weather Data 

j2019 PRECIPITATION TOTALS IN INCHESj j2019TEMPERATURES IN 'Fi 
MEAN OBSERVED MEAN OBSERVED 

JAN 2019 1.73 1.93 112°/o JAN 2019 23.8 21.0 88o/o 

FEB 2019 1.79 2.18 122°/o FEB 2019 27.7 25.9 94o/o 

MAR 2019 2.5 2.89 116°/o MAR 2019 37.9 34.3 91°/o 

APR 2019 3.38 6.76 200°/o APR 2019 48.9 49.7 102% 

MAY 2019 3.68 8.95 243o/o MAY 2019 59.1 58.0 98°/o 

JUNE 2019 3.45 4.39 121 o/o JUNE 2019 68.9 67.8 98°/o 

JULY 2019 3.7 5.35 127%1 JULY 2019 74 77.1 104°/o 

AUG 2019 4.9 3.42 82°/o AUG 2019 72.4 72.9 101°/o 

SEPT 2019 3.21 8.09 252% SEPT 2019 64.6 69.4 107%1 

OCT 2019 3.15 6.97 221°/o OCT 2019 52.5 50.9 97°/o 

NOV 2019 3.15 1.70 54°/o NOV 2019 40.3 34.8 86°/o 

DEC 2019 2.25 1.29 57°/o DEC 2019 27.7 34.0 123°/o 

ANNUAL TOTAL 36.89 53.90 151% 99°/o 

12018 PRECIPITATION TOTALS IN INCHES! 12018 TEMPERATURES IN 'Fl 
MEAN OBSERVED MEAN OBSERVED 

JAN 2018 1.73 1.54 89°/o JAN 2018 23.8 24.7 104°/o 

FEB 2018 1.79 4.64 259% FEB 2018 27.7 28.8 104%1 

MAR 2018 2.5 1.74 69o/o MAR 2018 37.9 36.9 97% 

APR 2018 3.38 2.72 80o/o APR 2018 48.9 41.2 84o/o 

MAY 2018 3.68 8.21 223o/o MAY 2018 59.1 66.2 112°/o 

JUNE 2018 3.45 7.63 221 o/o JUNE 2018 68.9 71.5 104'% 

JULY 2018 3.7 1.14 31°/o JULY 2018 74 76.2 103%1 

AUG 2018 4.9 6.61 135°/o AUG 2018 72.4 76.3 105°/o 

SEPT 2018 3.21 3.65 114%.1 SEPT 2018 64.6 68.9 107°/o 

OCT 2018 3.15 4.79 152°/o OCT 2018 52.5 52.7 100°/o 

NOV 2018 3.15 3.24 103°/o NOV 2018 40.3 34.6 86°/o 

DEC 2018 2.25 3.32 148o/o DEC 2018 27.7 33.2 120°/o 

ANNUAL TOTAL 36.89 49.23 133% 102o/o 

FIGURES WERE OBTAINED FROM THE NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE ---·- ----- --- __ ,,,_ ___ , _______ .. ___________ -- ---- --------------·--·~ ----·-.- --
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e HERBICIDE FACTSHEET 

MECOPROP (MCPP) 
Mecoprop (MCPP) is a common lawn care herbicide. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency estimates that 
5 million pounds are used every year on U.S. lawns. It is typically sold in products that are combinations of several 
related herbicides and as 11weed and feed" products. 

Part of the phenoxy herbicide chemical family, mecoprop kills plants by imitating naturally occurring plant growth 
hormones. 

Symptoms of exposure to mecoprop include burning skin and eyes, nausea, dizziness, and headaches. 

In laboratory tests, mecoprop has inhibited the synthesis of DNA (the molecules that contain genetic information), 
interfered with blood clotting, and inhibited the production of important components of the immune system. 

Laboratory tests using a commercial mecoprop·containing herbicide showed that the fertility of mice who drank 
water contaminated with low levels of the herbicide was less than that of mice who drank uncontaminated water. 
Even the lowest dose level tested in this experiment reduced litter size. 

A regional study in Canada found that exposure to mecoprop was associated with an increased risk of the cancer 
non-Hodgkin's lymphoma. 

Mecoprop is frequently found in urban streams. One study (done in King County, Washington) found mecoprop in 
every urban stream sample analyzed. 

In both greenhouse and field studies, mecoprop has caused plant diseases to infect more plants or produce more 
spores. 

BY CAROLINE Cox 

Mecoprop, also known as 
:\ICPP (see Figure 1), is one of the 
rnost con1n1only used la\vn care herbi­
cides in the L·.s .. ..\ccording to the L .S. 
Environn1cntal Protection . .\gency 
(EP . .\), o\·er 3 tnillion applications, 1 

totalling 5 1nil!ion pounds, 2 of n1eco­
prop are used in yards and gardens 
every year. ()nly t\\'O popular yard and 
garden herbicides· (2,4-D and 
glyphosatc) are used n1ore \videly. 2 

As a selective herbicide that targets 
broadlcaf plants, n1ecoprop typically 
is used to kill broadleaf plants gro\v­
ing in la\vns and turf. Farrners also 
use it to kill these \\"eeds in cereal 
crops.J 

:\lecoprop is often sold in cornbi­
nations of se\·eral related herbicides 
(including 2.~-D, dican1ba. or :\(CP . .\). 

• 
Caroline Cox is NCAP's staff scientist. 

Figure 1 
Mecoprop (MCPP) 

(2-{2-methyl-4-ch/orophenoxy) 
propionic acid) 

It is also sold in ·\vecd and feed'. 
products, in which several herbicides 
<.H"C con1bined \Vith fertilizers. :\lany 
1najor pesticide con1panies n1arket 
1necoprop-containing products for 
ho1ne la\vns, and there are also prod­
ucts designed for ht\Vn care profes­
sionals and turf 1nanagcrs. \lecoprop 
is sold under a \vie.le array of brand 
nan1es. 4 

'.\.(ecoprop·s ability to kill plants 
\Vas first reported in 1956. It V\'JS 

registered for use in the L.S. in 1964.5 

Mode of Action 

i\lecoprop belongs to the phenoxy 
herbicide fan1ily. Its better-kno\vn 
chen1ical relatives include 2,4-() and 
2,4,5-T. Like all herbicides in this 
chen1ical fa111ily, tnccoprop in1itates 
naturally occurring plant gro\\'th hor­
n1oncs called auxins. It causes shoots 
of broadlcaf plants to gro\v in an elon­
gated and distorted n1anner. . .\bout a 
·\veek after exposure, the plant col­
lapses, \Yithers, and dies. 3 

Inert Ingredients 

Like n1ost pesticides, con1n1ercial 
n1ecoprop herbicides contain ingredi­
ents in addition to n1ccoprop \Vhich, 
according to L.S. pesticide la-;;v, arc 
called ·'incn.··6 In general, they are 1101 

identified and not included in n1ost of 
the testing required in order to regis­
ter these pesticides.-: Hazards of so Inc 
inerts in con1n1ercial 1necoprop her­
bicide products are sun1n1arized in 

10 
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"Inert Ingredients,·· at right. 

Symptoms of Exposure to 
Mecoprop 

Syn1pton1s reported by state health 
agencies investigating incidents \vhen 
people ~·ere exposed to niecoprop­
containing herbicides include red and 
burning skin. blistered skin, tearing. 
burning and irritated eyes, blurred vi­
sion, nausea,8 dizziness, headaches. 
chest pain. and difficulty breathing.9 

All these incidents involved herbi­
cides that contained 2.4-D in addition 
to 111ecoprop. .\lost also contained 
dicarnba. 8·9 These con1binations are 
typical of n1ecoprop-containing 
herbicides. 

A.ccorcling to the Health and Con­
sun1er Protection Directorate-Ci-encral 
of the European Co1nrnission, 
niecoprop is irritating to skin and se­
\·erely irritating to cyes. 10 

Ability to Cause Genetic 
Damage 

The f\ational Institute for Occupa­
tional Safetv and Health labels n1eco­
prop as a :'rnutagen··tl because it in­
hibited the svnthesis of 1)1\ . .\ in a 
laboratory study of niice. 11 I)r\.A is the 
"n1olecular basis of hereclity,"' 12 the 
molecules that contain genetic infor­
n1ation. A single dose of n1ecoprop 
reduced or---· . .\ production by 60 per­
cent.1·3 (See Figure 2.) 

In addition, tests conducted for a 
n1ecoprop n1anufacturer as part of the 
process of registering it as a pesticide, 
sho\ved other types of genetic d~un­
age. These included chron1oson1e dan1-
age in bone n1arro\V cells in han1sters 
and hun1an blood cells, as ~vell as a 
kind of genetic dan1age called sister 
chron1atid exchanges in banister bone 
n1a1TO~' cells. 1·1 (Sister chron1atid ex­
changes are exchanges of Dr\._.\ ~·ithin 
a chron1oson1e as it duplicares. 15) 

Liver and Kidney Damage 

In 1994. EPA listed niecoprop as a 
toxic chen1ical under 1he E1nergency 
Planning and Con1n1unity Right-to­
KnO\\" . .\ct because of its toxicitv to 
the liver and kidneys. l6 In a three 
n1onth feeding study \vith rats, n1eco­
prop doses of 9 1nilligran1s per kilo­
gran1 (n1g kg) of body \\'eight per day 

INERT INGREDIENTS 
1-lazards posed by inert ingredients in household rnecoprop-containing 

herbicides 1 include the follo\Ying: 
Morpholine is a severe eye and skin irritant. It is labeled as a ·'n1u­

tagen" by the l'\ational Institute for Occupational Safety and 1 lealth be­
cause it caused genelic dan1age in laboratory tests. It a!so dan1agecl the 
liver and kidney. 2 

8-hydroxyquinoline sulfate is labeled as a ·'111utagen ·· bv the l'\a­
tional Institute for Occupational Safety and [ lealth because it caused 
genetic dan1age in hun1an blood cells.3 

Methyl carbitol reduced fertility in laborator'f tests. 1 

Hexylene glycol is a severe eye irritant. It also reduced the function­
ing of the kidneys and caused n1usc\e \\·eakness in laboratory tests. 5 

Quartz silica is classified as a carcinogen by the International . .\gency 
for Research on Cancer. The i\-ational Institute for Occupational Safety 
and I lea Ith labels it as a ·'rnutagen'' because it caused genetic da1nage in 
laboratory tests.6 

1. U.S. EPA. 2004. Response to Freedom of Information Act request RIN-1178-99. Received by 
NCAP in February 2004. 

2. National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. 2002. Registry of Toxic Effects of Chemical 
Substances: Morpholine. www.cdc.gov/nioshJrtecsJqd62ccf8.html. 

3. National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. 1997. Registry of Toxic Effects of Chemical 
Substances: 8-Quinolinol, sulfate (2:1) (salt). www.cdc.gov/niosh/rtecs/vc7e09aO.htm/. 

4. National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. 2002. Registry of Toxic Effects of Chemical 
Substances: Ethanol, 2-(2)methoxyethoxy)-. www.cdc.gov/niosh/rtecs/kl5d75c8.html. 

5. National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. 2002. Registry of Toxic Effects of Chemical 
Substances: 2,4-pentanediol, 2-methyl-. www .cdc.gov/niosh/rtecs/sac5c1 0.html. 

6. National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. 2002. Registry of Toxic Effects of Chemical 
Substances: Silica, crystalline-quartz. www.cdc.gov/niosh/rtecs/w6fd8d0.htrnl. 

caused a change in liver and kidney 
\VCights. l..., 

Anemia 

Exposure to n1ecoprop has caused 
the develop111ent of anen1ia in tests 
\Yith laboratory anin1als. A.s pan of 
n1ecoprop's registration process, a pes­
ticide 111anufacturer sponsored t~··o 

studies \Yith clogs. In one, clogs \Vere 
fed n1ecoprop for 12 n1onths; in the 
other, for three 1nonths. In both stud­
ies, the an1ount of hen1oglobin in the 
dogs' blood decreased at doses of 
about 20 n1g 'kg. 1 i tlen1oglobin is the 
oxygen-carrying niolecule in the blood, 
and deficiencies in hen1oglobin result 
in aneniia. 12 

Blood Clotting 

Researchers at the Lni\·ersity of 
Kuopio (Finland) noticed that bleed­
ing is a sy1npton1 of poisoning by phe­
noxy herbicides. They then studied the 
effects of eight of these herbicides in­
cluding n1ecoprop on ·'platelet 

Figure 2 
Genetic Damage Caused by 
Mecoprop 
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Source: Seiler, J.P. 1979. Phenoxyacids 
as inhibitors of testicular DNA synthesis in 
male mice. Buf/. Environ. contam. Toxicol. 
21 :89-92. 

In a study of mice. mecoprop inhibited synthesis 
of DNA, molecules that carry genetic information. 
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Figure 3 Figure 4 
Effect on Blood Clotting Effect on Fertility 
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Source: Ela, H.A. , T. Luoma, and P. Ylitalo. 1991. Inhibition of 
human and rabbit platelet aggregation by chlorophenoxy 
herbicides. Arc/J. Toxicol. 65:140-144. 

Source: Cavieres, M.F., J. Jaeger, and W. Porter. 2002. 
Developmental toxicity of a commercial herbicide mixture in mice: 1. 
Effects on embryo implantation and litter size. Environ. Health 
Persp. 11 0:1081- 1085. 

Two toxicological problems identified in laboratory tests with mecoprop are d isruption of blood clotting and reduced fert ility. In samples of human 
blood, clotting is inhibited when the blood was exposed to mecoprop. In another study, pregnant mice given water with low levels of a lawn care 
herbicide that contained mecoprop had fewer offspring than mice given uncontaminated water. 

aggregat ion" in human blood. Plate­
lets arc a component o f b lood that 
assists in clo tting. Results o f this study 
shO\\"Cd that concentrations as Im\· as 
I part per mi llio n o f mccoprop inhib­
i ted clott ing. Other herb icides com­
mo nly used in combinati o n with 
rnecoprop had the same effect. 18 (Sec 
Figure 3.) 

Effects on Reproduction 

i'\ew research has demonstrated that 
exposures to small arnou nts o f meco­
prop-contain ing herbicides can reduce 
fertil ity in laboratory anima ls. Zoolo­
gists at the Lni,·ersity o f \\.isconsin 
exposed pregnant mice to a commer­
cial lawn care herb icide containing 
rnecoprop. 2.'1-D. and dica mba in the 
an imals· drinking \Yater. They found 
that liuc r size w as reduced e, ·en at 

the !owe t close level tested in th is 
experiment. O.OO<i mg kg per clay . In 
unexposed an imals, 12 " ·as the most 
common liuer ize: in exposed ani-

mals this number dropped to 9 or I 0. 19 
(See Figure 4.) 

.\lecoprop·s ability to reduce fert il ­
ity in laboratory animals had also been 
demonstrated in a stud\· clo ne in the 
1980s in Germany. 11 · 

Carcinogenicity 
(Ability to Cause Cancer) 

The link between exposure to phc­
no xy herbicides. including mccoprop, 
and cancer has been cont rm·ersial for 
decades. In 19s- . based o n a series o f 
studies o f people " ·ho had been oc­
cupationally exposed to these herbi­
cides. che Internatio nal Agency for Re­
search on Cance r ( IARC) classi f ied 
phenoxv herbicides as .. possiblv carc i­
nogenic to human ., (IARCs Group 
213). L\RC has not updated its classi fi ­
ca tion since then. 21 

Recent research supports concerns 
about the carcinogenicity o f mecoprop. 
In 2001. scientists at the Lni,·ersity o f 
Saskatchewan and several Canadian 

cancer inst itu tes compared pesticide 
use by hundreds o f Ca nadian men d i­
agnosed ,,·i t h th c c ance r no n-
1 lodgkin's lymphoma (i'\ 1-1 L) w ith pes­
ticide use by a comparison group of 
men who didn't ha,·e ca ncer. The men 
lived in six Canadian p rO\·inccs and 
w ere exposc:.:d to mecoprop either at 
w o rk or at home. They found that 
··1he risk of i'\1 IL " ·as statist ica ll y sig­
ni f icant ly incrcased"22 by ex posure to 
th ree phenoxy herb icides: mecoprop. 
2.'f-D, and dicamba. The odds ratio (a 
statistical mc:asure of the increa cc.I can­
cer risk) \\·a o,·er 25 percent larger 
for mccoprop than for the other t\YO 
pheno xy hcrbicicles.22 (See Figure 5.) 

Effects on Immune System 
Function 

O ne .. sen itive indica tor for moni­
toring penurbation lclisturbancel of the 
immune system·· is the production o f 
proteins that are uscd by the immune 
system to protect us from disease. 

12 
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Figure 5 Figure 6 
Effect on Cancer Risk Effect on Immune System Function 
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Mecoprop exposure has also been linked with cancer and immune system problems. In a Canadian study, exposu re to mecoprop (and other 
herbicides with which it is commonly used) increased the risk of the cancer non-Hodgkin's lymphoma. In a second study, toxicologists working 
with human blood cells found that production of two important components of the immune system is inhibited by mecoprop . 

. .\ccording to toxicologists from the Flem­
ish In titute for Technological Resea rch 
and the Free Lniver i t~· of Brussels (Bel­
gium). mecoprop has this kind of ef­
fect.23 In human white blood cells, these 
toxicologists sho""·ecl that mccoprop in­
hibited production o f interferon. 23 an 
anti\·iral protein, 12 and tumor necrosis 
factor.23 a protein that causes destruc­
tio n o f some tumor cells and ac1i\·a1es 
white blood cells. 1z (Sec Figure G.) 

Water Contamination 

During the 1990s. the l '.S. Geologi­
cal Su1Yey began a mo nitoring pro­
gram. the first o f its k ind. looking for 
pesticides in rivers and strea ms across 
the l '.S.24 Because mccoprop \\·as not 
one o f the pesticides analyzed in this 
progra m.25 there arc no na1io nal data 
abou1 the extent of mecoprop con­
taminat ion o f ri\'C1 .. or s1rcams. I IO\Y­
ever, local moni to ring efforts indicate 
that contamina1io n o f streams and riY­
ers \\'ilh mecoprop nu\· be stanlingly 

commo n. For example . in urban 
treams in King Coumy, Washingto n, 

a collaborat ion between the county, 
the state Department of Ecology. and 
L SGS found mccoprop in eve1y sample 
taken during pring rainstorms.26 In 
Bellingham. \'\ 'ashington. the Depart­
ment o f Ecology found that mccoprop 
" ·as the third most frequently detected 
pestic ide (out o f 19 101al) in an urban 
trcam. 27 An Environment Canada sllldy 

o f " ·e1lands in Saskatche"·an. Canada. 
found 1ha1 mecopro p was one of the 
most commonl y detected ht!rbicides. 28 

. .\ second Canadian study. done at the 
LcthbriJge Research Centre. found 1hat 
mccoprop contaminated ra infall. par­
ticularly in urban areas. 29 

One o f the reason that mccoprop 
often contaminate \\·ater i that i1s 
chemical characteristics make it \·ery 
mobile in soil. . .\ccording to the O r­
egon State Lni ,·ersity Extension Ser­
\·ice, mccoprop·s .. pesticide mo\·ement 
ranking· is h igh .30 

\'\'hilc 1here are like ly to be many 
sources of the mecoprop 1hat contami­
nates \\'atcr in a part icular community. 
golf course mecoprop use is one iden­
ti fied source of contaminat ion . Three 
diffcren1 1ypes o f studies all shO\Yecl 
1ha1 mecoprop contaminates the wa­
ter leaving treated golf courses: inten­
sh·e monito ring o f a single golf course. 
extcnsi\·e mon ito ring o f mu ltiple golf 
courses w ith in a community. and mea­
surement. conducted on simulated golf 
courses. The stud ies were conducted 
by scientis1s at the Lniversity of Geor­
gia. the C.S. Department o f . .\griCLil­
ture, the Tokyo .\letropol itan Research 
Laboratory o f Public I leallh. and the 
Tokyo College of Pharmacy . .31.32 

Effects on Aquatic 
Ecosystems 

Several important components o f 
aquatic ecosystems arc harmed by 
mccoprop. Biologists at the Lni\·crsity 
o f I lull ( l .nited Kingdom) showed tha1 
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rnecoprop is toxic to Sl:'\·cral species 
of fresh\Yater bacteria that can play 
key roles in purifying \Vater.~:i l)ia­
ton1s. plankton that are abundant in 
fresh\\·ater and n1arine ecosysten1s.J1 

are also sensiti\·e to n1ecoprop. Stud­
ies subn1ittcd to EP . ..\ as part of 
rnecoprop's registration as a pesticide 
sho\\:ed that a concentration of I""' pans 
per billion kills diatoins. 35 l)iato1ns arc 
ecologically significant: they account 
for about a quarter of all photosyn­
thesis, are a n1ajor food resource for 
aqu;uic anin1als, and are a n1ajor source 
of atn1ospheric oxygen . .3'1 

Effects on Birds 

Lse of 1necoprop can in1pact birds 
\Vhen the herbicide kills plants that 
provide habitat for insects used as food 
by birds . ...\ study by ThL· Ganie Con­
servancy Trust (L"nitcd Kingdon1) 
sho~·ed that insects used as food by 
juvenile birds \\"Cre less than half as 
abundant in areas treated ~'ith n1eco­
prop (con1bined 'i\"ith t~·o other 
broadleaf herbicides) than thcv \Yere 
in untreated arcas . .56 · 

Effects on Plant Diseases 

Both field and greenhouse experi-
1nents have dcn1onstrated that 
n1ecoprop can pron1ote plant disease. 

Scientists at the . ..\RC \'{'eed Research 
Organization sho~'ed that treat1nent of 
n·inter \vheat n·ith n1ecoprop increase.xi 
the incidence of take-all disease by 66 
percent. 3""' 

\.lore recently. an lo\va State l.'ni­
,·ersity horticulturist sho\vcd that a leaf 
spot fungus produced n1ore spores on 
greenhouse-gro'ivn Kentucky bluegrass 
~·hen the soil 'iYas treated \vith 
1necoprop than 'i\"hL·n the soil \\·as un­
treated.38 

Effects on Mycorrhizal Fungi 

\Iecoprop can also dainagc n1yc­
orrhizal fungi. beneficial fungi that 
pron1otc gro\Yth of rnany phint spe­
cies and also help the1n resist stress. 
l{cscarchers fron1 the S\viss Federal 
Hescarch Station for Frllit-Gro\\·ing 
sho~ved that n1ecoprop. applied at typi­
cal application rates. reduced fron1 80 
percent to .35 percent the proportion 
of corn plants \\"ith ,·iable n1ycorrhiza! 
fungi. 59 ""' 
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e HERBICIDE 

DI CAMBA 
BY CAROLINE Cox 

Each year in the United States, abot< 
15 nlillion acres of corn, 1.5 tnillion acres of 
\Vhcat,1 and 3 million la\v1is-! arc treated \Vith 

the herbicide dican1ba. While its name is of­
ten not con1monly recognized, this wide use, 
together \.Yith concerns about its toxicology 
and its effects on our environtnent, niake it 
important to scrutinize dicainba 's hazards. 

Use 

Dican1ba is a selective herbicidc3
-
1 and is 

used co kill broad-leaved plants gro\ving in 
corn. rights-of-\vay, and la\vns. Several differ­

ent fonns of dica1nba arc used as hcrbicides:5 

the dimcthyla1ninc salt and the sodiu111 salt 
are the n1ost conunon. 0 (See Figure 1.) 

Dican1ba \Vas first registered in the United 
States in 1967.5 

Con1mon dican1ba-containing herbicides 
are manufactured by Sandoz Crop Protection 
Corp. \Vith trade names Banvcl and Ban\·c\ 
GST," and by PBI/Gurdon Curp.7 with the 
trade name T rimec. (T rimec also contains the 
phcnoxy herbicides 2,4-D and mecoprop.0.7) 

About 5.6 niillion pounds of dican1ba arc 
used annually in U.S. agriculture and almost 
all of this, about 5 million pounds, is used on 
corn. 189 (See Figure 2 for state-by-state agri­

cultural use.} In addition. the U.S. Environ­
n1ental Protection Agency (EPA) cstin1ates that 
U.S. households annually use about 3 n1illion 
dica1nba-containing products (in this case, 
product refers to a single container).~ (See 
Figure 3.) In C.alifornia, \Vhcre pesticide use 
reporting is niorc cotnplete than in most states, 
the 1nost common uses of dka1nba arc in 
corn, in \Vheat. in landscape nlaintcnance, and 
on rights-of-wayY1 (Sec Figure 4.) 

Mode of Action 

Dica1nba is in the benzoic acid herbicide 

• 
Caroline Cox is JPR's editor 

FACTSHEET 

farnily, sin1ilar in structure and 1node of ac­
tion to phcnoxy herbicides like 2,4-D. (See 
Figure 1.) Like phenoxy herbicides, dican1ba 
niin1irs auxins. a type of plant honnone, and 
causes abnormal gro\vth by affecting cell divi­
sion."11 

Dican1ba acts systemically in plants 

Figure 1 

(throughout the entire plant) after it is ab­

sorbed through leaves and roots. It is easily 
transported throughout the plant, and also 
accun1ulates in ne\v \eaves. 11 

Dicainba also inhibits an enzy1ne found in 
the ncr\'ous sytcn1 of 1nost anitnals, acctyl­
cholinesterasc.1~ This is the enzyme that is 

Oicamba, Its DimethylarTline Salt, and 2,4•0 

0 
" C-OH 

ClrQiOCH3 

~Cl 
Dicamba 

(2-methoxy-3.6-dich!orobenzoic acid) 

figLre 2 

Dimethylamine salt of dicamba 

Agricultural Uses of Oicamba {1992) 

D Unrecorded. small amount 

D less than 250,000 pounds 

[] 250,000- 500,000 pounds 

• 500.000 - 750.000 pounds 

• 750.000 - 1,000,000 pounds 

II Over 1,000,000 pounds 

0 
" O-CH2-C-OH 

@Cl 

Cl 

2,4-D 

Sources U.S. Department of Agriculture_ National Agricultural Statistics Service_ Agricultural Statistics Board. 
1993. Agricultural chemical usage: 1992 field crops summary. Washington, D.C. (March) 
California Department of Pesticide Regulation. Information Services Branch_ 1993_ Summary of pesticide use 
report data: Annual 1991_ Indexed by chemical. Sacramento. CA_ (January 25.) 

Almost half of the dicamba used in U.S. agriculture is used in Minnesota and Iowa. 
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Figi..re 3 

Household Uses of Dicamba 

garden 
(80.000) 

Source: \tv1iitmore, R.W., J.E. Kelly, and P_L Readin 
1992. National home and garden pesticide use 
survey: Final report, Volume 1. Executive summary, 
results, and recommendations. Research Triangle 
Park, NC: Research Triangle Institute 

Over three-quarters of the dicamba used around 
U.S. homes is used on lawns. 

inhibited by several co1nmon fa1nilics of in­
secticidr_s (organophosphates and carba111ates). 
Inhibition of acctylcholinesterase causes a neu­
rotrdnsn1itter, acetylcholine, to accun1ulate and 
prevents smooth transmission of nerve im­

pulses. In addition. dicamba inhibits the ac­
tivity of several enzyn1es in ani1nal livers that 
detoxify and excrete foreign chemicals. 13 

Acute Toxicity 

Dican1ba ·s 1nedian lethal oral dose (LD 
50

; 

the amount that kills 50 percent of a popula­
tion of test animals) is 1707 milligratns per 
kilogran1 (1ng/kg) in rats. 1-1 Fen1alc rats arc 
killed by a srnaller dose than are rnale rats. 1J 

If \.Ve assume humans are as susceptible to 
dican1ba as are laboratory animals, an oral 
dose of about 3.5 ounces would be required 
to kill an average-sized (60 kg) hun1an. 

Acute exposure to dica1nba causes skin ir­
ritation and son1e skin sensitization in labora­
tory tests, as \rel\ as Se\'ere eye irritation. The 
eye damage can be irreversible.~ 

Dicamba also causes other acute effects. 
Congested lungs. hen1orrhages. poor diges­
tion, inflamed kidneys. and engorged livers 
occured in sheep fed doses of 500 nig/kg. 16 

Acute effects can occur in exposed humans. 
Sy1npto1ns in \Vorker poisonings reported to 
EPA included 1nuscle cran1ps. shortnc~ of 
breath, nausea, \'omiting. skin rashes, loss of 

figi..re 4 

Uses of Dic-amba in California 

(pounds per year) 

ornamental plants (1000 pounds) 

oats {1204 pounds) 

uncultivated. nonagricultural areas 
(1433 pounds) 

structural pest control 
(1800 pounds) 

other 
(1190 pounds) 

landscape maintenance 
{5980 pounds) 

com (4670 pounds) 

wheat (4160 pounds) 

Source: California Department of Pesticide Regulation. Information Services Branch 1993_ Summary of 
pesticide use report data: Annual 1991. Indexed by chemical. Sacramento, CA_ (January 25.) 

In California. dlcamba is used primarily for landscaping, in corn and wheat production, arxl along 
roads, railroads. and other rights-of-way. 

voice, and S\Yollen glands. 17 

Neurotoxicit.y 

A study of certified prsticidc applicators in 
i'vlinnesota found that a group who applied 
only herbicides experienced a 20 percent in­
hibition of the nervous systen1 enzyme acetyl­
cholinesterase (AChE). Researchers \.Vere ret­
rospectively able to docu1nent that the \Vork­
ers \.Vith reduced AChE activity applied sig­

nificant amounts of dican1ba and that they 
had not applied other chen1icals in comn1on. 
In addition, the researchers de1nonstrated 
AChE inhibition in laboratory tests. 12 Neu~ 
rological effects of dican1ba have also been 
noted in dogs and chickens. lS. !9 

Chronic Toxicity 

Feeding dicatnba to rats for 90 days caused 
decreases in \Veight and in the a1nount of food 
consun1ed. Increased dead cells and abnonnal 
live cells \Vere found in exposed rats' liYers. 17 

Reproductive Effects 

Dica1nba's effects on the reproduction of 
laboratory animals cause concern because of 
the lo\v closes that cause problems. In rabbits. 
the most sensitive species tested, doses o\'er 3 
rng/kg per day increased the number of fe­
tuses lost or resorbed by the 111other. ' 0 

Exposure or mallard eggs to Banvel caused 

reduced, stunted gro\Vth in the mallard em­
bryos as \rell as eye malfonnations.·21 

C.oncerns about reproductirc effects arc 
heightened by a n1anufacturing contaminant, 
2,7-dicl~orodibenzo-p-dioxin. (Sec Figure 5.) 
In pregnant rats, this conta1ninant causes ab­
normalities, suppression of tissue growth, and 
lesions in fetal hearts."" 

Mutagenicity 

A 1990 study sho\ved that injections of 
dican1ba significantly increased the "un\vind­
ing rate'' (single strand breaks) of the genetic 
n1aterial (DNA; deoxyribonucleic acid) in rat 
livers. The same study also looked at effects 
on human blood cell cultures and fUund that 
exposure to dican1ba caused an increase in 
unscheduled DNA synthesis as \Yell as a slight 
incrrase in sister chro1natid exchanges (ex­
change of genetic material bet\veen chromo­
son1e pairs).23 

Earlier studies had sho\.\·TI that dican1ba 
caused rnutations in t\\u bacteria.~·! Dicamba 

has also caused n1utations in pollen mother 
cells of the plant Tradescanriapaludosa. 25 In 
addition. Gabonil. (dicamba and MCPA). 
caused an incrrase in the frcqul'ncy of chro-
1nosorne abetTations in barley.~0 

These results are consistent with a 1973 
study \.Vhich found that pesticide applicators 
using dicainba and other pesticides had a 
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FigureS 

Contaminants, Metabolites, 

and "Inert" lngedients Found 

in Dicarnba•containing 

Prcxlucts 

0 
" C-OH 

Clr()IOH 

~Cl 
3.6-dichlorosalicylic acid 

2.7, dichlorodibenzo-p-dioxin 

CH3 
'N-N=O 

CH3' 

dimethylnitrosam1ne 

CH2CH2 

OHOH 

ethylene glycol 

higher frequency of gaps and breaks in their 

chron1osomcs during spray season than dur­

ing the \\."inter when they \\·ere les.s exposed. 21 

Carcinogenicity 

A recent (1992) study of farmer; by the 

National Cancer Institute found that expo­

sure to dicamba approxi1nately doubled the 

farmers' 1isk of contracting the cancer non­

HOOgkin"s lymphoma t\\"O decades after expo­
surc.28 

Two potentially carcinogenic containinants 

of dica1nba increase concerns about cancer. 

The contan1inant 2.7-dichlorodibenzo-p-di­
oxin29 is not as potent a carcinogen as its no­

torious chen1ical cousin 2,3.7.8-TCDD, but 

it has caused leuke1nia and lyrnphon1a, liver 

cancer, and cancer of the circulato1y systen1 

in a 1979 study of 1nale 1nice conducted by 

the National Toxicology ProgrJm. (No sig­

nificant increases in cancer \.\·ere found in fc­
n1ale n1icc or rats of either sex.) 30 Dicainba 's 

di1nethylan1ine salt can be contan1inated \Vith 

di1ncthylnitrosa1ninr. s1nall amounts of \Vhich 

cause c;nccr in laboratory aninials. 31 

Figu-e 6 

Dicarnba•contaminated Ground Water in the United States 

States in black are those in which dicamba-contaminated groundwater has been reported 

Sources: U.S. EPA. Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances. 1992. Pesticides in ground water databas 
A comprlation of monitoring studies: 1971-1991. National summary. Washington. D.C. (September.) 
Idaho Division of Environmental Quality. 1992. Pesticide concentrations in ground water from laboratory 
analyses. as of March 1992. Unpublished raw data_ Boise ID: Idaho Dept. of Health and Welfare 
U.S. Dept of the Interior. Geological Suivey. 1992. Multiple station analyses for pesticides in ground water 
samples collected by the U.S. Geological Suivey in Washington. Unpublished raw data. Tacoma, WA. 
Oregon Health Division. 1993. Nitrates and organic chemicals found in La Pine area drinking water wells. 
October 1993. Press release. Oregon Human Resources News. Portland, OR. (October 5.) 
Domagalski. J.L. and N.M. Dubrovsky. 1992. Pesticide residues in ground water of the San Joaquin Valley. 
CalifomiaJ. H}dro/ _ 130299-338. 

Dicamba-contaminated groundwater has been found in 17 states, Including all of the Pacific 
Northwest states. 

Although dican1ba has been registered for 

use in the U.S. for almost 30 years, only 
inadequate laboratory tests of dica1nba's abil­

ity to cause cancer have been sub1nitted to 

EPA.29 The quality of sorne of the tests ap­

pear, to be seriously lacking. For example, 

one test \Vas judged inadequate because " tu-

1nors \Vere remo\•ed periodically." 18 

Human Exposure 

Hun1ans arc exposed to dican1ba \Vhile they 

or their neighbors are using the herbicide in 

the yard or garden, \.Vhilc using it on the job, 
through drinking of contaminated \Vatcr, and 

through eating contaminated food. The re­

sult is that large nu1nbcrs of Americans arc 

contarninated \Yith dicamba. An EPA-funded 

study found that 1.4 percent of the san1p!e 

population had dica1nba residues in their 

urine. While this is a srnall percentage, it 
111eans that 2.3 111illion Americans arc con­

taininated \vith dicamba.-i2 

Household use: An1ericans make an esti­

mated 6 1nillion applications annually of 

dicamba-containing hcrbicides. 2 Because these 

applications are made to heavily-used areas 

like la\<vns and gardens, the potential for ex­

posure of household residents is high. 

Dicamba volatilizes (evaporates) easily33 fron1 

plant surfaces, particularly \vhen temperatures 

are over 85°F. Under agricultural conditions, 

these vapors can drift up to 5 or l 0 miles; 

thus there is potential for contamination fol­
lo\ving a neighbors' use of the chetnical.J.1 

Occupational use: A study of t\vo cre\VS 

using truck-1nounted and hand-held sprayers 

to apply dicamba found dicamba residues in 
air samples fron1 the truck cab. on the dri\'ers' 

ai1d applicators' hands, and in urine samples. 

Denna[ exposure (through the skin) \Vas rc-­

sponsible for n1ore contarnination than 

breathing of contarninatecl air. according to 
the researchers. Interestingly, the highest resi­

dues \\·ere 1neasurrd in urine fron1 a driver, 

32 
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fig1.re 7 

Increase in the Severity cA a Plant Disease 

Caused by Dicamba Treatment 
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Vegetative growth of leaf spot disease 
(area of fungus colony in square centimeters) 

• • 
untreated 

dicamba treatment 

Production of spores by the leaf spot fungus 
(thousands of spores) 

Source: Hodges, C.F. 1992. Vegetative growth and sporulation of Bipolaris sorokiniana on infected leaves of 
Pm prctensis exposed to postemergence herbicidesCan. J. Bd. 70:568-570 

Leaf spot, a disease of bluegrass, grows faster and produces more spores following dicamba 
treatment of the grass. 

although sprayers did all of the mixing, load­
ing, and hand-spraying. Residues \Vere still 
detectable at the end of the study (72 hours 

after spraying) and the authors note that this 
1neans that dican1ba levels in \\'Orkers \Votild 

rise if they \n:rc applying clica1nba doily dur­
ing a five-day \Vork \Veek.35 In addition, cho­
linesterase inhibition follo\ving use of dican1ba 

has been measured in pesticide applicators. 12 

Contaminated water: Dica1nba is ·· rela­
tively \Vatcr-soluble·· and ''mobile in soils."'36 

This means that it is likely to conta1ninate 
both ground and surface \Vatcr. In a study 
that con1pared soil 111obility of 40 pesticides, 
dican1ba was one of three \Vith the highest 
mobility:31 these results are consistent \vith 
another study of 26 pesticides, in which 
dican1ba \Vas more \Vater soluble than all but 
three. 38 In t\\"O studies, dicainba \Vas adsorbed 
(held to soil particles) less than the other pes­
ticides tC'sted, even though one \Vas atrazine. a 
pesticide' that has caused prohlcn1s because of 
its tendC'ncy to contan1inatc \Vatcr. 38

:Jl 

Tests for dica1nba conwmination in \·Vater 
arc consistent \Vith these observations. 
Oican1ba has been found in the drinking \Va­
tcr supplies of Cincinnati, Ohio: Ne\V Or­
leans, Louisiana: Philadelphia, Pennsylvania: 
and SC'attle, VVashington. 10 It has also been 
found in ponds. rivers, and lakes in the U.S. 
and Canada. 10 11 I! C-ertain studies haYe found 

dica1nba contan1ination to be pervasive. For 
exan1plc, a study of the Padilla Bay, \iVash­
ington watershed found clican1ba at all but 
one of the sa1npling stations. n A study of t\\"o 
Canadian \Vatcrsheds found dican1ba 
throughout the san1pling period 14 and a study 
of a third Canadian \Vatershed found dicmnba 
residues in 95 percent of the sno\vn1c\t samples 
tested. 15 (The follo\ving year. \Vhen herbicide 
use by local fanners \Vas lower because of 
drought, no dicainba \Vas found in the sno\v­
n1clt.) EPA's \Yater quality database indicates 
about one-third of the surface \\-atcr smnples 
analyzed contained dicamba. 19 In addition, 
clicamba has been found in the effluent fron1 
se\vage treatn1cnt plants in Chattanooga, 
Tennessee and Lake Tahoe, Ca!ifornia.·10 

Dica1nba has also been found in ground­
\Vater in Msec, Czcchoslovakia; 16 Ontario'1 ~ 
and Saskatche\van.·15 Canada; and in 17 states 
in the U.S. 381851 (See Figure 6.) 

Contaminated food: Dicamba residues 
ha\'C ba.'n found on sweet corn;'i2 toinatoes,52 

and \Vheat (both the strmv and the grain).1
:1 

Effects on Wildlife 

Fish: Although dican1ba is characterized 
as "slightly toxic" or "practically nontoxic" to 
fish,'i there are wide variations in its acute 
toxicity. For exa1nple. one study found that 
the concentration of dican1ba required to kill 

half of a test population (called the LC
5
J of 

bluegill was 600 part5 per million (ppm). In 
the san1e study, researchers detenninecl that 
if the herbicide \Vas adsorbed onto 
vennicullite, it \\·as 30 ti111cs n1ore toxic.5·1 In 

another study, no effects on yearling coho 
saln1on \\·ere observed at concC'ntrations of 

dican1ba up to 100 ppn1. Ho\rever, yearling 
coho \\·ere killed by much sn1al\er doses (0.25 
pp1n) during a sca\vater challenge test \Vhich 
sitnulates their migration fro1n rivers to the 
ocean.;;:; In addition. acute toxicity varies 
\Videly an1ong fish species. For exa1nple, rain­
bo\-v trout are killed by concentrations le~ 
than a tenth as great as those that kill n1os­
quito fish. 5'1 

The toxicity to fish of dicatnba-contain­

ing herbicides may be increased by the prod­
ucts used \Vith them. For example, in 1992, 
forty fish \\-ere killed in Douglas County, 
Oregon, by the adjuvant added to 
\iVeedn1aster, an herbicide containing 

clicamba and 2,4-0. 56 

Little is kno\Vn about effCcts on fish other 
than acute toxicity. 

Other Aquatic Organisn1s: Oican1ba's 
toxicity to aquatic organisms sn1allcr than fish 
shows sitnilarities to its toxicity to fish. It is 

characterized as "practically nontoxic'" 5 to 
aquatic invertebrates and, as an herbicide, it 
\.Vould not be expected to be acutely toxic to 
aquatic ani1nals. Ho\Ve\·er, tests sho\v \Yide 
variations an1ong species. For exan1plc, the 
crustaceans seed shrin1p, glass shrin1p. and fid­
dler crabs all arc killed by concentrations over 
100 ppm. Ho\vever, other crustaceans (\vater 
fleas and an1phipods) arc killed by concentra­
tions a tenth as 1nuch or less (3.9 - 11 ppm). 5

'
1 

Little is kno\n1 about effects on aquatic in­
vertebrates other than acute toxicity. 

Effects on Nontarget Plants 

Since clicamba can da1nage or kill most 
broad-leaved plants, any unintC'nded exposure 

can have iinporcant consequence's. These effects 
havr been studied 111ostly in agriculture and 
little is kno\\n about in1pacts on native plants. 

Drift Drift of dica1nba occurs \.\hen it 
1110\·es during or after application to a diffCr­
ent site. The follo\ring effrcts have all been 
docun1entecl as a result of dican1ba drift: ab­
norrnal leaf gro\Vth, floral devclopn1ent. and 
yield in dry bcans:34 reduced yield, reduced 
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qualit_v, and increased skin ulcers in pota­
tocs;J7 :.s reduced yield. reduced sugar produc­

tion. and increased sugar losses after harvest 
in sugar bC'ets: 5 ~ and reduced plant height and 
yield in soybeans. 00 Drift in arnounts as lo\\" 
as l gran1 per hectare (about 0.0 l ounces per 
acre) can datnage susceptible crops. This is 
less than a hundredth of the typical agricul­
tural application rate (2 to 4 ounces per acrc). 61 

\iVidespread darnagc fron1 drift has occured 
\Vhcn applications arc 1nade \Vhen te1npcra­
tures arc over 85 degrees.J.1 

Plant diseases : T reatn1ent of bluegrass (Poa 
pratensi~ \Vith dican1ba under greenhouse con­
ditions caused an increase in gro\vth and 
sporulation of the fungus Bipola1is sorokiniana, 
the cause of a leaf spot disease of bluegrass. 
(Sec Figure 7.) Field studies sho\ved consistent 
results. 03 Dica1nba treatment also increases the 
incidence of another disease, take-all infection 
of \Vinter \Vheat, in field experiments.63 

Effects on gern1inating seedlings : Re­
searchers studying red oak tree regeneration 
following clear-cutting of Pennsylvania for­
ests docu1nented that applications of dicmnba 
reduced gern1ination of oak secdlings.6

·
1 The 

eflCcts of dican1ba on gern1ination of seeds 
from other trees or frorn herbaceous plants 
do not appear to be \Yell studied. 

Soil fertility: L-asparaginase is an enzyme 
found in soil microbes that is in1portant in 
soil nutrient cycling and nitrogen mineraliza­
tion. In Io\va agricultural soils applications of 
Banvcl reduced L-asparaginasc activity bet\\:een 
8 and 17 pC'rcent, depending on soil type. 
Researchers believe that this could "lead toa 
reduction in the mnount of N l nitrogen] de­
rived from soil organic 1naterial" and thus 

hnpact soil fCrtility. 65 Dicamba is also toxic to 
t\Yo nitrifying bacteria66 and nvo algae thought 
to "'contribute significantly to the processes 
involved in soil ICrtility."'67 

Persistence 

Dicatnba "s persistence increases its poten­
tial for effects on humans, other animals, and 
plants. \iVhile its half-life (the tin1e required 
for one-half of a dicarnba application to break 
do\n1) typically is bct\\"cen one and six \Veeks, 5 

it can persist rnuch longer. In field studies. 
dicamba's persistence has been as long as 12 
n1onths (the duration of the studv) in a Florida 
oak and pine forestb8 and altno~t 13 rnont~ 

in Nova Scotia agricultural soils.6'} The half-lik 
of dican1ba increases as tetnpcratures decrease; 
the half-life at 40''F is over 6 tin1es the half 
life at 80°F. 70 Dicamba also persists longer in 
dry soils than in \\"Ct soils. 11 

Secret 11 lnert" Ingredients 

i\ilost dican1ba-containing herbicides con­
tain ingredients that the pesticide tnanufac­
turer calls trade secrets. These ingredients arc 
called ··inerts," although they are neither bio­
logically or chemically inert. Ahnost all of the 
toxicology and environtnental fate testing re­
quired by EPA for the registration of dican1ba 
is done \Vith dicamba alone, not \Vith the con1-
plcte herbicide formulation (active ingredient 
+ "'inerts") as it is sold and used. 

T ri1nec, for exan1plc, is al1nost 60 percent 
'"inert" ingredients. Fallovv1naster. containing 

a 1nixturc of dican1ba and glyphosatc, is o\·er 
75 percent ·· inrrt'' ingredients. and Banvcl is 
ahnost 40 percent ·'inerts. "6 

The identity of n1ost of these ·'inert"' 

ingredients is not publicly available. Sev­
eral. ho\vever, have been identified. 
Fallo\v1naster and Banvel CST contain eth­
ylene glycol. 6 (See Figure 5.) Acute expo­
sure to ethylene glycol causes incoordina­
tion, slurred speech, convulsions, rapid 
heart beat, cardiac arrhythmias. and degen­
eration of kidney cells. Chronic effects in­
clude some delayed nervous system dan1-
age, ·'external 1nalformations" in fetuses of 

laboratory animals exposed to ethylene gly­
col, and a decrease in male fertility (also in 
laboratory animals) .72 Fallo\vma,stcr also 

contains a trade secret surfactant classified 
as "'hazardous., by the federal Occupational 

Safety and Health Adn1inistration. 6 

Contaminants 

Dica1nba is contan1inated during its manu­
facture \Vith 2,7-dichlorodibcnzo-p-dioxin. In 
addition, dhnethyla1nine salts of dican1ba can 
also be conta1ninated \Vith diniethylnitro­
satnine.~9 For toxicological concerns about 
these contan1inants, see "'Reproductive Effect::." 
and "'C,arcinogenicity," p. 31. Dican1ba prod­
ucts can also be contan1inated \Vi th up to 20 
percent of 3.5-dichloro-2-niethoxy benzoic 
acid, an ison1er of dican1ba. This ison1er is 
retained longer than dican1ba in the bodies of 
laboratory animals. 13 

Summary 

Dican1ba is a selccti\·e herbicide used to 
kill un\vanted broadleaf plants in corn and 
\vhcat, along rights-of-\vay, and in la\vns. Its 
chemical structure and n1ode of action in 
plants in si1nilar to that of the phcnoxy herbi­
cides. 

In hun1ans, exposure to dicamba is associ­
ated \Vith the inhibition of the nervous sys­
te1n enzyn1e acetylchotinesterase and an in­
creased frequency of a cancer, non-Hodgkin"s 
ly1nphon1a. In laboratory anin1als, exposure to 
dicatnba has caused decreases in body \\·eight, 
liver dan1age, an increased frequency of fetal 
loss, and severe. sometimes irreversible eye 
dan1age. Dica1nba has caused genetic damage 
in hutnan blood cells, bacteria, and barley. 

Dican1ba can be contaminated \Vith can­
cer-causing nitrosamines and a dioxin \Vhich 

has been sho\vn to cause birth defects and 
several cancer'.> in laboratory ani1nals. 

Dicamba b mobile in soil and has con­
ta1ninated rh·ers, ponds, and ground\vater. In 
the U.S., dicamba-conta1ninated ground\Va­
ter has been found in 17 states. 

Dican1ba volatilizes (evaporates) easily and 
has been kno\vn to drift for several miles fol­
lo\ving applications at high te1nperaturcs. 

Dican1ba can inhibit sorne of the organ­
isn1s in1portant in soil nutrient cycling and 
thus in1pair soil fertility. Its use has also been 
associated \Vith an increase in the frequency 
of sonic plant diseases.,.,,_. 
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e HERBICIDE FACTSHEET 

0RYZALIN 
Oryzalin is an herbicide used to control weeds in turf, in orchards and vineyards, around ornamental plants, and 
along rights of way. At least 2 million pounds of oryzalin are used annually in the U.S. 

Many oryzalin-containing herbicides cause eye irritation and also can cause skin allergies. 

In laboratory tests, oryzalin causes anemia. In addition, exposure of pregnant animals caused embryo loss, a 
reduction in the number of offspring in each litter, and a decrease in the weight of offspring. In a test of oryzalin's 
ability to cause cancer, exposed animals had more breast tumors, skin tumors, and thyroid tumors than unexposed 
animals. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) classifies oryzalin as a "possible human carcinogen." 

Oryzalin can persist in soil up to three years after application, and, according to EPA, is a "moderately mobile" 
herbicide in soil. Therefore it is not surprising that it often contaminates water. The U.S. Geological Survey found 
oryzalin in rivers, streams, or wells in almost half (16 of 36) of the r iver basins that the agency has tested 
nationwide. 

Animals can be adversely affected by oryzalin. Birds fed oryzalin gained weight more slowly than unexposed birds. It 
is also moderately toxic to freshwater fish, particularly juvenile fish, and is highly toxic to oysters. 

Oryzalin c an have unexpected effects on plants that are not a target of the herbicide. For example, oryzalin 
increases the virulence of a rust that attacks flax plants. At concentrations that occur in soil after applications at 
typical rates, it decreases the growth of mycorrhizal fungi, beneficial fungi that grow in association with the roots of 
many plants. 

BY CAROLINE Cox 

T he herbicide o ryzal in (sec 
ri g ure I ), a membe r o f th e 
dini troaniline chemica l family, is com­
monly marketed under the brand name 
SurOan. It ,,·as first registered in the 
C.S. in l 97 1 and its primary manu fac­
turer is DowAgroscienccs LLC. formerly 
ca lled Do" ·Elanco. 1 

Use 

Agricultural use o f oryza lin. accord­
ing to l '.S. F.m·ironmental Protection 
Agency ( F.PA) estimates, is almost 2 
million pounds per year. This incl udes 
use on rurf (800.000 pounds per year). 
in almond orchards (350,000 pounds 
per year) . and in vineya rds (200.000 
pounds per ~·ea r). EPA bcl ie,·es that a 
··significant amount"2 of oryzalin is al o 
used around o rnamental plants and 
along rights of " ·ay. bur says that c ri­
matcs o f these uses are nor rc::idil y 

• 
Caro line Cox is NCAP"s slaff scieniist. 

Figure 1 
Oryzalin 

3,5,-dinitro-N4. N4-
dipropylsulfanilamide 

a,·ailable.2 In addition , an estimated 
1,800 ,000 appl ica ti o ns arc made 
annually around C.S. homcs.3 

How Does Oryzalin Kill 
Plants? 

Oryza lin is a preemergcncc herbi­
cide. meaning it k ills seedlings as they 
gerrninarc. 1 Ir ki lls you ng. growing 
plants by inhibiting the d ivision o f 
cells in rhc plant. l\orrnally ~vhen 
cells d i,·ide, molecules of a prorc in 
ca ll ed rubu l in li nk rogerher to fo rm 
rn icrorubulc . lo ng fibe r-like struc­
tures that p lay critica l roles in cell 
dh·ision. O ryzalin block rhc linking 

of tubulin , d isrupting cell division. ; 

"Inert" Ingredients 

Oryzal in products contain many in­
gredients other than 01yzalin, and most 
of these, the so-called inert ingredi­
ents, are not identified on product la­
bels.6 !\either arc they included in most 
of the toxicology tests required for reg­
isrrarion.- For example. tests to deter­
mine ~·hethc r oryzal in causes cancer, 
birth defects. other reproductive prob­
lems, and genetic damage have all 
been done just w ith oryzalin alone. 
ror details about toxicologica l prob­
lems associated \Vith some o f the inert 
ingredients in oryza lin products, see 
··11azards of Inert Ingredient," p.17. 

All of the tox icolog,· tests di cussed 
in this article, w ith the exception of 
tests of eye i rritation and kin aller­
g ies. \Vere conducted o n or~·za lin 
alone. 

Hazards to Eyes 

\ lost oryza lin-contain ing herbicides 
cause eye irritation. !\CAP urveyed 
labels from the 29 commercial oryzalin 
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products \vhose labels are ;.1vailable 
on EP.\'s \Veb site and found that 25 
(over 85 percent) of thetn caused eye 
irritation.8 

Skin Allergies 

:\.lost Ol)·zalin-containing herbicides 
can cause the developn1cnt of skin 
allergies in people \\·ho have pro­
longed or repeated exposures. In 
KC.A.P's survey of labels of oryzalin 
products, ahnost 80 percent had a 
\\rarning statement about skin allergies. 8 

Medium- and Long-term 
Toxicity 

Both thrce-1nonth (subchronic) and 
t\vo-year (chronic) feeding studies ~vith 
rats and dogs found that oryzalin 
caused changes in blood siinilar to ane­
n1ia. The nun1ber of red blood cells 
decreased (sec Figure 2); he1natocrit 
(the proportion, by volu1ne, of blood 
that is n1acle up of reel blood cells9) 
decreased; and the an1ount of the 

Figure 2 
Effects of Oryzalin on Red Blood Cell Counts 

8 

7 

6 Female rats 

0 30 60 90 120 
Oryzalin exposure (milligrams per kilogram of body weight per day). 

150 

Source: U.S. EPA. 1993. Oryzalin - update on decisions of RfD/Peer Review Committee 
- Revised DERs. Memo from Dobozy, V., Toxicology Branch, Sept. 27. See attached 
revised data evaluation record for MRI Os No. 26779, 44332, and 70569. 

Oryzalin caused anemia in both sexes of rats. 

HAZARDS OF INERT INGREDIENTS 
Propylene glycol is use<l as an 

inert ingredient in six oryzalin prod­
ucts.1 It causes eye and skin irrita­
tion, and affects the kidney, central 
nervous syste1n, and liver. In labo­
ratory tests of anin1als exposed 
during pregnancy. it has caused 
fetal toxicity and embryo death. 2 

Glycerin is used as an inert 
ingredient in five oryzalin prod­
ucts. 3 It causes headaches and 
nausea and also affects kidneys. 
Production of spern1 \\·as disrupted 
in 1nale laboratory aniinals exposed 
to glycerin, and it caused cn1bryo 
death in ani111als exposed during 
pregnancy. 1 

Laurel sulfate is used as an in­
ert ingredient in five oryzalin prod­
ucts. 5 It is irritating to eyes and skin. 
and can cause clro\vsiness. In labo­
ratol)· tests of pregnant ani1nals, it 
\Vas toxic to fetuses. 6 

Dowicil 75 is a prcsen·ative used 
in three oryzalin products.- In labo­
ratory studies. ani1nals exposed to 

f)o\vicil 7 5 \Veighcd less than unex­
posed anir11als and had damaged liv­
ers rnore often than unexposed 
anin1als.8 

Acacia gum (gu1n arabic) is used 
as an inert ingredient in t\vo oryzalin 
proclucts.9 It causes severe eye irrita­
tion, skin irritation, and irritation of 
the respiratory tract. It can cause hives 
and asthn1a attacks. 10 

Xyle11e is used as an inert ingredi­
ent in one Ol)'Zalin product. 11 It causes 
severe eye irritation, is irritating to skin 
and the respiratory systen1, and affects 
ner\'CS and the li\·cr. In laboratOI)' tests 
~vith pregnant ani1nals it has caused 
nliscarriagcs. birth defects. and is toxic 
to fetuses. 12 

1. U.S. EPA. Office of Prevention, Pesticides and 
Toxic Substances. Office of Pesticide Programs. 
Public Information and Records Integrity Branch. 
1997. Letter From C.B. Furlow to NCAP, June 
13. Re: Freedom of Information Act request RIN-
4420-96. The six products containing propylene 
glycol have the following registration numbers: 
62719-193, 62719-140, 62719-112, 62719-113, 
62719-159, and 62719-158. 

2. Fisher Scientific. 2000. Material safety data 
sheet: Propylene glycol. www.fishersci.com. 

3. Ref. # 1. The five products containing glyc­
erin have the following registration numbers: 
62719-193, 62719-112, 62719-113, 62719-
159, and 62719-158. 

4. Sigma Chemical Co. 2001. Material safety 
data sheet: Glycerin USP. www.sigma­
aldrich.com. 

5. Ref. # 1. The five products containing laurel 
sulfate {also called sodium laurel sulfate) 
have the following registration numbers: 
62719-193, 62719-110, 62719-106, 62719-
153, and 62719-138. 

6. Sigma Chemical Co. 2001. Material safety 
data sheet: Laurel sulfate 10% solution. 
www.sigma-aldrich.com. 

7. Ref.# 1. The three products containing Dowicil 
75 have the following registration numbers: 
62719-140, 62719-112, and 62719-113. 

8. U.S. EPA. Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic 
Substances. 1995. Reregistration eligibility 
decision (RED): Dowicil® CTAC. 
www.epa.gov/pesticides. p. 9. 

9. Ref. # 1. The two products containing aca­
cia gum (gum arabic) have the following 
registration numbers: 62719-153, and 62719-
138. 

10. Acros Organics. 2000. Material safety data 
sheet: Gum arabic. www.fishersci.com. 

11. Ref. # 1. The product containing xylene has 
registration number 62719-149. 

12. Riedel-de Haen. 2001. Material safety data 
sheet: Xy!ene. www.sigma-aldrich.com. 
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Figure 3 
Oryzalin Reduces Litter Size in Rabbits Exposed during Pregnancy 
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Source: U.S. EPA. 1993. Oryzalin - update on decisions of RfD/Peer Review Commit­
tee - Revised DERs. Memo from Dobozy, V., Toxicology Branch, Sept. 27. See at­
tached data evaluation record for MRI Os No. 52557, 78552, and 26785. 

Oryzalin increased the frequency of embryo loss in laboratory studies of pregnant rabbits. 

Figure 4 
Oryzalin Causes Cancer 
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U.S. EPA. Office of Pesticides and Toxic Substances. 1982. Carcinogenicityfoncogenicity 
assessment of oryzalin 'Surflan.' Memo from B.D. Litt, Toxicology Branch, to R. B. Jaeger, 
Toxicology Branch. Washington, O.C., Mar. 24. 
U.S. EPA. 1981. Oryzalin, TB/HED evaluation of 2-year feeding/oncogenicity study in the rat. 
submitted in support of requested tolerances at 0.05 ppm on certain fruits/nuts. Memo from 
M.L. Quaife, Toxicology Branch, to R. Taylor, Registration Div. Washington, D.C., Jan. 7. 

EPA classifies oryzalin as a "possible human carcinogen" because it caused three types of 
tumors. breast. skin, and thyroid, in laboratory studies of rats. 

oxygen-carrying protein he1noglobin in 
the blood decreased. This anernia oc­
curred at doses of approxi1nately 50 
1nilligran1s per kilogra1n of body \Veight 
(n1g- kg) per day. 10 Supporting evidence 
for this kind of effect conies fro111 re­
searchers at Central Lniversity in 
\'enezuelJ \vho sho\ved that oryzalin 
reduces the activity or enzy1nes in­
volved in energy production in hu­
rnan reel blood ce!ls. 11 

Other adverse effects seen in 
chronic laboratory studies \Yere in­
creased \veight of the liver and kid­
ney as \veil as increased blood cho­
lcsl:erol leve!s. 10 

Effects on Reproduction 

01yzalin caused a variety of repro­
ductive problen1s in laboratory tests. 

The offspring of rats given oryzalin 
during pregnancy \veighed less than 
the offspring of unexposed rats. I)e­
creascd gro\\·th also occurred in J 
study in \Vhich rats \\'ere fed oryzalin 
during three generations. These effects 
occurred at doses of 3""7.5 and 225 
nlg 'kg per clay. 12 

Rabbits given oryzalin during preg­
nancy had 111ore e111bryo loss thJn 
unexposed rabbits and also had 
sn1Jl!er litters. (See Figure 3.) These 
effects occurred at a dose of 55 111g 
kg per clay. 12 

In addition, the uterus and ovaries 
of mice fed oryza!in for t"vo years 
.;;veighed less than these organs in un­
exposed mice. According to EPA. ".A.s 
uterine \Yeight is often under the in­
fluence of endocrine glands, one n1ight 
suppose that oryzalin exerts a hor­
rnonal influence in these n1ice." 13 

Ability to Cause Cancer 

EP,-\ classifies oryzalin as a carcino­
gen (a chetnical that causes cancer). 
The agency uses a .. Group C" (pos­
sible hurnan carcinogen) classification 
for oryzalin because three types of tu­
n1ors (breast tumors. skin tun1ors. and 
thyroid tun1ors) occurred 111ore fre­
quently in a laboratory study of rats 
fed oryzalin than in unexposed ani-
1nals.1·1 (See Figure L) 

In 1994, EPA. estir11ated the risk of 
cancer in people .;;\'ho apply oryza!in. 
assu1ning that applicators 1nake I or 
10 applications e\·ery year. The 
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agency's calculations sho\ved that us­
ers or rnosr types of application cquip-
1ncnt (10\v pressure hanthvand, back­
pack sprayer, and ground boon1 
sprayer) exceeded EPA's acceptable 
risk for either the I- or 10-day expo­
sure. I Io\vever. EP . ..\ believes that re­
quiring che1nicaJ resistant root\VCar 
(rubber boots), as the agency has done 
since 1995, ··should adequately n1iri­
gate risk." 15 

Soil Persistence 

According to EPA, oryzalin often has 
a ·'biphasic'" breakdo\\·n pattern in soil. 
This 1ncans that a portion of applied 
oryzalin breaks do\vn relatively 
quickly, \vhile the rest is rnore persis­
tent. Oryzalin"s half life (the an1ount 
of ti1ne required for one half or ap­
plied oryzalin to break dO\Yn and 1110\·e 
a\vay frorn the application site) for rhe 
nrsr breakdo\vn phase in ficl<l studies 
is bet\\'een 58 and -:'- days. for the 
second phase it is ben\·een 138 and 
1··1-6 days. 16 

t:nder snrne conditions, ho\vever, 
oryzalin can persist for 1nuch longer 
p<:riods of tin1e. On irrigated fannland 
in Idaho, oryzalin caused ·'extensive 
dan1age ., to sugarbeets one year after 
treatincnt. 1- In Indiana. sn1all a1nounts 
of nryzalin persisted for three years 
after application. 18 

Movement in Soil 

Oryzalin is categorized by FPA as 
··1noderately n1obile·· in soil. Interest­
ingly, a researcher at an Israeli agri­
cultural research institute found that 
surfactants. detergent-like 1noleculcs 
that arc used in herbicides to help the 
herbicide 1110\·e from rhe surface to 
the inside of the plant, 19 increase the 
1nobility of oryzalin in the soi!. 20 \\.hen 
con1bincd \Yith three co11Hnon surfac­
tants, oryzalin n10,-cd deeper into the 
soil than it did \\'hen it \\'<.lS applied 
alone. C)ryzalin alone inhibited plant 
grO\Vth to a depth or 12 centi111eters: 
\\·irh a surfactant this depth increased 
to 20 centin1ctcrs. 20 

Water Contamination 

c;.i\·en its persistence and n1obility 
in soiL it"s not surprising that oryzalin 
nften 1110\·es into \Velis. rivers. and 
strea1ns. The l·.s. Geological Sun·ey·s 

Figure 5 
Contamination of Water (Rivers, Streams, and Wells) in the U.S. 

.. · 
.. ,.. 

f ' 

• 
oryzalin detected in 
ground or surface water 

Source: U.S. Geological Survey. National Water-Quality Assessment (NAWQA) Program. 1998-
2000. Circulars 1144, 1150, 1151, 1155-1171, 1201-1216. http:l/water.usgs.gov/pubs/ 
nawqasum/. 

The U.S. Geological Survey found oryzalin in rivers. streams, and wells in 16 of the 36 river 
basins that the agency has studied. 

(l."SGS's) national '\Vater 1nonitoring 
progran1 found that oryzalin contan1i­
nated rivers. strea1ns. or \\retJs in 16 of 
the 36 ri\·er basins studied by CSGS. 21 

(Sec Figure 5.) Although there are no 
con1prehensive data about 'vhich par­
ticular uses of oryzalin contan1inate \Ya­
ter, oryzalin has been found in runoff 
follo,ving applications of a granular 
oryzalin product to nursery contain­
ers, 12 and in ponds and \\·ells on golf 
courses. 25 ·2 i 

Effects on Birds 

\\'hile perhaps not expected for 
an herbicide, oryzalin can harn1 birds. 
. ..\ study in \Yhich oryzalin \Vas fed to 
bob\\·hite quail sho\ved that oryLalin 
reduced food consun1ption and body 
\vcight gain at all doses tested. EP,..\ 
calculated that the atnount or 
oryzalin rhat \Votild be present on 
grass follo\Ying a single application 
at the rate reco1n1nen<led for la\Yns 
and turf \Vas greater than the lo\\·­
est concentration of oryzalin caus­
ing the decreased \vcight gain (625 

parts per 1nillion. pp1n). 25 

Effects on Fish 

Oryzalin is classified as ·'n1oderately 
toxic·· to rish because bet\\'een 2 and 
:J pp1n arc sufficient to kill fish. juve­
nile fish are even 1nore susceptible; 
less than l pp1n caused ad\·erse 
effects. 26 

Because of this toxicity the labels 
of all oryzalin-containing herbicides 
n1ust include the \varning state1nent. 
··This pesticide is toxic to fish. J)o not 
apply this product directly to "·ater. 
or to areas \\·here surface \\·~ncr is 
present. .,J.-

Effects on Other Aquatic 
Animals 

()ryzalin is classified by EP . ..\ as 
··highly toxic'· to the Eastern oyster. 
one of the species used in pesticide 
testing to represent n1ollusk species 
that li\"L' in estuaries or the ocean. 
EP...\'s classification is based on a 
study sho\\·ing that a concentration 
of less than 0.3 ppn1 is sufficient to 
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reduce the gro\vth of the oysters· 
shells. 28 

. ..\nother aquatic ani1nal affl'cted by 
oryzalin at lo\\" concentrations is the 
\\·ater nea. !Japhnia 1nagna. /Jopbnia 
is one of the species used in pesticide 
testing to represent fresh \Yater inver­
tebrates (insects. other arthropods, 
etc.). An oryzalin concentration of 0.6 
pp111 reduced the \vcight of /Japbnio 
offspring. 29 

Effects on Aquatic Plants 

()ryzalin is toxic to aquatic plants 
at extren1cly lo•v concentrations. For 
cxan1ple. 15 parts per billion (ppb) 
reduces the gro\vth and reproduction 
of duck\vecd. one of the species EPA 
uses to represent aquatic plants in test­
ing for ecological hazards.3° 

Effects on Nontarget Plants: 
Runoff and Drift 

!\or surprisingly. sn1all an1ounts of 
oryzalin are da1naging to plants. For 
exan1ple. 2.2 ppb reduces root grcnvth 
in oat sccdlings. 31 This 1ncans that drill 
or runoff fro1n fields or other areas 
treated \\"ith oryzalin can be sufficient 
ro da111age plants not intended as the 
target of the oryzalin application. 

EPA cstitnatcd the amount of 
oryzalin in runoff assun1ing that just I 
percent of the oryzalin applied (by 
either aerial or ground applications) 
\Yould be carried off by runoff and 
that the lo\vest application rate \vas 
used. The agency found that runoff 
under these conditions \vould be suf­
ficient to da1nage nontarget plants on 
adjacent areas. 52 

For drift, EPA. assurnecl that 5 per­
cent of the an1ount of oryzalin used in 
an aerial application drifts onto adja­
cent areas. The: agency's calculations 
sho\ved that applications at lo\\" rates 
(1 pound per acre) could da1nage non­
target plants on adjacent areas. 52 

Effects on Plant Diseases 

()ryzalin n1;:i.y increase the suscepti­
bility of sorne crop plants to diseases 
caused by fungi. In a study of a flax 
rust conducted at the . ..\ustralian t\a­
tional l."ni\·ersity. a race of flax rust 
that is nonnally not able to attack flax 
gre\Y and de\·eloped like a virulent 
race \\·hen the llax \\·as treated \\·ith 

oryzalin. The researchers belie,·e this 
\\"as a result of orvzalin's abilitv ro 
inhibit the fonnation ·of rnicrotubu!cs.55 
(Sec ""I Io\Y I)oes ()ryzalin Kill Plants?"" 
p. 16.) 

Effects on Mycorrhizal Fungi 

:\lycorrhizal fungi arc beneficial 
fungi that grO\V in association \vith 
nlany plant species and increase their 
gro~vth and sur\·j\·al. Oryzalin reduces 
the gro\vth of son1e of these fungi. 
l{esearchcrs at _r\.uburn Lnivcrsity (Ala­
ban1a) tested 8 species of 1nycorrhizal 
fungi associated \vith southern pines 
and found that oryzalin concc:ntrations 
of 1 pp1n reduced the gro\Yth of one 
species. and concentrations of 3 pptn 
reduced the gro~vth of four species. 
\\"bile this study \vas done in a labo­
ratory, these concentrations (1 and 3 
pp1n) are equal to concentrations 
found in soil after applications 1nadc 
ar typical rates. 31 

Resistance 

\\"ecds can develop resistance: to 
oryzalin, the ability to su1Yi\·e expo­
sure to this herbicide. Son1e popula­
tions of green foxtail, the nlost abun­
dant \Yeed of annual crops gro\vn on 
Canada's prairies, can tolerate six times 
n1orc oryzalin than nonnal plants. 
These populations arc resistant to all 
herbicides in the dinitroaniline 
chctnical frtn1ilv. as \Vell as t\YO other 
herbicides. dit.hiopyr and DCPA.35 

Goosegrass in cotton fields has also 
developed resistance to oryzalin and 
other dinitroaniline hcrbicides.56 ...,.. 
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MEMORANDUM 

To: Village of Hinsdale 

From: Ruta Jensen 

Date: March 10, 2020 

Re: 2019 !PM Report 

The Village has many good procedures in place to care for the grounds. In 2019 the procedures 
were successful so that there was no need for herbicide use on turf. 

I. 2019 Procedures 
Top dress and over seeding are two of the best procedures to use to keep turf healthy. They were 
used consistently. Try to meet the goal for aeration in future years. 

II. Prairie burns 
The prescribed burns for the prairies are the best procedures and should be continued. 

Ill. Rain gardens 
The rain gardens are a good way to handle water runoff. The use of oryzalin herbicide is to be 
discouraged. 

The EPA classifies Oryzalin as a "possible human carcinogen". It can cause embryo loss, and 
decreased weight of offspring as well as smaller litters in animals. 

It can persist in soil up to 3 years, is "moderately mobile" in soils and often contaminates water. 

It also decreases the growth of beneficial mycorrhizal fungi that grow on the roots of plants and 
help them get nutrients from the soil. 

It is also toxic to aquatic plants. 

Perhaps the rain gardens might be a place to use corn gluten meal since these are not large areas. 

IV. Tri-Power Herbicide (MCPA, MCPP, and Dicamba) 
Herbicides are toxic to animals, birds, and fish in various ways. Most especially residents will 
care that their children and dogs are not exposed. We should also care about the ground water. 
Whatever leaves our parks does not have a long way to go to get to Lake Michigan or large 
rivers. 

Specifically, Mecoprop (MCPP) can affect blood clotting and the immune system. It has been 
associated with a higher risk of non-Hodgkins lymphoma. It is an endocrine disruptor, has 
reproductive effects, neurotoxicity, causes kidney/liver damage and birth defects. Dicamba has 
reproductive effects, neurotoxicity, causes kidney/liver damage and birth defects. 



The Village needs to do everything possible to not have to use this herbicide. 

V. Documentation 
In 2019 there was only one set of turf evaluations. There should be one or two additional ones to 
keep track of the progress over the season. 

There should also be documentation from season to season. In the past there were charts with 5 
years worth of data. One was Grounds Maintenance History, which included Aeration, 
Fertilization, Weed Control, Over Seeding, and Top Dressing. The other was Acres of Activity 
for the above procedures by year. These charts help to determine if procedures are needed again 
soon. 

VI. Future 
Please continue the aeration, top dressing , over seeding, and fertilization that keep the turf 
healthy so that chemical herbicides do not need to be used. 

Please explore the wider use of corn gluten meal, including finding less costly sources for it. 

VII. Information about herbicides 
Detailed information about these herbicides is attached: 

MCPP (component of Tri-Power) from this website: 
https://d3n8a8pro 7vhmx.cloudfront.net/ncap/pages/26/attachments/original/ 1428423401 /mecopr 
op mcpp.pdf?l428423401 

Dicamba (component of Tri-Power) from this website: 
https ://d3n8a8pro 7vhmx.cloudfront.net/ncap/pages/26/ attachments/ original/ 14284 23 3 5 7 /dicamb 
a.pdf? 1428423357 

Oryzalin (Surflan Pro) from this website: 
https:!/ d3 n8a8pro 7vhmx.cloudftont.netincap/pages/2 6/attachments/ original/ 14 2 84 23416/ orvzal in. pd f? 14 2 8423416 

VIII. Meeting information 
Information about the !PM meeting needs to be on the Village website and in the Hinsdalean in a 
timely manner so that residents can provide input and make plans to attend the meeting. 



VILLAGE OF 

MEMORANDUM 
--- Es t. 1 8 7 3 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 
RE: 

President Cauley and the Board of Trustees 

Dan Deeter, PE 

March 17, 2020 

Engineering January 2020 Monthly Report 
Executive Summary 

loel\_ 

• 2020 Construction Projects. Staff and our engineering consultants continue to 
work on finalizing the plans and contract documents for the major 2020 
construction projects: 

o 2020 Infrastructure Project 
o E. Chicago Drainage Corridor Project 
o 2020 Maintenance Project 

• A federal Surface Transportation Program (STP) funding shortage in 2020 will 
delay portions of the 2020 Infrastructure project to 2021. 

Engineering Monthly Report Page 1 



VILLAGE OF 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 
FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

President Cauley and the Board of Trustees 

Dan Deeter, PE 

March 17, 2020 

Engineering January 2020 Monthly Report 

The Engineering Division activities include working with the Building Division to 
complete site inspections, managing Capital Improvement Projects, responding to 
drainage complaints, and addressing environmental permit obligations. In total, three 
Engineering employees performed 35 construction site inspections or drainage 
complaint inspections in January. 

Per Hinsdale's combined sewer overflow (CSO) permit #IL0066818, in January 2020 
staff submitted six report to the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA). One 
monthly Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) for each of the Village's four Combined 
Sewer Overflow (CSO) was submitted. The IEPA's Annual Fiscal Report and semi­
annual Long-Term Control Plan Progress Report were also submitted in January. 
Finally, the Village's combined sewer overflow permit (IEPA Permit #IL00066818) will 
expire on 07/31/20. The Village applied to renew the permit on 01/21/20, at least 180-
days prior to the current permit's expiration date per the IEPA requirements. 

The following capital improvement projects and engineering studies are underway: 

2020 Infrastructure Project. (Chicago Avenue from IL Rte 83 to Park Avenue) 

Project Scope: 

• 12-inch watermain replacement on Chicago Avenue from IL Rte 83 to the water 
plant at the northeast corner of Symonds Drive and Park Avenue. 

• 12-inch watermain replacement under the BNSF tracks from Symonds Drive to 
the intersection of Chicago Avenue and S. Park Street. 

• Resurfacing on Chicago Avenue from IL Rte 83 to Garfield Street (70% federal 
funding for construction up to $532,000) 

• Resurfacing on Third Street from Grant to Washington Streets. 

The organization that manages the federal Surface Transportation Program (STP) funds 
in northeastern Illinois, the Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning (CMAP), has 
informed municipalities throughout the area that they have run out of STP funds for 
2020. Projects that were not in the January or March 2020 IDOT lettings will not have 

Engineering Monthly Report Page 2 



VILLAGE OF 

MEMORANDUM 
Es t. 1 8 7 3 

STP funds available in 2020. The 2020 Infrastructure Project was originally scheduled 
for an April 2020 IDOT letting and will not receive STP funding in 2020. 

The DuPage Mayors and Managers Conference (DMMC) has requested an accounting 
from CMAP of the federal fund allocations. CMAP's spreadsheet of previous 
construction years shows cost overruns for a high percentage of projects, which they 
claim caused the funding shortfall in 2020. 

DMMC has stated that projects that were not funded in 2020 will be grandfathered and 
funded in 2021. 

Staff proposes the following actions: 

• Continue design and construction of the 12-inch watermain from the water plant 
to Washington Street in 2020. This construction would include the 12-inch 
watermain under the BNSF tracks from Symonds Drive to Chicago Avenue/S. 
Park Street. 

o The bid documents will include an alternate for directional boring the water 
main under the Memorial Building's south lawn to minimize the disruption 
to events such as Fine Arts Festival, Uniquely Thursdays, and the 
Farmers' Market. Once bids are received, the Village can decide on the 
preferred alternative and timing of water main construction in this area. 

• Delay construction of the 12-inch watermain on W. Chicago Avenue from 
Washington Street to IL Rte 83 until 2021. 

• Delay resurfacing of Chicago Avenue from Garfield Street to IL Rte 83 until 2021 
when STP funding is available. 

• Delay reconstruction of S. Garfield Street from Hinsdale Avenue to 55th Street 
from 2021 to 2022. This would avoid the significant traffic disruption that would 
occur from having construction on S. Garfield Street and Chicago Avenue at the 
same time. 

• Advance reconstruction of E. Eighth Street from Garfield Street to County Line 
Road from 2022 to 2021. 

• Transfer resurfacing of Third Street from Grant to Washington Street to the 2020 
Maintenance Project. 

E. Chicago Drainage Corridor project. This project is designed to improve drainage 
in the area in the blocks immediately south of E. Chicago Street from Elm Street to Oak 
Street, in the Highland Park/Highland Station parking lot, and on Highland Road. 

Engineering Monthly Report Page 3 



VILLAGE OF 

MEMORANDUM 
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Funding is being provided by the Illinois Tollway since this project reduces flooding on 

the Tollway by detaining stormwater that is tributary to the Tollway. Schedule: 

• Late-Feb 2020 - advertise bids 

• Mar 2020 - bid opening 

• 04/07 /19 - First Read at the Village Board of Trustees meeting 

• 04/21/19 - Consent Agenda at the Village Board of Trustees meeting 

• 04/27 /19 - Earliest construction start 

2020 Maintenance Project. Engineering for the project has been awarded to Rempe­

Sharpe & Associates at the 01/28/20 Board of Trustee meeting. Staff's intent is to bid 

this project in March 2020 and begin construction early in the second quarter of 2020. 

Streets and parking lots to be resurfaced include: 

Street Existing Condition Work to be carried out 

Eighth Street from Jackson • +/- 620-feet of HMA • HMA R&R 2" surface 
to Quincy Street pavement 

Maple Street from Monroe • +/- 1850-feet of HMA • HMA R&R 2" surface 
to Grant Streets pavement 

Phillippa Street from Fuller • +/- 830-feet of HMA • HMA patching 
to Minneola Street pavement 

Quincy Street from Stough • +/- 585-feet of HMA • HMA R&R 2" surface 
to Maple Street pavement 

Quincy Street from Eighth • +/- 420-feet of HMA • HMA R&R 2" surface 
St to Melin Park pavement 

Washington Street from • +/- 640-feet of HMA • HMA R&R 2" surface 
Seventh to Eighth Street pavement 

York Road from Village • +/-490-feet of HMA • HMA R&R 2" surface 
Boundary to Ogden Ave. pavement 

Third Street from Grant to • +/-815-feet of HMA • HMA R&R 2" surface 
Washington Streets pavement 

Robbins Park Eighth Street • +/-33,000-SF of HMA • HMA R&R 2" surface 
Parking Lot pavement 

Engineering Monthly Report Page 4 
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MEMORANDUM 
Est. 1 8 7 3 

Post Office Parking lot • +/-14,000-SF of HMA • HMA R&R 2" surface 
(south) pavement 

Table 1.1 (Rev1) 

SCOPE OF WORK NOTES: 

1. Remove and replace 2" hot mix asphalt surface course. 
2. Remove and replace damaged or sunken concrete curb & gutter as necessary. 
3. Improve associated sidewalks to meet ADA standards. 
4. There are nuisance sump pump discharge issues in the project area. Connect sump 

pump discharges to storm sewers throughout the project areas when possible. 

Other Engineering Activities 

2019 Construction Project Summation 

• 2019 Infrastructure Project 
• 2019 Maintenance Project 
• N. Madison Drainage (East) 
• N. Madison Drainage (West) 
• Total 
• Surplus 

2020 Nicor Plans 

Awarded 
$5,899,966 
$ 418,653 
$ 520,760 
$ 771.600 
$7,610,979 

Final Cost 
$5,758,113 
$ 399, 145 
$ 488,114 
$ 787,840 
$7,433,212 
$ 177,767 

Nicor has notified Staff that they may retire (replace) some segments of their "bare 
steel" gas system in Hinsdale in 2020. These segments include: 

• 1-1/2" steel gas main on Chicago Avenue from Clay Street heading east about 
250 feet. 

• 4" steel gas main on Grant Street from the south side of Chicago Street to about 
170 feet north of the north right-of-way line of Chicago Street. 

• 2" steel gas main at the end of Clay Street south of Eighth Street. 

• 2" steel gas main on Grant Street from 57th Street heading north about 600 feet. 

State and Federal Funding Opportunities A summary of the Grant Funds awarded or 
applied for by the Village of Hinsdale is attached. 
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Veeck Park Wet Weather Facility 
Hinsdale, Illinois 

Date 

02/01/20 
02/02/20 
02/03/20 
02104120 
02/05/20 
02106120 
02107120 
02108120 
02109120 
02/10/20 
02/11/20 
02/12/20 
02/13/20 
02/14/20 
02/15/20 
02/16/20 
02/17/20 
02118/20 
02/19/20 
02120120 
02/21/20 
02122120 
02/23/20 
02/24/20 
02/25/20 
02/26/20 
02/27/20 
02128120 
02/29/20 

Overflow 
Ht. Above 

Weir 
(feet) 

Total Precipitation: 
Departure fm Normal: 

Precipitation 
(inches of 
rain water) 

0.03 

0.02 

0.13 

0.13 
0.17 

0.01 

Febraury 
0.49 
-1.30 

YTD 
3.23 
-0.29 

27% of normal rainfall 
Notes: 

1. Rain data from USGS station at Salt Creek & 22nd Street, Oak Brook, IL 



Village of Hinsdale 

l.Sorirce · lProgl'am ··!Purpose >>>!FU.rids Availal>le> • ·.·>>>I> Arrioriri.t I 
Illinois Commerce Commission 
Senator Dillard 
West Suburban Mass Transit 
Illinois Dept of Transportation 
DuPage Mayors & Managers 
Senator Dillard & Rep Bellock 
Representative Bellock 
New Local Transportation Projects 
Lyons Township 
DuPage Mayors & Managers 
IDNR 
!EPA 
!EPA 
West Suburban Mass Transit 
!DOT 
Illinois Dept of Transportation 

Illinois Dept of Transportation 

Crossing Safety Improvement Program Oak Street Bridge - 60% Funding 2015 Capital Budget 
State Capital Bill Oak Street Bridge Effective January 1, 2011 
Car Sale Proceeds Oak Street Bridge Eng/Construction 50/50 Reimbursement 
Federal Highway Bridge Program Oak Street Bridge Phase I July 2010 - 80/20 
Federal Stimulus S. Garfield Reconstruction Paid Through !DOT 
Emergency Repair Program Street resurfacing Upon Project Completion 
State Capital Bill N. Washington Reconstruction Upon issuance of bonds 
State Capital Bill Road Improvements 20% released October, 2010 
Bond Proceeds KLM Park Pavilion Upon Project Completion 
STP Program Oak Street Bridge 2015 Capital Budget 
OSLAD Improvements to KLM Awarded 
ARRA/State Revolving Loan Garfield Sewer Separation Loan docs received 7/05/11 
ARRA/State Revolving Loan Chestnut Sewer Separation Loan docs received 8/16/11 
Car Sale Proceeds Highland Parking Lot 2/3 reimbursement 
Federal Highway Bridge Program Oak Street Bridge Phases II & III !DOT local agency agreem't 
Surface Transportation Program (STP) Garfield Street (Chicago Ave. - 70% SPT match 

55th) resurfacing (letting Jan 2019) 30% local match 
Surface Transportation Program (STP) Chicago Ave (IL Rte 83 - Garfield) 70% SPT match 

resurfacing (letting Jan 2020) 30% local match 
Illinois Dept of Natural Resources OSLAD 
Total 

Renovation of pool 

Village of Hinsdale 
Grant Applications Under Consideration 

$ 4,240,000 
$ 825,000 
$ 395,000 
$ 680,000 
$ 1,632,000 
$ 300,000 
$ 340,000 
$ 389,540 
$ 150,000 
$ 3,830,000 
$ 150,000 
$ 444,160 
$ 3,728,196 
$ 100,000 
$ 5,904,514 
$ 807,000 

$ 760,000 

$ 400,000 
$ 24,605,309 

[S!>urce c · · il'l'!>gra.in ll'ufpose · · >ista.tus> I Ainount >>I 

IDNR PARC 

Total 

G:\Grants\grants awarded 

Renovation of KLM lodge to 
improve ADA accessibility 

75% SPT match 
25o/ci local match 

$ 2,500,000 

$ 2,500,000 

Hev: 03/17/20 



MEMORANDUM 

DATE: March 11 , 2020 

TO: President Cauley and Village Board of Trustees 
Kathleen Gargano, Village Manager 

FROM: Garrett Hummel , Admin istrative Analyst 

RE: Public Services Monthly Report - February 2020 

Provided below is the monthly staff report from the Public Services Department. This 
highlights activities that occurred during the month of February. 

• Roadway division completed seventy-six (76) service requests in February. 

• Public Services had thirteen (13) snow and ice events in February using 251. 75 
tons of salt. 

• Public Services filled potholes in miscellaneous problem/complaint areas and 
water main breaks using five (5) tons of coldpatch. 

• The pruning program is scheduled for winter 2020. The area scheduled to be 
pruned in this cycle is encompassed by Monroe Street on the west, Garfield Street 
on the east, Chicago Avenue on the south and Ogden Avenue on the north. As of 
February 28th a total of 387 trees were pruned. 

• Village staff awarded the bid for the 2020 summer annual program. 
• Village staff awarded the bid for the 2020 mowing and landscape maintenance 

contract. 

• Village staff solicited bids for a custodial services contract. 

• Water division had three (3) water main breaks in February. 

top 
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Village of Hinsdale 
Department of Public Services 

Roadway Division 
Monthly Report - February 2020 

Activity Measures 

Standard Tasks 
February Prev 

2020 Month 

Signs 12 25 

Posts 2 9 

Signs Repai red 3 0 

Cold Mix (tons) 5 4 

Hot Mix (tons) 0 0 

Gravel for Alleys (tons) 2 6 

White Paint (gallons) 0 0 

Yellow Paint (gallons) 0 0 

Basin top Cleaning (man-hours) 8 4 

Alley Grading (man-hours) 14 14 

Alley Trimming (man-hours) 0 0 

Concrete (yards) 0 0 

Snow & Ice Callouts 8 13 

Road Salt Used (tons) 251 301 .75 

Sand Used (tons) 0 0 

Salt & Calcium for walks, stairs, etc. 
15 10 

(tons) 

Leaves Swept Up (yards) 0 0 

Central Business District Sweeps 1 0 

Complete Village Sweeps 0 0 

Parking Lot Sweeps 0 0 

Street Light Poles Repaired 14 0 

Request For Services Completed 76 123 

YTD 2020 

37 

11 

0 

9 

0 

8 

0 

0 

12 

28 

0 

0 

21 

552 .75 

0 

25 

0 

1 

0 

0 

14 

199 
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Sump pump issues 16 65 81 

Pool maintenance (Man hours) 0 0 0 

Parkway Restorations 2 1 3 

Parking meters 2 1 3 

Special Events (man hours) 0 0 0 

Hauling to dump 0 0 0 

Significant issues for this month: 
• Public Services filled potholes in miscellaneous problem/complaint areas 

and water main breaks using five (5) tons of coldpatch . 
• Roadway division completed seventy-six (76) service requests in February. 
• Public Services had thirteen (13) snow and ice events in February using 

251. 75 tons of salt. 
• Roadway division installed two (2) drainage inlets and fifty (50) feet of pipe 

at 2 S. Stough to alleviate standing water issues. 



MEMORANDUM 

Village of Hinsdale 
Department of Public Services 

Forestry Division 
Monthly Report - February 2020 

Trees pruned by Village Staff: 
• Small tree pruning (diameter 10 inches and less) - 347 trees . 
• Completed 12 resident tree work requests, pruning 18 trees. 

Trees pruned by contractor (diameter 10 inches and above): 

• The pruning program is scheduled for winter 2020. The area scheduled to be 
pruned in this cycle is encompassed by Monroe Street on the west, Garfield Street 
on the east, Chicago Avenue on the south and Ogden Avenue on the north . As of 
February 281h a total of 387 trees were pruned. 

Trees removed by Village Staff: 

• 10 public trees were removed in February. 
• 18 public trees removed by staff this calendar year. 
• 4 public trees are currently scheduled for removal by staff. 

Trees removed by contractor: 

• Elm -0 
• Ash - 0 
• Other- 0 
• 0 public trees were removed by a contractor this calendar year. 
• 3 public trees are currently scheduled for removal by contractor. 

Ash trees infested by Emerald Ash Borer detected by Village Staff: 

• 1 public EAB positive ash trees were detected in February; 7 public EAB positive 
ash trees have been detected this calendar year. 

• 0 private EAB positive ash trees were detected in February; 0 private EAB positive 
ash trees have been detected this calendar year. 

Ash trees removed: 

• 4 ash trees were removed this month (4 Village I 0 Contractor). 
• 8 ash trees were removed this calendar year (8 Village I 0 Contractor) . 
• 1529 ash trees have been removed since February 2011 (1276 EAB Positive). 
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Ash trees that have been treated to manage infestation by Emerald Ash Borer: 
• Soil injection treatments are scheduled to be completed in April. 
• Trunk injection treatments are scheduled to be competed in June. 

Elm diseased trees detected by Village Staff: 
• 0 public OED positive elm trees were detected in February; 1 OED positive elm 

trees were detected th is calendar year (1 treated/O untreated). 
• 0 private OED positive elm trees were detected in February; 0 OED positive elm 

trees were detected this calendar year. 

Elm trees removed by Village Staff: 
• 1 diseased trees. 
• 0 storm damaged trees. 

Elm trees that have had diseased limbs removed (amputations): 

• 0 parkway trees. 

Elm trees that have been inoculated for prevention of Dutch elm disease: 
• 437 American elms have been treated this year. 

Tree stumps removed by Village Staff: 

• 0 tree stumps were routed , the mulch removed and the area restored with top soil 
and grass seed . 

Trees Planted: 

• 0 trees were planted through the Village's Planting Program. 
• 0 trees were planted through the Tribute Tree Program. 
• 0 tree was planted through the Resident Reimbursement Program. 

Other: 
• Staff reviewed and commented on 4 tree preservation plans submitted for building 

permits. 
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Tree Preservation (Public Services) 
February Previous 

YTD 2020 
2020 Mo 

Tree Pruning Contractual 159 228 387 

Tree Pruning In-House 16 18 34 

Small Tree Pruning In-House 83 347 430 

Tree Removal Contractual 0 0 0 

Tree Removal In-House 10 8 18 

Trees Planted 0 0 0 

Elm Trees Treated 0 0 0 

Dutch Elm Disease Losses (Private) 0 0 0 

Elm Losses (Public) 0 1 1 

Ash Trees Treated 0 0 0 

Ash Tree Removal - EAB (Private) 0 0 0 

Ash Tree Removal - EAB (Public) In-House In-House In-House 
4 4 8 

Note: since Feb 2011, 1,521 public 
Contracted Contracted Contracted 

Ash trees have been removed 
0 0 0 

Tree Preservation Plan Reviews 4 7 11 



MEMORANDUM 

Village of Hinsdale 
Department of Public Services 

Parks Maintenance Division 
Monthly Report - February 2020 

A f "t M C IVI :y easures 
February Totals 

Job Task Hours Accomplished 

Administration 0 0 
Clean Bathroom 31 4 
Refuse Removal 44.5 44.5 
Fountain Maintenance 0 0 
Litter Removal 26 26 
Weed Removal 0 0 
Brush Pick Up 0 0 
Athletic Field Striping 6.5 5 
Infield Maintenance 0 0 
Athletic Goal/Net Maintenance 0 0 
Turf Repair/Sod Installation 0 0 
Aeration 0 0 
Over seeding 0 0 
Turf Evaluation/Soil Testing 0 0 
Hardwood Mulch Installation 0 0 
Leaf Mulching 0 0 
Mowing 0 0 
Land Clearing 0 0 
Planting Bed Preparation 0 0 
Plant Installation/Removal 0 0 
Flowering Bulb Installation/Removal 0 0 
Tree and Shrub Maintenance 14 14 
Fertilization 0 0 
Watering 0 0 
Pest and Weed Control (chemical) 0 0 
Irrigation Start Up (spring) 0 0 
Irrigation Repair 0 0 

Units 

Hour 

Each Bathroom 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Each Field 

Each Field 

Each Goal 

Hour 

Hour 

Lbs. of Seed 

Each 

Cubic Yard 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Hour 

Each 

Each 
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Irrigation Winterization 0 0 Each 

Playground Maintenance/Repair 114 114 Hour 

Playground Inspection 0 0 Each 

Playground Mulch Installation 0 0 Cubic Yards 

Holiday Decorating 0 0 Hour 

Platform Tennis Repairs 0 0 Each 

Special Events 0 0 Hour 

Building Maintenance 18.5 18.5 Hour 

EquipmenWehicle Maintenance 67 67 Each 

Training/Education 5.5 5.5 Hour 

Skate Park Maintenance 0 0 Hour 

Ice Rink Maintenance 13 13 Hour 

Miscellaneous 5 5 Hour 



Parks Maintenance 
Monthly Highlights - February 2020 

Contractual Maintenance 
• Landscape Maintenance and Mowing 

o Contract will begin April 1st, 2020. 
• Rain Garden Maintenance 

o Spring clean up is scheduled for April 2020. 

General Park Maintenance 
• Bathroom Shelters (KLM) 

o Cleaned: Monday - Friday 
o Remain open to accommodate winter activities. 
o Burns Field will be open for ice rink hours. 

Other 

MEMORANDUM 

• Village staff awarded the bid for the 2020 summer annual program. 
• Village staff awarded the bid for the 2020 mowing and landscape maintenance 

contract 
• Staff worked to restore turf areas at 55th and Park, 55th and Elm, 55th and Oak, 

Glendale and Madison and Brush Hill. 
• Staff dismantled the ice rink and cleaned out the warming house at Burns Field 
• Staff attended IRMA Accident Investigation Training 
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Village of Hinsdale 
Department of Public Services 

Buildings Maintenance Division 
Monthly Report - February 2020 

Building Security and Fire Suppression 
• Repair door latch lock at Veeck Park CSO building second stationary door would 

not bolt shut. 
• Replace two electric strike locks at the Brush Hill Station test all lock for proper 

operation . 
• Reset burglar alarm at the Village Hall. 

HVAC 
• Service to the Police I Fire air handlers replace all filters , drive belts, and grease 

all bearings. 
• Service to large circulating pumps at the Police I Fire clean and grease. 
• Service to the KLM Lodge air handlers replace all filters, drive belts, and grease 

all units. 
• Service to the Village Hall and Memorial Hall air handlers replace all filters and 

check all else for proper operation . 
• Service to air handlers at the Water Plant. 
• Service to lab humidifier unit: replace filter and clean out unit. 
• Replace heating filters on furnaces in Burns Field, KLM Annex, Old Youth Center, 

KLM Caretakers Cottage and Old Hinsdale Humane Society at that time check 
operation of each unit. 

• Check and maintain steam boilers at the Memorial Hall and Village Hall. 
• Repair hot water tank return water line at the Police I Fire Station. The copper line 

had a leak. 
• Check outside air intake controls to make sure fresh air is being taken in during 

winter season. 
• Grease and check hot water boiler pumps at Memorial Hall. 

General Maintenance 
• Repair sink at the Fire Station women's bathroom; replace trap assembly and rod 

out drain line in the wall. 
• Repair toilet Sloan valve at the Police Station staff bathroom first floor. 
• Repair wall hung toilet and lavatory faucet in the Police Station lobby bathroom. 
• Repairs to wall hung sink at the KLM Annex; install new Chicago faucet and trap 

assembly; rehang sink on the wall. 
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• Work on Memorial Hall flagpole: wash off black mold, scrape some of the peeling 
paint and paint bottom half of pole. 

• Remove two old Christmas trees from the KLM Lodge; bring up the two new trees 
the staff had purchased. Clean out storage room. 

• Work on the door latch lock for the Fire Station women's bathroom. The inside 
handle is not staying in the up position. 

• Repair door latch units to main front doors at the KLM Lodge. New parts needed 
to be installed to get the doors to lock. 

• Replace lamps at the Public Services auto shop and clean all the lenses. 
• Replace all the lamps and rebuild one fixture in the Water Plant generator room. 
• Install a new convex outdoor mirror east of Fire Station near the generators. 
• Install a new large soap dispenser in Public Services auto shop. 
• Take boxes to attic at Memorial Hall. 
• Repair file drawer lock in the Village Administration office. 
• Move Brad's office and relocate all the file cabinets for Human Recourses. 
• Work with Eco Clean in all the buildings to check cleaning. 
• Meet with door installation contractor to obtain a proposal on door replacement 

costs at Brush Hill Station. 
• Replace exterior lamps on the north side of Memorial Hall. 
• Move tables and chairs out of Burns Field and bring to Veeck Park. 
• Have Public Services cooling chassis repaired . 
• Meet plumbing contractor at Highland Station to obtain costs on installing a water 

service in the building. 
• Schedule meetings with heating and drywall contractors at Highland Station to 

obtain proposals for repairs . 
• Deliver large trash bags to Police Station they ran out and wanted to borrow some. 

Administration 
• Review new line item account numbers. 
• Conduct a pre-bid tour of Village facilities with custodial contractors. 
• IRMA accident reporting training at Village Hall. 
• Open Custodial bids and review. 
• Snow removal and preparation. 
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Village of Hinsdale 
Department of Public Services 

Water Division 
Monthly Report - February 2020 

Water Activity Measures 
Standard Tasks February Prev Mo 

2020 
Utility Locates (JULIE) 245 249 
B-Box/Service Locates 301 342 

Water Mains Located 68 104 

Main Break Repairs 3 0 
B-Box/Service Repairs 3 0 
Hydrants Replaced/Repaired 4 1 
Service Connections/Inspections 1 1 
Valve Installations/Repairs 0 0 
Valves Exercised 2 0 
Valves Located 15 25 

Leak Investigations 3 4 
Hydrants Flushed 5 1 
High Bill Investigations 0 0 
Water Fountains Serviced/Replaced 0 0 
Disconnect Inspections 2 2 

Meter Repairs 7 4 
Meter/Remote Installs 9 9 
Meters Removed 4 2 
Meter Readings 19 13 

YTD 2020 

494 
643 

172 

3 

3 

5 

2 
0 
2 

40 

7 

6 

0 
0 
4 

11 

18 

6 
32 
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Water Main Break Repairs 

February 2020 Prev Mo YTD 2020 

3 0 3 

February Water Main Break Locations 

Date Address Pipe Sizeffype Air Temp. Duration 
2/03/2020 919 S. Madison 6" Cast Iron 44 5 hrs 
2/13/2020 206 S. Bodin 6" Cast Iron 0 5 hrs 
2/23/2020 605 E. Chicago 6" Cast Iron 45 5 hrs 



Village of Hinsdale 
Department of Public Services 

Sewer Division 

MEMORANDUM 

Monthly Report- February 2020 

Sewer Activity Measures 
Standard Tasks February Prev Mo YTD 2020 

2020 

Catch Basins Replaced/Repaired 0 0 0 
Inlet Replaced/Repaired 0 0 0 
Manhole Replaced/Repaired 0 0 0 
Catch Basins/Inlets Cleaned 0 0 0 
Sewers Cleaned (feet) In-House 0 0 0 
Sewers Cleaned (feet) Contractor 0 0 0 
Sewers Televised (feet) Contractor 0 0 0 
Sewers Replaced/Repaired (feet) 0 0 0 
Sewer Mains Located 4 5 9 
Back-up Investigations 0 0 0 
Manholes Located 8 12 20 
Cave-ins Checked 2 0 2 
Sewer Inspections 0 0 0 
IEPA sampling due to overflow event of 0 1 1 
combined sewers (Veeck CSO) 
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MONTHLY WATER PUMPAGE 
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February 2020 

Standard Tasks Check Oil, Grease Fittings, 
Bacteria Sampling 

Rotate Shafts(Weekly) 
High Service/Pool 

Pumps ~ N/A 
#1 , #2, #3, #4 

Well Pump Motors #2, ~ ~ 
#5, and #10 

Standard Tasks 
February 

Prev Mo 
2020 

Bacteria Samples 24 24 

Field Chlorine 21 21 

Field Turbidities 21 21 

Lab Chlorine 24 27 

Lab Turbidities 24 27 

Lab pH 24 27 

Lab Fluoride 24 27 
Precipitation Readings 0 0 

Temperature Readings (air) 24 27 

Temperature Readings (water) 29 31 

DBP Samples 0 8 
Pumps Serviced 10 10 

Special Well Samples 2 30 
UCMR4 0 0 
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